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SECTION I - GENERAL

DEFINITIONS AND ABBREVIATIONS

This Information Memorandum uses certain definitions and abbreviations which, unless the context otherwise
indicates or implies, shall have the meanings provided below. References to any legislation, act, regulation, rules,
guidelines or policies, circular, notification or clarification shall be to such legislation, act, regulation, rules,
guidelines or policies, circular, notification or clarification as amended, supplemented or re-enacted from time to

time.

Notwithstanding the foregoing, terms in **Main Provisions of the Articles of Association”, “Statement of Possible Tax
Benefits ", “Industry Overview", "Our Business ", “Risk Factors”, " Financial Statements ", " Outstanding Litigation
and Material Developments™ and “Objects and Rationale of the Scheme ", shall have the meaning ascribed to such
terms in those respective sections.

AoA/ Articles of
Association/ Articles

The articles of association of our Company.

Appointed Date

Opening of business hours on the Ist day of April, 2022.

Auditor  or
Auditor

Statutory

The statutory auditor of our Company, being Messrs S R B C & Co LLP bearing
firm registration number 324982E/E300003 and having its address at 12" Floor, the
Ruby, 29 Senapati Bapat Marg, Dadar West, Mumbai, 400 028.

BEL ESOP Plans

Means the employee stock option plan 2011 and employee stock option plan 2015
of BEL.

BEL Options Stock options granted by BEL as per the BEL ESOP Plans.
BEL or Demerged | Bajaj Electricals Limited, a public limited company incorporated under the Indian
Company Companies  Act, 1913  bearing  Corporate  Identification = Number

L31500MH1938PLC009887 and having its registered office at 45/47, Veer Nariman
Road, Mumbai 400001.

BEL Workers’ Union

Bajaj Electricals Kamgar Sanghatana, Pune

Board of Directors/ the
Board/ our Board

The board of Directors of our Company, including all duly constituted Committees
thereof.

BPL or Resulting
Company / our Company/
the Company / we / us

Bajel Projects Limited, a public limited company incorporated on January 19, 2022
under the provisions of the Companies Act, 2013, bearing CIN
U31900MH2022PL.C375133 and having its registered office at 801, Rustomjee
Aspiree, Anik Wadala Link Road, Sion East, Mumbai, 400022.

Company Secretary

Mr. Ajay Nagle.

Demerged Undertaking

Means the entire PT PD Business, undertakings, activities and operations of BEL as
set out in the Scheme as identified by the board of directors of BEL, with all
properties, assets, technical experience and credentials, including for power
transmission and power distribution projects and tower manufacturing, pre-
qualifications, rights and powers and all debts, liabilities, duties and obligations,
litigations, working capital (including all inventories), whether tangible or
intangible, and such other ventures and shall include ancillary and support services
in relation to the same, transferred to the Company as a going concern with

effect from the Appointed Date, including (without limitation):

(1) all the movable and immovable properties (including plant located at RUI —
Plot No. B-7 & RU2- Plot No. B-29, Village Dhoksangvi, MIDC Ranjangaon,
Taluka Shirur, District Pune 412209 and office premises at 801, Rustomjee
Aspiree Anik, Wadala Link Road, Sion East, Mumbai 400022), tangible or
intangible, investments, plant and machinery, electrical installations,
equipment, furniture, fixtures, vehicles, stocks and inventory, leasehold assets

and other properties, real, corporeal and incorporeal, in possession or reversion,




Term _

Description

(i1)

(111)

(iv)

present and contingent assets (whether tangible or intangible) of whatsoever

nature, assets, pertaining to the PT PD Business including cash in hand,
amounts lying in the banks, escrow accounts, claims, powers, authorities,
allotments, approvals, consents, letters of intent, registrations, contracts,
engagements, arrangements, rights, credits, titles, interests, benefits,
advantages, freehold, leasehold rights, brands, sub-letting tenancy rights, leave
and license permissions, no objection certificates, goodwill, other intangibles,
registration, approvals, permits (as defined in the Scheme), authorisations,
trademarks, trade names, patents, patent rights, copyrights, and other industrial
and intellectual properties and credential and rights of any nature whatsoever
including know-how, websites, portals, domain names, or any applications for
the above, assignments and grants in respect thereof, import quotas and other
quota rights, right to use and avail of services of every kind, nature and
description whatsoever, provisions, funds, and benefits (including all work-in
progress), of all agreements, arrangements, deposits, advances, recoverable and
receivables, whether from government, semi-government, local authorities or
any other Person (as defined in the Scheme) including customers, contractors
or other counter parties, etc., all earnest monies and/or deposits, privileges,
liberties, easements, advantages, benefits, exemptions, licenses, privileges and
approvals of whatsoever nature and wheresoever situated, belonging to or in
the ownership, power or possession or control of or vested in or granted in
favour of or enjoyed by BEL in relation to and pertaining to the PT PD
Business;

all other interests or rights (including claim, arbitration awards, etc.) or,
accumulated experience or performance qualifications including financial,
technical, manufacturing and other qualifications, in or arising out of relating
to the PT PD Business together with all respective powers, interests, charges,
privileges, benefits, entitlements, building plans, drawings (including
approvals obtained for such drawings or pending applications for approvals),
approved tenders, past experience and credentials, business track record, brands
and trademarks, patents, copyrights, other intellectual property rights,
industrial and other registrations, licenses, quotas, subsidies, grants, powers and
facilities of every kind, nature and descriptions whatsoever, income tax
(including advance tax, self-assessment tax, regular assessment tax, tax
deducted at source) paid by BEL pertaining to PT PD Business, unutilized
credits relating to excise duties, sales tax, service tax, VAT, GST or any other
Taxes (as defined in the Scheme) by whatever name called belonging to PT PD
Business, tax benefits and other claims and powers, rights to use and avail of
telephones, facsimile connections and other communication facilities,
connections, installations and equipment, utilities, email, internet and leased
lines, utilities, electricity, water and other services, and all other interests in
connection with or relating to the PT PD Business;

right to use the work experience, credential, qualifications, capabilities,
legacies and track record with Government/Non-Government agencies/bodies,
contracts with clients and with vendors (including technical parameters, past
performance, track record, financials etc.) of BEL, whether or not pertaining to
the PT PD Business, acquired by reason of the completion of various projects
and works, certificates of completion of projects or works issued by the clients
and the right to use all these for qualifying for any tender or project that may
be issued at any time;

all receivables, loans and advances, including accrued interest thereon, all
advance payments, earnest monies and/or security deposits, payment against
warrants, if any, or other entitlements of BEL in relation to and pertaining to




the PT PD Business;

(v) all the debts, liabilities, duties and obligations, funded and non-funded
facilities, bank guarantees, performance guarantees, corporate guarantees,
letters of credit including contingent liabilities of BEL in relation to and
pertaining to the PT PD Business after following the due process prescribed by
lenders/ Persons (as defined in the Scheme) wherever required;

(vi) all contracts (including vendor contracts, lease contracts, customer contracts of
every nature and revenue and receipts associated therewith), agreements,
entitlements, pre-qualifications, purchase orders/service orders, operation and
maintenance contracts, memoranda of understanding, memoranda of
undertaking, memoranda of agreements, memoranda of agreed points, bids,
tenders, tariff orders, open order book(s), expression of interest, letter of intent,
hire purchase agreements, lease/licence agreements, tenancy rights,
agreements/panchnamas for right of way, equipment purchase agreements,
agreement with customers, purchase and other agreements with the
supplier/manufacturer of goods/service providers, other arrangements,
undertakings, deeds, bonds, schemes, insurance covers and claims and
clearances and other instruments of whatsoever nature and description, whether
written, oral or otherwise and all rights, title, interests, claims and benefits
thereunder in relation to and pertaining to the PT PD Business;

(vii) all civil, legal or other litigations and proceedings in relation to the PT PD
Business;

(viii)all books, records, files, papers, engineering and process information, records
of standard operating procedures, computer programs/ software along with
their licenses, drawings, manuals, data, catalogues, quotations, sales and
advertising materials, lists of present and former customers and suppliers,
customer credit information, customer pricing information and other records
whether in physical or electronic form, in connection with or relating to the PT
PD Business; and

(ix) all Transferring Employees (as defined in the Scheme), provided that BEL shall
exclude the I[llumination Business.

It is clarified that any question as to whether or not a specified asset or liability
pertains to the Demerged Undertaking or arises out of the activities or operations of
Demerged Undertaking shall be decided by the Demerged Company.

Director(s) Any or all the directors on our Board, as may be appointed from time to time.

Draft Information | The draft information memorandum dated September 16, 2023 filed with the Stock

Memorandum Exchanges issued in accordance with the applicable laws as prescribed by SEBI.

Effective Date September 1, 2023

Eligible Shareholders Eligible holder(s) of the Equity Shares of BEL as on the Record Date.

Equity Shares Unless otherwise specified, fully paid-up Equity Shares of our Company of face
value of INR 2.

Executive Director(s) An executive director of our Company, unless otherwise specitied.

Financial Statements

Audited standalone financial statements of our Company since incorporation i.e.,
January 19, 2022 till the period ended March 31, 2023 and restated audited
standalone financial statements of Company for the quarter ended June 30, 2023.

Group Companies

The companies (other than our Promoters) with which our Company had related
party transactions, during the period for which financial information is disclosed in
this Information Memorandum, as covered under the applicable acuoun.mng

standards, and such other companies as considered material by the Board O'Flj




Term _ Description o el
Directors. For turther details on our Group Companies, see “Group Companies™ on
page 94.
Independent Director A non-executive, independent director of our Company as per the Companies Act,

2013 and the SEBI LODR Regulations.

Information
Memorandum

This information memorandum dated December 08,2023 filed with the Stock
Exchanges.

[llumination Business

Means the illumination division of the EPC segment of BEL as set out in the Scheme
comprising of providing complete lighting solutions for street lights, for all class of
streets, area/fagade lighting, landscape lighting coupled with sustainable solar
solutions, smart poles which are integrated with multiple applications, populated on
a single dashboard for easy access and maintenance for the city supervisors. This
division also undertakes special lighting projects such as at power plants, stadiums,
smart cities and city beautification in the form of architectural lighting.

Key Managerial Personnel
/ KMP

Key managerial personnel of our Company as identified in the section titled “Our
Management” beginning on page 72 of this Information Memorandum.

Materiality Policy

Materiality policy adopted by the Board of Directors at its meeting dated September
16, 2023, in accordance with the SEBI ICDR Regulations.

MoA/ Memorandum/

Memorandum of

Association

The memorandum of association of our Company, as amended from time to time.

NCLT

National Company Law Tribunal, Mumbai.

Non-Executive Director(s)

A non-executive director of our Company, unless otherwise specified.

Options

Means the stock options issued by the Company pursuant to the Special Purpose
ESOP Scheme.

Power Transmission and
Power Distribution
Business/ PT PD Business

Means all business and related ventures of the EPC segment, comprising of
providing solutions that include design, engineering, procurement, construction,
project management and managing all aspects of project execution from
conceptualizing to commissioning, and providing end-to-end EPC solutions or any
combination of individual services, depending on customer's needs and market
opportunity, and excludes the Illumination Business.

Promoter Group

Persons and entities constituting our promoter group in terms of Regulation 2(1)(pp)
of the SEBI ICDR Regulations. For details, see section titled “Our Promoter and
Promoter Group™ on page 86 of this Information Memorandum.

Promoters/ Our Promoters

The promoters of our Company, being Shekhar Bajaj, Madhur Bajaj, Niraj Bajaj,
Rajivnayan Bajaj, and Sanjivnayan Bajaj.

Ranjangaon Unit |

Means the manufacturing facility situated at Plot No. B-7, Village Dhoksangvi,
MIDC Ranjangaon, Taluka Shirur, District, Pune, 412209

Ranjangaon Unit 2

means the manufacturing facility situated at Plot No. B-29, Village Dhoksangvi,
MIDC Ranjangaon, Taluka Shirur, District, Pune, 412209

Ranjangaon Unit 3

means the manufacturing facility situated at Plot No. D-45 & D-46, Ranjangaon
Industrial Area, Taluka Shirur, District, Pune, 412209

Record Date

September 14, 2023

Registered Oftice

The registered office of our Company is situated at 801, Rustomjee Aspiree Anik,
Wadala Link Road, Sion East, Mumbai, 400022.

RoC / Registrar of | The Registrar of Companies, Maharashtra at Mumbai.
Companies
Scheme The scheme of arrangement under the provisions of sections 230 to 232 and other

applicable provisions of the Companies Act, 2013 between BEL, BPL and their
respective shareholders as approved by the NCLT by way of its order dated June 8,
2023 with respect to the demerger of the Demerged Undertaking from BEL to BPL.
A copy of the Scheme is available at the website of the Company at
https://bajelprojects.com.

Share Entitlement Ratio

Share entitlement ratio as set out in the Scheme being 1 Equity Share of the face
value of INR 2 each fully paid-up of BPL being issued and allotted for every 1 Equity
Share of face value INR 2 each fully paid up held by the shareholders of BEL.




Special
Scheme

Purpose

| dated September 16, 2023 in accordance with Clause 9 of the Scheme.

Conventional and General Terms/Industry related terms/ Abbreviations

W Term | S ~ Description
Air Act The Air (Prevention and Control of Pollution) Act, 1981
ACS Average cost of supply
ADMS Advanced Distribution Management System
AIS Air Insulated Substation
ARR Average Revenue Realized
AS/Accounting | Accounting Standards as issued by the Institute of Chartered Accountants of India
Standard
AT&C Losses | Aggregated Technical Commercial and Collection Losses
Axis Bank Axis Bank Limited
Boilers Act The Boilers Act, 1923
BSE BSE Limited
BU Billing Unit
CAGR Compound Annual Growth Rate
CAPEX Capital expenditure
CEA Central Electricity Authority
CEET Compagnie Energie Electrique Du Togo
Competition Competition Act, 2002
Act
CDSL Central Depository Services (India) Limited
CERC Central Electricity Regulatory Commission
CIBIL TransUnion CIBIL Limited (formerly Credit Information Bureau (India) Limited)
Ckms Circuit kilo meters
CIN Corporate Identification / [dentity Number

Companies Act

Companies Act, 2013, read with the rules, regulations, clarifications and modifications
thereunder

CRISIL Credit Rating Information Services of India Limited

Cr.P.C. The Criminal Procedure Code, 1973

Designated BSE

Stock

Exchange

DIN Director Identification Number

DISCOM Distribution company

EBITDA Eamings before interest, taxes, depreciation and amortization
EHV Extra High-Voltage

ESOP Employee stock options plan

ESI Act The Employees State Insurance Act, 1948

EPA The Environment (Protection) Act, 1986

EPC Engineering, Procurement and Construction

EPF Act The Employees” Provident Funds and Miscellaneous Provisions Act, 1952

Explosives Act

The Explosives Act, 1884

EV

Electric vehicle

BEY./EY

Financial Year

Factories Act

The Factories Act, 1948

FDI

Foreign Direct Investment

FIR First Information Report
GDP Gross Domestic Product
GIS Gas Insulated Switchgear
Gol/ Government of India




B TermEB W] o) e g e i A S R en i e A PR R e e |
Government
GPL G.E.T. Power Limited
GSDP Gross State Domestic Product
GW Gigawatt
Hazardous The Hazardous Wastes (Management and Handling) Rules, 1989
Wastes Rules
HCR Rules The Manufacture, Storage and Import of Hazardous Chemical Rules, 1989
HT High-tension
HTLS High temperature low sag
HV High Voltage
HVDC High voltage direct current
HVDS High voltage distribution system
ICAI Institute of Chartered Accountants of India
ICDR SEBI (Issue of Capital and Disclosure Requirements) Regulations, 2018, as amended
Regulations/ from time to time.
SEBI  ICDR
Regulations
ICE Internal Combustion Engine
IEA International Energy Agency
IND AS Indian Accounting Standards prescribed under Section 133 of the Companies Act, as
notified under Rule 3 of Companies (Indian Accounting Standard) Rules, 2015
Indian GAAP Generally Accepted Accounting Principles in India
INR Indian National Rupee
IPC The Indian Penal Code, 1860
IMFC Judicial Magistrate of First Class
KPLC Kenya Power and Lighting Company
KV Kilovolt
kWh Kilowatt hour
LT Low-tension
MIDC Maharashtra Industrial Development Corporation
MMT Million metric tons
MMTPA Million metric tons per annum
MRTU and | Maharashtra Recognition of Trade Unions and Prevention of Unfair Labour Practices Act,
PULP Act 1971
MSME Micro, Small and Medium Enterprises
MVA Megavolt-amperes
MW Megawatt
N/A or N.A. Not Applicable
NEP National Electricity Plan
NPCIL Nuclear Power Corporation of India Limited
NSDL National Securities Depository Limited
NSE National Stock Exchange of India Limited
PAN Permanent Account Number
PAT Profitafter tax
PMA Project Management Agency
PIL Act The Public Liability Insurance Act, 1991
PM-KUSUM Pradhan Mantri Kisan Urja Suraksha evam Utthaan Mahabhiyan
PNB Punjab National Bank
PGCL PowerGrid Corporation of India Limited
Pvt. Private
R-APDRP Restructured Accelerated Power Development & reforms Program
RDSS Revamped Distribution Sector Scheme
RPO Renewable Purchase Obligation
SAARC South Asian Association for Regional Cooperation
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=E

Supervisory Control and Data Acquisition

SCRA Securities Contracts (Regulation) Act, 1956 as amended from time to time

SCRR Securities Contracts (Regulation) Rules, 1957

SEBI Securities and Exchange Board of India

SEBI Act Securities and Exchange Board of India Act, 1992, as amended from time to time.

SEBI  Scheme | Master Circular No. SEBI/HO/CFD/DILI1/CIR/P/2021/0000000665 on (i) Scheme of

Circular Arrangement by Listed Entities; and (ii) Relaxation under Sub-rule (7) of rule 19 of the

Securities Contracts (Regulation) Rules, 1957 dated November 23, 2021.

SEBI LODR | Securities and Exchange Board of India (Listing Obligations and Disclosure Requirements)

Regulations /| Regulations, 2015, as amended, including instructions and clarifications issued by SEBI from

SEBI Listing | time to time.

Regulations

SERC State Electricity Regulatory Commissions

State States in India

Stock BSE and NSE

Exchanges

TBCB Tariff Based Competitive Bidding

TOTEX Total expenditure including capital and operational expenditure

TSTRANSCO | Transmission Corporation of Telangana Limited

UDAY Ujwal DISCOM Assurance Yojana

USD/US$/$ | United States Dollar, the official currency of the United States of America

UPPTCL Uttar Pradesh Power Transmission Corporation Limited

Water Act The Water (Prevention and Control of Pollution) Act, 1974

Willful A willful defaulter, as defined under Regulation 2(1)(1ll) of the SEBI ICDR Regulations.

defaulter

YoY Year over year .
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PRESENTATION OF FINANCIAL, INDUSTRY AND MARKET DATA

All references to “India™ are to the Republic of India and all references to the “Government™ are to the Government
of India.

Unless stated otherwise, all references to page numbers in this Information Memorandum are to the page numbers of
this Information Memorandum.

FINANCIAL DATA

Unless stated otherwise, the financial data in this Information Memorandum is derived from our Financial Statements.
Our Company publishes its Financial Statements in Indian Rupees. Our Financial Statements, including the report
issued by the Statutory Auditor, included in this Information Memorandum, have been prepared in accordance with
Ind AS.

Our fiscal year commences on April 1 and ends on March 31 of each year, so all references to a particular fiscal year
are to the 12 (twelve) month period ended March 31 of that year. In terms of Section 2(41) of the Companies Act, for
companies which have been incorporated on or after January 1 of a year, the financial year will be the period ending
on March 31 of the following year, in respect whereof the financial statement of the company or body corporate is
prepared. Therefore, the first financial year of our Company shall be from January 19, 2022 to March 31, 2023.

Financial information in respect of the Demerged Undertaking forms part of the audited financial statements prepared
by BEL and is reported separately. The reported financial statements of BEL are available on the website of the BSE
and NSE and on the website of BEL, respectively. The reference to the audited financial information of BEL is being
provided solely for information purposes and such information does not form part of the Information Memorandum.

Certain figures contained in this Information Memorandum, including financial information, have been subject to
rounding off adjustments. All decimals have been rounded off to two decimal points. In certain instances, (i) the sum
or percentage change of such numbers may not conform exactly to the total figure given: and (ii) the sum of the
numbers in a column or row in certain tables may not conform exactly to the total figure given for that column or row.
Further, any figures sourced from third-party industry sources may be rounded off to other than two decimal points,
to conform to their respective sources.

CURRENCY OF PRESENTATION

All references to "Rupees™ or %" or “Rs.” or "INR™ or “Re™ are to Indian Rupees, the official currency of the Republic
of India. In this Information Memorandum, our Company has presented certain numerical information “lakh™,
“million™ and “crores™ units or in whole numbers where the numbers have been too small to represent in such units.
One million represents 1,000,000 and one billion represents 1,000,000,000. One lakh represents 100,000 and one
crore represents 10,000,000. However, where any figures that may have been sourced from third-party industry
sources are expressed in denominations other than lakhs, such figures appear in this Information Memorandum
expressed in such denominations as provided in their respective sources.

INDUSTRY AND MARKET DATA

Unless stated otherwise, industry and market data and various forecasts used throughout this Information
Memorandum have been obtained from publicly available information, industry sources and government publications.

Industry sources as well as govemment publications generally state that the information contained in those
publications has been obtained from sources believed to be reliable but their accuracy and completeness and
underlying assumptions are not guaranteed and their reliability cannot be assured.

Although we believe that industry data used in this Information Memorandum is reliable, it has not been independently
verified by our Company and our affiliates or advisors. Such data involves risks, uncertainties and numerous
assumptions and is subject to change based on various factors, including those discussed in the section titled “Risk
Factors™ on page 21 of this Information Memorandum. Accordingly, investment decisions should not be based solely
on such information.
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The data used in these sources may have been reclassified by us for the purposes of presentation. Data from these
sources may also not be comparable. Further, the extent to which the industry and market data presented in this
Information Memorandum is meaningful depends on the reader’s familiarity with and understanding of the
methodologies used in compiling such data. There are no standard data gathering methodologies in the industry in
which we conduct our business, and methodologies and assumptions may vary widely among different industry
sources.

TIME

All references to time in this Information Memorandum are to Indian Standard Time.
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FORWARD LOOKING STATEMENTS

This Information Memorandum contains certain “forward-looking statements”. All statements contained in this
Information Memorandum that are not statements of historical fuct constitute “forward-looking statements”. These
Jforward looking statements can generally be identified by words or phrases such as “aim”, “anticipate”, “are likely ",
“believe”, “can”, “continue”, “could”, “expect”, “estimate”, “intend", “is likely", “may ", “objective”, “plan”,
“potential " “project”, “pursue” “shall”, “should”, “will ", “would", “will continue”, “will pursue”, “will likely
result”, or other words or phrases of similar meaning. Similarly, statements that describe our strategies, objectives,
plans or goals are also forward-looking statements. However, these are not the exclusive means of identifving
Sforward-looking statements. All statements regarding our expected financial condition and prospects are forward
looking statements. All forward looking statements are based on our current plans, estimates, presumptions and
expectations, and are subject to risks, uncertainties and assumptions about us that could cause actual results and
property valuations to differ materially from those contemplated by the relevant forward-looking statement.

Important factors that could cause actual results to differ materially from our expectations include, but are not limited
to the following:

e Uncertainty in the integration of Demerged Undertaking into our newly incorporated Company;

e Uncertainty in relation to continuing effect of the COVID-19 pandemic on our business and operations;

e Availability, procurement, delay or cancellation of projects in relation to the Power Transmission and Power
Distribution Business;
Our ability to successtully implement our strategy and / or growth plans;
Our ability to execute projects in a timely manner in relation to the Power Transmission and Power Distribution
Business;
Failure to sustain our growth or expand our customer base;
The loss of one or more members of our senior management team or an inability to attract and / or retain qualified
personnel;

e Other factors beyond our control.

For a further discussion of factors that could cause our actual results to differ, refer to section titled “Risk Factors™ on
page 21 of this Information Memorandum. By their nature, certain market risk disclosures are only estimates and
could be materially different from what actually occurs in the future. Further, actual results may diftfer materially from
those suggested by the forward-looking statements due to risks or uncertainties or assumptions associated with the
expectations with respect to, but not limited to, regulatory changes pertaining to the industry in which our Company
operates and our ability to respond to them, our ability to successfully implement our strategy, our growth and
expansion, technological changes, our exposure to marketrisks, general economic and political conditions which have
an impact on our business activities or investments, the monetary and fiscal policies of India, inflation, deflation,
unanticipated turbulence in interest rates, foreign exchange rates, equity prices or other rates or prices, the performance
of the financial markets in India and globally, changes in domestic laws, regulations and taxes, changes in competition
in its industry and incidents of any natural calamities. As a result, actual future gains or losses could materially differ
from those that have been estimated and are not a guarantee of future performance.

These statements are based on the management’s belief and assumptions, which in turn are based on currently
available information. Although we believe the assumptions upon which these forward-looking statements are based
are reasonable, any of these assumptions could prove to be inaccurate, and the forward-looking statements based on
these assumptions could be incorrect. Future looking statements speak only as of the date of this Information
Memorandum. Neither we nor our Promoters, Directors, or any of their respective affiliates have any obligation to
update or otherwise revise any statements reflecting circumstances arising after the date hereof or to reflect the
occurrence of underlying events, even if the underlying assumptions do not come to fruition.




SECTION I1 -INFORMATION MEMORANDUM SUMMARY

This section is a summary of specific disclosures included in this Information Memorandum and is neither exhaustive
nor does it purport to contain a summary of all disclosures or details relevant to prospective investors. For additional
information and further details with respect to any of the information summarized below, please refer to the relevant
sections of this Information Memorandum. Unless otherwise stated, the financial information in this section is derived
from the Financial Statements.

OVERVIEW OF INDUSTRY

Power is among the most critical components of infrastructure, crucial for the economic growth, industry, and welfare
of nations. The Ministry of Power, Government of India has made significant efforts over the past decades to turn the
country from one with a power shortage to one with a surplus by establishing a single national grid, fortifying the
distribution network, and achieving universal household electrification. Increasing per capita electricity consumption,
growing urbanization and industrialization, and electrification of vehicles and industrial processes will boost the
country’s electricity demand in the coming years. (Source: Frost & Sullivan, Transmission and Distribution EPC
Business in India, June 2023)

As India embarks on the path of sustainability and low-carbon electricity generation to meet the country’s growing
energy demand, modemizing and augmenting the existing transmission and distribution networks would be a
necessity. The government is encouraging investments in these sectors through a multitude of policies and reforms.
Our Company is well positioned to take advantage of this growing need with sufficient experience in the industry.
(Source: Frost & Sullivan, Transmission and Distribution EPC Business in India, June 2023)

For further details, please see section titled “Industry Overview™ on page 52 of this Information Memorandum.

OVERVIEW OF BUSINESS

Our Company was incorporated on January 19, 2022, as a wholly owned subsidiary of BEL under the Companies
Act.

Pursuant to the Scheme and the transter of the Demerged Undertaking of BEL into the Company, the Company is
primarily engaged in providing solutions that include EPC and project management for all aspects of project execution
from conceptualizing to commissioning for the PT PD Business. The Company’s business comprises of providing
end-to-end EPC solutions or any combination of individual services, depending on customer’s needs and market
opportunity. The Company’s business can be broadly segregated into (i) the power transmission EPC sub-segment,
which is primarily engaged in construction of EHV transmission lines using lattice towers, monopoles, cables, etc.,
and AIS and GIS sub-stations on turnkey basis; and (ii) the power distribution EPC sub-segment, which is primarily
engaged in providing turnkey solutions for power distribution, feeder separation, rural electrification, and
underground cabling.

For further details, please see section titled *“Our Business™ on page 61 of this Information Memorandum.

PROMOTERS OF THE COMPANY
The Promoters of our Company are:

Mr. Shekhar Bajaj;

Mr. Madhur Bajaj;

. Niraj Bajaj;

Mr. Rajivnayan Bajaj:and
Mr. Sanjivnayan Bajaj.

e o o o o
=

SHAREHOLDING OF PROMOTER AND PROMOTER GROUP

The shareholding of our Promoters and the members of our Promoter Group as on the date of this Information
Memorandum, are detailed below:
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Sr. Name of the Shareholder No. of Equity Shares % of paid up capital
No.
Promoters
1. Shekhar Bajaj 18,14,639 1.58
2. Madhur Bajaj 2.00.000 0.17
3 Niraj Bajaj 11.30,882 0.98
4. Rajivnayan Bajaj 0 0.00
5. Sanjivnayan Bajaj 4.28.749 0.37
Sub-Total (A) 35,74,270 3.1
Promoter Group
1. Kiran Bajaj 75,45,224 6.56
2 Geetika Bajaj 21,60,084 1.88
3. Vanraj Bajaj* 18,43,556 1.60
4. Pooja Bajaj 15.41.875 1.34
S Sunaina Kejriwal 12,40,730 1.08
6. Minal Bajaj 6.94,674 0.60
7. Niravnayan Bajaj 2,82.507 0.25
8. Kumud Bajaj 2,00.000 0.17
9. Neelima Bajaj Swamy 2,00,000 0.17
10. Suman Jain 1,10,700 0.10
11. Kriti Bajaj 1,01,297 0.09
12. Shefali Bajaj 33,767 0.03
13, Deepa Bajaj 1,126 0.00
14. Nimisha Jaipuria 0.00 0.00
15. Rishabnayan Bajaj 0.00 0.00
16. Siddhant Bajaj 0.00 0.00
117.. Sanjali Bajaj 0.00 0.00
18. Aryaman Kejriwal 0.00 0.00
19. Nirvaan Kejriwal 0.00 0.00
20. Aarav Swamy 0.00 0.00
21 Vihaan Jaipuria 0.00 0.00
22 Sheetal Bajaj 0.00 0.00
23. Rajivnayan Bajaj HUF 0.00 0.00
24. Sanjivnayan Bajaj HUF 0.00 0.00
25 Vanraj Bajaj Trust (Kiran Bajaj as | 10,00,000 0.87
a Trustee)
26. Neelima Bajaj Swamy Family | 8,12,973 0.71
Trust (Neelima Bajaj Swamy as a
Trustee)
27 Nimisha Jaipuria Family Trust | 6,28,043 0.55
(Nimisha Jaipuria as a Trustee)
28. Niravnayan Trust (Niraj Bajaj as a | 5,24.721 0.46
Trustee)
29. Kriti Bajaj Family Trust (Minal | 5,00,000 0.43
Niraj Bajaj as a Trustee)
30. Niravnayan Bajaj Family Trust | 5,00,000 0.43
(Niraj Bajaj as a Trustee)
3l Rishab Family Trust (Rajivnayan | 4,71,052 0.41
Bajaj as a Trustee)
32. Sanjali Family Trust (Sanjivnayan | 2,62,717 0.23
Bajaj as a Trustee)
33. Siddhant Family Trust | 2,62,717 0123
(Sanjivnayan Bajaj as a Trustee)
34, Nimisha Bajaj Family Trust | 2,06,575 0.18
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Sr. Name of the Shareholder No. of Equity Shares % of paid up capital
No.
(Madhur Bajaj as a Trustee)
35. Madhur Neelima Family Trust | 1,25,800 0.11
(Kumud Bajaj as a Trustee)
36. Kumud Neelima Family Trust | 1,25,800 0.11
(Madhur Bajaj as a Trustee)
37. Kumud Nimisha Family Trust | 1,25,800 0.11
(Madhur Bajaj as a Trustee)
38. Madhur Nimisha Family Trust | 1,25,799 0.11
(Kumud Bajaj as a Trustee)
39. | Neelima Bajaj Family Trust | 21,644 0.02
(Kumud Bajaj as a Trustee)
40. Deepa Trust 0.00 0.00
41. Sanjali Trust 0.00 0.00
42. Siddhant Trust 0.00 0.00
43. Rishab Trust 0.00 0.00
44, Aryaman Trust 0.00 0.00
45. Nirvaan Trust 0.00 0.00
46. Rajiv Trust 0.00 0.00
47. Sanjiv Trust 0.00 0.00
48. Anant Bajaj Trust 0.00 0.00
49. Nirav Trust 0.00 0.00
50. Nimisha Trust 0.00 0.00
51, Aryaman Family Trust 0.00 0.00
52. Nirvaan Family Trust 0.00 0.00
53, Geetika Shekhar Bajaj Family | 0.00 0.00
Trust
54. Estate of Rahulkumar Bajaj 0.00 0.00
554 Bajaj Investment Trust 0.00 0.00
56. Jamnalal Sons Private Limited 2,25.48,276 19.59
57. Bajaj Holdings And Investment | 1,91,36,840 16.63
Limited
S8. Baroda Industries Private Limited | 14,12,738 1.23
59. Hind Musafir Agency Limited 12.88.000 1.12
60. Bajaj International Private Limited | 9,17,881 0.80
61. Hercules Hoists Limited 6,24.596 0.54
62. Shekhar Holdings Private Limited | 5,40,253 0.47
63. Rahul Securities Private Limited 4,67,093 0.41
64. Bachhraj FactoriesPrivate Limited | 1,05.466 0.09
65. Bachhraj & Company Private | 66,585 0.06
Limited
66. Bajaj Sevashram Private Limited 5,550 0.00
67. Kamalnayan Investments And | 1,110 0.00
Trading Private Limited
68. Madhur Securities Private Limited | 1,110 0.00
69. Niraj Holdings Private Limited 1,110 0.00
70. Rupa Equities Private Limited 1,110 0.00
71. Sanraj Nayan Investments Private | 1,110 0.00
Limited
72. Bajaj Trading Company 0.00 0.00
78, RDR Ventrues LLP 0.00 0.00
74. Aryan Nayan Realty LLP 0.00 0.00




Sr. Name of the Shareholder No. of Equity Shares % of paid up capital
No. i
Sub-Total (B) 6,87,68,009 59.75
Total (A+B) 7.23,42,279 62.85

*Master Vanraj Bajaj, a member of our Promoter Group, holds 18,43,556 equity shares that are subject to transfer
restrictions and categorized/shown as/under 'number of shares pledged or otherwise encumbered', in compliance with
the directives issued by the Hon 'ble High Court, Bombay. These restrictions will continue until Master Vanraj Bajaj
attains majority. Please refer to the Notes on Capital Structure in the section titled “Capital Structure” on page 39

of this Information Memorandum.

(% in lkh)

Particulars For the period April 1, 2023 toFor the period January 19,2022

June 30, 2023# (stub period) to March 31, 2023*
(previous financial year)

Share Capital (including share capital 2,297.48 50.00

suspense account)

Net Worth 56,421.30 19.89

Revenue from operations 20,501.14 3

Profit/(Loss) after tax (170.42) (30.11)

Earnings/(Loss) per share (in ) as per (0.15) (1.20)

denomination % 2/- per share

Net asset value per share (in %) as per 49.12 0.80

denomination % 2/- per share

Total borrowings - -

*January 19, 2022 being the date of incorporation, the first year financials of the Company, is for the period January

19,2022 to March 31, 2023.

#Eigures reported above for the period April 1, 2023 to June 30, 2023 are afier taking into consideration the

Demerged Undertaking.

For further details, please see section titled “Financial Statements™ on page 96 of this Information Memorandum.

There have been no qualifications by our Statutory Auditors in the Financial Statements.

For further details, please see section titled “Financial Statements™ on page 96 of this Information Memorandum.

The summary of outstanding or pending litigations involving our Company, Directors, Promoters and Group
Companies. as applicable, in terms of our Materiality Policy on the date of this Information Memorandum is set out
below:

Company o A0y - ‘
By our | 1 Nil* Nil - 1 6.63
Company

Against Nil Nil* Nil - 16

our




Company

Directors o . S T A 1] i T
By our | Nil Nil Nil - Nil Nil

Directors

Against Nil Nil Nil - Nil Nil

our

Directors 1

Promoters ot A ARl e

By our | Nil Nil Nil Nil Nil Nil

Promoters

Against 12 Nil Nil Nil 17 2090.97

our

Promoters

Glhup Comlghaies . AR T Sy i e S T
By our | 207 Nil** Nil - Nil** 26.07

Group

Companies

Against 1 Nil** Nil - Nil** Nil

our Group

Companies

*As per para no 15.7 of the Scheme, the tax liabilities and tax demands or refunds received or to be received by the
Demerged Company for a period prior to the Appointed Date in relation to the Demerged Undertaking shall not be
transferred as part of the Demerged Undertaking to the Resulting Company.

** As per the Materiality Policy of the Company.

For further details, please see section titled “Outstanding Litigation and Material Developments™ on page 98 of this
Information Memorandum.

Please see the section on “Risk Factors™ on page 21 of this [nformation Memorandum.

A summary of our contingent liabilities as on June 30, 2023 are as set out below:

® in lakh)

Claims against the Company not acknowledged as debt 360.58 il
Disputed excise and service tax liability INil INil
Disputed Value added tax and Central Sales Tax liability INil Nil
Total 360.58 INil

*January 19, 2022 being the date of incorporation, the first year financials of the Company, is for the period Junuary
19, 2022 to March 31, 2023.

# Figures reported above for the period April 1, 2023 to June 30, 2023 are after taking into consideration the
Demerged Undertaking.

For turther details, please see note on contingent liabilities in the section titled ““Financial Statements™ on page 96 of




this Information Memorandum.

SUMMARY OF RELATED PARTY TRANSACTIONS

Please refer to the note on related party transactions in the section titled “Financial Statements™ on page 96 of this
Information Memorandum.

FINANCING ARRANGEMENTS FOR PURCHASE OF SECURITIES

There have been no financing arrangements whereby our Promoters, members of our Promoter Group, or our directors
and their relatives have financed the purchase by any other person of securities of our Company, other than in the
normal course of business of the financing entity, during a period of six months immediately preceding the date of
this Information Memorandum.

e

WEIGHTED AVERAGE PRICE AT “HIC‘H THE EQUITY SHARE_ 'ERE ACQUIRE D

IN THE ONE Y'EAR PRECED G TH

MEMORANDU!

Other than the Equity Shares issued to the Eligible Shareholders of BEL pursuant to and in consideration for the
Scheme, no Equity Shares have been acquired by the Promoters in the one year preceding the date of this Information
Memorandum.

The weighted average price at which Equity Shares were acquired by the Promoters in the one year preceding the date
of this Information Memorandum is:

Name No. of Equity Shares|Weighted Average
Acquired pursuant | price per Equity
to the Scheme Shares (in INR)

Promoter
Shekhar Bajaj 18.14.639 Not applicable
Madhur Bajaj 2,00,000 Not applicable
INiraj Bajaj 11,30,882 INot applicable
Rajivnayan Bajaj 0 Not applicable
Sanjivnayan Bajaj 4.28,749 [Not applicable
Promoter Group
Kiran Bajaj 75.45.224 ot applicable

eetika Bajaj 21,60.084 Not applicable
Vanraj Bajaj* 18.43.556 ot applicable
Pooja Bajaj 15.41.875 INot applicable
Sunaina Kejriwal 12.40,730 (Not applicable
Minal Bajaj 6.94.674 INot applicable
INiravnayan Bajaj 2.82,507 INot applicable
Kumud Bajaj 2.00.000 INot applicable
Neelima Bajaj Swamy 2,00,000 INot applicable
Suman Jain 1.10,700 ot applicable
Kriti Bajaj 1.01.297 INot applicable
Shefali Bajaj 33.767 INot applicable
Deepa Bajaj 1,126 INot applicable
INimisha Jaipuria 0.00 INot applicable
Rishabnayan Bajaj 0.00 Not applicable
Siddhant Bajaj 0.00 INot applicable
Sanjali Bajaj 0.00 INot applicable
lIAryaman Kejriwal 0.00 INot applicable
INirvaan Kejriwal 10.00 INot applicable
Aarav Swamy 0.00 INot applicable
Vihaan Jaipuria 0.00 INot applicable
Sheetal Bajaj 0.00 Not applicable

18




Rajivnayan Bajaj) HUF 0.00 [Not applicable
Sanjivnayan Bajaj HUF 0.00 [Not applicable
Vanraj Bajaj Trust (Kiran Bajaj as a Trustee) 10,00.000 INot applicable
Neelima Baja) Swamy Family Trust (Neelima Bajaj8,12,973 INot applicable
Swamy as a Trustee)
[Nimisha Jaipuria Family Trust (Nimisha Jaipuria as a6,28.043 INot applicable
Trustee)
[Niravnayan Trust (Niraj Bajaj as a Trustee) 5,24,721 INot applicable
Kriti Bajaj Family Trust (Minal Niraj Bajaj as a Trustee) [5.00.000 INot applicable
iravnayan Bajaj Family Trust (Niraj Bajaj as a Trustee) /5,00,000 INot applicable
Rishab Family Trust (Rajivnayan Bajaj as a Trustee) 4.71.052 Not applicable
Sanjali Family Trust (Sanjivnayan Bajaj as a Trustee) 2.62.717 INot applicable
Siddhant Family Trust (Sanjivnayan Bajaj as a Trustee) [2.62.717 [Not applicable
[Nimisha Bajaj Family Trust (Madhur Bajaj as a Trustee) [2,.06,575 INot applicable
Madhur Neelima Family Trust (Kumud Bajaj as a Trustee)|1,25,800 INot applicable
Kumud Neelima Family Trust (Madhur Bajaj as a Trustee){1,25.800 (Not applicable
Kumud Nimisha Family Trust (Madhur Bajaj as a Trustee)|1,25.800 Not applicable
Madhur Nimisha Family Trust (Kumud Bajaj as a Trustee)[1,25.799 (Not applicable
Neelima Bajaj Family Trust (Kumud Bajaj as a Trustee) [21.644 Not applicable
Deepa Trust 0.00 INot applicable
Sanjali Trust 0.00 Not applicable
Siddhant Trust .00 INot applicable
Rishab Trust 0.00 Not applicable
Aryaman Trust 0.00 INot applicable
Nirvaan Trust 0.00 Not applicable
Rajiv Trust 0.00 Not applicable
Sanjiv Trust 0.00 INot applicable
Anant Baja) Trust 0.00 INot applicable
Nirav Trust 0.00 INot applicable
INimisha Trust .00 [Not applicable
Aryaman Family Trust 0.00 [Not applicable
INirvaan Family Trust 0.00 INot applicable
iGeetika Shekhar Bajaj) Family Trust 0.00 [Not applicable
Estate of Rahulkumar Bajaj 0.00 INot applicable
Bajaj Investment Trust .00 INot applicable
Jamnalal Sons Private Limited 2,25.48.276 INot applicable
Bajaj Holdings And Investment Limited 1.91,36,840 INot applicable
Baroda Industries Private Limited 14,12.738 INot applicable
Hind Musafir Agency Limited 12,88.000 INot applicable
Bajaj International Private Limited 9,17.881 INot applicable
Hercules Hoists Limited 6.24.596 INot applicable
Shekhar Holdings Private Limited 5.40,253 INot applicable
Rahul Securities Private Limited 4.67,093 INot applicable
Bachhraj Factories Private Limited 1.05.466 INot applicable
achhraj & Company Private Limited 66,585 Not applicable
Bajaj Sevashram Private Limited 5.550 INot applicable
Kamalnayan Investments And Trading Private Limited [1,110 INot applicable
Madhur Securities Private Limited 1,110 Not applicable
INiraj Holdings Private Limited 1,110 INot applicable
Rupa Equities Private Limited 1,110 Not applicable
Sanraj Nayan Investments Private Limited 1,110 Not applicable
Bajaj Trading Company 0.00 Not applicable
RDR Ventrues LLP 0.00 INot applicable
|Aryan Nayan Realty LLP 0.00 Not applicable

* Master Vanraj Bajaj, a member of our Promoter Group, holds 18,43,556 equity shares that are subject to transfer
restrictions and categorized/shown as/under 'number of shares pledged or otherwise encumbered', in compliance with

the directives issued by the Hon'ble High Court, Bombay. These restrictions will continue until Mastet: Van
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attains majority. Please refer to the Notes on Capital Structure in the section titled *Cupital Structure” on puge 39
of this Information Memorandum.

The average cost of acquisition per Equity Share for the Promoters is not applicable as the Equity Shares were
allotted pursuant to the Scheme.

Our Company has not issued any Equity Shares for consideration other than cash in the one year preceding the date
of this Information Memorandum, except as set forth below:

Date  of | No. of Face Premium Nature of | Nature of
Allotment | Equity Value per per Equity Allotment Consideration
Shares Equity Share (])
Allotted Share
)
September | 11,51,01,953 2.00 N.A. Allotment of | Consideration other
16,2023 Equity  Shares | than cash
pursuant to the
Scheme

Our Company has not undertaken any split or consolidation of Equity Shares during the last one year fr mfﬂggcj'ate

of this Information Memorandum.




SECTION II1 - RISK FACTORS

An investment in equity shares involves a high degree of risk. Prospective investors should carefully consider all the
information in this Information Memorandum, including the risks and uncertainties described below, before making
an investment in the Equity Shares of our Company.

If uny of the following risks, or other risks that are not currently known or are now deemed immaterial, actually occur,
our Company'’s business, results of operations and financial condition could suffer, the price of the Equity Shares
could decline, and all or part of the investment may be lost.

In order to obtain a complete understanding of our Company and our business, prospective investors should read
this section in conjunction with “Our Business” and “Management's Discussion and Analysis of Financial
Conditions and Results of Operations’ on pages 61 and 97 of this Information Memorandum, respectively, as well
as the other financial and statistical information contained in this Information Memorandum. In making an
investment decision, prospective investors must rely on their own examination of us and our business and the terms
on which the Equity Shares of the Company have been issued pursuant to the Scheme including the merits and risks
involved potential investors should consult their tax, financial and legal advisors about the particular consequences
of investing in the Equity Shares of the Company. Unless specified or quantified in the relevant risk fuctors below,
we are unable to quantify the financial or other impact of any of the risks described in this section.

This Information Memorandum also contains forvard-looking statements that involve risks and uncertainties. Our
actual results could differ materially from those anticipated in these forward-looking statements as a result of certain
fuactors, including the considerations described below and elsewhere in this Information Memorandum. Please see
section titled “Forward Looking Statements ™ on page 12 of this Information Memorandum.

Wherever used in this section the terms “we”, “us" “our” shall mean our Company, including the Demerged
Undertaking which is transferred pursuant to the Scheme, unless otherwise stated. While the following section
includes material risks in relation to the business operations of our Company, post the Effective Date, for complete
details in relation to the Power Transmission and Power Distribution Business, including the historical performance,
previous milestones and risk factors, the disclosures in the section below should be read with the information available
on the websites of the Stock Exchanges, and financial statements, investor presentations and corporate disclosures
issued by Demerged Company.

INTERNAL RISKS FACTORS

1. The Company was incorporated on January 19, 2022, and there may be certain uncertainties in the
integration of the Demerged Undertaking into a newly incorporated entity, such as our Company.

The Company was incorporated on January 19, 2022 and commenced the Power Transmission and Power
Distribution Business from the Effective Date upon transfer of the Demerged Undertaking to the Company as a
going concern. Accordingly, there may be certain uncertainties in the integration of the Demerged Undertaking
into a newly incorporated entity such as our Company. While post the Effective Date, all the employees including
experienced personnel in the Demerged Undertaking have been transferred to the Company, the Company may
be unable to effectively integrate the Demerged Undertaking, and efticiently operate the consequent business of
the Company, thereby adversely impacting the results of the Company’s operations and profitability of the
business. Pursuant to the Scheme, BEL is required to effect the transfer of, inter alia, properties, approvals,
employees, and intellectual property of the Demerged Undertaking to our Company. Inability to effect any of
such transfers in a timely manner may materially impact the ability of the Company to carry on and undertake
business operations.

Additionally, certain financial and key performance indicators with respect to the Demerged Undertaking prior
to the effectiveness of the Scheme may not be representative of our results after having integrated the Demerged
Undertaking post the Effective Date.

2. QOur Company’s business is dependent on its manufacturing facility. The shutdown of operations at our
manufacturing facility may have a material adverse effect on its business, financial condition and results of
operations.




We have a manufacturing facility situated at Ranjangaon Unit 1, Ranjangaon Unit 2 and Ranjangaon Unit 3
where we manufacture monopoles, high mast shafts, street lighting poles (and accessories), transmission line
tower parts, power distribution structures and undertake sundry galvanizing work at such facility.

The manufacturing facility is subject to operating risks, such as the breakdown or failure of equipment, power
supply, performance below expected levels of output or efficiency, obsolescence, labour disputes, strikes, lock-
outs, continued availability of services of the external contractors, earthquakes and other natural disasters,
industrial accidents and the need to comply with the directives of relevant government authorities. A shutdown
of operations at the manufacturing facility due to the factors mentioned above may have an adverse effect on our
business and financial condition.

Our manufacturing operation is currently geographically concentrated in Maharashtra. Consequently, we
are exposed to risks from economic, regulatory and other developments in the western region which could
adversely affect our business, results of operations, cash flows and financial condition. As part of expansion
plans, we may enter new geographies and business lines where company has limited credentials.

As our manufacturing facility is located in Maharashtra, our manufacturing operation is significantly dependent
on the general economic condition and regulatory regime in Maharashtra. The economic and regulatory
condition in Maharashtra may be affected by various factors outside our control, including prevailing local,
social and economic conditions, changes in the applicable governmental regulations, demographic trends,
changes in regulations governing employment of labourers, tluctuation in the income levels and interest rates,
among other factors.

Change in the policies of the Government of Maharashtra, any political disruption, natural calamities or civil
disruptions, litigation, opposition and protests including from local parties or communities, particularly in
locations where we operate in Maharashtra, could adversely affect our business operations or strategy. There is
no assurance that such disruption in business operations would not bring any hindrance in the functioning of our
manufacturing facility and accordingly adversely affect our business, results of operations, cash tflows and
financial condition.

As part of our expansion plans, we may enter into new geographies or undertake new business lines. There is no
assurance that entering into new geographies or entering into business lines may contribute to profitability, and
we may be required to incur or assume debt, or additional expenses beyond our forecasts or assume contingent
liabilities with respect to such expansion, which may have a material adverse effect on our business, financial
condition and results of operations.

We are usually required to provide performance guarantees under our Power Transmission and Power
Distribution Business contracts.

As is customary in the EPC services industry, we are usually required to obtain bank guarantees in favour of our
customers, in respect of performance of our obligations under the respective EPC contracts pertaining to the
Power Transmission and Power Distribution Business. These bank guarantees are typically provided at the
beginning of a project to which the contract pertains and remain valid until the expiration of the defect liability
period of the project in accordance with the contractual arrangement. Such bank guarantees may be invoked in
case of non-performance of the contract, which might cause an adverse impact on the result of operations and
cashtlows of the Company.

We may be affected by labour unrest at our manufacturing facility and stringent labour laws.

As of September 15, 2023, we have about 174 on-roll personnel at our manufacturing facility. We cannot assure
you that our relations with our personnel at manufacturing facilities shall remain cordial at all times and that
there will be no events of labour unrest such as strikes and work stoppages in the future on account of various
demands such as increase in wage and better working conditions. Any disagreements with the trade union of
which certain of our personnel at manufacturing facilities are members, could disrupt our operations, including
functioning of our manufacturing facilities. Any labour disruptions may adversely affect our operations by
delaying or slowing down our production, business operations, increasing our cost of production or even halting
a portion of our production. This may also lead to missing of sales commitments, hurting our relationships with
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customers and disrupt supply chain, which would adversely affect our business, results of operations, cash
flows and financial condition. BEL has entered into wage settlement agreement dated June 2, 2023 with Bajaj
Electricals Employees Union, the terms of which are applicable to such employees that were transferred to our
Company pursuant to the Scheme.

Stringent labour laws in India may harm our ability to have flexible human resource policies and trade union
policies which could adversely affect our processing capacity, construction schedules, cash tlows, results of
operations and financial condition.

Our operations are being conducted on leased. Our failure to renew these leases, obtain new leases or pay
higher rental fees under these leases could negatively impact our operations.

Other than the Registered Office and corporate offices of our Company, all our business inter alia with respect
to manufacturing and warehousing, is conducted on premises that are leased from third parties. Our
manufacturing facility at Ranjangaon, Maharashtra is held by the Company on a long-term lease-hold basis from
MIDC and most of our branch offices and warehouses are on leasehold basis, which we typically renew from
time to time. Where (i) such leases are not renewed or renegotiated on terms that are less advantageous to us;
(i1) such leases are not made available to us; (ii1) rental charged against our leases are increased; (iv) such leases
are affected due to any deficiency in relation to title of the property of the owner, or breach of any contractual
terms, such occurrences may negatively affect our operations.

We cannot assure you that we will be able to execute the EPC contracts pursuant to our power transmission
and power distribution projects in a timely manner or at all, and we may consequently be subject to pay
liquidated damages or penalties.

Projects undertaken by the Company pursuant to EPC contracts with respect to the Power Transmission and
Power Distribution Business are govermned by pre-determined schedules, costs and payment terms. The fixed
price typically negotiated by us for EPC contracts depends on numerous external factors, some of which may
not be reasonably foreseeable at the time of cost estimation. Many EPC projects are completed over extended
time periods. Failure to complete such EPC projects in accordance within the pre-determined terms or delays in
completing projects due to schedule changes, delay due to our customer’s failure to timely obtain rights-of-way,
weather-related delays etc., which are beyond our control could adversely affect our business, cash flows,
financial conditions, our ability to pay bills and receive payments in accordance with contractually agreed
milestones. In case of breach of agreed timelines, in addition to increase in cost of execution of such project, we
are typically required to pay liquidated damages or penalties.

The contracts included in our order book for our Power Transmission and Power Distribution Business may
be delayed, modified or cancelled, concentrated in a few key customers, which could adversely affect our cash
Sflows position, revenues and results of operations.

The order book for the Power Transmission and Power Distribution Business may not necessarily indicate future
income due to several factors which may be beyond our reasonable control, including unanticipated variations
of scope, schedule adjustments, ongoing litigation, failed rehabilitation and environmental exigencies. Our cash
flows, revenues and results of operations can be affected by untimely realization or non-realization of revenues
anticipated in our order book, cancellation or payment default by contracting parties, inability of contracting
parties to perform the contract and obtain relevant licenses and permits for executing such projects. The contracts
for Power Transmission and Power Distribution Business generally include provisions permitting our customers
to terminate their agreements at their convenience.

We may work on projects for limited number of customers in a given financial period. Accordingly, the loss of
a key customer in such financial period could significantly reduce revenue and have a material adverse effect on

our business, future prospects, results of operations and financial condition.

We may not be able to obtain consents from all existing customers of the Demerged Undertaking for transfer
/ novation of existing contracts to our Company pursuant to the Scheme

The transfer / novation of existing customer contracts with respect to the Demerged Undertaking require the




consents of the relevant counterparties to undertake the relevant obligations under such customer contracts in
accordance with the terms thereof. While the existing customers in relation to the Power Transmission and
Power Distribution Business were provided with intimations regarding transfer of the Demerged Undertaking
on and from the Eftective Date, BEL is in the process of receiving express consents for the transfer / novation
of such contracts from the relevant customers. In the event all such consents are not provided by the relevant
customers, contracts with such customers may not stand transferred / novated in favour of our Company,
leading to loss of customers, which could reduce revenue and have a material adverse effect on the Company’s
business, future prospects, results of operations and financial condition.

We have not entered into long term contracts with our suppliers/ vendors. Any significant increase or
fluctuations in prices of, or shortages of, or delay or disruption in supply of any of the raw materials used by
us could adversely affect our business, results of operations, cash flows and financial condition.

Our manufacturing operations depend on obtaining timely and adequate supplies of various raw materials and
componentsrequired for our Power Transmission and Power Distribution Business, including zinc, nickel, high
tensile plates of various grades and angles; mild steel plates, pipes, angles, flats and channels.

Several of our key raw materials and components are sourced from a single or limited group of suppliers giving
rise to concentration risk. 1f our suppliers/vendors are unable to supply (a) the raw material and/or components
required for the manufacture of our products, in sufficient quantities or at all, and in a timely manner, our ability
to obtain raw material and components at competitive rates from alternate sources could be adversely affected
because of higher prices, thereby adversely affecting our operating margins and results of operations, as our
contracts generally include provisions permitting our customers to terminate their agreements at their
convenience. Further, we may not be able to find alternate suppliers/ vendors with required standard of quality,
and enter into contracts with favourable commercial terms or at all, in case of termination or non-fulfillment by
existing suppliers/ vendors of existing relationships, which could adversely affect our business, results of
operation, cash flows and financial condition.

Further, numerous factors, most of which are beyond our control, drive the cycles of raw materials/
components, such as general economic conditions, competition, production costs and levels, transportation
costs, indirect taxes and import duties, tariffs and currency exchange rate.

While we have generally been able to pass on the increase in cost of raw materials/ components to our
customers, there can be no assurance that we will be able to continue doing so in the future. If we are unable
to pass on cost increases to our customers or are unsuccessful in managing the effects of raw material price
increase, our business, financial condition, cash flows and results of operations could be materially and
adversely affected.

Any prolonged business interruption at our manufacturing facilities could have a material adverse effect on
results of operation, cash flows and financial conditions.

Our business is dependent on our ability to effectively manage our manufacturing facility, which is subject to
various operating risks. Any material interruption at the manufacturing facility, including power failure, fire and
unexpected mechanical failure or malfunction of equipment or machinery, could reduce our ability to meet our
stipulated orders and earnings for the affected period.

If there is an insufficient supply of electricity or water to satisty our requirements or a significant increase in
electricity prices, we may need to limit or delay our production, which could adversely affect our business,
tinancial condition, cash flows and results of operations. We cannot assure you that we will always have access
to sufficient supplies of electricity or water in the future to accommodate our production requirements and
planned growth. Although we have not experienced any significant disruptions at our manufacturing facilities
in the past, in the event of prolonged interruptions in the operations of our manufacturing facilities, we may
have to identify alternate sources for various supplies and products at higher prices in order to meet our
production requirements, which could affect our results of operation, cash flows and financial condition.

The insurance coverage taken by the Company may not be adequate to protect against all potential losses,
which may have a material adverse effect on our business, financial condition, cash flows aﬁd ‘results of




operations.

Our operations are subject to various risks and hazards inherent in the Power Transmission and Power
Distribution Business, including breakdowns, failure or substandard performance of equipment, third party
liability claims, labour disturbances, employee fraud and infrastructure failure, as well as fire, theft, robbery,
earthquake, flood, acts of terrorism and other force majeure events. We maintain appropriate insurance coverage
commensurate with industry standards (and which are subject to standard exclusions and limitations), in relation
to property and plants, fixed assets, movable assets and certain other assets that are considered to be subject to
significant operating risks, however, there may be possible losses for which we may not have insured against or
covered or where the insurance cover may not be adequate or for our insurance claims may be rejected. If we
were to incur a serious uninsured loss or a loss that significantly exceed the limits of our insurance policies, it
could have a material adverse eftfect on our business, financial condition, results of operations and cash flows.

Losses arising due to third-party claims that are either not covered by insurance or the values of which exceed
insurance limits, economic or consequential damages that are outside the scope of insurance coverage and claims
that are excluded from coverage, may not be covered by the insurance obtained by us.

We may not have identified and insured against every risk that may occur, and the occurrence of an event that
causes losses more than the limits specified in our policies, or losses arising from events or risks not covered by
insurance policies or due to the same being inadequate. Any of the above could materially harm our financial
condition, cash tlows and future results of operations. There can be no assurance that any claims filed will be
honoured fully or in a timely fashion under our insurance policies and we may not be able to renew certain of
our insurance policies upon their expiration, either on commercially acceptable terms or at all.

The intellectual property being used by the Company is owned by the Demerged Company. If we are unable
to maintain and enhance our brand, our business may suffer, which would have a material adverse effect
on our business, results of operations, cash flows and financial condition.

Currently, the intellectual property being used by the Company (other than the 11 trademark registrations held
by the Company with respect to the word mark “BAJEL Project” in classes 6, 7, 8,9, 11, 19, 35, 37, 39, 40 and
42, which were assigned to us pursuant to the Scheme) are not owned by the Company and is owned by our
group company, BEL and consequently we do not own the rights over the brand name “Bqjaj”. Pursuant to the
Scheme, all intellectual property that was being used by BEL prior to the Effective Date with respect to the
Power Transmission and Power Distribution Business will be licensed to us and none of the intellectual property
being used by the Company (other than the 11 trademark registrations held by the Company with respect to the
word mark “BAJEL Project™ in classes 6, 7, 8,9, [1, 19, 35, 37, 39, 40 and 42, which were assigned to us
pursuant to the Scheme) is registered in the name of the Company.

Maintaining and enhancing our brand image may also require us to undertake significant expenditures towards
brand building activities such as advertising and marketing through various media and promotional events,
including through digital branding initiatives. Our brand image is also dependent on the quality of products and
services offered by us and customer satisfaction. If our initiatives for brand building are not effectively
implemented or do not yield intended results, or if our products fail to find acceptance and/or satisfaction of
our customers, it may result in loss of customer confidence in our brand, which in turn lead to loss of customers
and would adversely attect our business, results of operations, cash flows and financial condition.

Dependence on BEL for certain shared services.

We depend on, have entered into and may continue to enter into agreements with BEL for various shared services
required for the administrative functions of our Company as well as the Power Transmission and Power
Distribution Business. While these agreements are entered into on an arm’s length basis taking into consideration
the interests of our Company as well as BEL, there can be no assurance that such contracts or services will
continue to be provided by BEL, which could adversely aftect our business, financial condition, cash flows and
results of operations.

Qur Company’s inability to manage growth may lead to loss of opportunities and may hamper-our Company’s
Sfuture growth plans. AR N
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Our Company may not pursue its business strategy in future. Our Company may be subject to growth related
risks including capacity constraints and pressure on internal systems and controls. Its inability to deal with this
growth effectively could have material adverse impact on its business, operations and prospects. In order to
manage its current operations and any future growth effectively, our Company has to continue to implement and
improve its operational, financial and management information systems and to retain its employees. There can
be no assurance that it will be able to manage such growth eftectively, that its management, personnel or systems
will be adequate to support our Company’s operations so that it will be able to achieve the increased levels of
revenue commensurate with the increased levels of operating expenses associated with this growth. Any failure
on the Company’s part to scale up its infrastructure and management to meet the challenges of rapid growth
could cause disruptions to its business and could be detrimental to its long-term business prospects.

Outstanding dues may not be repaid by our customers within the stipulated time.

Some of our customers are unable to pay within time periods stipulated within the relevant contracts and there
1s no guarantee that such customers will eventually be able to pay the entire outstanding amount or any at all.
If a customer defaults in making its payments for a project to which we have devoted significant resources, it
may also affect our profitability and liquidity and decrease the capital resources that are otherwise available for
other uses, which may in turn adversely affect our business, financial condition, results of operations and cash
flows.

Our success depends in large part upon our management team and key personnel and our ability to attract,
train and retain such persons.

Our success and growth depend on the continuous services of our senior members of our management and
operational team. For details of our Board and senior management, see the section titled “Ourr Management”™
on page 72 of this Information Memorandum. Our ability to seamlessly carry out our operations, depends in
large part on our ability to attract, train, motivate and retain highly skilled professionals. We may not be able
to hire and retain enough skilled and experienced employees to replace those who leave. Additionally, we may
not be able to replace adequately skilled and experienced Board members and other senior management upon
their retirement/ termination of job. If we fail to retain, motivate and/or attract such personnel, our business
may be unable to grow and our revenues could decline, which may adversely affect our business, reputation,
results of operation and financial condition.

If we are unable to establish and maintain an effective system of internal controls and compliances our
business and reputation could be adversely affected.

We manage regulatory compliance by monitoring and evaluating our internal controls and ensuring that we are
in compliance with all relevant statutory and regulatory requirements. However, there can be no assurance that
deticiencies in our internal controls and compliances will not arise, or that we will be able to implement, and
continue to maintain adequate measures to rectify or mitigate any such deficiencies in our internal controls, in a
timely manner or at all. As we continue to grow, there can be no assurance that there will be no instances of such
inadvertent non-compliances with statutory requirements, which may result in regulatory action, including
monetary penalties, which may adversely affect our business and reputation.

Our Promoters will be able to exercise significant influence and control over our Company and may have
interests that are different from those of our other shareholders.

As of the date of this Information Memorandum, our Promoters and Promoter Group hold 62.85% of the issued
and outstanding Equity Shares of our Company. By virtue of their shareholding, our Promoters and Promoter
Group will have the ability to exercise significant control and influence over our Company and our atfairs and
business, including the appointment of Directors, the timing and payment of dividends, the adoption of and
amendments to our Memorandum and Articles of Association, the approval of a merger, amalgamation or sale
of substantially all of our assets and the approval of most other actions requiring the approval of our
shareholders. The interests of our Promoters and Promoter Group may be different from or conflict with the
interests of our other shareholders and their influence may result in change of management-or:centrol of our
Company, even if such a transaction may not be beneficial to our other shareholders. k
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There are outstanding legal proceedings against our Demerged Undertaking which, if adversely determined,
could have an adverse impact on our business, results of operations and financial conditions.

While there were no litigations pending against our Company prior to the effectiveness of the Scheme, there
are various litigations which have been transferred to our Company pertaining to the Demerged Undertaking
which have been transferred to us on and from the Effective Date which are at different levels of adjudication
before various forums. For further details, see section titled “Outstanding Litigation and Material
Developments™ on page 98 of this Information Memorandum.

We cannot assure you that these legal proceedings will be decided in our favour. Furthermore, we cannot assure
you that our Company will not be involved in material legal proceedings in the future, including civil, criminal,
consumer, intellectual property and tax-related litigations. Litigations can divert significant management time
and attention and consume significant financial resources in their defence or prosecution. In addition, if any
proceeding in which we may be involved in and is decided against us, or if penalties are assessed and/or
sanctions imposed on us in the future, it may have amaterial adverse effect on our business, results of operation,
cash flows, reputation and financial condition.

We have entered into, and will continue to enter into, related party transactions.

We have entered into certain transactions with related parties and may continue to do so in future. While we
believe that all such transactions have been conducted on an arm’s length basis, we cannot assure you that we
could not have obtained more favourable terms had such transactions been entered into with unrelated parties.
Further, it is likely that we may enter into related party transactions in the future. We cannot assure you that
such transactions, individually or in the aggregate, will not have an adverse effect on our financial condition
and results of operations. For details please see note on related party transactions in the section titled **Financial
Statements™ on page 96 of this Information Memorandum.

Significant differences exist between Ind AS and other accounting principles, such as Indian GAAP, U.S.
GAAP and IFRS, which may be material to the financial statements prepared and presented in accordance
with Ind AS contained in this Information Memorandum.

The Financial Statements included in this Information Memorandum are prepared and presented in conformity
with Ind AS (as applicable) and no attempt has been made to reconcile any of the information given in this
Information Memorandum to any other principles or to base it on any other standards. Ind AS significantly
differs from accounting principles and auditing standards with which prospective investors may be familiar with
such as Indian GAAP and in other countries, such as U.S. GAAP and IFRS.

Accordingly, the degree to which the financial information included in this Information Memorandum will
provide meaningful information is dependent on familiarity with Ind AS. Any reliance by persons not familiar
with Ind AS on the financial disclosures presented in this Information Memorandum should accordingly be
limited. We have not attempted to explain those differences or quantify their impact on the financial data
included herein, and we urge you to consult your own advisors regarding such differences and their impact on
our financial data.

Any downgrade in our existing credit ratings would increase our future borrowing costs and constrain our
access to capital and lending markets and as a result, would negatively affect our business.

The cost and availability of funds for our various operations is dependent, among other factors, on our credit
ratings. The Company is proposing to obtain long term loan facilities which have been assigned credit ratings
by CRISIL, details of which are as below:

_|' Rating :
| Long term CRISIL A/ Stable
Short terms CRISIL Al

W e cannot assure you that our credit rating will improve in the future or not deteriorate ﬁn‘t‘hé.‘r:'.yl‘fou[ Company
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is unable to improve its credit rating or if there is further downgrading of our credit ratings, it may accelerate
repayment terms of our present borrowings and may also adversely affect our ability to avail future borrowings
at commercially favorable terms or at all, which may adversely affect our operations, cash tflows and financial
performance. Any downgrading of our credit rating may adversely affect the price of our Equity Shares.

We may enter into financing agreements which may contain covenants that limit our flexibility in operating
our business.

Our Company has no borrowings as of the date of this Information Memorandum. We may enter into financing
arrangements with lenders which may contain restrictive covenants and conditions restricting certain corporate
actions, and require us to take the prior approval of the relevant lender before carrying out such actions. Such
agreements may contain restrictive conditions to obtain prior written consent from some of our lenders for,
among other matters, (i) investment by way of share capital in or lend or advance funds to or place deposits
with any other concern; (ii) changing our capital structure or composition of our management or Board of
Directors, (iii) undertaking merger or amalgamation, (iv) changing our constitution, (v) issuance of further
Equity Shares, (vi) prepayment of indebtedness, There can be no assurance that we will comply with the
covenants with respect to our financing arrangements in the future or that we will be able to secure waivers for
any such non-compliance in a timely manner or at all, and we will not be subject to penal interest and other
charges.

Our ability to make payments on our indebtedness will depend on our future performance and our ability to
generate cash, which to a certain extent is subject to factors which are beyond our control. If our future cash
flows from operations and other capital resources are insufficient to pay our debt obligations, we may be forced
to sell assets or attempt to restructure or refinance our existing indebtedness. Any refinancing of our debt
could be at higher interest rates and may require us to comply with more onerous covenants, which could
further restrict our business operations. The terms of future debt instruments may restrict us from adopting
some of these alternatives. In addition, any failure to make payments of interest and principal on our
indebtedness on a timely basis would likely result in a reduction of our creditworthiness and/or any credit
rating we may hold, which could harm our ability to incur additional indebtedness on acceptable terms or at
all. Further, if we are unable to repay our debt, affected lenders could also proceed against any collateral granted
to them to secure such indebtedness.

Our ability to repay any future indebtedness will depend on our future performance and ability to generate
cash

Our ability to make payments on any future indebtedness will depend on our future performance and our ability
to generate cash, which to a certain extent is subject to factors which are beyond our control. If our future cash
flows from operations and other capital resources are insufficient to pay any debt obligations, we may be forced
to sell assets or attempt to restructure or refinance such indebtedness. Any refinancing of our debt could be at
higher interest rates and may require us to comply with more onerous covenants, which could further restrict our
business operations. Any failure to make payments of interest and principal on any future indebtedness on a
timely basis would likely result in a reduction of our creditworthiness and/or any credit rating we may hold,
which could harm our ability to incur additional indebtedness on acceptable terms or at all. Any inability to repay
our debt, could result in the lenders proceeding against any collateral granted to them to secure such
indebtedness.

Our ability to pay dividends in the future will depend upon our future earnings, financial condition, cash
flows, working capital requirements and capital expenditures and the terms of our financing arrangements.

There can be no assurance that we will pay dividends in the future. The declaration of dividends would be
recommended by our Board of Directors, at its sole discretion, and would depend upon a number of factors,
including Indian legal requirements, our future earnings, financial condition, cash flows, working capital
requirements and capital expenditures. We may be restricted by the terms of our debt financing, if any, from
making dividend payments as per the terms of such financing arrangements.

If we are unable to protect our proprietary information or other intellectual property rights, ‘our business may
be adversely affected. 7
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With respect to intellectual property owned by us, and the Company owns certain trademarks, details of which
are set out in “Intellectual Property Rights™ on page 65, which have been assigned to the Company pursuant to
the Scheme. We have obtained, or have applied for, trademark, patent, copyright and designs registrations for
our various products, logos. labels, processes, designs, artistic works and brands which we use in our business.
Our intellectual property is subject to certain threats from third parties including unauthorised use of our logo
and name. While we intend to defend ourselves against any threats to our intellectual property, we cannot assure
our proprietary intellectual property will provide us with adequate proprietary protection or competitive
advantages, and that we would be successtul in defending threats. There can be no assurance that our intellectual
property pending registration or renewal will be registered/ renewed in a timely manner or at all.

Detecting and policing unauthorized use of proprietary rights are difficult and expensive. We may need to resort
to litigation to enforce or deftend our proprietary rights, which could divert significant management time and
attention, and consume significant financial resources in their defence or enforcement. An adverse determination
in any such litigation could materially impair our intellectual property rights. Our failure to adequately protect
our brand, trademarks and other related intellectual property rights may adversely atfect our business, reputation.
financial condition, results of operations and cash tlows.

Our Promoters or Directors may enter into ventures that may lead to real or potential conflicts of interest with
our business.

Our Promoters or Directors may enter into ventures that may lead to real or potential contlict with the interests
of our other Promoters, Directors and / or shareholders, and any ot our Promoters or Directors may, for business
considerations or otherwise, cause our Company to take actions which may impact our business, financial
condition and results of operations.

Industry information included in this Information Memorandum has been derived from industry reports
available in public domain. There can be no assurance that such third-party statistical, financial and other
industry information is either complete or accurate.

We have relied on the reports ot certain independent third party for purposes of inclusion of such information in
this Information Memorandum which are subject to various limitations and based upon certain assumptions that
are subjective in nature.

While we have taken reasonable care in the reproduction of the information, neither the Company nor its
respective affiliates or advisors have independently verified data from such industry reports and other sources,
and accordingly, we make no representation or warranty, express or implied, as to the accuracy or completeness
of such facts and statistics.

If we are unable to raise additional capital, our business, results of operations, financial condition and cash
Slows could be adversely affected.

The growth of our existing infrastructure requires significant expenditure, which is dependent on sufficiency of
existing capital, our ability to incur and arrange any future borrowings, general economic and capital market
conditions, credit availability from banks, investor confidence, the continued success of our operations and other
laws that are conducive to our raising capital in this manner. Our inability to raise adequate capital in a timely
manner and on acceptable terms, or at all may adversely affect our business, results of operations, financial
condition and cash tlows.

We have substantial working capital requirements to finance the Power Transmission and Power Distribution
Business and may require additional financing to meet those requirements.

The actual amount and timing of our future working capital requirements for our Power Transmission and
Power Distribution Business may differ from estimates due to, among other factors, unforeseen delays or cost
overruns, unanticipated expenses, regulatory changes, engineering design changes, weather related delays,
technological changes and additional market developments. Our sources of additional financing, where we are
required to meet our capital expenditure plans, may include the incurrence ot debt or isgjj.:f-':';of debt securities.

29




33.

34.

35.

36.

If we decide to raise additional funds through the incurrence of debt or issue of debt linked securities, our
interest and debt repayment obligations will increase, and could have a significant effect on our profitability,
cash flows and financial conditions. Additionally, our ability to obtain additional financing on favourable
commercial terms or at all, will depend on a number of factors, including, amongst others (i) our results of
operations, financial conditions and cash flows; (ii) the amount and terms of our existing indebtedness; (iii)
general conditions in the markets where we operate; and (iv) general condition of the debt markets.

We are exposed to foreign currency exchange rate fluctuations.

We purchase certain of our raw materials in foreign currency. A significant fluctuation in foreign currency
exchange rates could therefore have a significant impact on our results of operations and our profitability.

Our operations and the work force at our project sites for our business and at our manufacturing facility are
exposed to various hazards.

Our sites where EPC operations are carried out and our manufacturing facilities are subject to hazards inherent
in such industries, such as the risk of equipment failure, impact from falling objects, collision, work accidents,
fire or explosion. Many of these hazards can cause injury and loss of life, severe damage to and destruction of
property and equipment and environmental damage. While we attempt to mitigate possibilities of such
accidents through various safety standards and processes, there are certain unanticipated or unforeseen risks
that may arise due to among others, adverse weather and geological and other working conditions. If any one
of these hazards or other hazards were to affect our business, results of operations, cash flows and financial
condition may be adversely affected.

Some of our agreements may have certain irregularities.

Some of the agreements that have been executed by our Company, which require registration and/or stamping
in accordance with applicable law, may have not been registered and/or are not adequately stamped or not
stamped at all and such documents may not be legally enforceable until the applicable stamp duty, registration
charges, and consequent penalties are paid on such documents, or at all, which may adversely affect our business,
result of operations, cash flows and financial condition.

We engage in a highly competitive business and any failure to effectively compete could have a material
adverse effect on us.

The strength of our business depends on our ability to continually win project bids for our EPC contracts,
primarily from Governmental counterparties. We bid for such projects and compete with other EPC solution
providers based on, inter alia, pricing, technical and design and engineering expertise, financing capabilities,
past experience, amount and type of guarantees given and track-record.

Our competitors may have greater financial resources, a more effective or established presence or a greater
willingness or ability to operate with little or no operating margins for sustained periods of time, choose to enter
into strategic alliances or form affiliates with other competitors, suppliers or subcontractors. There can be no
assurance that our current or potential competitors will not offer the services comparable or superior to those
that we offer at the same or lower prices, adapt more quickly to industry challenges, or expand their operations
at a faster pace than we do which may result in price reductions, reduced profit margins, loss of market share
and adversely effect on our business, prospects, results of operations, cash tlows and financial condition.

Our Power Transmission and Power Distribution Business is subject to certain macro-economic conditions
and government policies.

The industry in which we operate are to a large extent dependent on general macro-economic factors such as (i)
economic or fiscal crises or instability; (ii) political and regulatory measures and developments, such as
government policies to support the industries in which our customers operate, tax incentives or other subsidies;
(111) fiscal and monetary dynamics, such as rises or falls in interest rates (resulting in greater or lesser ability by
customers to borrow money), foreign exchange rates and inflation rates; (iv) general levels of GDP growth and
trends in personal disposable income and consumer spending; (v) demographic conditions and,population
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dynamics, such as the absolute size of a market and the growth rates of the population in that market; and (vi)
economic development and shifting of wealth in India, in particular growth in the middle class and rural areas.

The aforesaid factors may negatively contribute to changes in demand for our products and services and may
materially adversely affect our business, results of operation, cash flows, financial condition and prospects.

Any failure in the successful implementation of our information technology systems may adversely affect our
business, cash flows, financial condition and results of operations.

Our information technology systems may be susceptible to outages due to fire, floods, power loss,
telecommunications failures, natural disasters, break-ins and similar events which could adversely affect our
business (if it causes loss of data or affects our ability to track, record and analyse the progress of our projects),
ability to process financial information, manage our creditors and debtors, or engage in normal business
activities. Proprietary data stored electronically may be vulnerable to computer viruses, cybercrime, computer
hacking and similar disruptions from unauthorized tampering. Unauthorized use of our systems may result in
data related to our projects, customers and other proprietary information to be compromised. The occurrence of
any of such events could adversely affect our reputation and business, weaken our competitive position, interrupt
our operations, subject us to increased operating costs and expose us to litigation and adversely affect our
business, cash flows, financial condition and results of operations.

We require certain approvals, licenses, registrations, easements and permits for conducting our business and
operations, and our inability to obtain, retain or renew them in a timely manner, or at all, may adversely affect
our business and prospects, results of operations, cash flows and financial condition.

Our business and operations are subject to compliance with certain laws and regulations and we are required to
obtain and maintain a number of statutory and regulatory registrations, easements (including right of way),
permits and approvals, including under environmental laws, safety, health, labour and related laws
(“Government Approvals™). The Government Approvals that we require are typically granted for a limited
term and are subject to renewal at the end of such terms and we cannot assure that we will be able to obtain or
renew all necessary Government Approvals as and when required, within required time, or at all.

Government Approvals are typically subject to various conditions, including periodic renewal and maintenance
standards that are subject to inspection and may require us to incur substantial expenditure. Any actual or alleged
failure on our part to comply with the terms and conditions of such Government Approvals could result in
significant compliance costs or liabilities or could affect our ability to continue our operations. Govemment
Approvals issued to us may be suspended or revoked in the event of non-compliance or alleged non-compliance
with any terms or conditions thereof, or pursuant to any regulatory action.

Any failure to obtain or renew Government Approvals may adversely affect our business, prospects, results of
operations, cash flows and financial condition and could result in penalties and other sanctions.

We may, from time to time, look for opportunities to enter strategic alliances, acquire businesses or enter into

Joint venture arrangements. Any failure to manage the integration of the businesses or facilities post such

acquisition or joint venture may cause our profitability to suffer.

We may, from time to time, look for opportunities to acquire businesses or enter into strategic partnerships or
alliances which may not contribute to our profitability, or require us to incur or assume debt or additional
expenses beyond our forecasts, as part of any acquisition. Such acquisitions may give rise to unforeseen
contingent risks relating to these businesses that may only become apparent after the merger or the acquisition
is finalised. We may face difficulty in assimilating and retaining the personnel, operations and assets of the
acquired company and we may not be able to accurately identify or forge an alliance with appropriate companies
in line with our growth strategy and may adversely affect our business.

We have contingent liabilities pertaining to the Demerged Undertaking and our financial conditions and
results of operations could be adversely affected if any of these contingent liabilities materialises.

As of March 31, 2023, our Company did not have any contingent liability. However, pursuant to the transfer
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43.

of the Demerged Undertaking to our Company from the Effective Date, certain contingent liabilities have been
transferred to our Company and if they materialise, it may impact the tinancial condition and results of
operation of our Company.

Contingent liabilities transferred to the Company upon demerger of the Demerged Undertaking and not
acknowledged as debt are as follows:

Sr. No. | Particulars Amount (INR Lakhs)#
1. | Claims against the Company not acknowledged as debts 360.58
Total 360.58

#EFigures reported above are as of June 30, 2023.

We may be affected by competition law in India and any adverse application or interpretation of the
Competition Act could adversely affect our business.

The Competition Act regulates practices having an appreciable adverse eftfect on competition in the relevant
market in India. Under the Competition Act, any formal or informal arrangement, understanding or action in
concert, which causes or is likely to cause an appreciable adverse effect on competition is considered void and
results in the imposition of substantial monetary penalties.

Consequently, all agreements entered into by us could be within the purview of the Competition Act. Further,
the CCI has extra-territorial powers and can investigate any agreements, abusive conduct or combination
occurring outside India if such agreement, conduct or combination has an appreciable adverse effect on
competition in India. However, we cannot predict the impact of the provisions of the Competition Act on the
agreements entered into by us at this stage. We are not currently party to any outstanding proceedings, nor have
we received notice in relation to non-compliance with the Competition Act or the agreements entered into by
us. However, if we are affected, directly or indirectly, by the application or interpretation of any provision of
the Competition Act, or any enforcement proceedings initiated by the CCI, or any adverse publicity that may
be generated due to scrutiny or prosecution by the CCI or if any prohibition or substantial penalties are levied
under the Competition Act, it would adversely affect our business, results of operations and prospects.

We may experience negative cash flows in relation to our operating activities, investing and financing
activities.

Our Company has experienced certain negative cash flows in relation to its investing and financing activities,
details of which are set out below:

paalars As of June 30, 2023
(INR lakhs)#
Net cash inflow/ (outflow) from investing activities (37.84)
Net cash inflow/ (outflow) from financing activities (386.05)

#Figures reported above are as of June 30, 2023 and take into consideration the Demerged Undertaking.

Our Company has not experienced any negative cash flows from operations, however, if we experience
negative cash flows from operations in the future, it could adversely affect our business, results of operations
and financial condition. For further details, see section titled “Summary of Financial Information™ on page 16
of this Information Memorandum.

The name of Mr. Rajendra Prasad Singh, our Independent Director, has been reported as a wilful defaulter
by CIBIL.

The name of Mr. Rajendra Prasad Singh, one of our non-executive and Independent Directors, appears in the
list of wilful defaulters issued by CIBIL in relation to a default of payment of loan(s) availed by GPL from
Axis Bank and PNB. Mr. Rajendra Prasad Singh was an independent director on the board of directors of GPL
and resigned from its board on August 12, 2014. As per the information available on CIBIL’s website, the said
default appears for the period from period December 2016 to December 2017 (as reported by Axis Bank) and
from September 2018 to March 2019 (as reported by PNB). The outstanding amount as of December 31,2017
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was Rs.587.4 million (as reported by Axis Bank) and was Rs.1,235.4 million (as reported by PNB). Mr.
Rajendra Prasad Singh has intimated in writing to Axis Bank, PNB and CIBIL on August 21, 2019, stating that
he had resigned from the board of GPL. on August 12,2014 and requested Axis Bank, PNB and CIBIL to issue
a letter taking this information on record and requesting them to remove his name from the list of wilful
defaulters. For further details, see *Disclosures Pertaining to Wilful Defaulters’ on page 107.

EXTERNAL RISK FACTORS

44.

45.

46.

47.

The coronavirus disease (COVID-19) has had an adverse effect on our business and operations and the extent
to which it may continue to do so in the future, is uncertain and cannot be predicted.

In the first half of calendar year 2020, COVID-19 spread to a majority of countries across the world, including
India. The COVID-19 pandemic has had, and may continue to have, significant repercussions across local,
national and global economies and financial markets. In particular, a number of govemments and organizations
have revised GDP growth forecasts for calendar years 2020, 2021, 2022 and 2023 downward in response to the
economic slowdown caused by the spread of COVID-19, and it is possible that the COVID-19 pandemic will
cause a prolonged global economic crisis or recession.

While COVID-19 had directly affected our business and operations, though the extent of this pandemic now
receded, there is significant uncertainty regarding the duration and impact of the COVID-19 pandemic, as well
as possible future responses, which makes it impossible for us to predict with certainty the impact that COVID-
19 will have on us and our customers at this time.

The macro-economic effects of the COVID-19 pandemic may adversely affect our business and results of
operations and exacerbate other risks described in this “Risk Factors™ section.

The occurrence of natural or man-made disasters could adversely affect our results of operations, cash flows
and financial condition. Hostilities, terrorist attacks, civil unrest and other acts of violence could adversely
affect the financial markets and our business.

The occurrence of natural disasters, including cyclones, storms, floods, earthquakes, tsunamis, tornadoes, fires,
explosions, pandemic disease and man-made disasters, including acts of terrorism and military actions, could
adversely affect our results of operations, cash flows or financial condition. Terrorist attacks and other acts of
violence or war may adversely affect the Indian securities markets. In addition, any deterioration in
international relations, especially between India and its neighbouring countries, may result in investor concern
regarding regional stability which could adversely atfect the price of the Equity Shares. In addition, India has
witnessed local civil disturbances in recent years, and it is possible that future civil unrest as well as other
adverse social, economic or political events in India could have an adverse effect on our business. Such
incidents could also create a greater perception that investment in Indian companies involves a higher degree
of risk and could have an adverse etfect on our business and the market price of the Equity Shares.

Changing laws, rules and regulations and legal uncertainties, including adverse application of tax laws, may
adversely affect our business and financial performance.

The regulatory and policy environment in India is evolving and subject to change which may adversely aftect
our business, financial condition, results of operations, performance and prospects in India, to the extent that we
are not able to suitably respond to and comply with such changes.

Political instability or a change in economic liberalization and deregulation policies could seriously harm
business and economic conditions in India generally and our business in particular.

The Government has traditionally exercised and continues to exercise influence over many aspects of the
economy which affect our business and the market price and liquidity of our Equity Shares. Changes in interest
rates, Government policy, taxation, social and civil unrest, rate of economic liberalization and other political,
economic or other developments in or affecting India, could adversely atfect economic conditions in India,
generally, and our business, prospects, financial condition and results of operations, in particular:
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Global economic, political and social conditions may harm our ability to do business, increase our costs and
negatively affect our stock price.

Global economic and political factors that are beyond our control, influence forecasts and directly aftect
performance such as interest rates, rates of economic growth, fiscal and monetary policies of governments,
inflation, deflation, foreign exchange fluctuations, consumer credit availability, fluctuations in commodities
markets, consumer debt levels, unemployment trends and other matters that influence consumer confidence,
spending and tourism. Increasing volatility in financial markets may cause these factors to change with a greater
degree of frequency and magnitude, which may negatively affect our stock prices.

Foreign investors are subject to foreign investment restrictions under Indian law that limits our ability to
attract foreign investors, which may adversely impact the market price of the Equity Shares.

Under the foreign exchange regulations currently in force in India, transfer of shares between non-residents and
residents are freely permitted (subject to certain exceptions) as long as such investors comply with the pricing
guidelines, reporting requirements and sectoral caps prescribed in this regard. If the transfer of shares, which are
sought to be transterred, are not in compliance with such pricing guidelines, reporting requirements or other
regulations prescribed, then the prior approval of the Govermment will be required. Additionally, shareholders
who seek to convert the Rupee proceeds from a sale of shares in India into foreign currency and repatriate that
foreign currency from India will require a no objection/ tax clearance certificate from the income tax authority.
There can be no assurance that any Governmental Approvals required under the applicable foreign exchange
regulations can be obtained on any particular terms or at all.

The extent and reliability of Indian infrastructure could adversely affect our Company’s results of operations
and financial condition.

India’s physical infrastructure is in developing phase compared to that of many developed nations. Any
congestion or disruption in its port, rail and road networks, electricity grid, communication systems or any other
public facility could disrupt our Company’s normal business activity. Any deterioration of India’s physical
infrastructure would harm the national economy, disrupt the transportation of goods and supplies, and add costs
to doing business in India. These problems could interrupt our Company’s business operations, which could
have an adverse eftect on its results of operations and financial condition.

You may be subject to Indian taxes arising out of capital gains on the sale of our Equity Shares.

Capital gains arising from the sale of our Equity Shares are generally taxable in India. Generally, the rate of tax
may vary depending on whether the transferor is a resident or non-resident under the Income Tax Act, 1961 and
on the duration for which the shares are held prior to transfer. In certain cases, an exemption from capital gains
tax may be available under the Income Tax Act, 1961 or an applicable double taxation treaty.

There is no prior trading history for the Equity Shares.

Since the Equity Shares have not been previously traded, their market value is uncertain. Following admission,
the market price of the Equity Shares may be volatile. Our Company’s operating results and prospects from time
to time may be below the expectations of market analysts and investors. At the same time, market conditions
may aftect the price of our Company’s Equity Shares regardless of the operating performance of our Company.
Stock market conditions are atfected by many factors, such as general economic and political conditions, terrorist
activity, movements in or outlook on interest rates and inflation rates, currency fluctuations, commodity prices,
changes in investor sentiment towards the retail market and the supply and demand of capital.

Significant trading volumes of the Equity Shares on the Stock Exchanges on listing could impact the price of
our Company’s Equity Shares.

Following admission of our Equity Shares for trading on the Stock Exchanges, there may be a period of relatively

high-volume trading in the Equity Shares. A high volume of sales of our Equity Shares on the Stock Exchanges
after admission, or the perception that these sales might occur, could result in volatility in the market price of

our Equity Shares.
a ;’MI \\%\;ﬂ .'



54.

SS.

56.

There are restrictions on daily movements in the price of the Equity Shares, which may adversely affect a
shareholder’s ability to sell, or the price at which it can sell, Equity Shares at a particular point in time.

Pursuant to listing, we will be subject to a daily ““circuit breaker” imposed by the Stock Exchanges, which does
not allow transactions beyond specified increases or decreases in the price of the Equity Shares. This circuit
breaker operates independently of the index-based, market-wide circuit breakers generally imposed by SEBI on
Indian stock exchanges. The percentage limit on our circuit breakers will be set by the stock exchanges based
on the historical volatility in the price and trading volume of the Equity Shares. The Stock Exchanges may not
inform us of the percentage limit of the circuit breaker in effect from time to time and may change it without our
knowledge. This circuit breaker will limit the upward and downward movements in the price of the Equity
Shares. As aresult of this circuit breaker, no assurance can be given regarding shareholders’ ability to sell Equity
Shares at any particular time.

Any downgrading of India’s debt rating by an international rating agency could adversely affect our business
and the price of our Equity Shares.

Any adverse revisions to India’s credit ratings for domestic and international debt by international rating
agencies may adversely affect our business, our future financial performance, our shareholders’ funds and the
price of our Equity Shares.

A third party could be prevented from acquiring control of us because of anti-takeover provisions under
Indian law.

There are provisions in Indian law that may delay, deter or prevent a future takeover or change in control of our
Company. Under the Takeover Regulations, an acquirer has been defined as any person who, directly or
indirectly, acquires or agrees to acquire shares or voting rights or control over a company, whether individually
or acting in concert with others. Although these provisions have been formulated to ensure that interests of
investors/shareholders are protected, these provisions may also discourage a third party from attempting to take
control of our Company. Consequently, even if a potential takeover of our Company would result in the purchase
of the Equity Shares at a premium to their market price or would otherwise be beneficial to our shareholders,
such a takeover may not be attempted or consummated because of Takeover Regulations.
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SECTION 1V — INTRODUCTION

GENERAL INFORMATION

Name: Bajel Projects Limited
Registered Office: 801, Rustomjee Aspiree Anik, Wadala Link Road, Sion East, Mumbai, 400022.

Registrar of Companies, Maharashtra at Mumbai
100, Everest, Marine Drive, '
Mumbai — 400 002, India

Website: www.mca.gov.in

The following table sets out details regarding our Board as on the date of this Information Memorandum:

Shekhar Bajaj 00089358 Non-Executive Director & | Flat No.50, Building No.4, Hill Park, A.G.

Chairman Bell Marg, Malabar Hill, Mumbai 400006.
Rajesh Ganesh 07008856 Managing Director Flat No. 701, 7th Floor, IRIS CHS, Smt
Gladys Alvares Road, Hiranandani
Meadows, Thane (West), 400610.

Ajay Nagle 00773616 Executive Director, | 18/204, Nilgiri, Sidhachal Phase No.3,
Secretary and Chief | Pokharan Road No.2, Thane 400602.
Compliance Officer

Rajendra Prasad | 00004812 Independent Director House No.29, 1* Floor, D-Block, Paschimi

Singh Marg, Vasant Vihar, New Delhi 110057.

Radhika Dudhat | 00016712 Independent Director 72, Buena Vista, J. Bhosale Marg, Nariman
Point, Mumbai 400021.

Maneck Davar 01990326 Independent Director Flat No.2, Ground Floor, Wadia Building,

6 Babulnath Road, Opp. Bombay Eye
Hospital, Grant Road, Mumbai 400007.

For further details of our Board of Directors, please refer to the section titled “Our Management” on page 72 of this
Information Memorandum.

Mr. Ajay Nagle is the Company Secretary of our Company. His contact details are as follows:

Address: 801, Rustomjee Aspiree, Anik Wadala Link Road, Sion East, Mumbai — 400022.
Tel: 7738321259/ 22- 68267300
Email: legal@bajelprojects.com




Name: Link Intime India Private Limited

Address: C-101, 247 Park, LBS Marg, Vikhroli (West), Mumbai — 400083

Tel: +91 022-49186000; Fax: +91 022-49186060

Email: mt.helpdesk@linkintime.co.in ; devang.mehta(@linkintime.co.in

Contact Person: Mr. Devang Mehta, Sr. Clients Executive

SEBI Registration Number: INR000004058

URL of SEBI  website listing out details of registrar and share transter  agent:
https://www.sebi.gov.in/sebiweb/other/OtherAction.do?doRecognisedFpi=yes&intmId=10

AUDITORS TO THE COMPANY. = e SR e e e e

Messrs S R B C & CO LLP, Chartered Accountants

Vikram Mehta, Partner

Address: 22, Camac Street, Block B, 3rd Floor, Kolkata— 700016
Tel: 022- 6192 0000

Fax: srbc.co@srb.in

Email: Vikram.Mehta@srb.in

Firm Registration Number: 324982E/E300003
Membership No.: 105938
Peer review number: 014892

Since the Company was incorporated in the year 2022, there have been no changes in the Auditors since its
incorporation.

AUTHORITY FOR LISTING

The NCLT, Mumbai, by way of its order dated June 8, 2023 sanctioned the Scheme with respect to the transter of
the Demerged Undertaking of BEL to our Company. The Equity Shares of our Company issued pursuant to the
Scheme shall be listed and admitted for trading on the Stock Exchanges. Such listing and admission for trading is
not automatic and will be subject to fulfilment of listing criteria by the Company as permitted by the Stock
Exchanges for such issues and such other terms and conditions as may be prescribed by the Stock Exchanges at the
time of the application for listing by Company. For more details relating to the Scheme, please refer to “Objects and
Rationale of the Scheme’ on page 48.

Our Company has obtained in-principle listing approvals from BSE and NSE on October 30, 2023 and November
1, 2023 respectively. Our Company shall make applications for final listing and trading approvals from BSE and
NSE. The Company has nominated BSE as the Designated Stock Exchange for the aforesaid listing of shares.

ELIGIBILITY CRITERIA

There being no initial public offering or rights issue, the eligibility criteria in terms of the SEBI ICDR Regulations,
is not applicable. SEBI has, by way of the SEBI Scheme Circular, permitted unlisted issuer companies to make an
application for relaxation from the strict enforcement of Rule 19(2)(b) of SCRR, subject to certain conditions.
Accordingly, the Company has made an application seeking relaxation from the applicability of Rule 19(2)(b) of
SCRR, and SEBI has granted such relaxation vide its letter no. SEBI/HO/CFD/DCR/RAC-1/P/OW/2023/47009/1
dated November 28, 2023.

The Information Memorandum, once finalised, shall be made publicly available through the respective websites of
the Stock Exchanges (i.e., www.bseindia.com and www.nseindia.com) and through our website on
https://bajelprojects.com. Before commencement of trading, our Company will publish an advertisement in the
newspapers containing its details in accordance with the SEBI Scheme Circular with the details required in
accordance with sub — clause 5 of paragraph A of Part 11 of the SEBI Scheme Circular.

GENERAL DISCLAIMER BY COMPANY

The Company accepts no responsibility for statements made otherwise than in the Information Memorandum or in
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the advertisement to be published in terms of the SEBI Scheme Circular or any other material issued by or at the
instance of the Company and that anyone placing reliance on any other source of information would be doing so at
his own risk. All information shall be made available by our Company to the public and investors at large and no
selective or additional information would be available for a section of the investors in any manneg:
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CAPITAL STRUCTURE

The share capital of our Company, prior to the Eftective Date is set out below:

Particulars Amount (in )
Authorised Share Capital

20,00,00,000 Equity Shares of tace value of Rs. 2 each 40,00.00.000
TOTAL 40,00,00,000
Issued, Subscribed and Paid-up Share Capital

25.00,000 Equity Shares of face value of Rs. 2 each* 50.00,000
TOTAL 50,00,000
Securities Premium Nil

*Entire pre-Scheme issued. subscribed and paid up capital is directly and through its nominees (100% legally and beneficially)
held by BEL. Prior to the Effective Date. BEL was the promoter o fthe Company.

The share capital of our Company. post the Effective Date is set out below:

Particulars Amount (in )
Authorised Share Capital

20.00,00,000 Equity Shares of face value of Rs. 2 each 40.00.00,000
TOTAL 40,00,00,000
Issued, Subscribed and Paid-up Share Capital

11,51.01,953 Equity Shares of face value of Rs. 2 each 23,02,03,906
TOTAL 23,02,03,906
Securities Premium Nil

1. Changes in Authorized Share Capital

Set out below are the changes in the authorized capital since the incorporation of our Company:

May 12,2023 The authorized share capital of Rs.1,00,00,000 divided into 50,00,000 Equity Shares
of Rs.2 each was increased to Rs. 40,00.00,000 divided into 20,00,00,000 Equity
Shares of Rs.2 each*

*Authorised share capital was increased pursuant to the Scheme.

1o

Share Capital History of our Company

The history of the equity share capital of our Company since its incorporation is set out below:

b5.00,000 50,00,000

January  [25.00,000 Initial Subscription
19, 2022 to the
Memorandum  of]
Association'!

September|(25,00,000) D IN.A. | ICancellation of|- s
16,2023 Equity Shares
September(11,51,01,953 2 IN.A. |Consideration [Allotment pursuant(11,51,01.953  |2,30,20.39.06
16,2023 other than|to the Scheme'”
cash

(1) Allotment of 24,99,994 Equity Shares to BEL, | Equity Share to Mr. Shekhar Bajaj, | Equity Share to Mr.

E2 s
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A Poddar, | Equity Share to Mr. EC Prasad, | Equity Share to Mr. Ajay Nagle, | Equity Share to Mr.
Binda Misra, | Equity Share to Mr. Paritosh Chaugule as nominees of BEL.
(2)  Cancellation of 25,00,000 Equity Shares held by BEL, Mr. Shekhar Bajaj, Mr. Anuj Poddar, Mr. EC Prasad,
Mr. Ajay Nagle, Mr. Binda Misra, and Mr. Paritosh Chaugule as nominees of BEL pursuant to the Scheme.
(3) Allotmentof11,51,01,953 Equity Shares to the Eligible Shareholders of BEL as on the Record Date, pursuant

to the Scheme.
3. Equity Shares issued for consideration other than cash

Other than the Equity Shares allotted by our Company pursuant to and in accordance with the Scheme, our
Company has not issued Equity Shares for consideration other than cash, on the date of this Information

Memorandum. '
4. Equity Shares issued out of revaluation of reserves
Our Company has not issued any Equity Shares out of revaluation of reserves or unrealized profits.

5. Employee Stock Option Schemes of the Company

The Board of Directors of the Company has approved and implemented the *Special Purpose ESOP Scheme’ by
way of their meeting dated September 16, 2023, in accordance with Clause 9 of the Scheme.
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6. Shareholding Pattern

A. The shareholding pattern of the Company, prior to allotment of Equity Shares under the Scheme is as under:

Promoter
&
Promoter
Group
(B) Public 0 0 0 0 0 0.0000 0 0 0 0.0000 0 0.0000 0 0.0000 NA NA 0
() Non 0 0 0 0 0 0.0000 0 0 0 0.0000 0 0.0000 0 0.0000 NA NA 0
Promoter-
Non Public
«n Shares 0 0 0 0 0 0.0000 0 0 0 0.0000 0 0.0000 0 0.0000 NA NA 0
Underlying
DRs

(€2) Shares 0 0 0 0 0 0.0000 0 0 0 0.0000 0 0.0000 0 0.0000 NA NA 0
Held By
Employee
Trust
Total 7 2500000 0 0 2500000 100.00 2500000 0 2500000 100.00 0 100.00 0 0.0000 0 0.0000 2500000

B. The shareholding pattern of the Company, post allotment of Equity Shares under the Scheme is as under:




(L))

(A)

Promoter

&
Promoter
CGiroup

49

72342279

T284RTY

72342279

72342279

62.8500

0.0000

0.0000

72342279

(B)

Public

42759674

42759674

371494

42759674

42759674

371494

37,1494

0.0000

NA

NA

42759674

()

Non
Promoter-
Non Public

0.0000

NA

NA

0

(Cly

Shares
Underlying
DRs

0.0000

0.0000

0.0000

0.0000

()

Shares
Held By
Employee
Trust

0.0000

0.0000

0.0000

0.0000

NA

NA

Total

63637

115101953

115101953

100.0000

115101953

115101953

100.0000

100.0000

0.0000

115104953
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7. Major Shareholders:

(a) Shareholders Constituting 80% of the Paid Up Share Capital of the Company:

The details of the shareholders of the Company (i) holding 1% or more of the paid-up equity share capital
of the Company; and (ii) aggregating to 80% of the equity share capital of the Company as on the Record
Date:

Jamnalal Sons Private Limited 22548276 19.59

2 Bajaj Holdings And Investment Ltd 19136840 16.63
3 Kiran Bajaj 7545224 6.56)
4. Government Pension Fund Global 6186493 537
5 Hdfc Small Cap Fund 5545822 4.82
6 Nippon Life India Trustee Ltd-A/C

INippon India Small Cap Fund 3062071 2.66
7. Geetika Bajaj 2160084 1.88
8. Vanraj Bajaj 1843556 1.60
9. Shekhar Bajaj 1814639 1.58
10. " ICICI Prudential Flexicap Fund 1581322 1.37
Il Ipogia Bajaj 1541875 1.34
12. IBaroda Industries Private Limited 1412738 1.23
13 |Hind Musafir Agency Ltd 1288000 112
4. ISunaina Kejriwal 1240730 1.08
15. " Niraj Bajaj 1130882 0.98
16.  IBHIL Employees Welfare Fund No 2 1067872 0.93
7. [Kiran Bajaj 1000000) 0.87
18. Bajaj International Pvt Ltd 917881 0.80
19. " |Neelima Bajaj Swamy 812973 0.71
20.  |Long Term India Fund 700000 0.61
21 inal Bajaj 694674 0.60
22. [[CICI Prudential Multicap Fund 693015 0.60
23. Nimisha Jaipuria 628043 0.55
24. |Hercules Hoists Limited 624596 0.54
25. IKuwait Investment Authority Fund 590000 0.51

26. Vanguard Emerging Markets Stock
Index Fund, A Series Of Vanguard

International Equity Index Funds 584646 0.51
27. 'Vanguard Total International Stock

Index Fund 563414 0.49
28. BHIL Employees Welfare Fund No|

1 555084 0.48
29. |Shekhar Holdings Pvt Ltd 540253 0.47
30. Ishares Core MSCI Emerging

Markets ETF 532503 0.46
3. Niraj Bajaj 524721 0.46
32 Niraj Bajaj 500000
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33. |Minal Niraj Bajaj 500000 0.43

34 |Rajivnayan Bajaj 471052 0.41
35. |Rahul Securities Pvt Ltd 467093 041
36. Eastspring Investments India Fund 437631 0.38
37. Sanjivnayan Bajaj 428749 0.37

38. HDFC Mutual Fund - HDFC
Retirement Savings Fund - Equity
Plan 370406 0.32

Total 92243158 80.14

(b) Shareholding Two Years Prior to the Date of this Information Memorandum: As our Company was
incorporated on January 19, 2022, there were no shareholders 2 (two) years prior to the date of this
Memorandum.

(c) Shareholding One Year Prior to the Date of this Information Memorandum:

| Number of Equity Shares |  Percentage of Equity Share
, & Al T (s ;  Capital (%)
BEL (including shares held | 25,00,000 100%
by 6 (six) nominee
shareholders)
Total 25,00,000 100%

8. Intention to Alter Share Capital: Our Company presently does not intend or propose to alter our capital
structure for a period of 6 (six) months of this Information Memorandum.

9. Shareholding of each of the Promoters and Build-up of Promoter’s Shareholding in the Company:
As of the date of this Information Memorandum, our Promoters viz. Shekhar Bajaj, Madhur Bajaj, Niraj Bajaj,
Rajivnayan Bajaj and Sanjivnayan Bajaj, hold in aggregate 35,74,270 Equity Shares, equivalent to 3.1% of the

issued, subscribed and paid-up equity share capital of our Company.

(a) Build-up of our Promoter’s shareholding in our Company

Set forth below is the build-up of the shareholding of our Promoter since incorporation of our Company:

' Shekhar Bajaj

September Allotment 18,14,639 | Consideratio 2.00 N.A. N.A. 1.58 Nil
16,2023 pursuant to the n other than

Scheme cash
Madhur Bajaj
September Allotment 2,00,000 | Consideratio 2.00 N.A. N.A. 0.17 Nil
16,2023 pursuant to the n other than

Scheme cash
Niraj Bajaj
September Allotment 11,30,882 | Consideratio 2.00 N.A. N.A. 0.98 Nil
16,2023 pursuant to the n other than

Scheme cash

Rajivnayan Bajaj
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N.A. [ NA. [0 | NA. | | N.A. | N.A. | 0.00 | Nil
Sanjivnayan Bajaj
September Allotment 428,749 | Consideratio 2.00 N.A. N.A. 0.37 Nil
16,2023 pursuant to the n other than

Scheme cash

10. Number of Shareholders of the Company: As of the date of this Information Memorandum, our Company has
63,637 shareholders.

11.Shareholding of our Promoter Group and directors/partners of our corporate Promoters:

Except as stated below, none of our Promoter Group members hold any Equity Shares of the Company as on the
date of this Information Memorandum. None of our Promoters are bodies corporates.

Sr. Name of the Shareholder No. of Equity Shares % of paid up capital
No.
Promoters
1. Shekhar Bajaj 18,14,639 1.58.
2 Madhur Bajaj 2,00,000 0.17
3 Niraj Bajaj 11,30,882 0.98
4. Rajivnayan Bajaj 0 0.00
3, Sanjivnayan Bajaj 4,28,749 0.37
Sub-Total (A) 35,74,270 3.1
Promoter Group
6. Kiran Bajaj 75,45,224 6.56
7. Geetika Bajaj 21,60,084 1.88
8. Vanraj Bajaj* 18.43.556 1.60
9. Pooja Bajaj 15,41,875 1.34
10. Sunaina Kejriwal 12,40,730 1.08
L. Minal Bajaj 6.94,674 0.60
12, Niravnayan Bajaj 2,82,507 0.25
13. Kumud Bajaj 2,00,000 0.17
14. Neelima Bajaj Swamy 2,00,000 0.17
15. Suman Jain 1,10,700 0.10
16. Kriti Bajaj 1,01,297 0.09
17. Shetali Bajaj 33,767 0.03
18. Deepa Bajaj 1,126 0.00
19. Nimisha Jaipuria 0.00 0.00
20. Rishabnayan Bajaj 0.00 0.00
21. Siddhant Bajaj 0.00 0.00
22, Sanjali Bajaj 0.00 0.00
23 Aryaman Kejriwal 0.00 0.00
24, Nirvaan Kejriwal 0.00 0.00
2% Aarav Swamy 0.00 0.00
26. Vihaan Jaipuria 0.00 0.00
27. Sheetal Bajaj 0.00 0.00
28. Rajivnayan Bajaj HUF 0.00 0.00
29, Sanjivnayan Bajaj HUF 0.00 0.00
30. Vanraj Bajaj Trust (Kiran Bajaj as | 10,00,000 0.87
a Trustee)
31. Neelima Bajaj Swamy Family | 8,12,973 0.71
Trust (Neelima Bajaj Swamy as a
Trustee)
32, Nimisha Jaipuria Family Trust | 6,28,043 0.55
(Nimisha Jaipuria as a Trustee)
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Sr. Name of the Shareholder No. of Equity Shares % of paid up capital

No.

33. Niravnayan Trust (Niraj Bajaj asa | 5,24,721 0.46
Trustee)

34, Kriti Bajaj Family Trust (Minal | 5,00,000 0.43
Niraj Bajaj as a Trustee)

Bz Niravnayan Bajaj Family Trust | 5,00,000 0.43
(Niraj Bajaj as a Trustee)

36. Rishab Family Trust (Rajivnayan | 4,71,052 0.41
Bajaj as a Trustee)

37. Sanjali Family Trust (Sanjivnayan | 2,62,717 0.23
Bajaj as a Trustee)

38. Siddhant Family Trust | 2,62,717 0.23
(Sanjivnayan Bajaj as a Trustee)

39. Nimisha Bajaj Family Trust | 2,06,575 0.18
(Madhur Bajaj as a Trustee)

40. Madhur Neelima Family Trust | 1,25,800 0.11
(Kumud Bajaj as a Trustee)

41. Kumud Neelima Family Trust | 1,25,800 0.11
(Madhur Bajaj as a Trustee)

42. Kumud Nimisha Family Trust | 1,25,800 0.11
(Madhur Bajaj as a Trustee)

43. Madhur Nimisha Family Trust | 1,25,799 0.11
(Kumud Bajaj as a Trustee)

44. Neelima Bajaj Family Trust | 21,644 0.02
(Kumud Bajaj as a Trustee)

45. Deepa Trust 0.00 0.00

46. Sanjali Trust 0.00 0.00

47. Siddhant Trust 0.00 0.00

48. Rishab Trust 0.00 0.00

49. Aryaman Trust 0.00 0.00

50. Nirvaan Trust 0.00 0.00

Sl Rajiv Trust 0.00 0.00

S, Sanjiv Trust 0.00 0.00

53. Anant Bajaj Trust 0.00 0.00

54. Nirav Trust 0.00 0.00

53. Nimisha Trust 0.00 0.00

56. Aryaman Family Trust 0.00 0.00

S Nirvaan Family Trust 0.00 0.00

S8. Geetika Shekhar Bajaj Family | 0.00 0.00
Trust

59. Estate of Rahulkumar Bajaj 0.00 0.00

60. Bajaj Investment Trust 0.00 0.00

61. Jamnalal Sons Private Limited 2,25,48.276 19.59

62. Bajaj Holdings And Investment | 1,91,36,840 16.63
Limited

63. Baroda Industries Private Limited | 14,12,738 1.23

64. Hind Musafir Agency Limited 12,88,000 1.12

65. Bajaj International Private Limited | 9,17,881 0.80

66. Hercules Hoists Limited 6.,24,596 0.54

67. Shekhar Holdings Private Limited | 5,40.253 0.47

68. Rahul Securities Private Limited 4,67,093 0.41

69. Bachhraj Factories Private Limited | 1,05.466 0.09
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Sr. Name of the Shareholder No. of Equity Shares % of paid up capital

No.

70. Bachhraj & Company Private | 66,585 0.06
Limited

71. Bajaj Sevashram Private Limited | 5.550 0.00

12k Kamalnayan Investments And | 1,110 0.00
Trading Private Limited

73. Madhur Securities Private Limited | 1,110 0.00

74. | Niraj Holdings Private Limited 1.110 0.00

7S, Rupa Equities Private Limited 1.110 0.00

76. Sanraj Nayan Investments Private | 1,110 0.00
Limited

e Bajaj Trading Company 0.00 0.00

78. RDR Ventrues LLP 0.00 0.00

79. Aryan Nayan Realty LLP 0.00 0.00

Sub-Total (B) 6.87.68.009 59.75

Total (A+B) 7,23.42,279 62.85

*Muaster Vanraj Bajaj, a member of our Promoter Group, holds 18,43,556 equity shares that are subject to transfer
restrictions and categorized/shown as/under ‘number of shares pledged or otherwise encumbered’, in compliance with
the directives issued by the Hon'ble High Court, Bombay. These restrictions will continue until Master Vanraj Bajaj
attains majority. Please refer to the Notes on Capital Structure in the section titled “Capital Structure™ on page 39
of this Information Memorandum.

12. None of the members of our Promoter Group and/or our Promoters and/or our Directors and their relatives have
purchased or sold Equity Shares of the Company during the six months immediately preceding the date of this
Information Memorandum.

13. There are/have been no financing arrangements whereby our Promoter, any member of our Promoter Group, or
our Directors and their relatives have financed the purchase by any other person of securities of our Company
during the six months immediately preceding the date of this Information Memorandum.

14.In accordance with sub-paragraph I of paragraph A of Part Il of the SEBI Scheme Circular, no additional lock-
in is applicable to our Promoter and the shareholders of our Company in, since the shareholding of our Company
post effectiveness of the Scheme is exactly similar to the shareholding pattern of BEL.

15. Neither the Company nor the Directors have entered into any buy-back arrangements for the purchase of the
Equity Shares of the Company.

16. The Equity Shares of the Company are fully paid up and there are no partly paid up Equity Shares as on the date
of this Information Memorandum.

17. Master Vanraj Bajaj, a member of our Promoter Group, holds 18,43,556 equity shares that are subject to transfer
restrictions and categorized/shown as/under 'number of shares pledged or otherwise encumbered', in compliance
with an order dated January 16, 2020 issued by the Bombay High Court (read with its modified order dated
January 30, 2020) in in [LA. No. 1 of 2020 in Petition No. 2972 of 2018. Mrs. Pooja Bajaj, acting in the capacity
of'a mother and natural guardian of her minor son Master Vanraj Bajaj, had submitted a non-disposal undertaking
to the Bombay High Court that the 1/3rd share, being the allocated share of Master Vanraj Bajaj, from and out
of the estate of his deceased father Late Mr. Anant Bajaj (including 18,43,556 equity shares in BEL), shall not
be dealt with / transferred without the prior leave of the Bombay High Court until such time that Master Vanraj
Bajaj attains the age of majority. The non-disposal undertaking amounts to an encumbrance (which was made
effective/formalized by way of debit freeze on July 3, 2020) over the 18,43,556 equity shares held by Master
Vanraj Bajaj in BEL. Accordingly, the 18,43.556 equity shares issued to Master Vanraj Bajaj pursuant to the
Scheme shall be subject to the aforementioned non-disposal undertaking and shall be categorized/shown as/under
'number of shares pledged or otherwise encumbered' in compliance with the Bombay High Court.order dated
January 16, 2020. ey N
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OBJECTS AND RATIONALE OF THE SCHEME
Scheme of Arrangement

The Scheme was approved by the Board of Directors of each of BEL and BPL by way of their respective resolutions
dated February 8, 2022. Further, as advised by the SEBI during meetings with our management, and Stock Exchanges
by way of their observation letters December 2, 2022 and December 5, 2022, the Demerger Committee of BEL and
the Board of Directors of BPL, at their respective meetings held on December 6, 2022, made certain/required
amendment(s) to the Scheme. Pursuant to the order of the NCLT dated January 5, 2023, meeting of the equity
shareholders of BEL was convened and the Scheme was approved as the NCLT-convened meeting on March 2, 2023.

The NCLT, Mumbai, by way of order dated June 8, 2023 has approved the Scheme, pursuant to provisions of Sections
230 to 232 of the Companies Act. The Scheme provides for the demerger of the Demerged Undertaking of BEL into

BPL and the consequent issuance of 11,51,01,953 Equity Shares of the Company to the Eligible Shareholders of BEL.

The text of the Rationale as provided in the Scheme of Arrangement:

Quote
i The Demerged Company has 2 (two) distinct business segments viz. (i) Consumer Product segment (‘CP’)

(which includes appliances, fan and consumer lighting products); and (ii) Engineering Procurement and
Construction segment (‘EPC’). The EPC segment primarily focuses on [llumination Business and Power
Transmission and Power Distribution Business.

Hlumination Business which is a part of EPC segment is more synergistic to CP segment and its risk and
rewards are also aligned to that of CP segment.

The nature of risk, competition, challenges, opportunities and business methods for the Power Transmission
and Power Distribution Business (as defined hereinafier) is separate and distinct from the Remaining Business
(us defined hereinafier) carried out by the Demerged Company. Further, the way the Power Transmission and
Power Distribution Business is required to be handled and managed is not similar to that of the Remaining
Business.

Each of the varied businesses carried out by the Demerged Company have significant potential for growth and
profitabilitv and can attract different set of investors, strategic partners, lenders, etc.  Therefore, as these
businesses approach their next phase of growth, it would be strategically apt to segregate the Power
Transmission and Power Distribution Business from the Remaining Business.

The segregation shall enable them to move forward independently, with greater focus and specialization,
building on their respective capabilities and their strong brand presence. It will also help to channelize
resources required for all the businesses to focus on the growing businesses and attracting right talent and
providing enhanced growth opportunities to existing talent in line with a sharper strategic focus on each
business segment under separate entities.

The Scheme will also enable the Demerged Company and the Resulting Company to focus and enhance its
respective businesses by streamlining operations and its management structure ensuring better and more
efficient management control.

Bifurcation of these businesses will enable unlocking value of each vertical thereby paving way for focused
growth with a view to create significant stakeholder value and at the same time allow investors to allocate
their portfolio into separate entities, focused on the distinct entities. Further, it will enable independent and
distinct capital allocation approach and balance sheet management based on the distinct needs of each
business.

Thus, the demerger would help in achieving the desired operating structure and shall inter-alia have
Jfollowing benefits:

(a) Create sector focused companies;
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(b) Streamline the management structure;

(¢c) Unlock value for shareholders;

(d) Ring-fence businesses from each other; and
(e) Better risk management.

Consideration

Upon the Scheme becoming effective and in consideration of transfer and vesting of the Demerged Undertaking
trom BEL to the Company in terms of the Scheme, the Company has issued and allotted 11,51,01,953 Equity Shares
to the shareholders of BEL as on the Record Date, in the following manner:

*1 equity share of the fuce value of INR 2 each fully paid-up of the Resulting Company shall be issued and allotted
Sfor every | equity share of face value INR 2 each fully paid up held by equity shareholders of the Demerged
Company™

Cancellation of share capital

Pursuant to the provisions of Sections 230 to 232 of the Companies Act, the shareholding of BEL in the Company
has been cancelled without any further act, instrument or deed, immediately following the issuance of the Equity
Shares in accordance with and as an integral part of the Scheme.

Approvals for the Scheme

The NCLT by its order dated June 8, 2023 has sanctioned the Scheme. In accordance with the said Scheme, the
Equity Shares of our Company were issued to the Eligible Shareholders. Subject to applicable regulations, the Equity
Shares of our Company shall be listed and admitted to trading on the Stock Exchanges. Such listing and admission
for trading is not automatic and will be subject to such other terms and conditions as may be prescribed by the Stock
Exchanges at the time of application by our Company seeking listing.
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STATEMENT OF POSSIBLE TAX BENEFITS

STATEMENT OF POSSIBLE SPECIAL TAX BENEFITS AVAILABLE TO THE COMPANY AND ITS
SHAREHOLDERS UNDER THE APPLICABLE TAX LAWS IN INDIA

PARTICULARS PAGE NO.
Statement of Possible Tax Benefits 50.1 to 50.5
Disclaimer from Venus Shah & Associates on Statement of Possible Tax 51
Benefits
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S'SHAH & ASSOCIATES
LO\’\‘ } VENUS SI.ICHARTERED ACCOUNTANTS

)

To

The Board of Directors
Bajel Projects Limited
801, Rustomjee Aspiree,
Anilkc Wadala Link Road,
Sion East, Mumbai 400022

Dear Sit/Madam,

Subject: Proposed listing of equity shares of Bajel Projects Limited (“BPL” or “the Company”) on
BSE Limited and National Stock Exchange of India Limited pursuant to a Scheme of Arrangement

We hereby confirm that the enclosed Annexure. prepared by BPL sets out the possible tax benefits
available to the Company and the shareholders of the Company under the provisions of the applicable
direct and indirect-tax laws, as amended and read with rules, circulars and notifications, applicable for
Financial Year 2023-24

Several of these benefits are dependent on the Company and/or its shareholders fuifilling the conditions
prescribed under the relevant provisions of the Act read with rules, circulars and notifications thereto.
Hence, their ability to derive the tax benefits is dependent upon fulfilling such conditions, which on the
basis of the business imperatives faced, they may or may not choose to fulfil

The benefits discussed in the enclosed Statement cover only special tax benefits available to the Gom pany,
and to the shareholders of the company and are not exhaustive and also do not cover any general tax
benefits available to the Company. Further. any benefits available under any other laws within or cutside
India have not been examined and covered by this Statement.

The benefits discussed in the enclosed Annexure are not exhaustive and the preparation of the contents
stated is the reépansibiﬁty of the Company’s management, We are informed that this statement is only
intended to provide general information to the shareholders and hence. is neither designed nor intended
to be a substitute for professional tax advice. In view of the individual nature of the tax consequences, the
changing tax laws, each shareholder is advised to consult his or her own tax consultant with respect to the
specific tax implications arising out of investment in shares of BPL, particularly in view of the fact that
certain recently enacted legislations may not have a direct legal precedent, or may have a different
interpretation on the benefits, which the shareholder can avail,

Our confirmation is based on the information, explanations and representations obtained from the
Company and based on our understanding of the business activities and operations of the Company.

Also, our confirmation is based on the existing provisions of law and our interpretation of the same, which
are subject to change from time to time. We do not assume responsibility to update the views consequent
to such changes.

We do not express an opinion or provide any assurance as to whether: o

a) The Company, its material subsidiaries and its shareholders_will continue to/$bfam the O\
(a) pany. 3 /Lu‘.;‘\} : é,ia A\

benefits as per the Statement in future;
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{b) The conditions prescribed for availing the benefits, wherever applicable have been/would be

met with

{c) The revenue authorities/courts will concur with the views expressed herein,

This confirmation lerter is addressed to and is provided to enable the Board of Directors of the Company
to include this report in the Information Memorandum to be filed by the Company with Securities and
Exchange Board of India and the concerned Stock Exchange(s) in connection with the proposed listing.

Neither we, nor our Partners and employees, owe or accept any duty of care or any responsibility to any
other party, whether in contract or in tort (including without limitation, negligence or breach of statutory
duty) however arising, and shall not be liable in respect of any loss, damage or expense of whatever

nature which is caused to any other party,
Yours faithfully,

For Venus Shah & Associates
Chartered Accountants
Firm Registration Number: 120878W

TR
Manish{ mee
Partner

Membership No.: 140937 _
Place: Mumbai N BE e
Date: June 19, 2023 S
UDIN; 23140937BGWYDI60 10

Encl: Annexure
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ANNEXURE 1

STATEMENT OF SPECIAL TAX BENEFITS AVAILABLE TO BAJEL PROJECTS LIMITED
(THE “COMPANY”) AND ITS SHAREHOLDERS

L. UNDER THE INCOME-TAX ACT, 1961 (heminafter'referred 1o as ‘the Act”)

A. SPECIAL DIRECT TAX BENEFITS AVAILABLE TO THE COMPANY

The statement of tax benefits enumerated below is as per the Income-tax Act, 1961 (“the Act™) as
amended by the Finance Act, 2022 and applicable to Financial Year (‘'FY) 2022-23 relevant to
Assessment Year (‘FAY’) 2023-24.

(1) Lower corporate tax rate under section 115BAA of the Act

A new section |15BAA has been inserted in the Act by the Taxation Laws {Amendment) Act,
2019 (“the Amendment Act, 20197y wef. April 1, 2020 (AY 2020-21). Section 115BAA grants
an option to a domestic company to be governed by the section from a particular assessment vear.
if a company opts for section 115BAA of the Act, 1t can pay corporate tax at a reduced rate of 229%
(plus applicable surcharge and education cess:). Section 115BAA of the Act further provides that
domestic companies availing the option will not be required to pay Minimum Alternate Tax (MAT)
on their “book profit” under section 115JB of the Act

However, such a company will no longer be eligible 1o avail certain specified exemptions /
incentives under the Act and will also need to comply with certain other conditions specified in
section 1 {ISBAA of the Act. Also, if a company opts for section [ISBAA, the tax credit (under
section 1 15JAA), if any, which it was entitled to on account of MAT paid in earlier years, will no
longer be available. Further, it shall not be allowed 1o claim set-off of any brought forward loss
arising to 1t on account of additional depreciation and other specified incentives.

{2) Deduction in respect of employment of new employees — Section 80JJAA of the Act

Subject to fultilment of prescribed conditions, the Company is entitled to claim deduction, under
the provisions of section 80JJAA of the Act, of an amount equal to thirty per cent of additional
employee cost (relating to specified category of employees) incurred in the course of business in
the previous year, for three assessment years including the assessment year relevant to the previous
vear in which such employment is provided,

Except for the above, the Company is not entitled to any other special tax benefits under the Act.

B. SPECIAL TAX BENEFITS AVAILABLE TO THE SHAREHOLDERS UNDER THE ACT
There are no special tax benefits available to the shareholders of the Company.

Notes:

a. The above Statement sets out the provisions of law in a summary manner only and is not a
complete analysis or listing of all potential tax consequences of the purchase, ownership and
disposal of shares.
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The above statement of possible tax benefits is as per the current direct tax laws relevant for the
assessment year 2023-24,

This statement is intended only to provide general information to the investors and is neither
designed nor intended to be a substitute for professional tax advice. In view of the individual
nature of tax consequences, each investor is advised to consult histher own tax advisor with
respect to specific tax consequences of histher investment in the shares of the Company.

In respect of non-residents, the tax rates and consequent taxation will be further subject to any
benefits available under the relevant DTAA, if any, between India and the country in which the
non-resident has fiscal domucile.

No assurance is given that the revenue authorities/courts will concur with the views expressed
herein, Our views are based on the existing provisions of law and its interpretation, which are
subject to changes from time to time We do not assume responsibility to update the views
consequent to such changes.




ANNEXURE 2

STATEMENT OF INDIRECT TAX BENEFITS AVALIABLE TO BAJEL PROJECTS LIMITED
(THE “COMPANY") AND ITS SHAREHOLDERS

IL, The Central Goods and Services Tax Act, 2017 / the Integrated Goods and Services
Tax Act, 2017 (“GST Act”)/ respective State Goods and Services Tax Act (“SGST™) read with
rules, circulars, and notifications ("GST law"), the Customs Act, 1962 (*Customs Act”), the
Customs Tariff Act, 1975 (“Tariff Act”), the Foreign Trade Policy 2023 ("FTP") as applicable
from the Financial Year 2022-23. presently in force in India (collectively referred to as “Indirect

Tax™)

A.SPECIAL INDIRECT TAX BENEFITS AVAILABLE TO THE COMPANY UNDER THF ACT
There are no special indirect tax benefits available to the Company,

B, SPECIAL INDIRECT TAX BENEFITS AVAILABLE TO THE SHAREHOLDERS UNDER
THE ACT
There are no special indirect tax benefits applicable in the hands of shareholders for investing in the
shares of the Company.

Notes:

The above statement is based upon the provisions of the specified Indirect tax laws, and judicial
interpretation thereof prevailing in the country, as on the date of this Annexure.

The above statement covers only above-mentioned tax laws benefits and does not cover any
mcome tax law benefits or benefit under any other law.

This statement 18 mtended only to provide general infonmation to the investors and is neither

designed nor intended to be a substitute for professional tax advice. In view of the individual
nature of tax consequences, each investor is advised to consult his/her own tax advisor with
respect to specific tax consequences of his/her investment in the shares of the Company.

No assurance is given that the revenue authorities/courts will concur with the views expressed
herein. Cur views are based on the existing provisions of law and its interpretation, which are
subject tp changes from time to time. We do not assume responsibility to update the views
consequent to such changes.
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Disclaimer from Venus Shah & Associates: "Statement of Possible Tax Benefits (19th Jun'23) " has been prepared
Jfor the proposed listing of equity shares of Bajel Projects Limited. This report is based on the information,
expluanations, representations obtained from the company and based on our understanding of the business activities
and operations of the Resulting Company. Venus Shah & Associates has prepared this report in an independent and
objective manner, and it has taken all reasonable care to ensure its accuracy and completeness. In making any
decision regarding the transaction, the recipient should conduct its own investigation and analysis of all fucts and
in formationcontained in the Information Memorandum of which this report is a part, and the recipient must rely on
its own examination and the terms of the transactions, as and when discussed. The recipients should not construe any
of the contents in this report as advice relating to business, financial, legal, taxation, or investment matters and are
advised to consult their owner business, financial, legal, taxation, and other advisors concerning the rrm;sadfﬁg‘gf“
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SECTION V- ABOUT THE COMPANY

The following summary should be read together with the section “Risk Factors™ on page 21 of this Information
Memorandum, the more detailed information included elsewhere in this Information Memorandum and our financial
results included at page 96 in this Information Memorandum. The information presented in this section has been
obtained from various publicly available sources, including industry websites and publicly available industry reports.
Industry websites and publications generally state that the information contained therein has been obtained from
sources believed to be reliable, but their accuracy, completeness, and underlving assumptions are not guaranteed,
and their reliability cannot be assured.

Accordingly, neither our Company nor any person or advisor associated with our Company, has independently
verified this information or takes any responsibility for the data, projections, forecasts, conclusions, or any other
information contained in this section. Industry sources and publications are also prepared on information as on
specific dates and may no longer be current or reflect market trends. Accordingly, any investment decisions should
not be based on this information.

INDUSTRY OVERVIEW

1. Overview of the Indian Power sector

With a generation capacity of more than 410 GW by the end of FY23, India is the third-largest producer and
consumer of electricity globally. Coal is the dominating fuel for the Indian power sector, however, the
scenario is changing fast. In the Union Budget 2023-24, the government allocated USD 885 million (INR
7,327 crore) for the solar power sector including grid, oft-grid, and PM-KUSUM projects. The Ministry of
Power has also recognized 81 thermal units which will replace coal with renewable energy generation by the
year 2026.

The landscape of India’s power sector has transformed significantly over the last two decades. Multiple
reforms such as unbundling of most of the state-owned electricity boards, setting up of independent regulators
and appellate tribunals, encouraging private sector participation across the value chain, the introduction of
group captive and open access policies, etc. were initiated during this phase, which transformed the overall
landscape and functioning of the Indian power sector. Multiple programmes such as R-APDRP, UDAY, etc.
were introduced to reform the most critical segment of the power sector i.e., electricity distribution.

Currently, the Electricity Act, 2003 is the main law regulating the electricity sector. 27 SERCs, and the CERC
regulate inter-state and intra-state matters in the generation, transmission, trading, and distribution of
electricity in the country.

(Source: Frost & Sullivan, Transmission and Distribution EPC Business in India, June 2023)

P Installed power generation capacity of India
At the end of FY23, India has a total installed power generation capacity of 417 GW. Installed power

generation capacity has increased at a CAGR of 6.7% in the last 8 years.

Exhibit 1: All India installed power generation capacity, Exhibit 2: FY’23 installed capacity split
FY’15- FY’23 by fuel sources
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Coal and lignite contribute to nearly 51% of the overall installed capacity in India. Renewable energy sources
are the second biggest contributor with a 30% share. Sources such as gas, hydro, and nuclear contribute to
11%, 6%, and 2% of the installed capacity respectively.

Solar energy is the biggest renewable energy source in India with 63 GW installed capacity at the end of
FY23. Thereare plans to build foursolarpower plants of 1 GW each. India’s hydropower generating capacity
stood at 47 GW at the end of FY23 while the same for nuclear was 6.8 GW. With one of the world's sizable
reserves of thorium, India has enormous potential in nuclear energy generation going forward.

(Source: Frost & Sullivan, Transmission and Distribution EPC Business in India, June 2023)
Generation capacity addition plans of the Government
Multiple factors drive the growth of electricity demand in the country:

India’s per capita electricity consumption has steadily grown from 1,122 kWh at the beginning of FY |8 to
1,255 kWh by the end of FY22, which is about one-third of the global average per capita electricity
consumption. As per the NEP, India’s peak power demand and electricity consumption are expected to
grow at a healthy CAGR of 6% over the next decade. NEP has considered impact of factors such as energy
efticiency, penetration of electric vehicles, and production of green hydrogen while making this projection.

Exhibit 3: Projected growth in Peak power demand and Energy requirement, FY’22 - FY’32
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Source: National Electricity Plan

Urbanization and Industrialization are two very critical drivers in boosting the country’s electricity
demand in the coming years. As per IEA’s India Energy Outlook 2021, over the period up to 2040, an
estimated 27 crore people are likely to be added to India’s urban population. Most of the buildings that will
exist in India in 2040 are yet to be built. Urbanisation underpins a massive increase in total residential tfloor
space from less than 20 billion square metres today to more than 50 billion in two decades” time.

Industrialization in the country has received a massive boost from the Government’s “Make in India’
initiative and the related schemes such as Production Linked Incentive, Aatmanirbhar Bharat Abhiyaan,
etc. As per RBI, India has received approximately USD 240 billion of foreign direct investment between
2017 to 2021 — most of which is in the manufacturing sector. As part of their China+1 strategy, many global
manufacturing majors are exploring setting up their manufacturing units in India to cater both local and
exportdemand. As per IEA, this industry currently uses most energy in the country and its share is expected
to rise from 36% today to 41% by 2040.

EV Charging Infrastructure: India has committed to become carbon neutral by 2070. Widespread
promotion and adoption of electric vehicle is one of the key initiatives to meet that commitment. It would
not only reduce India’s dependence on other countries for fossil fuels, but also help the Government to
tackle the critical issue of air pollution. Nationwide EV charging infrastructure would be a key determinant
towards that. As per an article from Economic Times, the country is likely to have 10,000 public charging
stations by the end of 2025 and would require 20.5 lakh charging stations by 2030 to complement the EV
sales till that time.

The Indian government has ambitious plans to achieve 500 GW of clean energy by 2030 out of which-300
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GW will come from solar. As per the CEA estimates, by the year 2029-30, the share of renewable energy
generation would rise from 18% to 44%, whlile that of thermal is estimated to reduce from 78% to 52%.

On the nuclear front, the NPCIL has plans to build 5 nuclear energy parks with a capacity of 10,000 MW.
The Government of India has plans to set up 21 new nuclear power reactors with an installed capacity of
15,700 MW by 203 1. Under the Union Budget 2023-24, the govermment allocated USD 3.03 billion (INR
25,078.49 crore) for the development of nuclear power projects under the Ministry of Atomic Energy.
Hydropower, another source of clean energy, received formal recognition in 2019, Earlier, the government
considered projects up to 25 MW capacity as renewable, but in 2021 included hydropower in the RPO.

(Source: Frost & Sullivan, Transmission and Distribution EPC Business in India, June 2023)
Overview of the Indian Power Transmission sector

Over decades, a robust inter-state and inter-regional transmission system has evolved in the country. In
1947, the maximum voltage level of the transmission line was 132 kV which was subsequently increased
to 220 kV in 1960 and 400 kV in 1977. To reduce the ‘right of way’ requirement, 765 kV transmission
voltage is being increasingly adopted and gas insulated stations are being provided to solve land availability
issues. HVDC 500 kV back-to-back was introduced in the year 2000, which has been raised to 1200 kV
HVDC level.

(Source: Frost & Sullivan, Transmission and Distribution EPC Business in India, June 2023)

Power Transmission network in India — historical trends

(a) Transmission lines: The power transmission network in India has experienced substantial growth
in transmission lines, capacity, and inter-regional transmission capacity over the past few decades.
The total transmission line length increased from around 96,000 Ckms in 1985 to 4,71,341 Ckms
(220 kV and above voltage level) at the end of FY23.

Exhibit 4: Year-wise growth in Transmission lines in the country, Ckms, FY’15 - FY’23
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Source: Central Electricity Authority (CEA)

(b) Substations and transformation capacity: The transmission substations network in the country
has increased significantly over the past few decades, from around 400 in 1985 to approximately
6,000 by the end of FY’23.

Exhibit 5: Year-wise growth in Transformation capacity, MVA, FY'15- FY’23
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This growth can be attributed to the expansion of the transmission network and the need to increase the
transformation capacity to meet the increasing demand for electricity. In 1985, the total transformation
capacity of the substations was around 45,000 MVA, which increased to approximately 1.18 million MVA
at the end of FY23, reflecting the significant investments made in the sector to improve the efficiency and
reliability of the power transmission network.

(Source: Frost & Sullivan, Transmission and Distribution EPC Business in India, June 2023)

Outlook of the Power Transmission sector in India

The Indian Government in recent years has taken multiple initiatives to strengthen the transmission
infrastructure in the country. Some of the ongoing notable projects are:

(a)

(b)

(c)

(d)

The North-South Interconnector (NSIC): Itis a 7,650 km long, 800 kV HVDC transmission
line that will link India’s northern and southern grids. The project is estimated to cost USD 12
billion and will be completed by 2024.

East-West Inter-Connector (EWIC): It is a 3,000 km long, 800 kV HVDC transmission line
that will connect the eastern and western grids of India. The project is expected to be completed
by 2025 and will cost an estimated USD 6 billion.

Green Energy Corridors (GECs): A system of transmission lines will be used to move electricity
from renewable energy installations (solar and wind) to load centres along the GECs. The
development of seven 15,000 km long GECs has received an official approval in India. These
projects are anticipated to cost USD 20 billion and will be completed by 2027.

Smart Grids: The Indian Government plans to invest USD 100 billion on smart grid technology
over the next 10 years. Smart grid technologies will improve the efficiency, reliability, and security
of the electrical grid.

Overall, power transmission capacity in the country is projected to grow to 828,000 Ckms of transmission
lines and approximately 2.0 Mn MVA of transformation capacity by FY 34.
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Adequate transmission infrastructure has to be created in the country to connect the new generation
sources to load centres arising out of the change in the energy mix due to the following:

(a) solar and wind energy plants
(b) energy storage systems like BESS and pumped storage systems for round the clock power
(c) green hydrogen

India has already committed to sourcing 50% of its energy requirements from renewable energy by 2030
targeting renewable capacity of 500 GW. Renewable capacities in the country are largely concentrated in
the western and southern regions and due to intermittent nature and to provide grid stability, there is a
requirement of dedicated transmission corridors for renewable evacuation. 15 projects of approx. INR
15,300 crores are Inter-State Green Energy Corridor projects and currently under bidding stage.

As per National Hydrogen Mission, Indian Government is planning to develop green hydrogen production
capacity of at least 5 MMTPA with an associated renewable energy capacity addition of about 125 GW in
the country by 2030. The mission will result in cumulative reduction in fossil fuel imports over INR 1 lakh
crores and abatement of nearly 50 MMT of annual greenhouse gas emissions.

(Source: Frost & Sullivan, Transmission and Distribution EPC Business in India, June 2023)

EPC business opportunity in the Indian Power Transmission sector

A transmission tower is a critical component of the overall transmission infrastructure. In electrical grids,
towers are used to carry high-voltage transmission lines that transport bulk electric power from generating
stations to electrical substations before reaching its end consumers.

As the outlook for Indian power transmission sector is positive, this would have positive impact on the
transmission tower EPC business in the coming years. Besides, aging transmission infrastructure in the
country also creates repair and maintenance opportunities for the transmission tower EPC companies. In
addition, there is a growing emphasis on sustainability and technical innovation in the power industry to
improve operating efticiency which is expected to provide the required impetus to boost the transmission
line EPC business in India.

(Source: Frost & Sullivan, Transmission and Distribution EPC Business in India, June 2023)

Business Opportunity

As shown through exhibit 6, approx. 357,000 Ckms of transmission lines are projected to be constructed
over the next 11 years i.e., till FY34. This translates into an investment of approximately INR 6,50,000
crores in transmission lines projects over the next 11 years. EPC charge varies between 15 — 22% of the
overall cost of a transmission line project. This translates to approximately INR 1,20,000 crores business
opportunity for transmission EPC companies over the next 11 years.

(Source: Frost & Sullivan, Transmission and Distribution EPC Business in [ndia, June 2

£
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Overview of Power Distribution Sector in India

Before 2000, most of the power utilities in the country were being operated as vertically integrated utilities
— a single organization generating, transmitting, and distributing power to the consumers. With the reforms
brought in by the Electricity Act, 2003, the utilities were required to unbundle their operations to separate
the power transmission operations into a separate company with independent financial existence. The
unbundled distribution companies were tasked with the responsibilities of distribution of power, operation
& maintenance of the power distribution infrastructure, retail supply of power to consumers, metering and
billing and revenue collection.

Indian power distribution utilities can be classified under four categories: (i) unbundled distribution utility,
(11) private distribution company, (iii) vertically integrated corporatized utility and (iv) private distribution
franchisee.

(Source: Frost & Sullivan, Transmission and Distribution EPC Business in India, June 2023)

Challenges affecting the Indian Power Distribution sector

Several initiatives have been taken in the last few years to reform the plagued sector. While electricity has
now reached the remotest part of the country, power distribution continues to be the weakest link in the
power sector value chain. Most distribution utilities in the country are incurring significant losses due to
expensive long-term power purchase agreements, inadequate infrastructure, and inefficient operations,
among others. These losses, in tumn, preventing the distribution utilities from committing further
investments to improve the quality of the power supply and to prepare for the wider penetration of
renewable energy. The distribution utilities’ inability to pay power generators endangers the financial health
of the generators and their lenders, causing a negative domino etfect on the economy.

(a) Operational Performances: The activities of metering, billing, and collection are critical to any
DISCOM's operational efticiency and profitability. AT&C Losses across the country have
gradually come down in the last few years — from 22% in FY21 to 17% at the end of Q3 FY23.
However, when compared at the global level, losses are still high, and within the country, there is
a sharp difference in performance between states.

Exhibit 7: Aggregate Technical & Commercial (AT&C) losses of Indian states at the end of Q3 FY23

Q3 FY23 National AT&C Loss: 17.18%

Source: UDAY Portal

(b) Poor financial health of DISCOMs: As per the latest report from Power Finance Corporation,
aggregate losses of distribution utilities increased by 66% in FY21 to INR 50,281 crores.
Aggregate losses on tariff subsidy received, excluding regulatory income and revenue grant under
UDAY for loan takeover increased trom INR 63,949 crores in FY20 to INR 88,500 crores in
FY2I.
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However, the reduction in AT&C losses in FY22 has resulted in reduction in the gap between the
ACS and ARR. The ACS-ARR Gap (on subsidy received basis, excluding regulatory income and
UDAY grant) has declined from INR 0.69 per kWh in FY 21 to INR 0.22 in FY 22.

(c) Outstanding dues to GENCOs: These systemic shortcomings ultimately result in a high level of
debt and payments owed to generation companies (GENCOs). The overdue amount to GENCOs
stood at INR 85,540 crores in May 2023. Maharashtra accounts for 27% of these dues followed
by Tamil Nadu (10%), Uttar Pradesh (9%) and Karnataka (6%). Madhya Pradesh, Gujarat, Bihar,
and Haryana each account for 5% of the outstanding dues. Telangana, Punjab, Rajasthan, and
Andhra Pradesh each account for 4% of the outstanding dues.

(Source: Frost & Sullivan, Transmission and Distribution EPC Business in [ndia, June 2023)
5.2. Indian Power Distribution sector reforms and outlook

At the national level, Electricity Act, 2003 was instrumental in reforming the Indian power sector. The
Indian electricity sector in the last two decades has seen a series of attempts to introduce competition
through market reform and periodic support through major schemes and infrastructure improvement. Focus
of the Government has now shifted to two major outstanding challenges in the Distribution Sector —
addressing financial sustainability and increasing consumer centricity. Initiatives have been designed to
tackle the longstanding financial and operational issues of Discoms relating to AT&C losses, ACS-ARR
gap, corporate governance, and financial liquidity. Equal emphasis has been given to modernize the
DISCOMS with the use of technology like pre-paid smart metering, SCADA, billing solutions, digital
payments, and customer relationship management systems. The most notable ot all the initiatives are RDSS.

Objectives of the RDSS is to provide reform-based result-linked financial assistance to DISCOMs to
strengthen the supply infrastructure. This is a conditional scheme where funds will be released on meeting
pre-qualifying criteria and achieving basic minimum benchmarks. RDSS has an outlay of INR 3,03,758
crores over 5 years i.e., FY21 to FY26. The outlay includes an estimated Government Budgetary Support
of INR 97,631 crores. The main objectives of RDSS are:

(a) Reduction of AT&C losses to pan-India levels of 12-15% by FY25;

(b) Reduction of ACS-ARR gap to zero by FY25;

(c) Improvement in the quality, reliability, and atfordability of power supply to consumers through a
financially sustainable and operationally efficient distribution sector; and

(d) Modernization of the DISCOMs through technology enhancement in the areas of asset
management, customer experience and business operations.

Other notable initiatives undertaken by the Government are:

(a) Additional financial borrowing up to 0.5% ot GSDP;

(b) PRAAPTI portal for updated monthly information regarding power purchase dues of DISCOMs;

(c) PM-KUSUM to provide energy security to consumers through funding support;

(d) Privatization of power distribution in Union Territories to achieve global benchmarks in
efficiencies; and

(e) Smart metering to monitor real time electricity consumption and improve collection efficiency.

(Source: Frost & Sullivan, Transmission and Distribution EPC Business in India, June 2023)

5.3. EPC business opportunity in the Indian Power Distribution sector

Some of the leading EPC companies in the electricity distribution space are BEL, Voltas Limited, Neccon
Power & Infra, Vindhya Telelinks, Gupta Power, Sterling & Wilson, Tata Projects, etc. BEL is an
established player in the electrical components and power distribution infrastructure space. It offers various
services such as rural electrification, substations, feeder separation, and system strengthening.

In the last 8 — 9 years, especially before Covid, under schemes such as Deen Dayal Upadhyaya Gram Jyoti
Yojana, Integrated Power Development Schemes, R-APDRP, multiple projects were awarded to the
distribution EPC companies. These projects can be categorized as

(a) infrastructure addition — substation and lines;
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(b)
(c)
(d)
(e)
()
(2)
(h)
(1)
)
(k)

Deen Dayal Upadhyaya Gram Jyoti Yojana related projects — feeder separation;

load growth and system strengthening;

state electrification projects, e. Integrated Power Development Schemes related projects;
agri connection related works, g. R-APDRP scheme related projects;

SAUBHAGY A scheme related projects — rural electrification;

metering;

loss reduction;

underground cabling;

IT infrastructure related works; and

HVDS related works.

(Source: Frost & Sullivan, Transmission and Distribution EPC Business in India, June 2023)

54. Business opportunity:

Going ahead, the EPC business opportunity would arise from the following segments:

(a)

(b)

RDSS: Prepaid Smart metering is the critical intervention envisaged under RDSS with an
estimated outlay of approximately INR 1,50,000 crores and approximate Government budgetary
support of INR 23,000 crores. 25 crore prepaid smart meters are targeted to be installed during the
scheme period of RDSS. Along with the prepaid smart metering for consumers, system metering
at feeder and distribution transformer level with communicating feature along with associated
Advanced Metering Infrastructure (AMI) would be implemented under TOTEX mode thereby
allowing the DISCOMS for measurement of energy flows at all levels as well as energy accounting
without any human interference.

So far under RDSS, 17,34,39,869 prepaid smart meters, 49,02,755 distribution transformer meters
and 1,68.085 feeder meters have been sanctioned across 23 State s/ 40 DISCOMS with a total
sanctioned cost of INR 1,15,493.79 crores (Source: Ministry of Power, year-end review 2022).

Capital investment is also budgeted for loss reduction works, system strengthening to cater load
growth and modemization to make smart distribution system under RDSS. Loss reduction work
majorly includes replacement of bare conductor with ariel bunched cable, HVDS, feeder
bifurcation etc. Similarly, system strengthening includes creation of new substations, feeders,
upgradation of transformation capacity, cables etc. Modemization includes SCADA, data
management system, information technology systems, operational technology systems, enterprise
resource planning, geographic information system enabled applications, ADMS etc. to make
distributions systems smarter. So far, loss reduction works of approximately INR 1.05 lakh crores
(including PMA works) have been sanctioned for total 23 States/Union Territories, and INR
2,663.97 crores has been released as Government budgetary support towards loss reduction works
under RDSS as per scheme guidelines. (Source: Ministrv of Power, year-end review 2022).

Capex works by private DISCOMs: Brief capex plans of some of the leading private
DISCOMs in the country are as follows:

(1) Tata Power has committed a CAPEX of about INR 5,000 crores over the next 5 years to
ensure uninterrupted power supply to customers including industrial and commercial
establishment. Projects includes network and infrastructure improvement and
augmentation, smart metering, technical integration, customer services, safety, and
others.

(11) Adani Transmission Limited has won smart metering project worth INR 1,300 crores to
install 10.8 lakh smart meters for Brihanmumbai Electric Supply-and_Transport
Undertaking in October 2022. /A2 L 72N
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(111) Torrent Power has projected a CAPEX of INR 443 crores for FY 24. Majority of the
investment would be focused on setting up a new 66 kV EHV substation and other HT
and LT network development and modification.

(c) Electrification projects under Smart City Mission: The mission aims to complete a total of
7,862 various types of projects with a total budget of INR 1,80,107 crores. Approximate spend on
electrification projects under ‘Smart City Mission” is approx. INR 20,000 — 23,000 crores.
Majority of the cities are planning for projects such as (i) underground cabling, (ii) smart metering
and SCADA, (ii1) energy efficiency initiatives — DELP, (iv) LED street lighting, etc.

(d) Underground cabling works for coastal area under coastal area development scheme:

(1) The underground electricity cable network at Visakhapatnam at a project cost of INR 720
crores;

(11) Underground cables system is being developed in Kakinada Smart City at a cost of INR
60 crores;

(111) Underground cable network at Digha — Sankarpur area in West Bengal at a cost of INR
98 crores; and

(1v) Underground cable project at Puducherry at a project cost of INR 22 crores.

(Source: Frost & Sullivan, Transmission and Distribution EPC Business in India, June 2023)

Disclaimer from Frost & Sullivan (India) Private Limited: ‘Industrv Report — Transmission and
Distribution EPC Business in India (June 2023)" has been prepared for the proposed listing of equity
shares of Bajel Projects Limited. This study has been undertaken through extensive primary and
secondary research, which involves discussing the status of the industry with leading market participants
and experts, and compiling inputs from publicly available sources, including official publications and
research reports. Estimates provided by Frost & Sullivan (India) Private Limited and its assumptions are
based on varyving levels of quantitative and qualitative analyses, including industry journals, company
reports and information in the public domain. Frost & Sullivan (India) Private Limited has prepared this
study in an independent and objective manner, and it has taken all reasonable care to ensure its accuracy
and completeness. We believe that this study presents a true and fair view of the industry within the
limitations of, among others, secondary statistics and primary research, and it does not purport to be
exhaustive. The results that can be or are derived from these findings are based on certain assumptions
and parameters / conditions. As such, a blanket, generic use of the derived results or the methodology is
not encouraged. Forecasts, estimates, predictions, and other forward-looking statements contained in this
report are inherently uncertain because of changes in factors underlying their assumptions, or events or
combinations of events that cannot be reasonably foreseen. Actual results and future events could differ
materially from such forecasts, estimates, predictions, or such statements. In making any decision
regarding the transaction, the recipient should conduct its own investigation and analysis of all facts and
information contained in the Information Memorandum of which this report is a part, and the recipient
must rely on its own examination and the terms of the transaction, as and when discussed. The recipients
should not construe any of the contents in this report as advice relating to business, financial, legal,
taxation or investment matters and are advised to consult their own business, financial,de kv ation,
and other advisors concerning the transaction. 2254
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In this section, unless the context otherwise requires, a reference to “our Company” or to “we”,

OUR BUSINESS

.

us” and “our”

refers to BPL. The financial figures used in this section, unless otherwise stated have been derived from the
Company's Financial Statements.

This section should be read in conjunction with and is qualified in its entirety by, the more detailed information about
us and our Financial Statements, in the sections “Risk Factors™, “Financial Information” and *Management
Discussion and Analysis of Financial Condition and Results of Operations” on pages 21, 96 and 97, respectively of
this Information Memorandum.

1.1

(8]

Introduction

Our Company was incorporated on January 19, 2022, as a wholly owned subsidiary of BEL under the
Companies Act.

Pursuant to the Scheme and the transfer of the Demerged Undertaking of BEL to the Company, the
Company is primarily engaged in providing solutions that include EPC and project management for all
aspects of project execution from conceptualizing to commissioning. The Company’s business comprises
of providing end-to-end EPC solutions or any combination of individual services, depending on customer’s
needs and market opportunity. Our Company’s business can be broadly segregated into (i) the power
transmission EPC sub-segment, which is primarily engaged in construction of EHV transmission lines using
inter alia lattice towers, monopoles, cables, AIS and GIS on tumkey basis; and (i) the power distribution
EPC sub-segment, which is primarily engaged in providing turmkey solutions for power distribution, feeder
separation, rural electrification, and underground cabling.

Pursuant to the Scheme, we have by way of transfer of the Demerged Undertaking, acquired a proven track
record for national and international business with clients and multi-national corporations including State
owned power transmission and distribution companies experience; expertise in the power infrastructure
business in execution of EPC projects of over 15 years; and operation through 4 business verticals, viz.,
power transmission, power distribution, monopoles and international EPC. We have our own
manufacturing facility with state-of-the-art machinery at Ranjangaon Unit |, Ranjangaon Unit 2 and
Ranjangaon Unit 3. The EPC operations and manufacturing at Ranjangaon Unit 1 and Ranjangaon Unit 2
are ISO 9001, ISO 14001 and ISO 45001 certified.

Business Verticals

Power Transmission:

Pursuant to acquisition of the Demerged Undertaking, we have acquired over 15 years of experience in this
business vertical of providing engineering, design, testing, manufacturing and executing solutions from
concept to commissioning of EHV transmission lines up to 765 kV AC/ +800 kV HVDC on turnkey basis.
This vertical has three sub-segments viz., transmission lines, substations and underground cabling. The
vertical has executed more than 7,000 Ckms of EHV transmission lines and 40+ EHV, AIS and GIS projects
and has experience in execution of transmission lines passing through hilly terrains, forests and river
crossings and have pan India presence with more than 25 projects under execution with various State,
Central and private utilities.

(a) Substation:
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Pursuant to the transfer of the Demerged Undertaking, Company will have more than a decade of
experience in the business of design and construction of electrical EHV sub-station. EHV sub-
stations are instrumental in stepping-up or stepping-down the voltage levels and control further
transmission of power. After initial foray into AIS type EHV sub-stations, the vertical diversified
into high technology area of GIS type EHV sub-stations. With execution of more than 40 AIS
substations up to 400 kV Class, this business vertical has commissioned more than 2,000 MVA
substations till date. With business excellence at the core of the operations, it has completed 220
kV AIS pooling station for solar grid within a short span of 9 months. The business undertakes
turnkey projects for indoor and outdoor GIS substations up to 400 kV grade and enjoys strategic
tie-ups with renowned GIS manufacturers.

(b) Underground Cabling:

This sub-segment undertakes turnkey projects related to underground cabling system up to 220
kV in partnership with EHV cable manufacturers. This vertical has executed underground cabling
projects of more than 700 km in running cable length in states of Rajasthan, Bihar, Kamataka,
West Bengal and Haryana.

Power Distribution

(a)

This business vertical is fully equipped with experienced employees for engineering, procurement and
construction (EPC) of new infrastructure as well as augmentation of existing infrastructure for various
power distribution companies / agencies. This business inter alia includes the following activities:

(1) construction of primary distribution substations and lines (33 kV Lines, 33/11 kV substations).
(i1) construction of distribution feeders 11 kV and distribution substations (11/0.433 kV).

(111) construction of 33 kV/11 kV underground cabling and ring main units.

(1v) Construction of LT lines and connection to the consumer premises.

(v) metering of energy consumed.

(vi) Service connections to consumers.

Monopole:

(a)

(b)

This business vertical consists of manufacturing, supply and installation of monopoles. By way of transfer
of the Demerged Undertaking, the Company has acquired over 15 years of experience in this business
vertical. Our in-house ability to conceptualize, and customize solutions, match aesthetics and
performance, manufacture basis customized specification and flawless installation has been the prime
reason for us to be chosen as a suitable partner by several national and international companies.

Adopting end-to-end solution offerings, this vertical has achieved successful completion of India’s
longest 400 kV D/C transmission line with 94 monopoles stretching over 20 km in Noida, Uttar Pradesh.
We have supplied over more than 400 monopoles globally till FY 2022-23.

International EPC:

(a)

This business vertical offers turmnkey solutions in power transmission, power distribution, substations and
monopoles for international markets. We are fully equipped to meet the technical requirement of
international projects with competent inhouse design and engineering team, strategic tie-ups with Indian
and foreign vendors, inhouse monopoles / tower manufacturing facility and competent site execution
teams. With a team of skilled professionals numerous projects overseas have been_successfully
completed, meeting all technical requirements up to the defect liability period. In addition to Ef\’f@,ﬂ we
also export monopoles to several countries. A
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(c)  Manufacturing Facility and Technology

3.1 In the year 2000-01, BEL constructed a state-of-the-art manufacturing and galvanizing unit at Ranjangaon
Unit 1. The manufacturing facility is equipped with latest CNC controlled machinery and eco-friendly
galvanizing bath. The plant has a capacity ot 36,200 tons and is specialized in manufacturing and galvanizing
of high masts, poles, transmission line towers, monopoles, gantry structures and other fabricated items.
Ranjangaon Unit | commenced commercial production in April 2001. Fabrication and galvanizing are the
main processes which are carried out in Ranjangaon Unit | for the manufacturing of high mast towers,
monopoles, transmission towers, sub-station structure and galvanized octagonal/ tubular poles.

3.2 In the year 2005, BEL had set up a new manufacturing facility at Ranjangaon Unit 2. The manufacturing
facility is equipped with latest CNC controlled machinery and YSD press brake. Fabrication of big size high
masts, monopoles and octagonal poles is carried out in Ranjangaon Unit 2.

3.3 The technical specifications of Ranjangaon Unit | and Ranjangaon Unit 2 are set out below:

Particulars Ranjangaon Unit 1 Ranjangaon Unit 2
Total land /plot area 67,840 Sq. Mt. 19,884 Sq. Mt.
Total built area 19,094 Sq. Mt. 7,497 Sq. Mt.
Future expansion 7,000 Sq. Mt. -

Water requirement 110 KL Per Day 30 KL per Day

Industrial - 60 KL per Day -

Effluent treated before discharging —
Domestic - 7 KL Per Day Domestic - 26 KL Per

Day
Total connected load 1,400 KW 750 KW
Captive power generation for essential 500 KVA 350 KVA

and critical machinery and equipment

34 InMay 2023, BEL leased premises at Ranjangaon Unit 3 to set up a new manufacturing unit.

3.5  Pursuant to the Scheme, the manufacturing units at Ranjangaon Unit 1, Ranjangaon Unit 2 and Ranjangaon
Unit 3 have been transferred to the Company as part of the Demerged Undertaking.

OUR BUSINESS STRATEGIES e 5
Our Company’s vision is to emerge as “Global Turnkey Solutions Provider™ in energy sector with high focus on
renewable energy and sustainability. Our Company’s focus for next 3 years will be to grow the topline along with
maintaining a healthy balance sheet and achieving above-average industry margins. The Company has strong pre-
qualifications for applying to bids, ensuring customer viability, receivables probability and ESG parameters.

1. Scaling up domestic business

1.1  India is the third largest producer and consumer of electricity worldwide, with an installed power capacity of
more than 410 GW as of end of FY'23. Power generation capacity has increased at a CAGR of 6.7% in the
last 8 years. As set out in Industry Overview section at page 52, approx. 357,000 Ckms of transmission lines
are projected to be constructed over the next 11 years i.e., till FY34. Further, the RDSS, electrification projects
under *Smart City Mission” and CAPEX works undertaken by private DISCOMS envisage huge potem;lal for
Power Transmission and Distribution Business.
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CAPACITY AND CAPACITY UTILISATION

(Source: Frost & Sullivan, Transmission and Distribution EPC Business in India, June 2023)

Our Company has a competitive advantage in manufacturing monopoles. The Company intends to scale up
its existing capacity for manufacturing monopoles and its galvanizing kettle size at Ranjangaon Unit 1 and
Ranjangaon Unit 2 as monopoles play a crucial role in resolving issues related to easements such as right of
way.

Expanding global footprint

The Company plans to scale up its international operations as being margin accretive and will participate in
bids funded by multilateral parties such as Asian Development Bank, African Development Bank, EXIM,
etc., focusing largely on African continent.

The Company plans to expand its monopole supply offerings to Middle East, Europe, South America and
Australia and expand its EPC business to African and South-East Asian territories. Further, the Company will
endeavor to collaborate with monopole partners in other countries and expand its EPC base. Further, in order
to minimize risk, all supply orders will be backed by confirmed letter of credits.

Incubation of offerings in sunrise sectors

The Company will endeavor to foray into adjacencies/ allied sectors such as electrification of data centers,
energy storage, metro/high speed rail, renewables, etc., where the existing capability of the Power
Transmission and Power Distribution Business capabilities can be leveraged and customized turnkey
solutions can be provided to customers.

Build future-ready organization
The Company endeavors to attract and retain top talent in leadership and managerial positions to build a future
ready organization. The Company has been institutionalizing its policies and making cultural changes across

functions to achieve this.

The Company will sharply focus on achieving industry comparable metrices such as profitability EBITDA
and PAT, return on capital employed, efticiency (bill to book, working capital turns), etc.

The Company will focus on digital transformation and adopt systems and processes aligned to the industry
needs.

Our manufacturing facility situated at Ranjangaon Unit 1, Ranjangaon Unit 2 and Ranjangaon Unit 3, is engaged in
the manufacture of products highlighted above in the Section titled “Our Business™ at page 61 of this Information
Memorandum. Set out below is the information regarding the existing installed capacities of each such product along
with capacity utilization for such products in the previous 3 (three) years.

Sr. No. Product Installed Utilisation of Utilisation of Utilisation of
Capacity |Capacity for FY | Capacity for FY | Capacity for FY
(MT) 2020-21 (MT) 2021-22 (MT) 2022-23 (MT)
1.
Monopoles 6,000 1,242 4,042 3.481
4
2. . .
SRS 400 3,275 3,648 4.498
3.
Octagonal Poles 8,300 5.208 7,652 7.162
4. .. .
Transmission Line Towers 17,700 4.647 6.739 8.083
S, o
Power Distribution = 659 5 )
6. Sundry (Job work) -
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1.140 4.670 4,784

Total 36,200

16,262 26,765 28,007

INTELLECTUAL PROPERTY RIGHTS

Pursuant to the Scheme and the transfer of the Demerged Undertaking by BEL to BPL, our Company holds certain
trademarks. We also create a range of intellectual property through trademarks, copyrights, agreements,
confidentiality procedures and contractual provisions.

As of the date of this Information Memorandum, our Company holds the following 11 trademark registrations with
respect to the word mark “BAJEL Project”, which were assigned to us pursuant to the Scheme.

Type Mark Class | Trademark No. Status
of

Mark

Word BAJEL Projects 6 5288476 Registered
Word BAJEL Projects 19 5288477 Registered
Word BAJEL Projects i 5288478 Registered
Word BAJEL Projects 8 5288479 Registered
Word BAJEL Projects 9 5288480 Registered
Word BAJEL Projects 11 5288481 Registered
Word BAJEL Projects 35 5288482 Registered
Word BAJEL Projects 37 5288483 Registered
Word BAJEL Projects 39 5288484 Registered
Word BAJEL Projects 40 5288485 Registered
Word BAIJEL Projects 42 5288486 Registered

PROPERTIES

Our Registered Oftice is located at 801, Rustomjee Aspiree Anik, Wadala Link Road, Sion East, Mumbai 400022.
The premises were originally purchased by BEL on March 31, 2008. The Registered Office has been conveyed to the
Company pursuant to the Scheme.

In addition to the Registered Office, the leasehold rights to our manufacturing facility located at Ranjangaon Unit 1,
Ranjangaon Unit 2 and Ranjangaon Unit 3 will be assigned to us pursuant to the Scheme. The plots for both
Ranjangaon Unit 1 and Ranjangaon Unit 2 were leased by BEL from the MIDC. BEL has filed an application with
the MIDC for transfer of leasehold rights Ranjangaon Unit 1 and Ranjangaon Unit 2 to the Company, which is under
process as of the date of this Information Memorandum. The plots for Ranjangaon Unit 3 were leased from M/s. M.D.
Industries. In terms of clause 12 of the lease agreement dated May 8, 2023 executed between M/s. M.D. Industries,
BEL and BPL for Ranjangaon Unit 3, with effect from the Effective Date the lease was transferred from BEL:to BPL.
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KEY INDUSTRY REGULATIONS AND POLICIES

The following description is a summary of certain sector specific lavws and regulations in India that are applicable to
our business. The information detailed below has been obtained frem various legislations, including rules, regulations
and bylaws that are available in the public domain. The regulations set out below may not be exhaustive and are
merely intended to provide general information and are neither designed nor intended to substitute for professional
legal advice. The statements below are based on the current provisions of Indian law, which are subject to change or
modification by subsequent legislative, regulatorv, administrative or judicial decisions.

Electricity Act, 2003 and Work of Licensee Rules, 2006

The Electricity Act, 2003 consolidates the laws relating to generation, transmission, distribution, trading and use of
electricity and generally for taking measures conducive to development of electricity industry, promoting
competition therein, protecting interest of consumers and supply of electricity to all areas, rationalization of
electricity tariff, ensuring transparent policies regarding subsidies, promotion of efficient and environmentally
benign policies, constitution of Central Electricity Authority, Regulatory Commissions and establishment of
Appellate Tribunal and for matters connected therewith or incidental thereto. The Work of Licensee Rules, 2006
governs the execution of works by a licensee (who has been granted license under the Electricity Act, 2003)
involving laying down and placing, repairing etc. of electric lines, electric plants and other works necessary for
transmission or supply of electricity.

The Factories Act, 1948

The term *factory’, as defined under the Factories Act, means any premises which employs or has employed on any
day in the previous 12 (twelve) months, 10 (ten) or more workers and in which any manufacturing process is carried
on with the aid of power, or any premises wherein 20 or more workmen are employed at any day during the
preceding 12 (twelve) months and in which any manufacturing process is carried on without the aid of power.
State Governments have issued rules in respect of the prior submission of plans and their approval for the
establishment of factories and registration and licensing of factories. The Factories Act requires the “occupier’
of a factory to ensure the health, safety and welfare of all workers in the factory premises. Further, the “occupier”
of a factory is also required to ensure (i) the safety and proper maintenance of the factory such that it does not
pose health risks to persons in the factory premises; (ii) the safe use, handling, storage and transport of factory
articles and substances; (iii) provision of adequate instruction, training and supervision to ensure workers’ health
and safety; and (iv) cleanliness and safe working conditions in the factory premises. If there is a contravention of
any of the provisions of the Factories Act or the rules framed thereunder, the occupier and manager of the factory
may be punished with imprisonment or with a fine or with both.

The Explosives Act, 1884

The Explosives Act is a comprehensive law which regulates by licensing for the manufacturing possession, sale,
transportation, export and import of explosives. As per the definition of *explosives’ under the Explosives Act,
explosives means gunpowder, nitroglycerine, nitroglycol, gun-cotton, di-nitro-toluene, tri-nitro-toluene, picric acid,
tri-nitro-phenol, tri-nitro-resorcinol (styphnic acid), cyclo-trimethylene-tri-nitramine, penta-erythritol-tetra nitrate,
tetryl, nitro-guanidine, lead azide, lead styphynate, fulminate of mercury or any other metal, diazo-di-nitro-phenol,
coloured fires or any substance, whether a single chemical compound or a mixture of substances, whether solid or
liquid or gaseous, used or manufactured with a view to produce a practical effect by explosion or pyrotechnic effect
shall fall under the Explosives Act. The Central Government may, for any part of India, make rules consistent with
this act to regulate or prohibit, except under and in accordance with the conditions of a license granted as provided
by those rules, the manufacture, possession, use sale, transport, import and export of explosives, or any specified
class of explosives. Extensive penalty provisions have been provided for manufacture, import or export, possession,
usage, selling or transportation of explosives in contravention of the Explosives Act.

State Tax on Professions, Trade, Callings and Employment

Profession tax is levied on every person engaged in any profession, trade, calling or employment and falling under

the category described in the schedule to such acts, and is payable to the State Government at the rate prescribed

from time to time. Profession tax is payable by a company. It is also payable by an employee; however, such a
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payment is deducted by the employer from the salary of the employee and is paid to the Government.

Employees’ Provident Funds and Miscellaneous Provisions Act, 1952 and the Employees Provident Fund
Scheme, 1952

The EPF Act is applicable to an establishment employing more than 20 (twenty) employees and as notified by the
government from time to time. All the establishments under the EPF Act are required to be registered with the
appropriate Provident Fund Commissioner. Also, in accordance with the provisions of the EPF Act, the employers
are required to contribute to the employees’ provident fund the prescribed percentage of the basic wages, deamess
allowances and remaining allowance (if any) payable to the employees. The employee shall also be required to make
the equal contribution to the fund. The Central Government under section 5 of the EPF Act (as mentioned above)
frames Employees Provident Scheme, 1952.

Employees’ State Insurance Act, 1948

The ESI Act provides for certain benefits to employees in case of sickness, maternity and employment injury* and
to make provision for certain other matters in relation thereto. [t shall apply to all factories (including factories
belonging to the Government other than seasonal factories. The ESI Act requires all the employees of the
establishments to be insured in the manner provided there under. Employer and employees both are required to make
contribution to the fund. The return of the contribution made is required to be filed with the Employee State Insurance
department.

Other employment regulations
Certain other laws and regulations that may be applicable to our Company in India include the following:

Apprentices Act, 1961;

Contract Labour (Regulation & Abolition) Act, 1970;

Employees Compensation Act, 1923;

Equal Remuneration Act, 1976, Minimum Wages Act, 1948, Payment of Bonus Act, 1965, Payment of Wages
Act, 1936, and the Code on Wages, 2019, each to the extent in force or notified, as the case may be;

Public Liability Insurance Act, 1991

Payment of Gratuity Act, 1972;

Sexual Harassment of Women at Workplace (Prevention, Prohibition and Redressal) Act, 2013;

The Industrial Disputes Act, 1947;

The Matermity Benefit Act, 1961;

Trade Unions Act, 1926;

Workmen Compensation Act, 1923;

Child Labour (Prohibition and Abolition) Act, 1986;

Industrial (Development and Regulation) Act, 1951;

Employment Exchange (Compulsory Notification of Vacancies) Act, 1959 and Employment Exchange
(Compulsory Notification of Vacancies) Rules, 1960;

Rights of Persons with Disabilities Act, 2016 and Rights of Persons with Disabilities Rules, 2017
Inter-State Migrant Workmen (Regulation of Employment and Conditions of Service) Act, 1979;

Industrial Disputes Act, 1947 and Industrial Disputes (Bombay) Rules, 1957,

Industrial Employment (Standing Orders) Act, 1946;

Child Labour (Prohibition and Regulation) Act, 1986; and

Building and Other Construction Workers Regulation of Employment and Conditions of Service) Act, 1996.

Environmental Laws

The business of the Company is subject to various environment laws and regulations. The applicability of these laws

and regulations varies from operation to operation and is also dependent on the jurisdiction in which the Company

operates. Compliance with relevant environmental laws is the responsibility of the occupier or operator of the

facilities. The operations of the Company require various environmental and other permits covering, among other

things, water use and discharges, stream diversions, solid waste disposal and air and other emissions. Major

environmental laws applicable to the business operations include:
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The Environment (Protection) Act, 1986

The EPA is an umbrella legislation in respect of the various environmental protection laws in India. The EPA vests
the Government with the power to take any measure it deems necessary or expedient for protecting and improving
the quality of the environment and preventing and controlling environmental pollution. This includes rules for, inter
alia, laying down the quality of environment, standards for emission of discharge of environment pollutants from
various sources as given under the Environment (Protection) Rules, 1986, inspection of any premises, plant,
equipment, machinery, examination of manufacturing processes and materials likely to cause pollution. Penalties
for violation of the EPA include fines or imprisonment, or both. There are provisions with respect to certain
compliances by persons handling hazardous substances, furnishing of information to the authorities in certain cases,
establishment of environment laboratories and appointment of Government analysts.

The Hazardous Wastes (Management and Handling) Rules, 1989

The Hazardous Wastes Rules aim to regulate the proper collection, reception, treatment, storage and disposal of
hazardous waste by imposing an obligation on every occupier and operator of a facility generating hazardous waste
to dispose such waste without adverse effect on the environment, including through the proper collection, treatment,
storage and disposal of such waste. Every occupier and operator of a facility generating hazardous waste must obtain
an approval from the relevant State Pollution Control Board. The occupier, the transporter and the operator are liable
for damages caused to the environment resulting from the improper handling and disposal of hazardous waste. The
operator and the occupier of a facility are liable for any fine that may be levied by the respective State Pollution
Control Board. Penalty for the contravention of the provisions of the Hazardous Wastes Rules includes imprisonment
and imposition of fines as may be specitied in the EPA or both.

The Manufacture, Storage and Import of Hazardous Chemical Rules, 1989

The HCR Rules were first enacted in 1989 by the Ministry of Environment and Forests and later amended in 1994
and 2000. The HCR Rules regulate the manufacture, storage and import of hazardous chemicals in India.

The HCR Rules are formulated under the EPA and are applicable to use of certain prescribed hazardous chemicals
in specified industrial activities. The occupier of a facility where such industrial activity is undertaken is required to
provide inter alia (i) evidence of identification of major accident hazards; (ii) steps taken to prevent occurrence of
such accidents, and (ii1) information, training and equipment including antidotes necessary to persons working at the
relevant sites.

The Explosives Act, 1884

The Explosives Act is a comprehensive law which regulates by licensing for the manufacturing possession, sale,
transportation, export and import of explosives. The Explosives Act regulates any substance, whether a single
chemical compound or a mixture of substances, whether solid or liquid or gaseous, used or manufactured with a
view to produce a practical effect by explosion or pyrotechnic effect. The Explosives Act regulates the manufacture,
possession, use sale, transport, import and export of explosives, or any specified class of explosives.

The Public Liability Insurance Act, 1991

The PIL Act was constituted to provide for public liability insurance for the purpose of providing immediate relief
to persons affected by accidents occurring while handling of any hazardous substance and for matters connected
therewith or incidental thereto. The PIL Act provides for the owner to take insurance cover for protection against
claims made by third parties for damages with respect to handling of hazardous substances.

The Water (Prevention and Control of Pollution) Act, 1974

The Water Act aims to prevent and control water pollution as well as restore water quality by establishing and
empowering the Central Pollution Control Board and the State Pollution Control Boards. Under the Water Act, any
person establishing any industry, operation or process, any treatment or disposal system, use of any new or altered
outlet for the discharge of sewage or new discharge of sewage, must obtain the consent of the relevant State Pollution
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Control Board, which is empowered to establish standards and conditions that are required to be complied with. In
certain cases the State Pollution Control Board may cause the local magistrates to restrain the activities of such
person who is likely to cause pollution. Penalty for the contravention of the provisions of the Water Act include
imposition of fines or imprisonment or both.

The Central Pollution Control Board has powers, inter alia, to specify and modify standards for streams and wells,
while the State Pollution Control Boards have powers, inter alia, to inspect any sewage or trade effluents, and to
review plans, specifications or otherdata relating to plants set up for treatment of water, to evolve efticient methods
of disposal of sewage and trade eftluents on land, to advise the State Government with respect to the suitability of
any premises or location for carrying on any industry likely to pollute a stream or a well, to specify standards for
treatment of sewage and trade ettluents, to specify effluent standards to be complied with by persons while causing
discharge of sewage, to obtain information from any industry and to take emergency measures in case of pollution
of any stream or well. A central water laboratory and a state water laboratory have been established under the Water
Act.

The Air (Prevention and Control of Pollution) Act, 1981

Pursuant to the provisions of the Air Act, any person, establishing or operating any industrial plant within an air
pollution control area, must obtain the consent of the relevant State Pollution Control Board prior to establishing or
operating such industrial plant. The State Pollution Control Board is required to grant consent within a period of
tour months of receipt of an application but may impose conditions relating to pollution control equipment to be
installed at the facilities. No person operating any industrial plant in any air pollution control area is permitted to
discharge the emission of any air pollutant in excess of the standards laid down by the State Pollution Control Board.
The penalties for the failure to comply with the provisions of the Air Act include imprisonment of up to six years
and the payment of a fine as may be deemed appropriate. If an area is declared by the State Government to be an air
pollution control area, then, no industrial plant may be operated in that area without the prior consent of the relevant
State Pollution Control Board.

Other Laws
In addition to the above, our Company is also required to comply with the provisions of the Companies Act and

rules framed thereunder, other applicable statutes imposed by the Centre or the State Government and authorities
for our day-to-day business and operations. Various central and state tax laws are also applicable to our,{;qiftépé'r';y-
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OUR HISTORY AND CERTAIN OTHER CORPORATE MATTERS

BRIEF HISTORY OF OUR COMPANY

Our Company was incorporated as a public limited company under the Companies Act pursuant to a certiticate of
incorporation dated January 19, 2022, issued by the Registrar of Companies, Mumbai.

CHANGES IN REGISTERED OFFICE OF OUR COMPANY

The Registered Office of our Company is situated at 801, Rustomjee Aspiree Anik Wadala Link Road, Sion East,
Mumbai — 400022. There has been no change of our Registered Office since incorporation.

CHANGES IN THE NAME O} COMPANY

There has been no change in the name of our Company since incorporation.

D MILESTONES IN THE HISTORY OF OUR COMPANY

The following table sets forth the key events and milestones in the history of our Company, since incorporation:

Year Events
Transfer and vesting of Power Transmission and Power Distribution Business (Demerged Undertaking)
2023|tfrom Bajaj Electricals Limited to Company pursuant to the Scheme.

MAIN OBJECTS OF OUR COMPANY
The main object of our Company, as contained in our Memorandum of Association, are as set forth below:

“To design, manufucture, test, assemble, erect, commission, repair, maintain, buy, sell, import, export, hire,
exchange. alter or improve or otherwise deal in all kinds of engineering goods such as high, medium and low tension
power transmission line polvgonal poles, AAC/AAAC/ACAR/ACSR/GI conductors, monopoles for all applications,
lighting poles-decorative, conical, octagonal or stepped type, fixed platform type High Mast lighting svstem with
lantern carriage, headframes, lowering and raising winches, base hinged lowering and raising masts, and its
manually or electrically operated and hydraulically powered counterbalances, mobile lighting masts with diesel
genset, antenna masts, trafficlight poles, sign poles, windmill masts, transmission towers, lattice masts, T.V. towers,
railway electrification structures, electric substation structures, transformers, electrical switchgears, automation
svstem, OPGW cable, LV/HV/EHV cables, energy storage systems, solar systems, renewable energy systems,
building electrification & energy management systems, cable trays, electrical junction boxes of any tvpe and
instruments, equipments, apparatus, machinery, electrical, metallic, accessories and components, apparatus, tools,
appliances, hardware products, and all articles, goods and material required for the purpose of area illumination
and for floodlighting or in connection with generation, distribution, supply of electricity or for any other related
objects whatsoever and to carry out the business of metal surface treatment of all types including hot dip
galvanizing, anodizing, metallizing, surface preparation, epoxy coating, painting and heat treatment and other
related objects whatsoever and to buy, sell, import & export and deal in both wholesale and retail, and whether as
principals, agents, (including selling agents, sub-agents, distributors, or stockists), brokers or otherwise, all types
of engineering goods, own manufactured & bought-out, in domestic market as well as international market and to
plan, promote and develop an integrated and efficient power transmission system network in all its aspects including
planning, investigation, research, design and engineering, preparation of preliminary, feasibility and definite
project reports, construction, operation and maintenance of transmission lines, sub-stations, load dispatch stations
and communication facilities and appurtenant works, coordination of integrated operation of state, regional and
national grid system, execution of turn-key jobs for other utilities/organizations and wheeling of power in
accordance with the policies, guidelines and objectives laid down by the Government from time to time, and to
study, investigate, collect information and data, review operation, plan, research, design and prepare Report,
diagnose operational difficulties and weaknesses and advise on the remedial measures to improve, undertake
development of new and innovative product connected with business of the Company as well as modernize existing

EHV, HV lines and Sub-Stations, and to act as consultants, technical advisors, suiveyors and prov[a'elnshf:?%ig%icul
L o hy
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and other services to Public or Private Sector enterprises engaged in the planning, investigation, research, design
and preparations of preliminary, feasibility and definite project reports, manufacture of power plant and equipment,
construction, generation, operation and maintenance of power transmission system from power generating stations
and projects, transmission, distribution and sale of power.”

Amendments to our Memorandum of Association

Date  Particulars o= - - e e e i

May Amendment to Clause V of the Memorandum of Association — the authorized share capital of the

12 Company was increased from INR 1,00,00,000 (Rupees One Crores only) divided into 50,00,000

2023 (fifty lakh) Equity Shares of INR 2 (Rupees two only) to INR 40,00,00,000 (Rupees forty crores
Only) divided into 20,00,00,000 (Twenty Crores) Equity Shares of INR 2 (Rupees two only)
pursuant to Clause 11.7 of the Scheme.

HOLDING COMPANY / SUBSIDIARY COMPANY / JOINT VENTURES OF OUR COMPANY

Our Company does not have any holding company or subsidiary company and has not entered into any joint venture as
on the date of the Information Memorandum. Please see section titled “Capital Structure™ for shareholding pattern
of the Company on page 39 of this Information Memorandum.

Our Company has not divested any of its business / undertaking in last 10 years from the date of the Information
Memorandum, as it was incorporated on January 19, 2022.

SHAREHOLDERS® AGREEMENTS

So far as the Company is aware, the shareholders of the Company have not entered into any shareholders
agreements as on the date of the Information Memorandum.

OTHER!

As on date of this Information Memorandum, there are no material agreements entered into by our Company other
than as set out under section titled “Material Contracts and Documents for Inspection™ on page 138 of this
Information Memorandum. Further, there are no agreements entered into by a Key Managerial Personnel or Director
or Promoter or any employee of our Company, either by themselves or on behalf of any other person, with any
shareholder or any other third party with regard to compensation or profit sharing in connection with the dealings in
the securities of our Company.

OTHER CONFIRMATIONS

1. Other than as set out in this section, our Company does not have any strategic/tinancial partners as of the date of
tiling of this Information Memorandum.

2. As on date of filing the Information Memorandum, other than pursuant to the Scheme, there-héve-been no
acquisition of business, undertakings, mergers, amalgamations or revaluation of assets involyjng:thé- Company.
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OUR MANAGEMENT

BOARD OF DIRECTORS e e

As per our Articles of Association, our Company is required to have not less than three and not more than 15
Directors. As on the date of this Information Memorandum, our Board comprises of 6 Directors, out of which 3 are
Independent Directors (including one woman Director). The composition of the Board of Directors is in compliance
with the Companies Act and the SEBI Listing Regulations.

The following table sets forth details regarding our Board of Directors as on the date of Information Memorandum:

Sr. Name, designation, address, occupation, | Age Other directorships
No. nationality, term and DIN (years)
1. Name: Shekhar Bajaj 75 Indian Companies:

Designation: Non-Executive Director & 1. Bajaj Electricals Ltd
Chairman 2. Bajaj International Pvt. Ltd.

3. H les Hoists Ltd.
Address: Flat Number 50, Building 4 H?rzzul\jlzsaglrs;gency Rd
Number 4, Hill Park, A Graham Bell Marg, 5' Bajaj Se\;a%hran1 I Ltd
Malabar Hill, Mumbai 400 006, 6. Hind Lamr;s Limited ’
Maharashtra. 7. Bachhraj Factories Private Ltd.

) o 8. Bajaj Holdings & Investment Ltd.

Occupation: Industrialist 9. Indef Manufacturing Ltd

——— 10. Council For Fair Business Practices
el of DinglnaSnlho s 11, Shekhae Holdings Pt Ltd.

. : . 12. Bhoopati Shikshan Pratisthan
Period and term: Liable to retire by

rotation Foreign Companies:
DIN: 00089358 Nil
2. Name: Rajesh Ganesh 51 Indian Companies:
Designation: Managing Director 1. Sara Music Private Limited
(Additional)
Foreign Companies:
Address: Flat No. 701, 7th Floor, IRIS
CHS, Smt Gladys Alvares Road, Nil
Hiranandani Meadows, Thane (West),
400610
Occupation: Service
Date of birth: 22/06/1972
Period and term: 5 years and liable to
retire by rotation.
DIN: 07008856
3. Name: Ajay Nagle ST Indian Companies:

Designation: Executive Director Taco Sasken Automotive Electronics Ltd
(Under Liquidation)

Address: 18/204, Nilgiri, Sidhachal Phase
No.3, Pokharan Road No.2, Thane 400602. Foreign Companies:
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Sr. Name, designation, address, occupation, | Age Other directorships
No. nationality, term and DIN (vears)
| Occupation: Service Nil
Date of birth: 26/07/1966
Period and term: 3 years and liable to
retire by rotation.
DIN: 00773616
4. Name: Rajendra Prasad Singh 75 Indian Companies:
Designation: Independent Director 1. Bajaj Electricals Ltd
2. Jyoti Structures Ltd
Address: House No.29, 1% Floor, D- 3. Jammu And Kashmir State Power
Block, Paschimi Marg, Vasant Vihar, New Trading Company Ltd.
Delhi 110057. 4. Cross Border Power Transmission
Company Ltd
Occupation: Service 5. Saurya Urja Company of Rajasthan Ltd
Date of birth: 17/07/1948 Foreign Companies:
Period and term: 5 years Nil
DIN: 00008412
5 Name: Radhika Dudhat 53 Indian Companies:
Designation: Independent Director 1. Parag Milk Foods Ltd
2. Jain Irrigation Systems Ltd
Address: 72, Buena Vista, J. Bhosale 3. Jagson Pal Pharmaceuticals Ltd.
Marg, Nariman Point, Mumbai 400021. 4. Tips Films Ltd.
Occupation: Advocate Foreign Companies:
Date of birth: 29/06/1970 Nil
Period and term: 5 years
DIN: 00016712
6. Name: Maneck Davar 65 Indian Companies:
Designation: Independent Director 1. Kemp And Company Ltd
2. Foods And Inns Ltd
Address: Flat No.2, Ground Floor, Wadia 3. Spenta Publishers Pvt Ltd
Building, 6 Babulnath Road, Opp. Bombay 4. Spenta Management Pvt Ltd
Eye Hospital, Grant Road, Mumbai S. Spenta Multimedia Pvt Ltd
400007. 6. Mumbai Boat Show Pvt Ltd
7.  Smart Manager Media Pvt Ltd
Occupation: Service 8. Spenta Digital Media Pvt Ltd
Date of birth: 05/03/1958 Foreign Companies:
Period and term: 5 years Nil
DIN: 01990326
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None of our Directors hold current and past directorship(s) in listed companies whose shares have been/were
suspended trom being traded on any of the stock exchanges, during his/her tenure.

None of our Directors hold current and past directorship(s) in listed companies which have been/were delisted from
the stock exchange(s), during his/her tenure.

BRIEF PROFILE OF OUR DIRECTORS

1. Shekhar Bajaj
Experience: Shekhar Bajaj 1s on the board of various Bajaj group companies and has significant experience
in Consumer Products Business, EPC Business and automobile sector. He has previously been the president
of the Associated Chambers of Commerce & Industry of India and Council for Fair Business Practices. He

was also conferred the “entrepreneur of the year™ award at the 9 Asia Pacitic Entrepreneurship Awards, held
in 2018.

Educational Qualifications: Holds a master’s degree in business administration from New York University.

19

Rajesh Ganesh

Experience: Rajesh Ganesh has about 30 years of cross business, international experience with large
multinational companies like Shell, Castrol, and Oiltanking GmbH. He has lived and worked in India, UK,
Europe, Singapore, and Indonesia. He is a Mechanical Engineer and has an MBA from The University of
Chicago Booth School of Business. Until recently Rajesh was the Managing Director of Indian Oiltanking
Limited (A JV between Indian Oil Corporation Limited and Oiltanking GmbH). During his tenure as the MD,
the enterprise value of Indian Oiltanking Limited more than doubled. He recently led the successful
divestment of Oiltanking GmbH shareholding in Indian Oiltanking Limited to Adani Ports and SEZ Limited.

Educational Qualifications: A Mechanical Engineer and has an MBA from The University of Chicago Booth
School of Business.

3. Ajay Nagle

Experience: Throughout his career spanning over 30 years, Ajay Nagle has consistently held positions of
growth in stature and responsibility in organizations such as Fulford India Limited, Bharat Forge Limited,
Essel Propack Limited, and Tata Autocomp Systems Limited. These experiences have provided him with a
diverse range of insights and knowledge in the manufacturing industry. Before joining Bajaj Electricals
Limited, Mr. Nagle served as the "Head - Legal" of the Petrochemicals Division at Reliance Industries
Limited for approximately 6 years. He has served as the “Company Secretary”™ of Bajaj Electricals Limited
trom January, 2020 till June, 2023. With his extensive experience, Ajay Nagle brings valuable insights in
matters of Corporate Governance and Company Secretarial functions.

Educational Qualifications: He is a Member of the Institute of Company Secretaries of India and holds a
degree in Commerce and Law (General) from Mumbai University.

4. Rajendra Prasad Singh

Experience: He is the Ex-Chairman & Managing Director of Power Grid Corporation of India Limited. In his
career of over four decades, he has served TISCO, NTPC and POWERGRID. He has been conferred with
many awards, notably SCOPE Award for Excellence & outstanding contribution to the Public Sector
Management, Degree of Doctor of Science (Honoris Causa) by BHU, Power Delivery Product Champion
Award by Electric Power Research Institute (EPRI) USA and Green Award by World Bank.

Educational Qualifications: He is a Postgraduate in Mechanical Engineering from BHU

5. Radhika Dudhat
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Experience: Ms. Radhika Dudhat is a Partner with Shardul Amarchand Mangaldas & Co. and has extensive
experience in transactional, regulatory and legal risk management advisory. She is a director on the boards
of listed companies and is a member on the boards of industry forums. She has been appointed as the
chairperson of the Corporate Law and Governance Sub-Committee of the IMC Chamber of Commerce &
Industry. She has been enlisted in Legal Powerlist 2020 amongst top individual lawyers by Forbes India. She
is also a Faculty and Guest Speaker at various educational, institutional and business forums to speak on a
wide range of subjects including on legal, commercial and self-development related topics.

Educational Qualifications: She is a graduate from the University of Bombay Faculty of Life Sciences, a law
graduate from the University of Bombay and a Postgraduate from the University of Cambridge and Harvard
University.

6. Maneck Davar

Experience: Currently, Mr. Maneck Davar serves as the Chairman and Managing Director of Spenta
Multimedia Private Limited, India’s largest custom magazine publisher. He is also on the board of several
other companies, including Mumbai Boat Show Private Limited, Spenta Digital Media Private Limited,
Liquid Publishing Private Limited, The Smart Manager Private Limited, and MW. Com Private Limited. In
addition, he is an independent director in Kemp & Co., one of the oldest companies listed on the BSE Limited.
He is associated with several public organizations, highlighting his commitment to community service. He
serves as the Chairman of the Kala Ghoda Association, Managing Trustee of Make-A-Wish Foundation India,
and Chairman of The Society for the Protection of Children in Western India. He is also a board member of
Apne Aap Women'’s Collective, a patron of The Research Society (Jai Vakeel School), and a committee
member of SHED.

Educational Qualifications: He graduated with a Bachelor of Arts degree.

OTHER CONFIRMATIONS -
1. As on the date of this Information Memorandum, none of the Directors and Key Managerial Personnel are
related to each other.

2. None of our Directors have been appointed to directorship, or as a member of our senior management, pursuant
to any arrangement or understanding with our major shareholders, customers, suppliers, or others. However,
certain Directors or employees were transferred pursuant to the Scheme and hold the same positions as they
held in BEL.

3. None of our Directors of our Company have entered into any service contracts with our Company which
provides for benefits upon termination of employment.

BORROWING POWERS OF THE BOARD

Pursuant to a special resolution passed at an extra-ordinary general meeting of our Company held on May 12, 2023
and pursuant to Section 180(1)(c) and any other applicable provisions, of the Companies Act and rules made
thereunder, our Board has been authorised to borrow from time to time, any sum or sums of monies, which together
with the monies already borrowed by the Company (apart from temporary loans obtained or to be obtained from the
Company s bankers in the ordinary course of business), may exceed permissible limit, i.e., the aggregate of the paid
up capital of the company, free reserve and securities premium of the Company, that is to say, reserves not set apart
for any specific purposes, provided that the total outstanding amount so borrowed, shall not at any time exceed the
limit of INR 1,500 Crores.

DETAILS OF REMUNERATION OF OUR DIRECTORS

1. Terms of appointment of our Non-Executive Directors including Independent Directors

The shareholders of the Company at the general meeting held on June 16, 2023, at the recommendation of the
Board of Directors, have approved the payment of commission to Non-Executive Directors in each financial
year, such sum, in aggregate, not exceeding 1% of the net profits of the Company for that financink yeac
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calculated in accordance with the provisions of Section 198 of the Companies Act 2013, as the Board of
Directors may from time to time determine. Further, the Board of Directors of the Company at its meeting held
on August 28, 2023, approved the payment of sitting fees of INR 1,00,000 for attending each meeting of the
Board and audit committee, and INR 50,000 for other committees constituted by the Board.

2. Remuneration paid to Executive Directors

The Company did not have any Executive Director on its Board during the FY 2022-23, hence the remuneration
paid to Executive Directors is not applicable.

3. Remuneration paid to Non-Executive Directors

The Company did not pay any remuneration including sitting fees to its Non-Executive Directors during the FY
2022-23,

BONUS OR PROFIT-SHARING PLAN FOR THE DIRECTORS
Our Company does not have a bonus or profit-sharing plan with any of our Directors.

REMUNERATION PAID OR PAYABLE FROM SUBSIDIARIES AND ASSOCIATE COMPANIES
Our Company does not have any subsidiaries or associate companies.
SHAREHOLDING OF OUR DIRECTORS IN THE COMPANY

As per the Articles of Association of our Company, our Directors are not required to hold any qualification shares.
Except for Shekhar Bajaj and Mr. Ajay Nagle, none of our Directors hold any Equity Shares in the Company. The
details of the shareholding are set forth below in the table:

Sr. No.| Name of the Director| No. of Equity Shares| Percentage of the equity share capital*
1. Mr. Shekhar Bajaj 18,14.639 1.58
D, Mr. Ajay Nagle 9,256 0.01
*Post implementation of the Scheme

INTERESTS OF DIRECTORS

Our Directors may be deemed to be interested to the extent of remuneration and sitting fees payable to them for
services rendered as a Director of our Company and reimbursement of expenses payable to them. For details, see
“Details of Remuneration of our Directors™ above.

Our Directors may also be interested to the extent of Equity Shares or stock options, if any, held by them or held by
the entities in which they are associated as promoters, directors, partners, proprietors or trustees or held by their
relatives or that may be subscribed by or allotted to the companies, firms, ventures, trusts in which they are interested
as promoters, directors, partners, proprietors, members or trustees, pursuant to the Offer. All of our Directors may
also be deemed to be interested to the extent of any dividend payable to them and other distributions in respect of
the said Equity Shares, if any. For further details, please see section titled *“Capital Structure™ on page 39 of this
Information Memorandum.

CHANGES IN OUR BOARD OF DIRECTORS DURING THE LAST THREE YEARS

Following are the changes in Directors of our Company since its incorporation on January 19, 2022:

Name Date of event Reason
Mr. Shekhar Bajaj January 19, 2022 Appointed as First Director
Mr. Sanjay Murarka January 19, 2022 Appointed as First Director
Mr. Samir Shrimankar January 19, 2022 Appointed as First Director
Mr. Shekhar Bajaj June 16, 2023 Appointed as a non-executive and non-independent
director at the annual general meeting
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Mr. Sanjay Murarka June 16,2023 Appointed as a non-executive and non-independent
director at the annual general meeting

Mr. Samir Shrimankar June 16,2023 Appointed as a non-executive and non-independent
director at the annual general meeting

Mr. Rajendra Prasad Singh August 28,2023 Appointed as an additional (independent) director
Ms. Radhika Dudhat August 28,2023 Appointed as an additional (independent) director
Mr. Maneck Davar August 28,2023 Appointed as an additional (independent) director
Mr. Ajay Nagle August 28,2023 Appointed as an additional director, commencement
of his tenure is with effect from September 01,2023
Mr. Sanjay Murarka August 28,2023 Resigned as a non-executive director with effect
from close of business hours on August 30,2023
Mr. Rajendra Prasad Singh August 30,2023 Appointed as an independent director at an
extraordinary general meeting
Ms. Radhika Dudhat August 30,2023 Appointed as an independent director at an

extraordinary general meeting

Mr. Maneck Davar August 30,2023 Appointed as an independent director at an
extraordinary general meeting

Mr. Ajay Nagle August 30,2023 Appointed as an executive director, commencement
of his tenure is with effect from September 01,2023

Mr. Rajesh Ganesh September 16, 2023 Appointed as additional director with the
designation managing director, commencement of
his tenure is with effect from September 18, 2023

Mr. Samir Shrimankar September 16, 2023 Resigned as a non-executive director with effect
from close of business hours on September 18, 2023

BAJEL PROJECTS LTD. —TOP LEVEL STRUCTURE

s, Ajay Nagle
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The provisions relating to corporate governance prescribed under the SEBI Listing Regulations shall be applicable
to our Company immediately upon listing of the Equity Shares on the Stock Exchanges. Our Company is in
compliance with the requirements of applicable regulations, including the SEBI Listing Regulations, the Companies
Act and the rules framed thereunder, in respect of corporate governance including constitution of our Board and
committees thereof, as required under law.

Our Board has been constituted in compliance with the Companies Act and the SEBI Listing Regulations. The Board
functions either as a full board or through various committees constituted to oversee specific functions. The scope
and function of our audit committee, nomination and remuneration committee, corporate social responsibility
committee, stakeholders’ relationship committee and risk management committee are in accordance with the
provisions of the Companies Act and the SEBI Listing Regulations, as amended from time to time. Our executive
management provides our Board detailed reports on its performance periodically.

Currently, our Board has 6 (six) Directors, with three Independent Directors (including one woman director) and 2
(two) Executive Directors and 1 (one) Non-Executive Director, in compliance with the SEBI Listing Regulations
and the Companies Act.

The following committees have been formed in compliance with the corporate governance norms:
1.  Audit Committee:

Our Audit Committee was constituted vide a resolution of our Board dated August 28, 2023. The current
members of the Committee as under:

(a) Mr.Maneck Davar, Independent Director, Chairman;
(b) Mr. Rajendra Prasad Singh, Independent Director; and
(c) Ms. Radhika Dudhat, Independent Director.

Scope and terms of reference

The role of the Audit Committee shall be in accordance with Section 177 of the Companies Act, and Regulation
18 of the SEBI Listing Regulations. The role of the Audit Committee shall include the following:

(1) Oversight of the Company’s financial reporting process and the disclosure of its financial information
to ensure that the financial statement is correct, sufficient and credible;

(i)  Recommendation for appointment, remuneration and terms of appointment of auditors of the Company;
(i)  Approval of payment to statutory auditors for any other services rendered by the statutory auditors;

(iv)  Reviewing, with the management, the annual financial statements and auditor's report thereon before
submission to the Board for approval, with particular reference to:

(B) matters required to be included in the Director’s Responsibility Statement to be included in the
Board’s report in terms of clause (c) of sub-section 3 of section 134 of the Companies Act;

(C) changes, if any, in accounting policies and practices and reasons for the same;

(D) major accounting entries involving estimates based on the exercise of judgment by management;
(E) significant adjustments made in the financial statements arising out of audit findings;

(F) compliance with listing and other legal requirements relating to financial statements;

(G) disclosure of any related party transactions; and

(H) modified opinion(s) in the draft audit report.

(v)  Reviewing, with the management, the quarterly financial statements before submission to the Board for
approval including the financial statements, in particular, the investments made by unlisted
subsidiary(ies);

(vi)  Reviewing, with the management, the statement of uses / application of funds raised through an issue
(public issue, rights issue, preferential issue, etc.), the statement of funds utilized for purposes other than
those stated in the ofter document / prospectus / notice and the report submitted by the nidhitoring
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agency monitoring the utilisation of proceeds of a public or rights issue, and making appropriate
recommendations to the Board to take up steps in this matter;

(vii) Review and monitor the auditor’s independence and performance, and effectiveness of audit process;
(vill) Approval or any subsequent modification of the related party transactions;

(ix)  Scrutiny of inter-corporate loans and investments;

(x)  Valuation of undertakings or assets of the Company, wherever it is necessary;

(xi)  Evaluation of internal financial controls and risk management systems;

(xi1) Reviewing, with the management, performance of statutory and internal auditors, adequacy of the
internal control systems;

(xi11) Reviewing the adequacy of internal audit function, if any, including the structure of the internal audit
department, staftfing and seniority of the official heading the department, reporting structure coverage
and frequency of internal audit;

(xiv) Discussion with internal auditors of any significant findings and follow up there on;

(xv) Reviewing the findings of any internal investigations by the internal auditors into matters where there
is suspected fraud or irregularity or a failure of internal control systems of a material nature and reporting
the matter to the Board;

(xvi) Discussion with statutory auditors before the audit commences, about the nature and scope of audit as
well as post-audit discussion to ascertain any area of concem:;

(xvii) To look into the reasons for substantial defaults in the payment to the depositors, debenture holders,
shareholders (in case of non-payment of declared dividends) and creditors;

(xviii) To review the functioning of the whistle blower mechanism;

(xix) Approval of appointment of CFO (i.e., the whole-time finance director or any other person heading the
finance function or discharging that function) after assessing the qualifications, experience and
background, etc. of the candidate;

(xx) Carrying out any other function as is mentioned in the terms of reference of the Audit Committee.

(xxi) To review the utilization of loans, advances or both in the subsidiary company(ies) which shall not
exceed Rs.100 crore or 10% of the asset size of the subsidiary, whichever is lower including existing
loans / advances / investments; and

(xxit) consider and comment on rationale, cost-benefits and impact of schemes involving merger, demerger,
amalgamation etc., on the listed entity and its shareholders.

Stakeholders’ Relationship Committee

Our Stakeholders’ Relationship Committee was constituted vide a resolution of our Board dated August 28,
2023. The current members of the Committee as under:

(a) Mr. Shekhar Bajaj, Non-Executive Director, Chairman;

(b) Mr. Rajendra Prasad Singh, Independent Director;

(c) Mr. Ajay Nagle, Executive Director, Secretary and Chief Compliance Officer; and
(d) Ms. Radhika Dudhat, Independent Director.

Scope and terms of reference

The role of the Stakeholders’ Relationship Committee shall be in accordance with Section 178 of the Companies
Act and Regulation 20 of the SEBI Listing Regulations. The role of the Stakeholders® Relationship Committee
shall include the following:

(1) To resolve the grievances of the security holders of the Company including complaints related to
transfer/transmission of shares, non-receipt of annual report, non-receipt of declared dividends;issue of
new/duplicate certificates, general meetings etc.;
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(i)
(iii)

(iv)

(v)

(vi)

(vii)

(viii)

(ix)

Review of measures taken for effective exercise of voting rights by shareholders;

Review of adherence to the service standards adopted by the Company in respect of various services
being rendered by the registrar and the share transfer agent;

Review of the various measures and initiatives taken by the Company for reducing the quantum of
unclaimed dividends and ensuring timely receipt of dividend warrants/annual reports/statutory notices
by the shareholders of the Company;

[ssue and allotment of equity and/or preference shares;
[ssue of new share certificate on allotment;
[ssue of duplicate/split/consolidated share certificates;

To settle any question, difticulty or doubts of the shareholders that may arise in regard to the issue and
allotment of shares; and

Reference to Board of directors in case of any question, doubts or difficulty in respect of issue, allotment,
transfer of shares and any shareholders grievances, if necessary.

Nomination and Remuneration Committee

The Nomination and Remuneration Committee was constituted vide a resolution of the Board dated August 28,
2023. The current members of the Committee as under:

(a) Mr. Rajendra Prasad Singh, Independent Director, Chairman;
(b) Mr. Shekhar Bajaj, Non-Executive Director; and
(c) Mr. Maneck Davar, Independent Director.

Scope and terms of reference

The role of the Nomination and Remuneration Committee shall be in accordance with Section 178 of the
Companies Act and Regulation 19 of SEBI Listing Regulations. The role of the Nomination and Remuneration
Committee shall include the following:

(1)

(iv)

To identify persons who are qualified to become directors and who may be appointed in senior
management in accordance with the criteria laid down, recommend to the Board their appointment and
removal and shall specify the manner for effective evaluation of performance of Board, its committees,
chairperson and individual directors to be carried out by the Board, by the Nomination and
Remuneration Committee or by an independent external agency and review its implementation and
compliance;

To formulate the criteria for determining qualifications, positive attributes and independence of a
director and recommend to the Board a policy, relating to the remuneration for the directors, key
managerial personnel and other employees;

While formulating the policy, to ensure that —

(A) the level and composition of remuneration is reasonable and sufficient to attract, retain and
motivate directors of the quality required to run the company successfully;

(B) relationship of remuneration to performance is clear and meets appropriate performance
benchmarks; and

(C) remuneration to directors, key managerial personnel and senior management involves a balance
between fixed and incentive pay reflecting short and long-term performance objectives appropriate
to the working of the company and its goals.

To take into account financial position of the company, trend in the industry, appointees qualifications,
experience, past performance, past remuneration, etc., and bring about objectivity in determining the
remuneration package while striking a balance between the interest of the company and the shareholders
while approving the remuneration payable to managing director, whole time director or manager;
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(v)

(vi)
(vii)

(viii)

(ix)
(x)

(x1)

(xii1)

To lay down / formulate the evaluation criteria for performance evaluation of independent directors &
the Board;

To devise a policy on Board diversity;
To ensure "Fit & Proper’ status of the proposed/existing directors;

To recommend to Board, whether to extend or continue the term of appointment of the independent
director, on the basis of the report of performance evaluation of independent directors;

To review and approve the remuneration and change in remuneration payable to whole-time directors;

To recommend to Board, all remuneration payable to senior management (i.e., members of the core
management team, i.e. members one level below the chief executive officer/managing director/whole
time director and shall specitically include company secretary and chief financial ofticer); and

To act as the Compensation Committee under SEBI (Share Based Employee Benefits) Regulations,
2014 (including amendment thereof) to determine the quantum of employee stock options to be granted
to the employees under Company’s ESOP plans; determine eligibility for grant of ESOPS; decide the
procedure for making a fair and reasonable adjustment in case of corporate actions; procedure and terms
for the grant, vest and exercise of employee stock option; procedure for cashless exercise of employee
stock options etc.

To undertake specific duties as may be prescribed by the board from time to time.

4. Risk Management Committee

The Risk Management Committee was constituted vide a resolution of the Board dated August 28, 2023. The
current members of the Committee as under:

(a) Mr. Shekhar Bajaj, Non-Executive Director, Chairman;

(b) Ms. Radhika Dudhat, Independent Director:;

(c) Mr. Rajesh Ganesh, Managing Director;

(d) Mr. Ajay Nagle, Executive Director, Secretary and Chief Compliance Ofticer:;
(e) Mr. Binda Misra, Chief Financial Officer; and

(f) Mr. Aurelius D'Monte, Chief Internal Auditor.

Scope and terms of reference

The role of the Risk Management Committee shall be in accordance with Regulation 21 of the SEBI Listing
Regulations. The role of the Risk Management Committee shall include the following:

(1)

(ii)

(1i1)

(iv)
(v)

(vi)

(vii)

(viii)

To identify, assess, mitigate and monitor the existing as well as potential risks to the Company
(including risks associated with cyber security and financial risk), to recommend the strategies to the
Board to overcome them and review key leading indicators in this regard;

To periodically review and approve the risk management framework including the risk management
processes and practices of the Company:;

to evaluate significant risk exposures of the Company and assess management's actions to mitigate the
exposures in a timely manner;

To develop and implement action plans to mitigate the risks;

to coordinate its activities with the Audit Committee in instances where there is any overlap with audit
activities (e.g.. internal or external audit issue relating to risk management policy or practice);

To oversee at such intervals as may be necessary, the adequacy of Company's resources to perform its
risk management responsibilities and achieve its objectives;

To review and periodically assess the Company's performance against the identified risks of the
Company:

to review and periodically reassess the adequacy of this Charter and recommend any proposed changes
to the Board for approval; / SN
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(ix) To regularly review and update the current list of material business risks;

(x)  To make regular reports to the Board, including with respect to risk management and minimization
procedures; and

(xi)  To perform such other activities related to risk management plan as requested by the Board or to address
issues related to any significant, subject within its term of reference.

5. Corporate Social Responsibility Committee

The Corporate Social Responsibility Committee was constituted vide a resolution of the Board dated August
28, 2023 The current members of the Committee as under:

(a) Mr. Shekhar Bajaj, Non-Executive Director, Chairman ;
(b) Mr. Rajendra Prasad Singh, Independent Director; and
(c) Ms. Radhika Dudhat, Independent Director .

Scope and terms of reference

The scope and function of the Corporate Social Responsibility Committee shall be in accordance with Section
135 of the Companies Act. The role of the Corporate Social Responsibility Committee shall include the
following:

(1) Formulate and recommend to the Board corporate social responsibility policies and programs;
(i1)  Oversight and implementation of corporate social responsibility projects or programmes or activities;
(iii)  Review of annual budgets with respect to corporate social responsibility programs;

(iv)  Work with management to establish and develop the Company’s strategic framework and objectives
with respect to corporate social responsibility matters;

(v)  Receiving reports from management on the Company’s corporate social responsibility program,
including signiticant sustainable development and community relations;

(vi)  Receiving reports from management on current and emerging issues and trends in the field of corporate
social responsibility, including a discussion on the potential impact thereof on the Company;

(vii) Receiving reports from management on the Company’s corporate social responsibility performance to
assess the etfectiveness of the corporate social responsibility programs;

(viii) Reviewing the findings and recommendations from the auditors or by regulatory agencies or consultants
concerning the Company’s corporate social responsibility matters; and

(ix)  Reviewing the Company’s disclosure of corporate social responsibility matters in the Board's Report.

KEY MANAGERIAL PERSONNE

The details of our Key Managerial Personnel are as follows:

1. Mr. Rajesh Ganesh, Managing Director

Date of joining September 18, 2023

Qualification He is a Mechanical Engineer and has an MBA from The University
of Chicago Booth School of Business.

Details of service contracts There are no service contracts entered into with the Company.

including termination/retirement
benefits, if any,

Details of previous employment He was the Managing Director of Indian Oiltanking Limited (A JV
between Indian Oil Corporation Limited and Oiltanking GmbH).
Past business experience, and | Rajesh Ganesh has about 30 years of cross business, international
functions and areas of experience in | experience with large multinational companies like Shetl; €astrol,
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the Issuer.

and Oiltanking GmbH. He has lived and worked in India, UK,
Europe, Singapore, and Indonesia. He is a Mechanical Engineer and
has an MBA from The University of Chicago Booth School of
Business.

Nature of any family relationship
between any of the key managerial
personnel

None

Mr. Ajay Nagle, Executive Director, Secretary and Chief Compliance Officer

Date of joining

September 1, 2023

Qualification

He is a Member of the Institute of Company Secretaries of India and
holds a degree in Commerce and Law (General) from Mumbai
University

Details of service contracts
including termination/retirement
benefits, if any,

There are no service contracts entered into with the Company.

Details of previous employment

Erstwhile company secretary of BEL

Past business experience, and
functions and areas of experience in
the Issuer.

Throughout his career spanning over 30 years, Mr. Nagle has
consistently held positions of growth in stature and responsibility in
organizations such as Fulford India Limited, Bharat Forge Limited,
Essel Propack Limited, and Tata Autocomp Systems Limited. These
experiences have provided him with a diverse range of insights and
knowledge in the manufacturing industry. Before joining BEL, Mr.
Nagle served as the "Head - Legal" of the Petrochemicals Division
at Reliance Industries Limited for approximately 6 years.

Mr. Nagle has served as the company secretary and chief compliance
officer of BEL from January, 2020 till June, 2023. With his
extensive experience, Mr. Nagle brings valuable insights in matters
of corporate governance and company secretarial functions.

Nature of any family relationship
between any of the key managerial
personnel

None

Mr. Sanjay Bhagat, Chief Executive Officer

Date of joining

September 1, 2023

Qualification

He holds a Bachelor of Technology degree in Mechanical
Engineering from Regional Engineering College, Kurukshetra,
where he graduated in the year 1989 as a gold medalist. He further
pursued his education and completed in the year 1991, a Master of
Technology degree in Industrial & Management Engineering from
the prestigious Indian Institute of Technology (IIT), Kanpur.

Details of service contracts
including termination/retirement
benefits, if any,

There are no service contracts entered into with the Company.

Details of previous employment

Erstwhile Segment Head - T&D at BEL

Past business experience, and
functions and areas of experience in
the Issuer.

Since April, 1997, Mr. Bhagat has been associated with BEL. He has
worked in executing EPC projects related to Illumination, Power
Transmission and Power Distribution.

Nature of any family relationship
between any of the key managerial
personnel

None
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4. Mr. Binda Misra, Chief Financial Officer

Date of joining September 1, 2023

Qualification He is a qualified Chartered Accountant registered with the Institute
of Chartered Accountants of India

Details of service contracts There are no service contracts entered into with the Company.

including termination/retirement
benefits, if any,

Details of previous employment Erstwhile Head - Accounts & Taxation at BEL

Past business experience, and Mr. Misra has been associated with BEL since the year 1996, during

functions and areas of experience in | which he handled varied prior roles viz. internal auditor, MIS Head,

the Issuer. Head Commercial EPC, Head Corporate Account & ERP and Head
of Taxation & Accounts

Nature of any family relationship None

between any of the key managerial

personnel

Arrangement or understanding with major shareholders, customers, suppliers or others

None of our Key Managerial Personnel have been appointed pursuant to any arrangement or understanding with our
major shareholders, customers, suppliers or others. All our Key Managerial Personnel are permanent employees of
our Company.

The Company had not appointed any Key Managerial Personnel during the FY 2022-23, hence the remuneration
paid to Key Managerial Personnel is not applicable.

Bonus or profit-sharing plan for our Key Managerial Personnel
None of our Key Management Personnel are party to any bonus or profit sharing plan of our Company.

Shareholding of Key Managerial Personnel

The details of the Equity Shares held by our Key Managerial Personnel, as on the date of this Information
Memorandum, are as follows:

Name of the Key No. of Equity Percentage of the Equity Share Capital
Managerial Shares
Personnel

Mr. Rajesh Ganesh Nil Nil

Mr. Ajay Nagle 9,256 0.01

Mr. Sanjay Bhagat 26,800 0.02

Mr. Binda Misra 8,251 0.01

Changes in our Key Managerial Personnel and Attrition Rate

The changes in our Key Managerial Personnel since incorporation as on the date of this Information Memorandum
are as follows.

Name of the Key Designation Date of Appointment / Reason
Managerial Personnel Cessation
Mr. Rajesh Ganesh Managing Director September 18, 2023 Appointment
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Mr. Ajay Nagle Executive Director, September 1, 2023 Appointment
Secretary and Chief
Compliance Officer

Mr. Sanjay Bhagat Chiet Executive September 1, 2023 Appointment
Ofticer
Mr. Bindra Misra Chiet Financial Ofticer September 1, 2023 Appointment

Employee Stock Options

Please refer to the section titled “Capital Structure™ on page 39 of this Information Memorandum above for details
of the Options granted to the eligible employees.

Payment or Benefit to officers of our Company (non-salary related)

No amount or benefit has been paid or given since the incorporation ot the Company on January 19, 2022 or intended
to be paid or given to any officer ot the Company, including our directors and Key Managerial Personnel.
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OUR PROMOTER AND PROMOTER GROUP

The Promoters of our Company are:
1. Mr. Shekhar Bajaj

2. Mr. Madhur Bajaj

3. Mr. Niraj Bajaj

4. Mr. Rajivnayan Bajaj

5. Mr. Sanjivnayan Bajaj

As on the date of this Information Memorandum, Mr. Shekhar Bajaj holds 18,14,639 Equity Shares, Mr. Madhur
Bajaj holds 2,00,000 Equity Shares, Mr. Niraj Bajajholds 11,30,882 Equity Shares,and Mr. Sanjivnayan Bajaj holds
4,28,749 Equity Shares respectively of the issued, subscribed and paid-up equity share capital of our Company. Mr.
Shekhar Bajaj, Mr. Madhur Bajaj, Mr. Niraj Bajaj, and Mr. Sanjivnayan Bajaj have acquired shareholding in our
Company pursuant to the Scheme. Prior to the effectiveness of the Scheme, Bajaj Electricals Limited was the original
promoter of our Company. For details, see section “Changes in Promoters™ at page 90 below.

DETAILS OF OUR PROMOTERS

1. Mr. Shekhar Bajaj

Mr. Shekhar Bajaj, aged 75 years, is one of the Promoters.
Date of Birth: June 8, 1948

Personal address: Flat Number 50, Building Number 4, Hill Park,
A Graham Bell Marg, Malabar Hill, Mumbai 400 006,
Maharashtra

Educational qualifications: Holds a master’s degree in business
administration from the New York University.

Experience in the business or employment: He has been
associated with Bajaj Electricals Limited since 1980 and was
appointed as one of the First Directors of our Company on
January 19, 2022. He is on the board of various Bajaj group
companies and has significant experience in Consumer Products
Business, EPC Business and automobile sector. He has
previously been the president of the Associated Chambers of
Commerce & Industry of India and Council for Fair Business
Practices. He was conferred the “entrepreneur of the year’ award
at the 9" Asia Pacific Entrepreneurship Awards, held in 2018.

Positions / posts held in the past: Past directorships in- Bajaj Auto
Limited, Stanley Black & Decker India Private Limited, Rudi
Multi Trading Company Limited, and Starlite Lighting Limited.

Directorships held in: (i) Bajaj Electricals Limited, (i1) Hercules
Hoists Limited, (iii) Bajaj Holdings & Investment Limited, (iv)
Indef Manufacturing Limited, (v) Bajel Projects Limited, (vi)
Hind Lamps Limited, (vii) Hind Musafir Agency Limited, (viii)
Bachhraj Factories Private Limited, (ix) Bajaj Sevashram Private
Limited, (x) Council For Fair Business Practices, (xi) Shekhar
Holdings Private Limited, (xii) Bhoopati Shikshan Pratisthan,
and (xiii) Bajaj International Private Limited. ///‘/(F‘FCL
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Other Ventures: Nil

The Company confirms that the permanent account number,
Aadhaar card number, driving license number, bank account
numbers and the passport number of Mr. Shekhar Bajaj, shall be
submitted to the stock exchanges at the time of filing this
Information Memorandum.

2. Mr. Madhur Bajaj

Mr. Madhur Bajaj, aged 70 years, is one of the Promoters.
Date of Birth: August 19, 1952

Personal address: 134, B-Wing, NCPA Apartments, Sir Dorabji
Tata Marg, Nariman Point, Mumbai 400021.

Educational qualifications: Holds a master’s degree in business
administration from the Intemational Institute of Management
Development (IMD), Lausanne, Switzerland.

Experience in the business or employment: He is on the board of
various Bajaj group companies. He has significant experience in
the auto, consumer durables and financial services sectors. He is
the recipient of the Vikas Rattan Award from the International
Friendship Society of India, for enriching human life and
outstanding achievements.

Positions / posts held in the past: Past directorships in-
Mabharashtra Scooters Limited, Bajaj Finance Limited, Mahratta
Chamber of Commerce Industries and Agriculture, Fusion
Investments And Financial Services Private Limited, Catalyst
Finance Private Limited, Econium Investments And Finance
Private Limited, Bajaj Auto Holdings Limited, Conquest
Investment And Finance Private Limited, Lineage Investments
Private Limited, and Sidya Investments Limited.

Directorships held: (i) Bajaj Electricals Limited, (i) Bajaj
Holdings & Investment Limited, (iii) Bajaj Finserv Limited, (iv)
Bajaj Auto Limited, (v) Emerald Acres Private Limited, (vi)
Sankalp Resorts Private Limited, (vii) Madhur Securities Private
Limited, (viii) Mahakalpa Arogya Pratisthan.

Other Ventures: Nil

The Company confirms that the permanent account number,
aadhaar card number, driving license number, bank account
numbers and the passport number of Mr. Madhur Bajaj, shall be
submitted to the stock exchanges at the time of filing this
Information Memorandum.

3. Mr. Niraj Bajaj
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Mr. Niraj Bajaj, aged 68 years, is one of the Promoters.
Date of Birth: October 10, 1954

Personal address: 97, Mount Unique, 62 A. G. Deshmukh Marg,
Cumballa Hill, Mumbai 400026.

Educational qualifications: Holds a master’s degree in business
administration from the Harvard Business School, Boston,
U.S.A.

Experience in the business or employment: He is on the board of

various Bajaj group companies. He has significant experience in

the auto, iron & steel and financial services sectors. He is a

recipient of the following awards:

e Arjuna Award, India’s highest Sports honour

e  Shiv Chhatrapati Award, Maharashtra’s highest Sports
honour

e  Maharashtra Gaurav Puraskar

Positions / posts held in the past: Past directorships in- Bajaj
Hindusthan Sugar Limited, RPG Life Sciences Limited,
Brabourne Enterprises Limited, Hind Rectifiers Limited,
Hindustan Housing Company Limited, Zensar Technologies
Limited, Kalyani Mukand Limited, Bekaert Mukand Wire
Industries Private Limited, Fusion Investments And Financial
services Private Limited, Catalyst Finance Private Limited,
Primus Investments And Finance Private Limited, Mukand
Global Finance Limited, Madhur Securities Private Limited,
Rahul Securities Private Limited, Kamalnayan Investment And
Trading Private Limited, Shekhar Holdings Private Limited,
Hospet Steels Limited, Mukand Vijayanagar Steel Limited, and
Bajaj International Private Limited.

Directorships held: (i) Mukand Engineers Limited, (ii) Bajaj
Holdings & Investment Limited, (iii) Bajaj Auto Limited, (iv)
Mukand Limited, (v) Baroda Industries Private Limited, (vi)
Jamnalal Sons Private Limited, (vii) Bachhraj And Company
Private Limited, (viii) Bajaj Sevashram Private Limited, (ix)
Mukand Sumi Special Steel Limited, (x) Jeewan Limited, (xi)
Bajaj Allianz General Insurance Company Limited, (xii) Bajaj
Allianz Life Insurance Company Limited, (xiii) Niraj Holdings
Private Limited, (xiv) Sanraj Nayan Investments Private Limited,
(xv) CSEP Research Foundation, (xvi) IMC Chamber of
Commerce and Industry, (xvii) Foundation for Promotion of
Sports and Games, (xviii) Mahakalpa Arogya Pratisthan, (xix)
Bhoopati Shikshan Pratisthan.

Other Ventures: Nil

The Company confirms that the permanent account number,
Aadhaar card number, driving license number, bank account
numbers and the passport number of Mr. Niraj Bajaj, shall be
submitted to the stock exchanges at the time of filing this
Information Memorandum.
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4. Mr. Rajivnayan Bajaj

Mr. Rajivnayan Bajaj, aged 56 years, is one of the Promoters.
Date of Birth: December 21, 1966

Personal address: 34/35, Yog Koregaon Park, Lane No.2, Pune
411001.

Educational qualifications: Holds a bachelor’s degree in
engineering from the University of Poona and a master’s degree
in science from the University of Warwick.

Experience in the business or employment: He is on the board of
various Bajaj group companies. He has significant experience in
the auto and financial services sectors.

Positions / posts held in the past: Past directorships in- Bajaj
Housing Finance Limited and Bajaj Auto Holdings Limited.

Directorships held: (i) Bajaj Electricals Limited, (ii) Bajaj
Holdings & Investment Limited, (iii) Bajaj Finance Limited, (iv)
Bajaj Finserv Limited, (v) Bajaj Auto Limited, (vi) Bajaj
Sevashram Private Limited, (vii) Chetak Technology Limited,
(viii) Bajaj Auto Consumer Finance Limited, (ix) Rahul
Securities Private Limited, (x) Kamalnayan Investment And
Trading Private Limited, (xi) Rupa Equities Private Limited, (xii)
Mahakalpa Arogya Pratisthan, (xiii) Bhoopati Shikshan
Pratisthan, (xiv) KTM AG, (xv) Pierer Bajaj AG, and (xvi) Pierer
Mobility AG.

Other Ventures: Nil

The Company confirms that the permanent account number,
Aadhaar card number, driving license number, bank account
numbers and the passport number of Mr. Rajivnayan Bajaj, shall be
submitted to the stock exchanges at the time of filing this
Information Memorandum.

5. Mr. Sanjivnayan Bajaj
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Mr. Sanjivnayan Bajaj, aged 53 years, is one of the Promoters.
Date of Birth: November 2, 1969

Personal address: Plot No.59, Lane No.3, Koregaon Park, Pune
411001.

Educational qualifications: First class with distinction from the
University of Pune, M Sc (Manufacturing Systems Engg) with
distinction from the University of Warwick, U K and MBA from
Harvard Business School, U S A.

Experience in the business or employment: He is on the board of
various Bajaj group companies. He has significant experience in
the financial services sectors. He has been lauded with several
prestigious honours for his contribution to the financial services
space, including AIMA’s Entrepreneur of the year 2019,
Economic Times Business Leader of the year 2018, Financial
Express Best Banker of the year 2017, Emst & Young
Entrepreneur of the year in 2017, Transformational Leader award
at the 5" Asia Business Responsibility Summit in 2017, and
Business World's Most Valuable CEOs in India for 2015 and
2016.

Positions / posts held in the past: Past directorships in- Hindustan
Housing Company Limited and Jeewan Limited.

Directorships held: (i) Maharashtra Scooters Limited, (ii) Bajaj
Holdings & Investment Limited, (iii) Bajaj Finance Limited, (iv)
Bajaj Finserv Limited, (v) Bajaj Auto Limited, (vi) Jamnalal
Sons Private Limited, (vii) Bachhraj Factories Private Limited,
(viii) Bachhraj And Company Private Limited, (ix) Bajaj
Sevashram Private Limited, (x) Bajaj Housing Finance Limited,
(x1) Bajaj Finserv Asset Management Limited, (xii) Bajaj Auto
Holdings Limited, (xiii) Bajaj Allianz General Insurance
Company Limited, (xiv) Bajaj Allianz Life Insurance Company
Limited, (xv) Rahul Securities Private Limited, (xvi)
Kamalnayan Investment And Trading Private Limited, (xvii)
Rupa Equities Private Limited, (xviii) Sanraj Nayan Investments
Private Limited, (xix) Indian School of Business, (xx) Mahakalpa
Arogya Pratisthan, and (xx1) Bhoopati Shikshan Pratisthan.

Other Ventures: Nil

The Company confirms that the permanent account number,
Aadhaar card number, driving license number, bank account
numbers and the passport number of Mr. Sanjivnayan Bajaj, shall
be submitted to the stock exchanges at the time of filing this
Information Memorandum.

Our Company confirms that the permanent account number, bank account number(s), AADHAR Card, driving
license number and passport number of the Promoters, shall be submitted to the Stock Exchanges at the time of filing
this Information Memorandum.

CHANGES IN PROMOTERS
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Structure — Build-up of Promoter’s shareholding in our Company’ on page 39.

INTEREST OF OUR PROMOTERS

The Promoters are interested in our Company to the extent they are Promoters of our Company and to the extent of
their respective direct or indirect shareholding in our Company and dividend payable, if any and any other distributions
in respect of their direct or indirect shareholding in our Company. Our Promoter, Mr. Shekhar Bajaj recovers from

our Company the remuneration paid to them in their capacity as non-executive Director of the Company.

For further details, see section titled “Capital Structure™ on page 39 and “Details of Remuneration of our Directors™
on page 75 of this Information Memorandum.

Disassociation by our Promoters in the last three years

Our Promoters have not disassociated themselves from any companies or firms during the three years preceding the
date of filing of this Information Memorandum:

PAYMENT OR BENEFIT TO PROMOTERS OF OUR COMPANY

There is no amount paid or benefits granted by our Company to our Promoters or any member of the Promoter Group,
since its incorporation on January 19, 2022, or is intended to be paid to any of our Promoters or members of the
Promoter Group as on the date of this Information Memorandum, other than in the ordinary course of business.

MATERIAL GUARANTEES

No material guarantees have been given to third parties by our Promoters with respect to Equity Shares of our
Company.

PROMOTER GROUP

The tollowing are the individuals and entities that form part of our Promoter Group in accordance with the SEBI
ICDR Regulations:

Natural person forming part of promoter group:

Sr. No. Name of the individuals
1. Shekhar Bajaj

2. Madhur Bajaj

S Niraj Bajaj

4. Rajivnayan Bajaj

S. Sanjivnayan Bajaj

Entities forming part of promoter group.

Sr. No. Name of entities

Kiran Bajaj
Geetika Bajaj

Vanraj Bajaj*

Pooja Bajaj
Sunaina Kejriwal

Minal Bajaj

Niravnayan Bajaj

Kumud Bajaj

O[R[N TO[ B[R]~

Neelima Bajaj Swamy
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Kriti Bajaj

12 Shefali Bajaj

13. Deepa Bajaj

14. Nimisha Jaipuria

15. Rishabnayan Bajaj

16. Siddhant Bajaj

17. Sanjali Bajaj

18. Aryaman Kejriwal

19. Nirvaan Kejriwal

20. Aarav Swamy

21. Vihaan Jaipuria

22. Sheetal Bajaj

23. Rajivnayan Bajaj HUF

24. Sanjivnayan Bajaj HUF

5. Vanraj Bajaj Trust (Kiran Bajaj as a Trustee)

26. Neelima Bajaj Swamy Family Trust (Neelima Bajaj Swamy as a Trustee)
7. Nimisha Jaipuria Family Trust (Nimisha Jaipuria as a Trustee)
28. Niravnayan Trust (Niraj Bajaj as a Trustee)

9, Kriti Bajaj Family Trust (Minal Niraj Bajaj as a Trustee)
30. Niravnayan Bajaj Family Trust (Niraj Bajaj as a Trustee)
31. Rishab Family Trust (Rajivnayan Bajaj as a Trustee)

32. Sanjali Family Trust (Sanjivnayan Bajaj as a Trustee)

33. Siddhant Family Trust (Sanjivnayan Bajaj as a Trustee)
34. Nimisha Bajaj Family Trust (Madhur Bajaj as a Trustee)
35, Madhur Neelima Family Trust (Kumud Bajaj as a Trustee)
36. Kumud Neelima Family Trust (Madhur Bajaj as a Trustee)
37. Kumud Nimisha Family Trust (Madhur Bajaj as a Trustee)
38. Madhur Nimisha Family Trust (Kumud Bajaj as a Trustee)
39. Neelima Bajaj Family Trust (Kumud Bajaj as a Trustee)
K0. Deepa Trust

41. Sanjali Trust

42. Siddhant Trust

43 Rishab Trust

K4, Aryaman Trust

Ks. Nirvaan Trust

K6. Rajiv Trust

47 Sanjiv Trust

148, Anant Bajaj Trust

49. Nirav Trust

50. Nimisha Trust

51. Aryaman Family Trust

52. Nirvaan Family Trust

53 Geetika Shekhar Bajaj Family Trust

54. Estate of Rahulkumar Bajaj

55. Bajaj Investment Trust

56. Jamnalal Sons Private Limited

577. Bajaj Holdings And Investment Limited

58. Baroda Industries Private Limited




59. Hind Musatir Agency Limited

60. Bajaj International Private Limited

61. Hercules Hoists Limited

62. Shekhar Holdings Private Limited

63. Rahul Securities Private Limited

64. Bachhraj Factories Private Limited

65. Bachhraj & Company Private Limited

66. Bajaj Sevashram Private Limited

67. Kamalnayan Investments And Trading Private Limited
68. Madhur Securities Private Limited

69. Niraj Holdings Private Limited

70. Rupa Equities Private Limited

71. Sanraj Nayan Investments Private Limited
72. Bajaj Trading Company

73. RDR Ventrues LLP

74. Aryan Nayan Realty LLP
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In terms of the SEBI ICDR Regulations, the term ‘group companies’, includes: (i) such companies (other than promoter(s) and subsidiary(ies)) with which there were related
party transactions during the period for which financial information is disclosed in the financial statements (as also set out in this Information Memorandum below), as covered
under applicable accounting standards; and (ii) any other companies considered material by the board of directors of the relevant issuer company.

Accordingly, all such companies with which our Company had related party transactions during the period for which financial information is disclosed in this Memorandum have
been considered as Group Companies in terms of the SEBI ICDR Regulations.

Based on the above, Bajaj Electricals Limited is our only Group Company as determined in accordance with the Materiality Policy. The details of Bajaj Electricals Limited is
provided below:

Corporate Information

BEL is a public listed company incorporated on July 14,1938 under the provisions of the Indian Companies Act,1913 and deemed to exist within the purview of the Act, with
Corporate Identification Number L31500MH1938PLC009887. Its registered office is situated at 45/47, Veer Nariman Road, Mumbai-400001. BEL is engaged in (a) CP Segment
(which includes appliances, fan and consumer lighting products) and b) EPC

The authorized equity share capital of BEL is ¥ 142,50,00,000 with 71,25,00,000 equity shares of % 2 each. The issued, subscribed and paid-up equity share capital of X
23,02,03,906 divided into 11,51,01,953 shares of 22 each

The shareholding pattern of BEL, as on Record Date, is:

(A) Promoter 72342279 72342279 72342279 72342279 i 72342279
Promoter
Group

(B) Public 63588 42759674 0 0 42759674 37.1494 42759674 0 42759674 37.1494 0 37.1494 0 0.0000 NA
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() Non 0 0 0 0.0000 NA NA 0
Promoter-
Non Public
(cn Shares 0 0 0 0 0 0.0000 0 0 0 0.0000 0 0.0000 0 0.0000 NA NA 0
Underlying
DRs

[{Qu] Shares 0 0 0 0 0 0.0000 0 0 0 0.0000 0 0.0000 0 0.0000 NA NA 0
Held By
Employee
Trust
Total 63637 115101953 [ 0 115101953 100.0000 LIS101953 [ 115101953 100.0000 0 100.0000 0 0.0000 0 0.0000 42378229

Interest of our Promoters

As on the date of this Information Memorandum, Shekhar Bajaj, Madhur Bajaj, Niraj Bajaj, Rajivnayan Bajaj, and Sanjivnayan Bajaj respectively hold 1.58%, 0.17%, 0.98%,
Nil%, and 0.37% of the equity share capital of the Company.

Financial Information

Particulars Fiscal Year 2023
Equity Capital (INR Lakhs) 2,302

Reserves and surplus (INR Lakhs) 193,803

Sales (INR Lakhs) 541,741

Profit after tax (INR Lakhs) 23,050

Earnings per share (INR) 20.05

Diluted earnings per share (INR) 20.01

Net asset value (INR) 170.38

The declaration and payment of dividends will be recommended by our Board and approved by our shareholders, as applicable and at their discretion, subject to the provisions
of the Articles of Association and Applicable Law, including the Companies Act. The dividend, if any, will depend on a number of factors, including but not limited to the
earnings, capital requirements, contractual obligations, applicable legal restrictions and overall financial position of our Company. Our Company has no formal dividend policy.

Our Company was incorporated on January 19, 2022 and did not carry out any business activities as on the date of this Information Memorandum, our Company has not paid
any dividend on its Equity Shares.




SECTION VI - FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

PARTICULARS

PAGE NO.

Independent Auditor’s report on the financial statements for the period from
January 19, 2022 to March 31, 2023

96.1t0 96.11

Financial statements for the period from January 19, 2022 to March 31, 2023

96.12 to 96.28

Independent Auditor’s report on the financial statements for the stub period
from April 1, 2023 to June 30, 2023

96.29 t0 96.31

Financial statements for the stub period from April 1, 2023 to June 30, 2023

96.32 t0 96.76
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SRBC&COLLP 25 Senapat Bopat Hero

Chartered Accountants Dadar (West)

Mumbal - 400 028, india
Tel : +91 22 6819 8000

INDEPENDENT AUDITOR'S REPORT
To the Members of Bajel Projects Limited

Report on the Audit of the Financial Statements

Opinion

We have audited the accompanying financial statements of Bajel Projects Limited (“the Company™),
which comprise the Balance sheet as at March 31 2023, the Statement of Profit and Loss, including
the statement of Other Comprehensive Income, the Cash Flow Statement and the Statement of
Changes in Equity for the period January 19, 2022 to March 31, 2023, and notes to the financial
statements, including a summary of significant accounting policies and other explanatory
information.

In our apinion and to the best of our information and according to the explanations given to us, the
aforesaid financial statements give the information required by the Companies Act, 2013, as
amended (“"the Act”) in the manner so required and give a true and fair view in conformity with the
accounting principles generally accepted in India, of the state of affairs of the Company as at
March 31, 2023, its losses including cther comprehensive loss, its cash flows and the changes in
equity for the period ended on that date.

Basis for Opinion

We conducted our audit of the financial statements in accordance with the Standards on Auditing
(SAs), as specified under section 143(10) of the Act. Our responsibilities under those Standards are
further described in the 'Auditor's Responsibilities for the Audit of the Financial Statemenis’ section
of our report. We are independent of the Company in accordance with the ‘Code of Ethics' issued by
the Institute of Chartered Accountants of india together with the ethical requirements that are
relevant to our audit of the financial statements under the provisions of the Act and the Rules
thereunder, and we have fulfilled our other ethical responsibilities in accordance with these
requirements and the Code of Ethics. We believe that the audit evidence we have obtained is
sufficient and appropriate to provide a basis for our audit opinion on the financial statements.

infermation Other than the Financial Statements and Auditor’s Report Thereon

The Company's Board of Directors is responsible for the other information. The other information
comprises the Draft Directors’ Report but does not include the financial statements and our
auditor’s report thereon.

Our opinion on the financial statements does not cover the other information and we do not express
any form of assurance conclusion thereon.

in connection with our audit of the financial statements, our responsibility is to read the other
information and, in doing so, consider whether such other information is materially inconsistent
with the financial statements, or our knowledge obtained in the audit or otherwise appears to be
materially misstated. If, based on the work we have performed, we conclude that there is a material
misstatement of this other information, we are required to report that fact. We have nothing to
report in this regard.
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Bajel Projects Limited
Auditor’s Report for financial statements for the period ended March 31, 2023

Responsibilities of Management for the Financial Statements

The Company’s Board of Directors is responsible for the matters stated in section 134(5) of the Act
with respect to the preparation of these financial statements that give a true and fair view of the
financial position, financial performance including other comprehensive income, cash flows and
changes in equity of the Company in accordance with the accounting principles generally accepted
in India, including the Indian Accounting Standards (ind AS) specified under section 133 of the Act
read with the Companies (Indian Accounting Standards) Rules, 2015, as amended. This
responsibility also includes maintenance of adequate accounting records in accordance with the
provisions of the Act for safeguarding of the assets of the Company and for preventing and
detecting frauds and other irregularities; selection and application of appropriate accounting
policies; making judgments and estimates that are reasonable and prudent; and the design,
implementation and maintenance of adequate internal financial controls, that were operating
effectively for ensuring the accuracy and completeness of the accounting records, relevant to the
preparation and presentation of the financial statements that give a true and fair view and are free
from material misstatement, whether due to fraud or error.

in preparing the financial statements, management is responsibie for assessing the Company's
ability to continue as a going concern, disclosing, as applicable, matters related to going concern
and using the going concern basis of accounting unless management either intends to liquidate the
Company or to cease operations, or has no realistic alternative but to do so.

Those Board of Directors are also responsible for overseeing the Company's financial reporting
process.

Auditor's Responsibilities for the Audit of the Financial Statements

Our objectives are to obtain reasonable assurance about whether the financial statements as a
whole are free from material misstatement, whether due to fraud or error, and to issue an auditor’s
repart that includes our opinion. Reasonable assurance is a high level of assurance but is not a
guarantee that an audit conducted in accordance with SAs will always detect a material
misstatement when it exists. Misstatements can arise from fraud or error and are considered
material if, individually or in the aggregate, they couid reasonably be expected to influence the
economic decisions of users taken on the basis of these financial statements.

As part of an audit in accordance with SAs, we exercise professional judgment and maintain
professional skepticism throughout the audit. We also:

> ldentify and assess the risks of material misstatement of the financial statements, whether due
to fraud or error, design and perform audit procedures responsive to those risks, and obtain
audit evidence that is sufficient and appropriate to provide a basis for our opinion. The risk of
not detecting a material misstatement resulting from fraud is higher than for one resulting
from error, as fraud may involve collusion, forgery, intentional omissions, misrepresentations,
or the override of internal control.

» - Obtain an understanding of internal control relevant to the audit in order to design audit

Page 2 of 11 N
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Bajel Projects Limited
Auditor's Report for financial statements for the period ended March 31, 2023

procedures that are appropriate in the circumstances. Under section 143(3)(i) of the Act, we
are also responsible for expressing our apinion on whether the Company has adeqguate internal
financial controls with reference to financial statements in place and the operating
effectiveness of such canirols,

» Evaluate the appropriateness of accounting policies used and the reasonableness of accounting
estimates and related disclosures made by management. )

» Conclude on the appropriateness of management’s use of the going concern basis of
accounting and, based on the audit evidence obtained, whether a material uncertainty exists
related to events or conditions that may cast significant doubt on the Company’s ability to
continue as a going concern. If we conclude that a material uncertainty exists, we are required
to draw attention in our auditor’s report to the related disclosures in the financial statements
or, if such disclosures are inadeguate, to modify our opinion. Our conclusions are based on the
audit evidence obiained up to the date of our auditor’'s report. However, future events or
conditions may cause the Company to cease to continue as a going concern.

» Evaluate the overall presentation, structure and content of the financial statements, including
the disclosures, and whether the financial statements represent the underlying transactions
and events in a manner that achieves fair presentation.

We communicate with those charged with governance regarding, among other matters, the planned
scope and timing of the audit and significant audit findings, including any significant deficiencies in
internal control that we identify during our audit.

We also provide those charged with governance with a statement that we have complied with
refevant ethical requirements regarding independence, and to communicate with them all
relationships and other matters that may reasonably be thought to bear on our independence, and
where applicable, related safeguards.

Report on Other Legal and Regulatory Requirements

1. As required by the Companies (Auditor’'s Report) Order, 2020 (“the Order™), issued by the
Central Government of India in terms of sub-section (11) of section 143 of the Act, based on
our audit we give in the “Annexure 1" a statement on the matters specified in paragraphs 3
and 4 of the Order.

2. Asrequired by Section 143(3) of the Act, we report that:

(a) We have sought and obtained all the information and explanations which to the best of our
knowledge and belief were necessary for the purposes of our audit;

(1) In our opinion, proper books of account as required by law have been kept by the Company,
so far as it appears from our examination of those books except that the backup of the books
of account and other books and papers maintained in electronic mode has not been
maintained on servers physically located in india on daily basis;
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Bajel Projects Limited
Auditor’s Report for financial statements for the period ended March 31, 2023

(c) The Balance Sheet, the Statement of Profit and Loss including the Statement of Other
Comprehensive Income, the Cash Flow Statement and Statement of Changes in Equity dealt
with by this Report are in agreement with the books of account;

(d) In our opinion, the aforesaid financial statements comply with the Accounting Standards
specified under Section 133 of the Act, read with Companies (Indian Accounting Standards)
Ruies, 2015, as amended;

(e) On the basis of the written representations received from the directors as on March 31,
2023 taken on record by the Board of Directors, none of the directors is disqualified as on
March 31, 2023 from being appointed as a director in terms of Section 164 (2) of the Act:

{f) The gualification relating to the maintenance of accounts and other matters connected
therewith is as stated in the paragraph b above.

(g) With respect to the adequacy of the internal financial controls with reference to financial
statements and the operating effectiveness of such controls, refer to our separate Report
in "Annexure 2" to this report;

(h) The provisions of section 197 read with schedule V of the Act are not applicable to the
Company for the period ended March 31, 2023;

(i) With respect to the other matters to be included in the Auditor’s Report in accordance with
Rule 11 of the Companies (Audit and Auditors) Rules, 2014, as amended in our opinion and
to the best of our information and according to the explanations given to us:

i.  The Company does not have any pending litigations which would impact its financial
position;

fi.  The Company did not have any long-term contracts including derivative contracts for
which there were any material foreseeable josses;

iii. There were no amounts which were required to be transferred to the Investor
Education and Protection Fund by the Company

iv. @) The management has represented that, to the best of its knowledge and belief, no
funds have been advanced or loaned or invested (either from borrowed funds or share
premium or any other sources or kind of funds) by the Company to or in any other
person(s) or entity(ies), including foreign entities (“Intermediaries”), with the
understanding, whether recorded in writing or otherwise, that the Intermediary shall,
whether, directly or indirectly lend or invest in other persons or entities identified in
any manner whatsoever by or on behalf of the Company (“Ultimate Beneficiaries™) or
provide any guarantee, security or the like on behaif of the Ultimate Beneficiaries:

b) The management has represented that, to the best of its knowledge and belief, no
funds have been received by the Company from any person(s) or entity(ies), including

o 6\ Page 4 of 11
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Bajel Projects Limited
Auditor’s Report for financial statements for the period ended March 31, 2023

foreign entities (*Funding Parties™), with the understanding, whether recorded in
writing or otherwise, that the Company shali, whether, directly or indirectly, lend or
invest in other persons or entities identified in any manner whatsoever by or on behalf
of the Funding Party ("Ultimate Beneficiaries™) or provide any guarantee, security or
the like on behalf of the Ultimate Beneficiaries; and

¢) Based on such audit procedures performed that have been considered reasonable
and appropriate in the circumstances, nothing has come to our notice that has caused
us to believe that the representations under sub-clause (a) and (b) contain any material
misstatement.

No dividend has been declared or paid during the period by the Company.

As proviso to Rule 3(1) of the Companies (Accounts) Rules, 2014 is applicable for the
Company only w.e.f. April 1, 2023, reporting under this clause is not applicable

ForSRBC&COLLP
Chartered Accountants
ICAl Firm Registration Number: 324982E/E300003

P&MN:CE C’Lﬁ‘\w&{ //% %——?‘?\\

per Poonam Todarwal

Partner *’/«5
Membership Number: 136454 ACL S
UDIN: 23136454BGZFEI6291 y/A \

Place of Signature: Mumbai
Date: June 6, 2023

\
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"ANNEXURE 1" REFERRED TO IN PARAGRAPH 1 UNDER THE HEADING “REPORT ON OTHER
LEGAL AND REGULATORY REQUIREMENTS"” OF'OUR REPORT OF EVEN DATE

m The Company does not have any Property, Plant and Equipment and intangible assets,
accordingly the requirement to report on clause 3(i) (@), (b), (¢) and (d) of the Order are not
applicable to the Company;

(e There are no proceedings initiated or are pending against the Company for holding any
benami property under the Prohibition of Benami Property Transactions Act, 1988 and
rufes made thereunder.

(id (@  The Company does not have any inventory, accordingly, the requirement to report on clause
3(iX(a) of the Order is not applicable to the Company.

(iD by  The Company has not been sanctioned working capital limits in excess of Rs. five crores in
aggregate from banks or financial institutions during any point of time for the period on the
basis of security of current assets. Accordingly, the requirement to report on clause 33i(b)
of the Order is not applicable to the Company.

(iiiy (@) During the period the Company has not provided loans, advances in the nature of loans,
stood guarantee or provided security to companies, firms, Limited Liability Partnerships or
any other parties. Accordingly, the requirement to report on clause 3¢ii(a), €c), (d), (e) and
{f) of the Order is not applicable to the Company.

(iiiy (b)  During the period the Company has not made investments, provided guarantees, provided
security and granted loans and advances in the nature of loans to companies, firms, Limited
Liability Partnerships or any other parties. Accordingly, the requirement to report on clause
3(HiXb) of the Order is not applicable to the Company.

(iv) There are no loans, investments, guarantees, and security in respect of which provisions of
sections 185 and 186 of the Companies Act, 2013 are applicable and accordingly, the
requirement to report on clause 3(iv) of the Order is not applicable to the Company.

V) The Company has neither accepted any deposits from the public nor accepted any amounts
which are deemed to be depaosits within the meaning of sections 73 to 76 of the Companies
Act and the rules made thereunder, to the extent applicable. Accordingly, the requirement
to report on clause 3(v) of the Order is not applicable to the Company.

(vid Since the Company has not commenced commercial operation of its business, the
requirements relating to report on clause 3(vi) of the Order are not applicable to the
Company.

(viiX(@) The Company is generally regular in depositing with appropriate authorities undisputed
statutory dues including goods and services tax, income-tax, sales-tax, service tax, duty of
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Auditor’s Report for financial statements for the period ended March 31, 2023

customs, duty of excise, value added tax, cess and other statutory dues applicable to it.
According to the information and explanations given to us and based on audit procedures
performed by us, no undisputed amounts payable in respect of these statutory dues were
outstanding, at the period end, for a period of more than six months from the date they
became payable.

(vi) (b) There are no dues of goods and services tax, provident fund, employees’ state insurance,
income-tax, sales-tax, service tax, customs duty, excise duty, value added tax, cess, goods
and service tax and other statutory dues which have not been deposited on account of any
dispute.

(viii) The Company has not surrendered or disclosed any transaction, previously unrecorded in
the books of account, in the tax assessments under the Income Tax Act, 1961 as income
during the period. Accordingly, the requirement to report on clause 3(viii) of the Order is
not applicable to the Company.

(ix)(@ The Company did not have any outstanding loans or borrowings or interest thereon due to
any lender during the period. Accordingly, the requirement to report on clause ix(a) of the
Order is not applicable to the Company.

(ix) () The Company has not been declared wilful defaulter by any bank or financial institution or
government or any government authority.

(ix){c) The Company did not have any term loans ocutstanding during the period hence, the
reguirement to report on clause (ix)¢) of the Order is not applicable to the Company.

(ix) (d) The Company did not raise any funds during the period hence, the requirement to report on
clause (ix)(d) of the Order is not applicable to the Company,

(ix)(e) The Company does not have any subsidiary, associate or joint venture. Accordingty, the
requirement to report on clause 3(ix)e) of the Order is not applicable to the Company.

(ix)(f) The Company has not raised loans during the period on the pledge of securities heid in its
subsidiaries, joint ventures or associate companies. Hence, the requirement to report on
clause (ix)(F) of the Order is not applicable to the Company.

(x)(@ The Company has not raised any money during the period by way of initial public offer /
further public offer (including debt instruments) hence, the requirement to report on clause
3{x)a) of the Crder is not applicable to the Company.

(x)(by  The Company has not made any preferential allotment or private placement of shares /fully
or partially or optionally convertible debentures during the period under audit and hence,
the requirement to report on clause 3(x)(b) of the Order is not applicable to the Company.
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(xiy(@ No fraud by the Company or no material fraud on the Company has been noticed or reported
during the period.

(xi)¢h) During the period, no report under sub-section (12) of section 143 of the Companies Act,
2013 has been filed by secretarial auditor or by us in Form ADT - 4 as prescribed under Rule
13 of Companies (Audit and Auditors) Rules, 2014 with the Central Government.

(XD (C) As represented to us by the management, there are no whistle blower complaints received
by the Company during the period.

(xii){@) The Company is not a nidhi Company as per the provisions of the Companies Act, 2013.
Therefore, the requirement to report on clause 3(xii)@), (b) and (c) of the Order is not
applicable to the Company.

(xiii) Transactions with the related parties are in compliance with sections 188 of Companies Act,
2013 where applicable and the details have been disclosed in the notes to the financial
statements, as required by the applicable accounting standards. The provisions of section
177 are not applicable to the Company and accordingly the requirements to report under
clause 3(xiii) of the Order insofar as it relates to section 177 of the Act.is not applicable to
the Company.

(xiv) The Company does not have an internal audit system and is not required to have an internal
audit system under the provisions of Section 138 of the Companies Act, 2013. Therefore,
the requirement to report under clause 3(xiv)(a) and (b) of the Order is not applicable to the
Company.

xv) The Company has not entered into any non-cash transactions with its directors or persons
connected with its directors and hence requirement to report on clause 3(xv) of the Order
is not applicable to the Company.

(xvi}(@) The provisions of section 45-IA of the Reserve Bank of India Act, 1934 (2 of 1934) are not
applicable to the Company. Accordingly, the requirement to report on clause (xvi)@) of the
Order is not applicable to the Company.

{xvi) (b) The Company has not conducted any Non-Banking Financial or Housing Finance activities
without obtained a valid Certificate of Registration (CoR) from the Reserve Bank of India as
per the Reserve Bank of India Act, 1934.

(xvi}(c) The Company is not a Core lnvestment Company as defined in the regulations made by
Reserve Bank of India. Accordingly, the requirement to report on clause 3(xvi) of the Order
is not applicable to the Company

(xvi) (d) There is no Core Investment Company as a part of the Group, hence, the requirement to
report on clause 3(xvi) of the Crder is not applicable to the Company.
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{xvii) The Company has incurred cash losses in the current period amounting to Rs. 30.11 Lakhs
Since the Company was incorporated on January 19, 2022, hence the reporting in the
immediately preceding financial year is not applicable.

(xvii)  There has been no resignation of the statutory auditors during the period and accordingly
requirement to report on Clause 3(xviii) of the Order is not applicable to the Company.

(xix) On the basis of the financial ratios disclosed in Note 21 to the financial statements, ageing
and expected dates of realization of financial assets and payment of financial liabilities,
other information accompanying the financial statements, our knowledge of the Board of
Directors and management plans and based on our examination of the evidence supporting
the assumptions, nothing has come to our attention, which causes us to believe that any
material uncertainty exists as on the date of the audit report that Company is not capable
of meeting its liabilities existing at the date of balance sheet as and when they fall due within
a period of one vear from the balance sheet date. We, however, state that this is not an
assurance as to the future viability of the Company. We further state that our reporting is
based on the facts up to the date of the audit report and we neither give any guarantee nor
any assurance that all liabilities falling due within a period of one year from the balance
sheet date, will get discharged by the Company as and when they fall due.

{(xx)(a) The provisions of Section 135 to the Companies Act, 2013 in relation to Corporate Social
Responsibility spend is not applicable to the Company as disclosed in Note 20 of the financial
statements. Accordingly, the requirement to report on clause 3(xx)a) and (b) of the Order
is not applicable to the Company

For SRBC&COLLP
Chartered Accountants
ICAI Firm Registration Number: 324982E/E300003

Do Costarsal

BAACASS Az ‘6
z / ““‘ ‘\ﬁo
per Poonam Todarwal " ’\ WM

Partner \ /

Membership Number: 136454 \\\.__5/ {\

UDIN: 23136454BGZFEI6291 N
Place of Signature: Mumbai S
Date: June 6, 2023
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“ANNEXURE 2" TO THE INDEPENDENT AUDITOR’'S REPORT OF EVEN DATE ON THE FINANCIAL
STATEMENTS OF Bajel Projects Limited LIMTED

Report on the Internal Financial Controls under Clause (i) of Sub-section 3 of Section 143 of the
Companies Act, 2013 (“the Act™)

We have audifed the internal financial controis with reference to financial statements of Bajel
Projects Limited (“the Company") as of March 31, 2023 in conjunction with our audit of the financial
statements of the Company for the period ended on that date.

Management’s Responsibility for Internal Financial Controls

The Company's Management is responsible for establishing and maintaining internal financiat
controls based on the internal control over financial reporting criteria established by the Company
considering the essential components of internal control stated in the Guidance Note on Audit of
Internal Financial Controls Over Financial Reporting issued by the Institute of Chartered
Accountants of India ("ICAI")]. These responsibilities include the design, implementation and
maintenance of adequate internal financial controls that were operating effectively for ensuring the
orderly and efficient conduct of its business, including adherence to the Company's policies, the
safeguarding of its assets, the prevention and detection of frauds and errors, the accuracy and
compieteness of the accounting records, and the timely preparation of reliable financial
information, as required under the Companies Act, 2013.

Auditor's Responsibility

Our responsibility is to express an opinion on the Company's internal financial controls with
reference to these financial statements based on our audit. We conducted our audit in accordance
with the Guidance Note on Audit of internal Financial Controls Over Financial Reporting (the
“Guidance Note™) and the Standards on Auditing, as specified under section 143(10) of the Act, to
the extent applicable to an audit of internal financial controls, both issued by ICAl. Those Standards
and the Guidance Note require that we comply with ethical requirements and plan and perform the
audit to obtain reasonable assurance about whether adeguate interna! financial controls with
reference to these financial statements was established and maintained and if such controls
operated effectively in all material respects.

Qur audit involves performing procedures to obtain audit evidence about the adequacy of the
internal financial controls with reference to these financial statements and their operating
effectiveness. Our audit of internal financial controls with reference to financial statements included
obtaining an understanding of internal financial controls with reference to these financial
statements, assessing the risk that a material weakness exists, and testing and evaluating the
design and operating effectiveness of internal control based on the assessed risk. The procedures
selected depend on the auditor's judgement, including the assessment of the risks of material
misstatement of the financial statements, whether due to fraud or error.

We believe that the audit evidence we have obtained is sufficient and appropriate to provide a basis
for our audit opinion on the Company's internal financial controls with reference te these financial
statements.
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Meaning of Internal Financial Controls With Reference to these Financial Statements

A company's internal financial controls with reference to financial statements is a process designed
to provide reasonable assurance regarding the reliability of financial reporting and the preparation
of financial statements for external purposes in accordance with generally accepted accounting
principles. A company's internal financial controls with reference to financial statements includes
those policies and procedures that {1) pertain to the maintenance of records that, in reasonable
detail, accurately and fairly reflect the transactions and dispositions of the assets of the company;
{2) provide reasonable assurance that transactions are recorded as necessary to permit preparation
of financial statements in accordance with generally accepted accounting principles, and that
receipts and expenditures of the company are being made only in accordance with authorisations
of management and directors of the company; and (3) provide reasonable assurance regarding
prevention or timely detection of unauthorised acguisition, use, or disposition of the company's
assets that could have a material effect on the financial statements.

Inherent Limitations of Internal Financial Controls With Reference to Financial Statements

Because of the inherent limitations of internal financial controls with reference to financial
statements, including the possibility of collusion or improper management override of controls,
material misstatements due to error or fraud may occur and not be detected. Also, projections of
any evaluation of the internal financial controls with reference to financial statements to future
periods are subject to the risk that the internal financial control with reference to financial
statements may become inadequate because of changes in conditions, or that the degree of
compliance with the policies or procedures may deteriorate.

Opinion

in our opinion, the Company has, in all material respects, adequate internal financial controls with
reference to financial statements and such internal financiai controls with reference to financial
statements were operating effectively as at March 31, 2023, based on the internal control over
financial reporting criteria established by the Company considering the essential components of
internal control stated in the Guidance Note issued by the ICAL

ForSRBC&COLLP
Chartered Accountants
ICAI Firm Registration Number: 324982E/E300003

P&-WP—CS:) Aaroa)

per Pocnam Todarwal
Pariner
Membership Number: 136454

UDIN: 23136454BGZFEI6291
Place of Signature: Mumbai
Date: June 6, 2023 ! /2)
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Bajel Projeﬂs_l:imited

Balance Sheet as at March 31, 2023 )
) . (Rs in Lakhs}
i = B — ' —= [ T As at !
Particulars Notes March 31, 2023 4
ASSETS ' i
Non-Current Assets
Financial Assets
Other financial assets 2 | b2
Total Nor-Current Assets | 0.2
Current Assets B |
Financial Assets | |
Cash and cash equivalents 3 40.03
Other financial assets 2
Cther current assets 4
Total Gurrent Assets - .
Z Total Assets - =
yEQUITY & LIABILITIES |
I Equity |
2 Equity share capitat 5 :
H Other Equity [
¢+ Total Equity
JLIABILITIES
Non<Current Liabilities S
Total Non-Current Liabliitles i -
Current Liabilities i - T —i
Financial Liabilities
i} Trade payables i
Total Outstanding dues of micra enterprises & small enterprises -
Tolal Outstanding dues of other than micro enterprises & smail enterprises 7 26.23
i} Other current liabilities 8 2.13
Total Current Liabilities FLET ;
Total Liabilities 28.38 ;
iTotal Equity & Liabilities { 4815 |
{Summary of significant accounting policies B 1
i’ll'fe accomyanying notes are an integral sart of the Financial Statements { _ 1
As per our report attached of sven date For and on bahalf of the Board of directors
of Bajel Projects Limited
ForSRBCACOLLP o
Firm Registration No, 324582E/E300003 = e
Chartered Accountants . ,/\ Shekhar Bajaj
. ffgi,'; & 5’0\4‘\; N . V?fg-\%\ 3 Diractor
P —‘(.o A % ,{\«{(3»;-‘, [ NGO DIN: 00089358
o o o i X 2 . ! L [
powam Lenpgiad " A o) §
ol MUMBAI) " S\ e AR /o
Pacnam Todarwal ) \rgi_f &\\0}‘3} Sanjdy Murarka
Partrier ‘\%, ‘6\'?\@"?; A g3 Director
Membership No. 136454 Y ALT / DIN: 02802918
Mumbai, Juns §, 2023 R Mumbal, June §, 2023 - it
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Statement of Profit and Loss account for the period January 19, 2022 to ‘Marcil_?jj , 2023

{Rsin Lakhs)

P -

Particulars

[Income:
Revenue from operations
Other income

Total Income

Expenses:

Other expenses
Totat Expenses
L oss before tax
Ilncome tax expense:

Current tax

Deferred tax
Total tax expenses
L.oss for the period

Other comprehensive income / (loss)
Qther comprehensive income, het of tax

Total Comprehensive loss net of tax

|Earnings per equity share {face value per share Rs. 2)
Basic and diluted

|

Summary of significant accounting policies

The accompanying notes are an integral part of the Financial Statements

As per our report attached of even date

ForSRBC&COLLP
|Flrm Registration No. 324982E/E306003
Chartered Accountants

Poonam Todarwal
Partner
Membership No. 136454
[Mumbal, June 6, 2023

“From January 19, 2022
till March 31, 2023

Notes

9A - -

N _m:..,;

0.497
O

10
{1.20)

w

*
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For and on behalf of the Board of directors
of Bajei Projects Limited

A

& B,
g
Shekhar Bajaj
Director
DIN: 00089358

<

Sanjay Murarka

Director

DiN: 02802918
__Mumbai, June §, 2023
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Statement of Changes in Equity for the period ended March 31, 2023

.

A, Equit, share capital [Note 51
Particulars

Equlty shares of INR 2 each issued, subscribed and fully paid

*Rs, In Lakhs||

issue of equily shars capital during the period ) 50,00 |
At the end of the period - . B X oo |
|B. Other equity {Note 6) - |
' Particulars oLt TOTAL |
= Earnings | il
|Balance as on 19 January 2022 | - | = |
|Loss for the period {30.11); {30.11)
| Other comprehensive income T ||
Total comprehensive loss for the period 3 {30.11)| {30.11)

Balance as at the end of the veriod - - {3011 301!

|Summary of significant accounting policies {Note 18)
The accompanying notes are an integral part of the Financlal Statements

As per our report attached of even date

ForSRBC&COLLP

Firm Reugistration No. 324982EIE300003
Chartered Accountants e,

| Poonam Todarwal W

P ot /73
Partner s i
Membership No, 136454 \{.-Z’ifb ACC ﬁ"/f

Mumbal, June 6. 2023

For and on behalf of the Board of directors
of Baiel Proiects Limited
h ]
f:-——“'"a e
Shekhar Baiaj
Director
DIN: 00089358

v

v

Saniyf Murarka

Dirs

DIN: 82802918
Mumbai, June §, 2023

o




Bajel Projects Limited

g6.15

Cash Flow Statement for the period ended March 31, 2023

. For the period January 19, 2022 to March
Particuiars 31, 2023
Cash flow from operating activities
Loss before income tax (30.11)
Adiustments to reconcile losg before tax to net cash flows: -
- {30.11)

Change in operating assets and Habilities:
(Increase)/decrease in financial and other assets (current & non-gurent) {8.22)
Increase/{decreass) in trade payables 28.36
Cash generated used in operations {9.97)
Income taxes paid (net of refunds) -
Net cash used in operating activities {9.97)
Net cash from investing activities -
Cash flows from financing activities |
Proceeds from issues of shares 50.00
{Net cash inflow from financing activities 50.00
iNet increase in cash and cash equivalents 40.03
Cash and cash equivalents as at January 19. 2022 -
Cash and cash equivalents as on March 31, 2023 40.03

Summary of significant accounting policies {Note 18)
The accompanying notes are an integral part of the Financial Statements

As per our report attached of even date

FOrSRBCACOLLP
Firm Registration No. 324982E/E300003
Chartered Accountants et
A [
. ¢ RN
i .""') \\""" i
%@mw CVR“ o |l< o)
\\m ::'r f
\ S

M

\\3@9@%

Poonam Todarwal
[Partner

Membership No. 136454
Muribal, June 6, 2023

For and on behalf of the Board of directors
of Bajel Projects Limited

C e,
et
Shekhar Bajaj
Director

DIN: 00089358

Satifay Murarka
Director

DIN: 02802918
Mumbai, June 6, 2023
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Bajel Projects Limited
Notes to Financial Statements for the period ended March 31, 2023

1A GENERAL INFORMATION.

Bajel Projects Limited (the Campany') is an existing unlisted public limited company incorporated on January 18, 2022 under the provisions
of the Companies Act, 2013, having its registered office at 801, Rustomjee Aspiree, Antk Wadala Link Road, Sion East. Mumbai.
Maharashira. India, 400022. The Company will engage in business of Engineering and projects (EPC) (which includes power transmission
and power distribution Projects). The Financial Statements are presented in Indian Rupee (INRj Lakhs.

The Financial Stalements are approved for issue by the Company's Board of Directors on June 8, 2023.
1B SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES
This note provides a list of the significant accounting policies adopted in the preparation of these Financial Statements.
1 Basis of preparation

The financlal statements of the Company have been prepared in accordance with Indian Accounting Standards (hereinafter referred to as
ind A8) as notified by Ministry of Corporate Affairs pursuant to Section 133 of the Companies Act. 2013 ('the Act’) read with the Companies
{indian Accounting Standards) Rules, 2015 and other relevant provisions of the Act.

All amounts disclosed in the Financial Stafements and notes have been rounded off to the nearest lakh {upto two decimaié} as per the
requirement of Schedule Hl, unless otherwise stated.

Company has been incorporated on 18th January, 2022 and hence pursuant to the provisions of Section 2(41) of the Companies Act, 2013
read with the Rule 40 of the Companies (incarporation) Rule 2014, first financial shall commence from the date of incorporation i.e. 19th
January, 2022 and end on 31st March, 2023, both days inclusive. Accordingly, these financial presents first year operations for the Com pany
and hence there are no Comparatives which are required to be disclosed in the financial statements.
The Financlal Statements are prepared under the hisiorical cost convention except for the following:

s certain financial assets and lebilities (including derivative instruments) that are measured at fair value;
«  assets held for sale which are measured at lower of carrying value and fair value less cost to sell;

»  defined benefit plans where plan assets are measured at fair value: and

«  share-based payments at fair value as on the grant date of options given to employees.

Estimates. judgements and assumptions used in the preparation of the Financial Statements and disclosures are based upon
management's evaluation of the refevant facts and circumstances as of the date of the Financial Statements. which may differ from the
actual results at a subsequent date,

The Company presents assats and liabilities in the balance shest based on current / non-current classification.

An asset is treated as current wher it is:
«  Expected to be realised or intended to be sold or consumed in normal operating cycle
»  Expected to be realised within twelve months after the reperting period, or
»  Cashorcash equivalent unless restricted from being exchanged or used fo setle a liability for at least twelve months afier the reporting
period

All other assets are classified as non-cumrent.

A liability is current whan;
*  His expected to be settled in normal operating cycle
= ltis due to ba seftied within twelve months after the reporting period, or
+  There is no uncenditional right to defer the settlement of the liability for at least twelve months after the reporting period

All other liabifities are classified as non-current,

The operating cycle is the time between the acquisition of assets for processing and their realisation in cash and cash equivalents. The
Company has identified twelve months as its operating cycle.

2 Income fax

The income tax expense or credit for the period is the tax payable on the current period’s taxabls income based on the applicable income
tax rate for the jurisdiction adjusted by changes in deferred tax assets and liabilities atfributable to temporary difterences, unused tax losses
and unabsorbed depreciation.

Current and deferred tax I3 recognized in the Statement of Profit and Loss except to the extent it refates to itemns recognized directly in
equity or other comprehensive income. in which case it is recognized in equity or other comprehensive income.
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Bajel Projects Limited

Notes to Financial Statements for the period ended March 31, 2023
A. Current income tax

The current income tax charge is calculated on the basis of the 1ax Jaws enacted or substantively enacted at the end of the reporting period.
The Gompany establishes provisions. wherever appropriate, on the basis of amounts expected to be pald to the tax authorities.

Current tax assets and liabilities are offset when there is a legally enforceable right to set off current tax assets against current tax liabilities.

8. Deferrad tax

Deferred tax is provided using the liability method. on temporary differences arising hetweer the tax bases of assets and fiabilities and their
carrying amounts In the Financial Statements. Deferred income tax is determined using tax rates (and laws} that have been enacted ar
substantially enacted by the end of the reporting period and are expected to apply when the related deferred income tax asset is realised
or the deferred income 1ax liability is settied,

The carrying amount of deferred tax assets is reviewed af each reporting date and adjusted to reflact changes in probability that sufficient
taxable profits will be available to allow all or part of the asset {0 be recovered.

Deferred tax assets are recagnised for all deductible temporary differences and unused tax losses only if it is probable that future taxable
amounts will be available to utilise those temporary differences and losses.

Deferred tax assats and liabilities are offset when there is a legally enforceable right to offset current tax assefs and liabilities and when the
deferred tax balances relate ta the same taxation authorily.

Deferred tax relating o iterns recognised outside profit or loss is recognised outside profit or loss (either in other comprehensive income or
in equity). Deferred tax items are recognised in correlation to the underlying transaction either in OCI1 or directly in equity.

3 Financial instruments:

A financial instrument is any confract that gives rise to a financial asset of one entity and a financial fiability or equity instrument of arncther
entity.

I. Financial Asseats
Aj Initial recognition and measurement

Alt financial assets are recognised initially at fair value plus, in the case of financial assets not recorded at fair value through profit or loss,
transaction costs that are attributable to the acquisition of the financial asset,

B) Subsequent measuremant

For purposes of subsequent measurement. financial assets are classifiad in four categorias:
« Debt instruments at amortised cost

A ‘debt instrument’ is measured at the amortised cost if both the following conditions are met;
*  The assetis held within a business model whose objective is fo hold assets for celfecting contractual cash flows, and
«  Contractual terms of the asset give rise on specified dates to cash flows that are solely payments of principal and interest
(SPP1} on the principal amount outstanding.

This category is the most relevant to the Company. After initial measurement, such financial assets are subsequently measured at
amortised cost using the effective interest rate (E!R} method. Amortised cost is calculated by taking info account any discount or
premium on acquisition and fees or costs that are an integral part of the EIR. The EIR amortisation is included in other income in
the statement of profit and loss. The losses arising from impairment are recognised in the profit or loss. This category generally
applies to trade and other receivables.

« Debt instruments at fair valus throush other comprehensive income SFVTIOCH

A 'debt instrument’ is classified as at the FVTOCI if both of the following criteria are met;
= The objective of the business model is achieved bath by collecting contractual cash flows and salling the financial assets,
and
*  The asset's contractual cash flows represent SPPL.

Debt instruments included within the FVTOC! category are measured initially as well as at each reporting date at fair value. Fair
value movements are recognized in the other comprehensive income (OCI;}. On derecognition of the asset, cumulative gain or loss
previously recognised in OCl is reclassified from the equity to statement of profit and loss. Interest eamed whilst holding FVTOCI
debt instrument is reported as interest income using the EIR method.
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Notes to Financial Statements for the period ended March 31, 2023

s Debt instruments at fair value throuh ; rofit or loss [FVTPL,

FVTPL is a residual category for debt instruments. Any debt instrument, which does not meet the criteria for categorization as at
amortized cost or as FVTOCL. is classified as at FVTPL.

In addition, the Company may elect to designate a debt instrument, which otherwise meets amortized cost or FYTOCH criteria. as
at FVTPL. However. such election is aflowed only if doing so reduces or eliminates a measurement or recognition inconsistency
{referred 1o as ‘accounting mismatch’). Debt instruments included within the FVTPL categoty are measured at fair value with aif
changes recognized in the statement of profit and loss.
¢ Equit instruments measured at fajr vatue through other com:rehensive income (FVTQCH:

All equity investments in scape of Ind AS 109 are measured at fair value. Equily instruments which are held for trading and
contingent consideration recognised by an acquirer in a business combination to which Ind AS103 applies are classified as at
FVTPL. For all other equity instruments, the Company m'ay make an imevocable election to present in other comprehensive income
subsaquent changes in the fair value. The Company makes such election on an instrument-by-instrument basis. The classificafion
is made on initial recognition and is imevocable.

If the Company decides to classify an equity instrument as at EVTOC!, then all fair value changes on the instrument. excluding
dividends. are recognized in the OCI. There is no recycling of the amounts from OGCI to P&L, even on sale of investment. However,
the Company may transfer the cumulative gain or loss within equity.

Equity instruments included within the FVTPL category are measured at fair value with all changes racognized in the P&L.
C) Daracognition

A financial asset (or, where applicable. a part of a financial asset or part of a group of similar financial assets) is primarily derecognised (l.e.
removed from the Company’s balance sheet) when:

= The rights fo receive cash flows from the asset have expired. or

« The Company has transferred its rights ta receive cash flows from the asset or has agsumed an obligation fo pay the recelved cash
flows in full without material delay to a third party under a ‘pass-through' arrangement; and either {a) the Company has transferred
substantially all the risks and rewards of the asset, or (b) the Company has neither transferred nor retained substantiafly all the risks
and rewards of the asset, but has transferred control of the asset.

When the Company has transferred its righfs to receive cash flows from an asset or has entered into a pass through arrangement, it
evaluates if and to what extent it has retained the risks and rewards of ownership. When it has neither transferred nor retained substantially
all of the risks and rewards of the asset, nor transferred control of the asset, the Company continues fo recognise the transferred asset o
the extent of the Company's continuing involvement. In that case. the Company also recognises an associated liability. The transferred
asset and the associated liability are measured on a basis that reflects the rights and obligations that the Company has retained.

Centinuing involvement that takes the form of a guarantee over the transferred asset is measured at the lower of the original carrying
amount of the asset and the maximum arnount of consideration that the Company could be required to repay.

D) impeairment of financial assets

The Company assesses on a forward looking basis the expected credit losses associated with its assets carred at amortised cost and
FVQOCI debt instruments. The impaiment methedology applied depands on whether there has been a significant increase in credit risk, For
trade receivables only, the Company applies the simplified approach permitted by Ind AS 109 Finarclal Instruments. which requires
expected lifetime losses to be recognised from initial recognition of the receivables.

Il Financial Liabilities
A} Initial recognition and measurement

Financial liabilities are classified, at intisl recognition, as financial liabilities at fair value through profit or loss, loans and borrowings.
payables, or es derivatives designated as hedging instruments in an effective hadge, as appropriate.

Al financial liabifities are recognised initially at fair value and, in the case of foans and borrewings and payables, net of directly attributable
transaction costs.

B} Subseguent measurement
The measurement of financial iabilities depends on their classification, as described below:
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*  Financial liabjlitieg at fair value throurh jirofit or loss

P AR SLL

Financial liabilities at fair value through profit or loss include financial lisbilities held for frading and financial liabilities designated
upon initial recognition as at falr value through profit or loss, Financial liabiliies are classified as held for trading if they are incurred
for the purpose of repurchasing in the near term. This category also includes derivative financial instruments enterad into by the
Company that are not designated as hedging instruments in hedge relationships as defined by Ind AS 108. Separated embedded
derivatives are also classified as held for trading unless they are designated as effective hedging instruments. Gains or losses on
liabilities held for trading are recognised in the profit or loss.

Financiat liabilities designated upon initial recognition at fair valus through profit or loss are designated as such at the initiai date of
recognition, and only if the criteria in Ind AS 109 are satisfied. For liabilities designated as FVTPL, fair value gains/ losses attributable
to changes in own credit risk are recognized in OCI. These gains/ foss are not subsequently transferred to P&L. However, the
Company may transfer the cumulative gain or loss within equity. All other changes in fair value of such liabifity are recognised in
the staterment of profit or loss.

s Loans and Borrowins
This is the category most relevant to the Company. After initial recognition, interest-bearing loans and borrowings are subsequently
measured at amortised cost using the EIR method. Gaing and losses are recagnised in profit or loss when the liabilities are

derecognised as well as through the EIR amortisation process.

Amortised cost is calculated by taking intg account any discount or premium on acquisition and fees or costs that are an integral
part of the EIR. The EIR amortisation is included as finance costs in the statement of profit and loss.

« Financial ‘uarantee contragts

Financial guarantee contracts issued by the Company are those contracts that require a payment to be made to reimburse the
holder for a loss it incurs because the specified debor fails to make a payment when due in accordance with the terms of a debt
instrument. Financial guarantee contracts are recognised initially as a llability at fair value, adjusted for transaction costs that are
directly attributable o the issuance of the guarantee. Subsequently, the liability is measured at the higher of the amount of loss
allowance determined as per impairment requirements of Ind AS 109 and the amount recognised less cumulative amortisation,
The fair value of financial guarantees is determined as the present value of the difference in net cash flows between the contraciual
payments under the debt instrument and the contractual payments that would be required without the guarantee. or the estimated
amount that would be payable to 2 third party for assuming the obligations.

C)  De-recognition

A financial kiabifity is derecognised when the obligation under the liability is discharged or cancellad or expires. When an existing financial
liability is replaced by another from the same lender on substantially different terms, or the terms of an existing liability are substantiaily
modified, such an exchange or modification is treated as the derecognition of the original liability and the recognition of a new liability. The
difference In the respective carrying amounts is recognised in the statement of profit or foss,

lil. Reclassification of financial assets / liabilities

After initial recognition, ne reclassification is made for financial assets which are equity instruments and financial liabilities. For financial
assets which are debt instruments, a reclassification is made only if there is a change in the business moda! for managing those assets.
Charges to the business model are expected to be infrequent. The Company's senior management determines change in the business
model as a result of external or internal changes which are significant to the Company's operations.

V. Offsetting of financial instruments

Financial assets and liabilities are offset and the net amount is reported in the balance sheet where there is a legally enforceable right to
offset the recognised amounts and there is an intention to seftle on a net basis or realise the asset and settle the fiability simultaneously.
The legally enforceable right must not be contingent on future events and must be enforceable in the normal course of business and in the
event of default, insolvency or bankruptcy of Company or the counterparty.

4 Fair value measurements:

The Company measures financial instruments at fair value at each balance sheet date. Fair value is the price that would be received to sell
an asset or paid fo transfer a Kability in an orderly transaction between market participants at the measurement date. The fair valug

measurement is based on the presumption that the transaction to sell the asset or transfer the liability takes place either:
= In the principal market for the asset or liability, or
* Inthe absence of a principal market, in the most advantageous market for the asset or fiability

|
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The principal or the most advantageous market must be accessitle by the Company. The fair v:aiue of an asset or a lisbility is measured
using the assumptions that market participants would use when pricing the asset or fiability. assuming that market participants act in their
economic best interest,

A fair value measurement of a non-financial asset takes into account a market pariicipant's abllity to generate econemic benefits by using
the asset in its highest and best use or by selling it to another market participant that would use the asset in its highest and best use.

The Company uses valuation techniques that are appropriate in the circumstances and for which sufficient data are available to measure
fair value, maximising the use of refevant observable inputs and minimising the use of unobservable Inputs. All assets and liabliities for
which fair value is measured or disclosed in the financial statements are categorised within the fair value hierarchy. deseribed as follows.
based on the lowest level input that is significant to the fair value measurement as a whole:

*  Level 1 — Quoted (unadjusted) market prices in active markets for identical assets or liabilities

+  Level 2 — Valuation techniques for which the lowest level inpuit that is significant to the fair value measurement is directly or

indirectly observable
* Level 3 —Valuation techniques for which the lowest level Input that is significant to the fair value measurement is unobservable

For assets and kabilities that are recognised in the financial statements on a recurring basis, the Company detemmines whether transfers -
have oceurred between levels in the hierarchy by re-assessing categorisation (based on the lowest level input that is significant to the fair
valte measurement as a whole) at the end of each reporting period. External valuers are invelved for valuation of significant assels, such
as properties and unquoted financial agsets,

For the purpose of fair value disclosures, the Company has determined classes of assels and liabilities on the basis of the nature,
characteristics and risks of the asset or liabifity and the (evel of the fair value hierarchy as explained above,

This note summarises accounting policy for fair value. Cther falr value related disclosures are given in the relevant notes.

5 Cash and cash equivalents:
Cash and cash equivalents in the balance sheet and for the purpose of the slatement of cash flows, include cash on hand. other short-derm,
highly liquid investments with original maturities of three months or less that are readily convertible to known amounts of cash and which
are subject to an insignificant risk of changes in value.

[ Provisions, contingent liabilities and contingent assets
A. Provisions
A provision is recognised if

+  the Company has present legal or canstructive obligation as a result of an event in the past:
*  ltis probable that an outflow of resources will be required to aettle the obligation; and
= the amount of the obligation has been reliably estimated.

Provisions are measured at the management’s best estimate of the expenditure required fo settle the obligation at the end of the reporting
period. If the effect of the time value of money is material, provisions are discounted to reflect its present value using a current pre-tax
discount rate that reflects the current market assessments of the time value of maoney and the risks specific to the obligation. When
discounting is used, the increase in the provision due fo the passage of tine is recognised as a finance cost.

Provision for warranty related costs are recognised when the product is sold to the customer. Inltial recognition i3 based on historical
experience. The estimate of warranty related costs is revised annually.

B. Contingent Habillties

Contingent liabilities are disclosed when there is a possible obligation arising from past events, the existence of which wilt be confimed
only by the accurrence or non-occurence of one or more uncertain future events not whelly within the contro! of the Company or a present
obligation that arises from past events where it is either not probable that an outflow of resources will be required to settfe the obligation or
a reliable estimate of the amount cannot be made.

C. Contingent agsets

A contingent asset is a possible asset that arises from past events and whose existence wilf be confirmed only by the occumrence or non-
occurrence of one or more uncertain future events not wholly within the control of the entity.

A contingent asset is not recognised but disclosed where an inflow of economic benefit is probable. \/{g
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7  Earnings per share

Basic eamings per share is calculated by dividing the net profit or loss for the period attributable to equity shareholders by the weighted
average number of equily shares outstanding during the period. Eamings considared in asceriaining the Company's eamings per share is
the net profit for the period. The weighted average number equity shares outstanding during the period and all periods presented is adjusted
for events. such as bonus shares. other than the conversion of potential equity shares. that have changed the number of equity shares
autstanding, without a corresponding change in resourcas. For the purpose of calculating diluted earnings per share, the net profit of loss
for the period attributable to equity shareholders and the weighted average number of share outstanding during the period is adjusted for
the effects of all dilutive potential equity sharas.

1C NEW AND AMENDED STANDARDS
STANDARDS ISSUED BUT NOT YET EFFECTIVE

The Ministry of Gorporate Affairs has notified Companies (indian Accounting Standards) Amendment Rules. 2023 dated 31 March 2023 o
amend the following Ind AS which are effective from 01 April, 2023,

{11 Definition of Accounting Estimates - Amendments to Ind AS 8

The amendments clarify the distinction between changes in accounting estimates and changes in accounting policies and the correction of
errors, It has also been clarified how entities use measurement techniques and inputs to develop accounting astimates. The amendments
are effective for annual reporting pericds beginning on or affer 1 April 2023 and apply 1o changes in accounting poficies and changes in
accounting estimates that occur on or after the start of that period.

The amendments are not expected to have a materiai impact on the financial statements,

i Disclosure of Accounting Policles - Amendments to Ind AS 1

The amendments aim to help entities provide accounting policy disclosures thal are more useful by replacing the requirement for entities to
disclose their ‘significant’ accounting policies with a requirement to disclose their material' accounting pelicies and adding guidance on how
entities apply the concept of materiafity in making decisions about accounting policy disclosures. The amendments to ind AS 1 are applicabie
for annual periods beginning on or after 1 April 2023. Consequential amendments have been made in Ind AS 107,

The Company is currently revisiting their accounting pelicy information disclosures to ensure consistency with the amended requirements.

{liit Deferred Tax rejated to Assots and Liabilities arising from a Single Transaction - Amendments to ind AS 12

The amendments narrow the scope of the initial recognition exception under Ind AS 12, so that it no longer applies to transactions that give
rise to equal taxable and deductible temporary differences.

The amendments should be applied to transactions that aceur on or after the beginning of the earliest comparative period presented. In
addition, at the beginning of the earliest comparative period presented, a defarred tax asset (provided that sufiicient taxable profit is
available) and a deferred tax liability shouid also be recogrised for alf deductible and taxabie temporary differences associated with leases
and decommissioning obligations. Consequential amendments have been made in ind AS 101. The amendments to Ind AS 12 are
applicable for annual periods beginning on or after 1 April 2023,

The amendments are not expected to have a material impact on the financial statements.

f% \Ijﬁlﬁéx&fé
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Note 2 : Other Non-Current/Current financial assets

Non-Current

Security deposit
Totat

Current
Advances other than capital advances®

Total
* Recoverable from CARE Ratings Limited

Note 3 : Cash and cash equivalents

Balances with banks
in current accounts
Total
There are no restriclions with regards to cash and cash equivalents as at the end of the reperting period

Note 4 : Other current assets

Balances with government autharities
Total

Note § : Equitv share capital

{Rs in Lakns]
As at March 34, 2023

.20
0,20

~ (Rs In Lakhs}
As at March 31, 2023

4003
40.03

{Rs inLakis)

As at March 31, 2023
452
452

Authorised
50.00,000 equity shares of Rs. 2/- each.

i Movement in Issued, Subscribed and Paid ur Bguity Share Caultal

{ssued subseribed and raid-us cavital
Issued during the periad (26,00,000 shares of Rs. 2/ each)
Closing as on March 31, 2023

Ui Tarms and rights attached to equit; shares

{Rs In Lakhs)
As at March 31, 2023

00,00

{Rs In Ldkhs}
As at March 31, 2023
50.00
50.00

The Company has only one class of equity shares having a par value of Rs. 2/~ per share. Each helder of equity shares is entitied to one vote per share. In the

event of liquidation of the Company, the holders of equily shares will be entitted to receive remaining assets of the Company,

amounts. The distribution will be in proportion to the number of equity shares held by the shareholders.

1! Issue of shares rursuant to schems of arranyement of demerner

after distribution of all preferential

Upon the scheme becoming effective, the company shalf issue one fully paid up equity share of Rs 2 sach for every one fully paid up equity share held in the

Demerged Company as at the record date (Refer Note 13)

iv? The Detalls of Shareholders hofdin: more than 5% Shares and Promoter shareholdin:

Name of the Shareholder

‘Bajaj Electricals Limitad and its nominees

Note & ; Other Equity

Rotained earnings
Loss for the period
Closing as on March 34, 2023

Nature and Pursase of reServVes

As at March 31, 2023
% Holding
100,00

{Rs In Lakns}
As at March 31, 2023

{30.11)

(36.11)

Retained eamings are the profits / loss that the Company has earned tili date, less any wransfers to general reserve, dividends or other distributions
paid to shareholders. Retained eamings includes re-measurement loss/{gain) on defined benefit plans, net of taxes that will not be reclassified o

Statement of Profit and Loss. Retained eamings is a free reserve available to the Company.




96-23

Bajel Projects Limited

Note 7 : Trade payables

[Rs in Lakns)
As at March 31, 2023
- Total outstanding dues of micro enterprises and small enterprieses .

- Total outstanding dues of creditors other than micro enterprises and small entarprises 26.23
Total . 26.23

* Information as required 10 be furnished as per Section 22 of the Micro, Small and Medium Enterprises Development Act, 2008 (MSMED Act, 2006} is given
below. This information has been determined to the extent such parties have been identified on the basis of information avaitable with the Company.

Principal amount and interest due theraon remaining unpaid to any supplier coverad under MSMED Act, 2006:

{Rs in Lakhs)
) As at March 31, 2023
:ﬁincipal | - |
Interest

The armount of interast paid by the buyer in terms of Section 18, of the MSMED Act, 2005 along with the antounts of the payment
made to the supplier beyand the appointed day during each accounting year.

The amount of interest due and payable for the period of defay in making payment (which have been paid but beyond tha appointed
day dwing the year) but without adding the interest specified under MSMED Act, 2006,

-]
|
—

ERP—

The amount gf interest accrued and remaining unpaid at the end of each accounting year. ) '
The amount of further interest remaining due and payable even in the succeeding years, until such date when the interest dues as -

above are actually paid to the small enterprise for the purpose of disalowancs as a deductible expenditure under section 23 of the
MSMED Act, 2008.

Trade Payables aging schedule for the perlod ended March 31, 2023

Particulars ;___ _ Outstanding for following periods from due date of payment

i ! Not Due Lesvset::'an 1 1-2Years | 2-3yvars _ “f;:;:" 3 B Totat -

T MSHE - | N N A . Mmtienn-e | | S—— -

{(i] Others N | asol 4757 418 - - _ 26.73

[{il) Disputed Duas - MSME T I . - | - = e ]

({iv) Disputed Dues — Others . I il } | _-~ - .

TOTAL - I 450 | TATET | 416 - - 7623 |

Note & : Other current liabilities

- T T " {Rs in Lakhs)
As at March 31, 2023

Statutory dues payable N 213

Total FXE)
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Note 8 : Other expenses
(Re in Lakhs}
From January 19, 2022
Uil March 31, 2023
Legal and professional fses 18,30
Payment to auditor
~ Audit fees 5.00
~ Certification feas 2.25
~Diher Services 3.00
Printing and stationery 0.02
Misceflaneous * 3.54
Total 30.11

* Inchudes prefiminary expensas of Rs. 2.88 lakhs

Note 9 A: Tax Expenses

On account of losses, the disclosuras requirad under para 84(c) of the IND AS 12 on "Income Tax", explaining the relationship between tax expenses and accounting
profit has not been given.

Deferred tax assels have not baen recognised in respect of the business losses as I is not probabla that sufficlent taxable profits will be avallable in future against
against which nel deffered tax assets can be utllised and there are no other tax planning opportunities or other evidence of recovarability in the near future.

Note 9B: Commitment and Contingent Liabilifies

As at year end, Company does not have Capltal commitmants and Contingent Liabilitiss,

Note 10: EPS B o B
{Rs in Lakhs)
Basic and Diluted As at March 31, 2023
Loss for the period (A) (Rs. In Lakhs) {3011}
Weighted average number of equity shares EPS (B ) 25,00,000
Basic and dilited EPS (A/B) -(1.20)
Note 11 : Related party disclosures o 5 —
Namas of related parties whara control exists irrespective of whether tr i have occurred ar not
Holding Company Bajaj Electrcals Limited
Key management persons Shekhar Bajaj
Sanjay Murarka
Samir Shrimankar
{Rs in Lakhs}
Particulars I - e As at March 31, 2023
Transaction during the Balance (payabls) as at
Holding Company period period end
Reimbursement of Expenses 414 444

Note 12 : Subseguent events ] LN L
The company has evaluated subsequent events from the balance sheet date il the 0ot of adoeption of accounts, and has determined thal here are ne matedal ftems to
be disclased, except as described in Mote 13.

Note 13 : Others S
“Fhe Board of Directors at fis mesting held on February 08, 2022 has approved schemme of arrangement of Bajaj Electriaals Limited ("Demerged Company®) and Bajel
Projects Limiled ("Resuliing company”) which provides for the arrangement to demerge the existing Power Transmission and Power Distribution Business {Damerged
business) in to the Resulling Company. The Demergad Company shall derecognise the carrying value of assets and Fabilities perlaining to the Demerged Undertaking,
lransferred to and vasted in the Resulting Company from the camying value of assets and liabilifies as appearing in its books, with effect from the date on which alt

substantive approvals are received .6, NCLT apgroval dale,
7280/ \
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Note 14 : Other statutory information o - o T
1) The Comparny does not have any Benami property. where any proceeding has been initiated or pending against the Company for holding any Benam! property.

i} The Company does not have any ‘ransactions with comparies struck off, Tha Company do not have any charges or satisfaction which is yet to be registerad with
ROC beyond the statutory period,

il The Cempany does not have any charges or satisfaction which is yat to bs registered with ROC beyond statutory pered,

iv} The Company has not traded of invested in Crypto currency or Virtual Currency during the perisd.

V)The Campany has not advanced or loaned or invested funds lo any other persan(s) ar entity(ies). including foreign entities {intermediaries) with the understanding that
the Intermadiary shalt:

- directly or indirectly lend or invest in other persons or entities identified in any marner whatseever by of ot behalf of the company (Ultimats Beneficiaries) or

- provide any guarantee, securily or the ke to or on behalf of the Uttimate Beneficiaries

vi} The Company has not received any fund from any personis or entity(ies), including foreign entities (Funding Party} with the understanding (whether recorded in
writing or otherwise) that the Company shall

- directly or indirectly fend or invast in other persons or entities identified in any manrier whatsoever by or an behalf of the Funding Parly [Ultimate Beneficiaries; or

- provide any guarantee. security or the fike on behalf of the Ulimate Beneficiaries,

vii) The Company has nol any such transaction which s not racarded in the boaks of accounts that has been surrendered or disclosed as income during the year in the
tax assessments urider the Income Tax Aot 1967 (such as. search or survey or any other relevant provisions of the Income Tax Act, 1861,

Vi) The Company has not taken 2ny borrowing from the banks/financial institutions and therefors requirement of filing quarterly returrs with tha
bankffinancial institutions is not applicable to the Company.

9é
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Note 15 : Fair value measuremonts

{i} Financial instruments by category
jpa carrying smounts of financial instruments by class are as follows .

Partlculars As at March 31, 2023

A. Financial assets

L. Measured at amortized cast

Other Financial Assets 370
Cash and Cash Equivalens ) 40.03
Total financial assets measured at amortised cost LA
Total financial assets 43.73
B. Finangiat Fabilities

1. Measured st amortized cost

Trads Payables 26.23
Total fi tal fiabilitles ed at i cost R~ 26,23
Tatal financial liabilities el 2625

{it} Fair Valve hierarchy

The following tabie provides the fair value measurement hierarchy of the Company’s assels and labifties;

Quoted Price in  Signfiant abservable Signfiant unobservable

Quantitative discl of fair vafue rement hierarchy for assets & Habilites

active market  inputs inputs
Level 1 Level 2 Tavel 3

A at March 31, 2021
Firancial Assets .
COther Fingncial Assets - 170 -
Cash and Cash Equivalenis 40,03 -
Financial Liabititles
Trade Payables : - 26.23 -

Company uses the following hierarchy for determining and disciosing the fair value of financlal instranents by vaiuation techniques
Level 1« Quoted (unadjusted; market prices in active markets for identical essets and labilities

Levet 2- Valuation lechoigues for which the lowsst faval of input that 1s significant to the falr value mesturement js direotly or indirecily
ohsarvable.
Level 3- Valuation technigues for which the lowest level of input that is significart to the fai value measwement is unobservatie,

Note 18 : Financial Risk Management

The Company’s principal inanciai liakitics comprises of trads payables.
The Company's principal financial nssets inchude other financial assats and cash and cash eguivalents that is derived directly from
the equily infusion. The Company is yet to start commercial cperatons. {Ra'or note 13)

The Company's risk managemeny Is carried out by the management wnder the

policies approved of the Board of Directors that help in identiication, measiwrement iligation and reporing alf risk associgted with 1he astivities of the
Campary. Tha Board of Directors reviews and agress

policies for maraging each of these risks, which are summaried below:

1) Market Risk
Marikat risk is the risik that the feir value of future cash Hlows of 2 financial instrument will Buctuate becauss of chanages in marke! prices, Market risk comprises
tiren ypes of risk: interest fsk, currency risk and equily pricer risk,

l. Foreign Currency Risk

Fereign currency risk is the risk that the fair value or futtre sash Hlows of an exposure wil fuctuate because of changes in foreign exchangs rates. The
Company's expostire to the risk of changes in foreign sxchange rates relates primarily to eperating activities (when revenus or Bxpanss is denominaled in 2
foreing currency)

Company does not have any forelgn currency axposure,

ii. Interest Rate Risk
Interest rate risk is the risk that the fair valua or fiture cash flows of a Bnansial instrument will fuctuate because of changes in markat interest rates. As the
Campany does not have any fioating infersst rats borrowing or deposits, i is nut exposad to intersst rate dah.

i#, Equity Price Risk
The Cempany is not suposed to price dsk which arises from swestment measurad at fair vaiue thiough profit & loss a3 the company holds no such investments.
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Notes forming part of Financial Statements as at March 31, 2023
Note 18 : Financial Risk Management {continued....}

2) Credit Risk
Credit risk is the risk that counter party will not meet its obligations under a financial instruments or customer confracts leading to a financial loss.

i) Trade receivables

The Company's sxposixe to credit risk Is influenced by the individual characterisiic of each customer, Credit fisk fs managed #vough credit approvals,
estabiishing creciit limits and cantinuousty monitoring the creditwarthinass of customers to which the Company granis credit terms in the normial courase of
busienss.

Since. the Company is yet to commenca it's business, The Company does not have credit risk exposurs due to trade receivabla,

i) Other financlal assets and deposit

Credit risk from balancas with thi banks are managed by the Company's Treasury Team in accordance lo Campany's policy. Counterparty cradit limits are
reviewed by Board of Dirsctars on an annuat basis. The limits ars set to minimise the concentration of risks and therefore mitigate financial foss through
counterparty’s potertial fallure 1o make payments, The Company places ifs cash ang cash squivalents with banks with high investment grade ratings. firits the
amatint of credit exposurs with any ond bank and conducts ongaing svaluation of the credit worthiness of the banks with which it does business. Given the
high eredit ratings of these banks, the Campany does not expect these banks to fall in meeting their obligations.

3) Liquidiy Risk
Liguidity risk refers to the risk the Company can not meet its Hinancial obligations. The abjective of kquidity risk management i3 to maintain sufficient
liquidity and ensure tha! funds are available for use as pe- requirements, The Company manages fiqudity risk by maintaining adequate reserves. banking faciliies
and reserve bormowing facilities. by continously monitoring foracast and actuzl cash flows, and by matching the maturity profilas of finencizd assets and
liabilites.
The table belaw summarises the maturity profite of he Company's finanacial iabilties based on contractual undiscounted paymenis

Less than 1 year 1-3years More than 3 years Total

As at March 31, 2023
Trade Payables 28.23 - - 2623

2625 . . 2%

Note 17 : Capital Management

L. Obj of Company's capital g

The Board policy is to maintain a sitrong capital bese sa as to mainain investor, creditor and market confidence and to suslain future development of the business.
The Board of diractors monitors the return on capital employed. The Company manages capial risk by malintaining sound / optimal capital stucture through
monitering of financial ratios on a monthly basis and implemeants capital structure improvement plan when necassary, The Company uses debt ratio as a capital
management index and caleulates the ratio as Met debit divided by total equity. Met dabt and total equily are based on the amounts stated in the financial statements.

Deebts ratio is not compited as there is no debt on the Company as on the balance sheet data,
No charges were made in the oljectives, policies or pracesses of managing capital during pericd ended March, 2023,
The Company does not havs any borowings.

Note 18 :

Company has been incorporated on 19th January. 2022 and hence pursuant to the provisions of Section 2(41}) of the Companies Act, 2013 read with tha Rule 40 of
the Companiies (Incorporation) Rule 2014, first financial shall sommence from the date of incorparation ie 19th Janusry. 2022 and end on 31st March, 2023. both days inclusive,
Accordingly. these financial presents first year operations for the Cormpany and hence there ere na Comparative which are required to be disclosed in the financial statements.

Note 19 : Segment Reporting

The Company will ba primarily engaged in the business of power ransmission and power distribution. which in terms of ing AS 108 Is a ‘Operating Segments’, constitutes a single
reporting sement which Is also reviewed by the Chief Operating Decision Maker {CODM).

Note 20 : Corporate Social Responsibility

The requirements of Secticn 135 and Schedule Vil of the Compenies Act. 2013 as well as the provigions of the Campanies (Corporats Sacial Resporsivility Policy)
Rules, 2014 ara not applicable to the Company as the Company do rot meet applicability criteria mentloned in section 135 (1) of the Companies Act, 2013,
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Bajel Projects Limited
B P — S - - -
Notes forming part of Financial Statements as at March 31, 2023
Note 21 : Ratios
' - u e — - s ey
Ratio merator Danominator } Mar23 Remarks
3 Pr— - il -
FCurrent sutio Total current assats Total cureent biabities : 17
ﬁgbt equlty ratle T el ings Gciuding currant iti2$ of lorg ¢Tatel 2quy ] NA
term barawngst -
Debt servics covarage ratlo {thiat Proft / Loss; tof the perod + Excoptcnal itanis tPinance Sasts - INeros on fease latiiy + Long taum
Finanee Cosls + Dep and ati 2 g princpal during NA ;
Mpanse - L3ase Instaments: the perad f
[Return on eqaity ratic Praft 7 (loss, for ha year Total #quny As1.3% |
lnventory tumaver ratlo 1Cast af 1awr materials sonsumed + Purchases of Yotal inventory 1 o |
radzd goods + Changes m ivantories of yrrken- 5 oA Tha Sownweny hes been incarporated on
progress, finishiad goods, iraded goods + Srectian & ? Janualy 19 2622 and hente no
» ) }“""""’""“"i’“g e ok - . _jnomnparitves v asafable as on ine
Trade recelvables tumover ratio {vaenue rom aparatans Total tzaivabies NA reporing date.
i . i e T A R st s s *
Trade payublen turnover ratls  'Revenug from operanions Total payaties 1A
Nt capital turmaver ratic ) *gr-‘.;venue from sperstions et capital (zilrrent essets ~ urent Habimes; NA
Net profit ratio (Prattiiloss, far tha yesr Re ranue hem operations " Ha
{Return on npna?e—;nployed N fFlr ance cost (Ezcebuqnm Rems + Proft bature tas Capitel smploved T 161.3%
{Returs on ivestment HA }!HA o - . NA
|
Az par our report attached of even dats For and on behalf of the Board of direciers
%
ForSRBCACOLLP 5 A N —
Flros Regi No, P - “‘“*"\\-.‘._
Chattered Accauntants &hekhar Baja] r . ~ \
Diractor / 4‘ u:") \
u-({r DN 0(40"355 O 1
Bonsodm { g% ,'5 N o
B b
A5 \ ﬁ;‘\_ .;:\, /
\ .
Poeham Todarwal Saljay Murarkx B \J.Ifj g e 4
Partner Oiractor S—
Membarship No. 136454 GiN: 02803913

Mumbal, dune &, 2023 z Mumbai, June 6, 2023
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12th Floor, The Ruby
29 Senapati Bapat Marg

Chartered Accountants Dadar (West)
Mumbai - 400 028, India

Tel :+91 226819 8000

INDEPENDENT AUDITOR’S REPORT
To the Board of Directors of Bajel Projects Limited

Opinion

We have audited the accompanying Interim Ind AS financial statements of Bajel Projects Limited (“The
Company") which comprise the Interim Balance Sheet as at June 30, 2023 and the Interim Statement of
Profit and Loss, including the Interim Statement of other comprehensive income, Interim Statement of Cash
Flows and the Interim Statement of Changes in Equity for the three-month period then ended, and notes to
the Interim financial statements, including a summary of significant accounting policies and other
explanatory information.

In our opinion and to the best of ourinformation and according to the explanations given to us, the aforesaid
Interim Ind AS financial statements give a true and fair view in conformity with the accounting principles
generally accepted in India including the Indian Accounting Standards (Ind AS), specified under Section 133
of Companies Act, 2013 (the ‘Act’) read with the Companies (Indian Accounting Standards) Rules, 2015, as
amended:

(a) inthe case of the Interim Balance Sheet, of the state of affairs of the Company as at June 30, 2023;

(b) inthe case of the Interim Statement of Profit and Loss including other comprehensive income of the Loss
for the three-month period ended on that date;

(c) in the case of the Interim Cash Flow Statement of the cash flows for the three-month period ended on
that date; and

(d) inthe case of the Interim Statement of Changes in Equity, of the changes in equity for the three-month
period ended on that date.

Basis for Opinion

We conducted our audit of the Interim Ind AS financial statements in accordance with the Standards on
Auditing (SAs), as specified under Section 143(10) of the Act. Our responsibilities under those Standards are
further described in the Auditor's Responsibilities for the Audit of the Interim Financial Statements section
of our report. We are independent of the Company in accordance with the Code of Ethics issued by the
Institute of Chartered Accountants of India together with the ethical requirements that are relevant to our
audit of the financial statements under the provisions of the Companies Act, 2013 and the Rules thereunder,
and we have fulfilled our other ethical responsibilities in accordance with these requirements and the Code
of Ethics. We believe that the audit evidence we have obtained is sufficient and appropriate to provide a basis
for our opinion on the Interim Ind AS financial statements.

Management’s Responsibility for the Interim Financial Statements

The Company's Board of Directors is responsible for the preparation and presentation of these interim
financial statements that give a true and fair view of the financial position, financial performance including
other comprehensive income, cash flows and changes in equity of the Company in accordance with the
accounting principles generally accepted in India, including the Indian Accounting Standards (Ind AS)
specified under Section 133 of the Act, read with the Companies (Indian Accounting Standards) Rules, 2015,
as amended. This responsibility also includes maintenance of adequate accounting records in accordance
with the provisions of the Act for safeqguarding of the assets of the Company and for preventing and detecting
frauds and other irreqularities; the selection and application of appropriate accounting policies; making
judgments and estimates that are reasonable and prudent; and the design, implementation and maintenance
of adequate internal financial control, that were operating effectively for ensuring the accuracy and
completeness of the accounting records, relevant to the preparation and presentation of the Interim Ind AS
financial statements that give a true and fair view and are free from material misstatement, whether due to

fraud or error.

SR B C&COLLP. alimited Liability Partnership with LLP Identity No. AAB-4316
Regyd. Office 22, Camac Street. Block ‘B’. 3rd Floor, Kolkata-700 016
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In preparing the Interim financial statements, the management is responsible for assessing the ability of the
Company to continue as a going concern, disclosing, as applicable, matters related to going concern and
using the going concern basis of accounting unless Management either intends to liquidate the Company or
to cease operations or has no realistic alternative but to do so.

The Board of Directors are also responsible for overseeing the Company’s Interim financial reporting process.

Auditor's Responsibilities for the Audit of the Interim Financial Statements

Our objectives are to obtain reasonable assurance about whether the Interim financial statements as a whole
are free from material misstatement, whether due to fraud or error and to issue an auditor’s report that
includes our opinion. Reasonable assurance is a high level of assurance but is not a guarantee that an audit
conducted in accordance with SAs will always detect a material misstatement when it exists. Misstatements
can arise from fraud or error and are considered material if, individually or in the aggregate, they could
reasonably be expected to influence the economic decisions of users taken on the basis of these Interim Ind
AS financial statements.

As part of an audit in accordance with SAs we exercise professional judgment and maintain professional
skepticism throughout the audit. We also:

» Identify and assess the risks of material misstatement of the Interim financial statements, whether due
to fraud or error, design and perform audit procedures responsive to those risks and obtain audit
evidence that is sufficient and appropriate to provide a basis for our opinion. The risk of not detecting a
material misstatement resulting from fraud is higher than for one resulting from error, as fraud may
involve collusion, forgery, intentional omissions, misrepresentations, or the override of internal control.

» Obtain an understanding of internal control relevant to the audit in order to design audit procedures
tnat are appropriate in the circumstances, but not for the purpose of expressing an opinion on the
effectiveness of the Company’s internal control.

» Evaluate the appropriateness of accounting policies used and the reasonableness of accounting
estimates and related disclosures made by Management.

» Conclude on the appropriateness of Management’s use of the qoin’g concern basis of accounting and
based on the audit evidence obtained, whether a material uncertainty exists related to events or
conditions that may cast significant doubt on the Company's ability to continue as a going concern. If
we conclude that a material uncertainty exists, we are required to draw attention in our auditor’s report
to the related disclosures in the financial statements or, if such disclosures are inadequate, to modify
our opinion. Our conclusions are based on the audit evidence obtained up to the date of our auditor’s
report. However, future events or conditions may cause the Company to cease to continue as a going
concern.

» Evaluate the overall presentation, structure and content of the Interim financial statements, including
the disclosures and whether the Interim financial statements represent the underlying transactions and
events in a manner that achieves fair presentation.

We communicate with those charged with governance regarding, among other matters, the planned scope
and timing of the audit and significant audit findings, including any significant deficiencies in internal control
that we identify during our audit.

We also provide those charged with governance with a statement that we have complied withrelevant ethical
requirementsregarding independence and to communicate with them all relationships and other matters that
may reasonably be thought to bear on our independence and where applicable, related safeguards.

pem—
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Other Matter

The Interim financial statements of the Company for the three months ended June 30, 2022, included in
these Interim IND AS financial statements, are based on the management certified numbers and have not
been audited or reviewed by us. Our opinion is not modified in respect of this matter.

Restriction of Use

The accompanying interim Ind AS financial statements have been prepared and this report thereon issued
solely for the management for its inclusion in the information memorandum to comply with the requirements
of Master Circular No. SEBI/HO/CFD/DIL1/CIR/P/2021/0000000665 dated November 23, 2021 issued by
Securities Exchange Board of India (“SEBI") and for availing banking facilities. Accordingly, this report should
not be used, referred to or distributed for any other purpose. We have no responsibility to update this report
for events and circumstances occurring after the date of this report.

ForSRBC&COLLPLLP
Chartered Accountants
ICAl Firm Registration Numbers

gt

per Vikram Mehta

Partner

Membership Number: 105938
UDIN: 23105938BGXGLES512
Place: Mumbai

Date: November 07, 2023




96-32

Bajel Projects Limited

Interim Balance Sheet as at June 30, 2023 (Rs. in Lakhs)
As at As at
Particulars Notes 30-Jun-23 31-Mar-23
{Restated)
ASSETS
Non-Current Assets
Property, plant and equipment 2 4,348.92 4,411.50
Capital work in progress 3 75.82 80.77
Right-of-use assels 4 702,72 351.67
Financial Assets
i) Trade receivables 5 4.368.05 6,461.67
li) Other financiat assels 6 174,68 156.12
Deferred tax assets (net) U/ 1,118.27 1,104.84
Income tax assets (nel) 484.67 395.32
Other non-current assets 8 1.707.29 1.589.76
Total Non-Current Assets 12,980.42 14,551.65
Current Assets
Inventories 9 9,118.30 9,652.02
Financial Assets
i) Trade receivables 5 35,463.40 36.932.06
ii) Cash and cash equivalents 10 66.86 65.25
lii) Other current financial assets 1 22,011.12 25,851.85
Other current assets 12 2,732.85 3,001.55
Contract assets 37 9.352.20 4,263.52
Total Current Assets 78,744.73 79,766.25
Total Assets 91,725.15 94,317.90
EQUITY & LIABILITIES
EQUITY
Equity share capital (including share capital suspense account) 13 2,297.48 2,297.48
Other Equity 14 54.123.82 54.243.86
Total Equity 56,421.30 56,541.34
LIABILITIES

Non-Current Liablilties
Financial Liabilities

i) Lease liabilittes 4 316.25 17.62
Employee benefil obligations 17 1.211.47 1,239.30
Total Non-Current Liabilities 1,527.72 1,256.92

Current Liabllitles
Financial Liabllities

i) Lease liabillties 4 108.21 54.50
il) Trade payables

Total Outstanding dues of micro enterprises & small enterprises 15 1,543.94 1.716.22
Total Outstanding dues of other than micro enterprises & small enterprises 15 20,886.46 21,666.47
iy Other current financial liabilities 16 1,986.41 3,012.04
Employee benefit obligations 17 84.65 88.26
Current tax liabilities (net) 323.63 323.62
Contract liabilities 37 8,842.09 9.656.40
Other current liabilities 18 0.74 2.13
Total Current Liabllitles 33,776.13 36,519.64
Total Liabilltles 35,303.85 37,776.56
Total Equity & Llabillties 91,725.15 94,317.90

Summary of significantaccounting policies 1B

The accompanying notes are an Integral part of the Interim Financiai Statements

As per our report attached of even date
ForSRBC&COLLP For and on behalf of the Board of directors

|ICAL Firm Registration No. 324982E/E300003 of Bajel Projects Limited

Chartered Accountants EL k\ €
//QP'! % l&—o—
| g Cn

Shekhar Bajaj
m Chairman- Non Executive
DIN: 00089358

4
-_/

t
?, 1
Rajesh G\nefh -

per Vikram Mehta Ajay Nagle Binda Misra
Partner Executive Director & Company Secretary Chief Financial Officer Chairman - Audit Committee
Membership No.105938 DIN; 00773616 DIN: 01990326

{Mumbai, November 07, 2023
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Bajel Projects Limited

Interim Statement of Profit and Loss for the three months period ended June 30, 2023

(Rs. in Lakhs)

|Mumbai. November 07, 2023

For the three months period|  For the three months
ended period ended
Particulars Notes June 30, 2023 June 30, 2022
(Unaudited) ¥
Income:
Revenue from operations 19 20.501.14 9.992.82
Other income 20 411.55 15.32
Total Income 20,912.69 10,008.14
Expenses:
Cost of raw materials consumed 21 2,492,22 890.48
Purchases of traded goods 12,678.46 1,141,94
Changes in inventories of work-In-progress, finished goods, traded goods 22 (141.12) 1,862,67
Ereclion & subcontracting expenses 23 1,397.85 1.161.98
Employee benefits expenses 24 1,871.47 2113.85
Depreciation and amortisation expense 25 124.07 120.26
Other expenses 26 2,558.77 2683.97
Finance cosis v 283.77 B2.75
Total Expenses 21,113.49 10,018.00
Loss before tax (200.80) (9.86)
Tax expense / (credit):
Current tax 28 - 212.76
Deferred tax 7 {30.38) (233.07)
Total tax expenses (30.38) (20.31)
{Loss) / Profit for the period (170.42) 10.45
Other comprehensive {income) / loss
Items that will not be reclassified to profit and loss in subsequent periods
Remeasurement (gains)flosses on defined benefit plans (67.33) 28.28
Tax impacts on above 16.95 {7.12)
Other comprehensive (income) / loss net of tax (50.38) 21,16
Total Comprehensive Income / (loss) net of tax (120.04) (10.71)
Earnings per equity share (face value per share Rs. 2)
Basic 35 (0.15) 0.01
Diluted 35 (0.15) 0.01
Summary of significant accounting policies 1B
The accompanying notes are an Integral part of the Interim Financial Statements
® Ps AcesTpTCeD
/As per our report attached of even date
ForSRBC&COLLP For and on behalf of the Board of directors
ICAl Firm Registralion No. 324982E/E300003 of Bajel Projects Limited
Chartered Accountants 7%
A
Shekhar Bajaj
Chairman- Nan Executive
DIN: co082358
W Managing Directar
i %7}\,\\‘ DIN: 07008856
I - W -
per Vikram Mehta Ajay Nagle Binda Misra Maneck Davar
Partner Executive Direclor & Company Secretary Chief Financial Officer Chairman - Audit Committee
Membership No.105938 DIN: 00773616 DIN: 01980326

e
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| Bajel Projects Limited

Interim Statement of changes In equity for the three months ended 301h June 2023

(Rs. in Lakhs)

A. Equity share capital (Note 13)

Partlculars As at 30-Jun-2023 As at 21st March 2023
At the beginning of the perlod* 2,297.48 50,00
|Shares to be issued pursuant to Business Combination (Refar Note 40) - 2,297 48
Shares to be cancelled pursuant to Business Combination (Refer Note 40) - (50.00)
At the end of the period 2,297.48 2,297.48
*Beginning of the period for the period ended March 31, 2023 |s January 19, 2022
B. Other squity (Note 14) Reserves and surplus (Rs. In Lakhs)
Capltal Reserve
Particulars Retalned earnings (Refer Nota 40) Total
Balance as at March 31, 2023 * (126.10) 54,369.96 54,243,886
(Loss) for the penod ended June 30, 2023 (170.42) - (170.42)
Other comprehensive income / (loss) 50.38 = 5038
Total comprohensive income (246,14 54,369.96 54,123.82
Balance as at June 30, 2023 .- 14 54,369.96 54.123.82
B. Other equity {Note 14) Reserves and surplus (Rs.n lakhs)
s Capital Reserve
Particulars Retained Earnings (Refer Note 40) Total
Balance as at the date of Incorporation {January 18, 2022) - - ¥
Addition on account of Business Combination - 54,369.96 54,369.96
ossYor the period ended March 31, 2023 {158.12) - (158.12)
Other comprehensive income / {loss) 32.02 - 32.02
Total comprehensive Income (126.10) 54,369,96 54,243,858
Balance as at March 31, 2023 * {126.10) 54,369.96 54,243.86
B. Other equity (Note 14) Reserves and surplus (Rs.In lakhs)
3. Capital Reserve
Particulars Retained Earnings (Refer Note 40) Total
Balance as at March 31, 2022 {274.25) 54,369.95 54,085.72
Profit for the period ended June 30, 2022 10,45 - 10,45
Other comprehensive Income / (loss) (21,16) - {21,16)
Total comprehensive Income (284.96) 54,369.96 54,085,01
Balance as at June 30,2022 & (284.98) 54,368.96 6§4,085,01

X P ResTareo

Summary of significant accounting policies (Note 18)
The accompanying notes are an Integral part of the Interim Financial Statements

As per our report altached of even date
ForSRBC&COLLP

ICAl Firm Registration No. 324982E/E300003
Chartered Accountants

per Vikram Mehta Ajay Nagle Binda Misra
Partner Executive Director & Company Secretary Chief Financial Officer
Membership No.105938 DiN: 00773616

Murmibai, November 07, 2023

Shekhar Baja)

Chairman- Non Execulive

DIN: 00089358

(00
;/Iflﬁﬁ{ g{ :
Rajesh|Gan

Mapgging Director”
IN; 7008856

L

aneck Davar

Chairman - Audit Commitles

DIN: 01890326

Far and on behalf of the Board of directors
of Bajel Projocts Limited
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Bajel Projects Limited

Interim Cash flow statement for the three months period ended June 30, 2023

(Rs. in Lakho)

For the three months For the three months
period ended period ended
Particulars June 30, 2023 June 30, 2022
(Unaudited)

Cash flow from operating activities

{Loss) before income tax (200.80) (9.86)
Adjustments for:

Depreciation and amortisation expense 124.07 120.26
Galn/ (Loss) on disposal of properly, plant and equipment (net) 0.07 (0.48)
Finance costs 233.77 62,75
Interest income - (3.70)
Impairment allowance for doubtful debts & advances (net of write back) 128.00 678.19

285.11 847.16

Change in operating assets and liabilities:

Decrease in trade receivables (current & non-current) 3.434.29 14,517.07
Increase in financial and other assets (current & nan-current) (1,479.62) (15,015.33)
Decrease in inventories 533.73 2,065.08
Decrease in trade payables, provisions, employee benefit obligations, other financial llabilities and ather (2,258.65) (2,145.98)
liabilities {current & non- current)

Cashg 1 from ¢ 514.86 267.99
lncoma taxes paid (net uf refunds} (89.35) (100.91)
Net cash inflow from operating activities (A) 425.50 167.09
Cash flows from investing activities

Purchase of property, plant and equipment including capital work in progress and capital advances (37.84) 120.24
Interest received = 3.70
Net cash {used in)/ flow from investing activities (B) (37.84) 123.94
Cash flows from financing activities

Interest paid (367.08) (177.34)
Payment of principal portion of lease liabilities (14.73) (18.27)
Interest paid on lease liabilities (4.24) (2.46)
|Net cash used in financing activities (C) (386.05) (198.07)
Net increase in cash and cash equivalents (A+B+C) 1.61 92,96
Cash and cash equivalents at the beginning of the period 65.25 77.90
Cash and cash equivalents at the end of the period (Refer Note 10} 66.86 170.86

% PAs ACSTRTED
Summary of significant accounting policies (Note 1B)
The accompanying notes are an integral part of the Interim Financial Statements

As perour report attached of even date
ForSRBC &COLLP

ICAI Firm Registration Mo, 324982EIE300003
Chartered Accountants

Binda Misra
Chief Financial Officer

per Vikram Mehta

Partner

Membership No.105938
Mumbai, Nevember 07, 2023

Ajay Nagle
Executive Director & Company Secretary
DIN: 00773616

For and on behalf of the Board of directors
of Bajel Projects Limited

C___._b——-:____

Shekhar Bajaj
Chairman- Non Execulive
DIN: 00089358

-"'}-

agin Dmactor
DINy 07008856

NN IWV_
Maneck Davar

Chairman - Audit Committes
DIN: 01990326
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Bajel Projects Limited
Notes to Interim Financial Statements for the period ended June 30, 2023

1A GENERAL INFORMATION.

Bajel Projects Limited ('the Company') is an existing unlisted public limited company incarporated on January 19, 2022 under the provisions
of the Companies Act, 2013, having its registered office at 801, Rustomjee Aspiree, Anik Wadala Link Road, Sion East, Mumbal,
Maharashtra, India, 400022, The Company deals in business of Engineering and projects (EPC) (which includes power transmission and
power distribution Projects). The Financlal Statements are presented in Indian Rupee (INR) Lakhs.

The Financial Statements are approved far issue by the Company's Board of Directors on November 07, 2023.
1B SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES
This note provides a list of the significant accounting policies adopted in the preparation of these Financial Statements.

1  Basis of preparation

These Interim Financial Statements are prepared by the Company for the purpose o facilitate the listing of equity shares of the Company
pursuant to Master Circular No, SEBI/HO/CFD/DIL1/CIR/P/2021/0000000665 dated November 23, 2021 Issued by Securities Exchange
Board of India ("SEBI") and for availing banking facililies. The aforesaid information memorandum s to be filed by the Company with the
relevant stock exchanges for the proposed listing of equity shares of the Company.

These Interim Financial Statements consists of Balance sheet, Staterment of Profit and Loss, Statement of Cash flow, Statement of Changes
in Equity and specific notes to the Interim Financial statements for the three moniths period ended June 30, 2023 along with comparative
statement of the relevant corresponding period end.

The Interim Financial Statements are prepared in accordance with recognition and measurement principles generally accepted in the Indian
Accounting Standards (hereinafter referred to as Ind AS) as notified by Ministry of Corporate Affairs pursuant to Section 133 of the
Companies Act, 2013 ('the Act’) read with the Companies (Indian Accounting Standards) Rules, as amended from time to time and other
relevant provisions of the act.

2  Revenue from contract with customers:

Revenue from contracts with customers is recognized when control of the goods or services are transferred to the customer at an amount
that reflects the consideration fo which the Company expects to be entitled in exchange for those goods or services. The Company has
generally concluded that it is the principal in its revenue arrangements, because it typically contrals the goods or services before transferring
them to the customer,

The recognition criteria for sale of products and construction contracts is described below

(1) Sale of Products
Revenue from sale of products is recognised upon satisfaction of performance obligations I.e. over time' or 'in time' based on an
assessment of the transfer of control as per the terms of the contract. In determining the transaction price for the sale of product, the
Company considers the effects of variable consideration, if any. Invoices are issued according to contractual terms and are usually
payable as per the credit period agreed with the customer.

Generally, the Company receives short term advances from its customers. Using the practical expedient in Ind AS 115, the Company
does not adjust the promised amount of consideration for the effects of a significant financing component if it expects, at contract
inception, that the period between the transfer of the promised good or service to the customer and when the customer pays for that
good or service will be one year or less.

(2) Sale of Services
Services rendered include tower testing and designing, operating and maintenance and other services. Revenue from providing
services is recognised in the accounting period in which the services are rendered. Invoices are issued according to contractual terms
and are usually payable as per the credit period agreed with the customer.

(3) Construction contracts

Performance obligation in case of construction contracts is satisfied over a period of time, as the Company creates an asset that the
customer control and the Company has an enforceable right to payment for performance completed to date if it meets the agreed
specifications. Revenue from construction contracts is recognised based on the stage of completion determined with reference to the
actual costs incurred up to reporting date on the construction contract and the estimated cost to complete the project. Cost estimates
involves judgments Including those refating to cost escalations; assessment of technical, polltical, regulatory and other related contract
risks and their financial estimation; scope of deliveries and services required for fulfilling the contractually defined obligations and
expecled delays, if any. Provision for foreseeable losses/ construction contingencies on sald contracts is made based on technical
assessments of costs to be incurred and revenue to be accounted for. The Company has long-term receivables from customers. The
transaction price for such contracts is discounted, using the rate that would be reflected in a separate financing transaction between
the Company and its customers at contract inception, to take into consideration the significant financing component.
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Bajel Projects Limited
Notes to Interim Financial Statements for the period ended June 30, 2023

(4) Contract balances
Contract asset
A contract asset is the right to consideration in exchange for goods or services transferred to the customer. If the Company performs
by transferring goods or services to a customer before the customer pays consideration or before payment is due, a contract asset is
recognised for the eamned consideration that is conditional.

(5) Trade receivables
A receivable represents the Company's right to an amount of consideration that is unconditional (i.e., only the passage of time is
required before payment of the consideration is due).

(6) Contract liabilities
A confract liability is the obligation to transfer goods or services to a customer for which the Company has received consideration (or
an amount of consideration is due) from the customer. If a customer pays consideration before the Company transfers goods or
services to the customer, a contract liability is recognized when the payment is made or the payment is due (whichever is earller).
Contrac! liabiliies are recognised as revenue when the Company performs under the contract.

3 Leases:
As 55881
Right-of-use assets
The Company recognises right-of-use assets at the commencement date of the lease (i-e., the date the underlying asset is available for
use). Right-of-use assets are measured at cost, less any accumulated depreciation and impairment losses, and adjusted for any
remeasurement of lease liabilities. The cost of right-of-use assets includes the amount of lease liabllities recegnised, initial direct costs
incurred, and lease payments made at or before the commencement date less any lease incentives received. Unless the Company is
reasonably certain to obtain ownership of the leased asset at the end of the lease term, the recognised right-of-use assets are depreciated
on a stralght-line basis over the sherter of its estimated useful life and the lease term. Right-of-use assets are subject to impairment test.

The Company determines the lease term as the non-cancellable term of the lease, together with any periods covered by an aption to extend
the lease if it is reasonably certain to be exercised, or any periods covered by an option to terminate the lease, if itis reasonably certain not
to be exercised.

The Company has determined leasehold lands also as, right of use assets and hence the same has been classified from property, plant
and equipment to right of use assets.

Leases are capitalised at the commencement of the lease at the inception date fair value of the leased property or, if lower, at the present
value of the minimum lease payments. Lease payments are apportioned between finance charges and reduction of the |ease liability so as
to achieve a constant rate of interest on the remaining balance of the liability. Finance charges are recognised in finance costs in the
statement of profit and loss, unless they are directly attributable to qualifying assets, in which case they are capitalized in accordance with
the Company's general palicy on the borrowing costs. Confingent rentals are recognised as expenses in the periods in which they are
incurred.

Leases in which a significant portion of the risks and rewards of ownership are retained by the lessor are classified as operating leases.
Payments made under operating leases are charged to the Statement of Profit and Loss on a straight-line basis over the period of the lease
unless the payments are structured to increase in line with expected general inflation to compensate for the lessor's expected inflationary
cost increases,

Lease liabilities

At the commencement date of the lease, the Company recognises lease liabilities measured at the present value of lease payments to be
made over the lease term. The lease payments include fixed payments (including in-substance fixed payments) less any lease incentives
receivable, variable lease payments that depend on an index or a rate, and amounts expected to be paid under residual value guarantees.
The variable lease payments that do not depend on an index or a rate are recognised as expense in the period on which the event or
condition that triggers the payment occurs,

In calculating the present value of lease payments, the Company uses the incremental borrowing rate at the lease commencement date if
the interest rate implicit in the lease is not readily determinable.

Short-term leases and leases of low-value assets

The Company applies the short-term lease recognition exemption to its short-term leases (i.e., those leases that have a lease term of 12
months or less from the commencement date and do not contain a purchase option). It also applies the lease of low-value assets recognition
exemplion to leases that are considered of low value (.., below Rs. 5,00,000). Lease payments on short-term leases and leases of low-
value assets are recognised as expense on a straight-line basis over the lease term.

4 Other income:
(1) Interest income on financial asset is recognised using the effective interest rate method. The effective interest rate is the rate that
exactly discounts estimated future cash recelpts through the expected life of the financial asset to the gross carrying amount of
the financial asset. When calculating the effective interest rate, the Company estimates the expected cash flows by considering
all the contractual terms of the financial instruments,
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(2) Others:

The Company recognises other income (including income from Income from scrap sales, income from claims recelved, etc.) on
accrual basis. However, where the ultimate collection of the same is uncertain, revenue recognition is postponed to the extent of
uncertainty. Rental income arising from operating leases is accounted for on a straight line basis over lease terms unless the
receipts are struclured to increase in line with expected general inflation to compensate for the expected inflationary cost
increases and is included in the Statement of profit or loss due to its operating nature.

5  Property, plant and equipment :

A) Asset class:

]
if)

i)

iv)

v)

vi)

Freehold land is carried at historical cost including expenditure that is directly attributable to the acquisition of the land.

All other items of property, plant and equipment (including capital work in progress) are stated at histarical cost less
accumulated depreciation and impalrment losses, if any. Historical cost includes expenditure that is directly attributable to
the acquisition of the items.

Capital goods manufactured by the Company for its own use are carried at their cost of production (including duties and
other levies, if any) less accumulated depreciation and impaimment losses if any.

Subsequent costs are included in the asset's carrying amount or recognised as a separate asset, as appropriate, only whan
it s probable that future economic benefits associated with the item will fiow to the Company and the cost of the item can
be measured raliably. The camying amount of any component accounted for as a separate asset is derecognised when
replaced. All other repairs and maintenance are charged to the statement of profit or loss during the year in which they are
Incurred.

Losses arising from the retirement of, and gains or losses arising from disposal of property, plant and equipments which are
carried at cost are recognised in the statement of profit and loss.

Capital work-In-progress, property, plant and equipment is stated at cost, net of accumulated depreciation. Such cost
includes the cost of replacing part of the property, plant and equipment and borrowing cost for long-term construction projects
if the recognition criteria are met. When significant parts of property, plant and equipment are required to be replaced at
intervals, the Company depreciates them separately based on their specific useful lives. Likewise, when a major inspection
Is performed, its cost Is recognised in the carrying amount of the property, plant and equipment as a replacement if the
recognition criteria are satisfied. All other repairs and maintenance costs are recognised in profit of loss as incurred. Capital
work-in-progress comprises cost of property, plant and equipment (including related expenses), that are not yet ready for
their intended use at the reporting date.

B) Depreciation:

i)

ii}
)]

iv)

v)

Depreciation is calculated using the straight-line method to allocate their cost, net of their residual values, over their
estimated useful lives. Premium of Leasehold land and leasehold improvements cost are amortised over the primary peried
of lease.

100% depreciation is provided in the month of addition for temporary structure cost at project site

Where a significant component (in terms of cost) of an asset has an economic useful life different than that of it's
corresponding asset, the component is depreciated over it's estimated useful life.

The Company, based on internal technical assessments and management estimates, depreciates certain items of

property, plant & equipment over the eslimated useful lives and considering residual value which are different from the
one prescribed in Schedule |l of the Companies Act, 2013, The management believes that these estimated useful lives
and residual values are realistic and reflect fair approximation of the period over which the assels are likely to be used,

Useful life of asset is as given below:

Asset block Useful Lives (in years)
Building 51070
Factory Building 21030
Ownership Premises 10 to 60
Plant & Machinery 1to22
Fumiture & Fixtures 1to24
Electric Installations 1t025
Office Equipment 1to12
Vehicles Bto10
Dies & Jigs 1010
Temporary Structures 110100
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¢ &Co
L) ((A
*

Leasehold Improvements 2ta 10
Roads & Borewell dto 21
IT hardware 1to10

vi)  The residual values, useful lives and methods of depreciation of property, plant and equipment are reviewed at each
financial year and adjusted prospectively, if appropriate,

Intangible assets:
An intanglble asset shall be recognised if, and only if:

(a) it is probable that the expected future economic benefits that are attributable to the asset will flow to the Company; and
(b) the cost of the asset can be measured reliably.

Intangible assets are stated at cost less accumulated amortization and impaimment. Intangible assets are amortized over their respective
Individual estimated useful lives on a straight-line basis, from the date that they are available for use.

Asset class & depreciation:

Computer software / licenses are carried at historical cost. They have an expected finite useful life of 3 years and are carried at cost less
accumulated amortisation and impairment losses. Computer licenses which are purchased on annual subscription basis are expensed off
in the year of purchase.

Trademarks are carried at historical cost. They have a registered finite useful life of 10 years and are carried at cost less accumulated
amortisation and impaiment losses.

Intangible assets with finite lives are amortised over the useful economic life and assessed for impairment whenever there is an indication
Lhat the intangible asset may be impaired. The amortisation period and the amortisation method for an intangible asset with a finite useful
Iife are reviewed at least at the end of each reporting period. Changes in the expected useful life or the expecled pattern of consumption of
future economic benefits embadied in the asset are considered to modify the amortisation period or method, as appropriate, and are treated
as changes in accounting estimates. The amortisation expense on intangible assels with finite lives is recognised in the statement of profit
and loss unless such expenditure forms part of carrying value of another asset.

Research and development costs

Research costs are expensed as incurred. Development expenditures on an individual project are recognised as an intangible asset when
the company can demonstrate:

* The technical feasibility of completing the intangible asset so that the asset will be avallable for use or sale
* Its intention to complete and its ability and intention to use or sell the asset

* How the asset will generate future economic benefits

* The availability of resources to complete the asset

« The ability to measure reliably the expenditure during development

Following initial recognition of the development expenditure as an asset, the asset is carried at cost less any accumulated amortisation and
accumulated impairment losses. Amortisation of the asset begins when development Is complete, and the asset is available for use. It is
amortised over the period of expected future benefit. Amortisation expense is recognised in the statement of profit and loss unless such
expenditure forms part of carrying value of another asset. During the period of development, the asset is tested for impairment annually.

Investment properties:

Investment properties that are not intended to be occupled substantially for use by, or in the operations of the Company have been
considered as investment property. Investment properties are measured Initially at cost, including transaction costs. Subsequent to Initial
recognition, investment properties are stated at cost less accumulated depreciation and accumulated impairment loss, if any. The Company
does not charge depreciation to investment property land which Is held for future undetermined use. Though the Company measures
investment property using cost-based measurement, the fair value of investment property is disclosed in the notes. Fair values are
determined based on an annual evaluation performed by an accredited external independent valuer applying a valuation model.

Investment properties are derecognised either when they have been disposed of or when they are permanantly withdrawn from use and no
future economic benefit is expected from their disposal. The difference between the net disposal proceeds and the carrying amount of the
assel is recagnised In profit or loss in the period of derecognition, In determining the amount of consideration from the derecognition of
investment property the Company considers the effects of variable consideration, existence of a significant financing compenent, non-cash
consideration, and consideration payable ta the buyer (if any).

\Transfers are made to {or from) investment property only when there is a change in use.
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The Company depreciates its investment properties over the useful life which is similar to that of property, plant and equipment.
8  Impairment of non-financial assets:

The carrying amounts of assets are reviewed at each balance sheet date if there is any indication of impairment based on internal/external
factors. An asset is impaired when the carrying amount of the asset exceeds the recoverable amount. The recoverable amount is the higher
of an asset's fair value less costs of disposal and value in use. For the purposes of assessing impairment, assets are grouped at the lowest
levels for which there are separately identifiable cash inflows which are largely independent of the cash inflows from other assets or groups
of assets (cash-generating units). Impairment loss is charged to the Statement of Profit & Loss Account in the year in which an assel is
identified as impaired. An impairment loss recognized in the prior accounting periods is reversed if there has been change in the estimates
used to determine the assets recoverable amount since the last impairment loss was recognised

In assessing value in use, the estimated future cash flows are discounted to their present value using a pre-tax discount rate that reflects
cumrent market assessments of the time value of money and the risks specific to the asset. In determining fair value less costs of disposal,
recent market transactions are taken into account.

Impairment losses are recognised in the statement of profit and loss, except for properties praviously revalued with the revaluation surplus
taken to OCI.

For assets, an assessment is made at each reporting date to determine whether there is an indication that previously recognised impairment
losses no longer exist or have decreased. If such indication exists, the Company estimates the asset's or CGU's recoverable amount. A
previously recognised impairment loss is reversed only if there has been a change in the assumptions used to determine the asset's
recoverable amount since the last impairment loss was recognised. The reversal is limited so that the carrying amount of the asset does
not exceed its recoverable amount, nor exceed the carrying amount that would have been determined, net of depreciation, had no
impairment loss been recognised for the asset in prior years. Such reversal is recognised in the statement of profit or loss unless the assst
Is carried at a revalued amount, in which case, the reversal is treated as a revaluation increase.

9 Financial instruments:

A financial instrument is any contract that gives rise to a financial asset of ane entity and a financial liability or equity instrument of another
entity.

I. Financlal Assets
A) Initial recognition and measurement

All financial assets are recognised initially at fair value plus, in the case of financial assets not recorded at fair value through profit or loss,
transaction costs that are attributable to the acquisition of the financial asset.

B) Subsequent measurement

For purposes of subsequent measurement, financial assets are classified in four categories:

» Debt instruments at amortised cost

A 'debt instrument’ is measured at the amortised cost if both the following conditions are met:
e The assetis held within a business model whose objective is to hold assets for collecting contractual cash flows, and
e  Conlractual terms of the asset give rise on specified dates to cash flows that are solely payments of principal and interest
(SPPI) on the principal amount outstanding.

This category is the most relevant to the Company. After initial measurement, such financial assets are subsequently measured at
amortised cost using the effective interest rate (EIR) methad. Amortised cost is calculated by taking into account any discount or
premium on acquisition and fees or costs that are an integral part of the EIR. The EIR amortisation is included in ather income in
the statement of profit and loss, The losses arising from Impairment are recognised in the profit or loss. This category generally
applies to trade and other receivables.

= Debt instruments at fair value through other cornprehensive income (FVTOCI

A 'debt instrument' is classified as at the FVTOCI if both of the following criteria are met:
e The objective of the business model is achieved both by collecting contractual cash flows and selling the financial assets,
and
= The asset's contractual cash flows represent SPPI,

Debt instruments included within the FVTOCI category are measured initially as well as at each reporting date at fair value, Fair
value movements are recognized in the other comprehensive income (OCI). On derecognition of the asset, cumulative gain or loss
previously recognised in OClI is reclassified from the equity to statement of profit and loss. Interest eamed whilst halding FVTQCI
debt instrument is reported as interest income using the EIR method.
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= Debt instruments at fair value through profit or loss (FVTPL)}

FVTPL is a residual category for debt instruments. Any debt instrument, which does not meet the criteria for categorization as at
amortized cost or as FVTOCI, is classified as at FVTPL.

In addition, the Company may elect to designate a debt instrument, which otherwise meets amortized cost or FVTOGI criteria, as
at FYTPL. However, such election is allowed only if doing so reduces or eliminates a measurement or recognition inconsistency
(referred to as 'accounting mismatch'). Debt instruments included within the FVTPL category are measured at fair value with all
changes recognized in the statement of profit and loss.

»  Equity instruments measured at fair value through other comprehensive income (o]e]

All equity investments in scope of Ind AS 109 are measured at fair value. Equity instruments which are held for trading and
contingent consideration recognised by an acquirer in a business combination to which Ind AS103 applies are classified as at
FVTPL. For all other equity instruments, the Company may make an irevocable election to present in other comprehensive income
subsequent changes in the fair value. The Company makes such election on an instrument-by-instrument basis. The classification
Is made on Initial recagnition and is Irevocable.

If the Company decides to classify an equity instrument as at FVTOCI, then all fair value changes on the instrument, excluding
dividends, are recognized in the OGI. There is no recycling of the amounts from OCl to P&L, even on sale of investment, However,
the Company may transfer the cumulative gain or loss within equity.

Equity instruments included within the FVTPL category are measured at fair value with all changes recognized in the P&L.
C) Derecognition

Afinancial asset (or, where applicable, a part of a financial asset or part of a group of similar financial assets) Is primarily derecognised (i.e.
removed from the Company's balance sheet) when:

s The rights to receive cash flows from the asset have expired, or

= The Company has transferred its rights to receive cash flows from the asset or has assumed an obligation to pay the recefved cash
flows in full without material delay to a third party under a ‘pass-through' arrangement; and either (a) the Company has transferred
substantially all the risks and rewards of the asset, or (b) the Company has neither transferred nor retained substantially all the risks
and rewards of the asset, but has lransferred control of the assat.

When the Company has transferred its rights to receive cash flows from an assel or has entered Into a pass through arrangement, jt
evaluates if and to what extent it has retained the risks and rewards of ownership. When it has neither transferred nor retained substantially
all of the risks and rewards of the asset, nor transferred control of the asset, the Company continues to recognise the transferred asset to
the extent of the Company's continuing involvernent. In that case, the Company also recognises an associated liability. The transferred
asset and the assoclated liability are measured on a basis that refiects the rights and obligations that the Company has retained.

Continuing involvement that takes the form of a guarantee over the transferred asset is measured at the lower of the original carrying
amount of the asset and the maximum amount of consideration that the Company could be required to repay.

D) Impairment of financial assets

The Company assesses on a forward looking basis the expected credit losses associated with its assets carried at amortised cost and
FVOCI debt instruments. The impairment methodology applied depends on whether there has been a significant increase in credil risk. For
trade receivables only, the Company applies the simplified approach permitted by Ind AS 109 Financial Instruments, which requires
expected lifetime losses to be recognised from initial recognition of the receivables,

ll. Financial Liabilities
A) Initial recognition and measurement

Financial liabilities are classified, at initial recognition, as financial liabilities at fair value through profit or loss, loans and borrowings,
payables, or as derivatives designated as hedging instruments in an effective hedge, as appropriate.

All financial liabilities are recognised initially at fair value and, in the case of loans and borrowings and payables, net of directly attributable
transaction costs.
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B) Subsequent measurement
The measurement of financial fiabilities depends on their classification, as described below:
+ Financial liabilities at fair value through profit or loss

Financial liabillties at fair value through profit or loss include financial liabilities held for trading and financial liabilities designated
upon initial recognition as at fair value through profit or loss. Financial liabilities are classified as held for trading if they are incurred
for the purpose of repurchasing in the near term. This category also includes derivative financial instruments entered into by the
Company that are nol designated as hedging instruments in hedge relationships as defined by Ind AS 109. Separated embedded
derivatives are also classified as held for trading unless they are designated as effective hedging instruments. Gains or losses on
liabilities held for trading are recognised in the profit or loss.

Financial liabllities designated upon initial recognition at fair value through profit or loss are designated as such at the Initial date of
recognition, and only if the criteria in Ind AS 108 are satisfied. For liabilities designated as FVTPL, fair value gains/ losses attributable
to changes in own credit risk are recognized in OCI. These gains/ loss are not subsequently transferred to P&L. However, the
Company may transfer the cumulative gain or loss within equity. All other changes in fair value of such liability are recognised in
the statement of profit or loss.

= Loans and Borrowings

This is the category most relevant to the Company. After initial recognition, interest-bearing loans and borrowings are subsequently
measured at amortised cost using the EIR method. Gains and losses are recognised in profit or loss when the liabililies are
derecognised as well as through the EIR amortisation process.

Amortised cost is calculated by taking into account any discount or premium on acquisition and fees or costs that are an integral
part of the EIR. The EIR amortisation is included as finance costs in the statement of profit and loss.

» Financial guaraniee contracts

Financial guarantee contracts issued by the Campany are those contracts that require a payment to be made to reimburse the
holder for & loss it incurs because the specified debtor fails to make a payment when due in accordance with the terms of a debt
instrument. Financial guarantee contracts are recognised initially as a liabllity at fair value, adjusted for fransaction costs that are
direclly atiributable to the issuance of the guarantee. Subsequently, the liability is measured at the higher of the amount of loss
allowance determined as per impairment requirements of Ind AS 109 and the amount recognised less cumulative amortisation.
The fair value of financial guarantees is determined as the present value of the difference in net cash flows between the contractual
payments under the debt instrument and the contractual payments that would be required without the guarantee, or the estimated
amount that would be payable to a third party for assuming the obligations.

C) De-recognition

A financial llability is derecognised when the obligation under the liability is discharged or cancelled or expires. When an existing financial
liability is replaced by another from the same lender on substantially different terms, or the terms of an existing liability are substantially
modified, such an exchange or modification is treated as the derecognition of the original liability and the recognition of a new liability. The
difference in the respective camrying amounts s recognised in the statement of profit or loss.

Ill. Reclassification of financial assets / liabilities

After Initial recognition, no reclassification Is made for financial assets which are equity instruments and financial liabilities. For financial
assets which are debt instruments, a reclassification is made only if there Is a change in the business model for managing those assets.
Changes to the business model are expected to be infrequent. The Company's senior management determines change in the business
model as a result of external or intemal changes which are significant to the Company's aperations.

IV. Offsetting of financial instruments

Financial assels and liabilities are offset and the net amount is reported in the balance sheet where there is a legally enforceable right to
offset the recognised amounts and there is an intention to settle on a net basls or realise the asset and settle the liability simultaneously.
The legally enforceable right must nat be contingent on future events and must be enforceable in the normal course of business and in the
event of default, insolvency or bankruptcy of Company or the counterparty.
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10. Fair value measurements:

The Company measures financial instruments at fair value at each balance sheet date. Fair value is the price that would be received to sell
an asset or paid to transfer a liability in an orderly transaction betwsen market participants at the measurement date. The fair value

measurement is based on the presumption that the transaction to sell the asset or transfer the liabllity takes place either:
= In the principal market for the asset or liability, or
» In the absence of a principal market, in the most advantageous market for the asset or liability

The principal or the most advantageous market must be accessible by the Company. The fair value of an asset or a liabllity is measured
using the assumptions that market participants would use when pricing the asset or liability, assuming that market participants act in their
economic best interest.

A fair value measurement of a non-financial asset takes into account a market participant's ability to generate economic benefits by using
the asset inits highest and best use or by selling it to another market participant that would use the asset in its highest and best use,

The Company uses valuation techniques that are appropriate in the circumstances and for which sufficient data are avallable {o measure
fair value, maximising the use of relevant observable inputs and minimising the use of unabservable Inputs. All assets and liabilities for
which fair value is measured or disclosed in the financial statements are categorised within the fair value hierarchy, described as follows,

based on the lowest level input that is significant to the fair value measurement as a whola:
s Level 1 — Quated (unadjusted) market prices in active markets for identical assets or liabilities
= Level 2 — Valuation techniques for which the lowest level input that is significant to the falr value measurement Is directly or
indirectly observable
= Level 3— Valuation techniques for which the lowest level input that is significant to the fair value measurement is unobservable

Faor assets and liabilities that are recognised in the financial statements on a recurring basis, the Company determines whether transfers
have ocourred between levels In the hierarchy by re-assessing categorisation {based on the lowast level input that is significant to the fair
value measurement as a whole) at the end of each reporting period. External valuers are involved for valuation of significant assets, such
as properties and unquoted financial assets.

For the purpose of fair value disclosures, the Company has determined classes of assets and liabllities on the basis of the nature,
characteristics and risks of the asset or liability and the level of the fair value hierarchy as explained above.

This note summarises accounting policy for fair value. Other fair value related disclosures are given in the relevant notes.

11. Cash and cash equivalents:

Cash and cash equivalents in the balance sheet and for the purpose of the statement of cash flows, include cash on hand, other short-term,
highly liquid investments with original maturities of three months or less that are readily convertible to known amounts of cash and which
are subject to an insignificant risk of changes in value,

12. Inventories:

Inventories are valued at the lower of cost and net realisable value. Costs incurred in bringing each product to its present location and
condition are accounted for as follows:

Raw materials: cost includes cost of purchase and other costs incurred in bringing the inventories to their present location and condition.
Cost is determined on first in, first out basis.

Finished goods and work In progress: costincludes cost of direct materials and labour and a praportion of manufacturing overheads based
on the nermal operating capacity but excluding borrowing costs. Cost is delermined on first in, first out basis.

Traded goods: cost includes cost of purchase and other costs incurred in bringing the inventories to their present location and condition.
Cost is determined on weighted average basis.

Initial cost of inventories includes the transfer of gains and losses on qualifying cash flow hedges, recognised in OCI, in respect of the
purchases of raw materials. Net realisable value Is the estimated selling price in the ordinary course of business, less estimated costs of
completion and the estimated costs necessary to make the sale.

13. Foreign currency transactions:

Items included in the financial statements are measured using the currency of the primary economic environment in which the Company
operates (‘the functional curency’). The financial statements are presented In Indian Rupee (INR), which is the Company's functional and
presentation currency.

a) On Initial recognition, all foreign currency transactions are recorded at the functional currency spot rate at the date the transaction first
qualifies for recognition.
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15.

16.

b) Monetary assets and liabilities in foreign currency outstanding at the close of reporting date are translated at the functional currency spot
rates of exchange at the reporting date.

c) Exchange differences arising on settlement of translation of monetary items are recognised In the Statement of Profit and Loss.

Non-manetary items that are measured in terms of historical cost in a foreign currency are translated using the exchange rates at the dates
of the initial transactions. Non-monetary iterns measured at fair value in 2 foreign currency are translated using the exchange rates at the
date when the fair value is determined. The gain or loss arising on translation of non-monetary items measured at fair value is treated in
line with the recognition of the gain or loss on the change in fair value of the item (i.e., translation differences on items whose fair value gain
or loss is recognised in OC| or profit or loss are also recognised in OCI or profit or loss, respectively)

Income tax

The income tax expense or credit for the period is the tax payable on the curent period's taxable income based on the applicable income
tax rate for the |urisdiction adjusted by changes in deferred tax assets and liabilities attributable to temporary differences, unused tax losses
and unabsorbed depreciation.

Current and deferred tax is recognized in the Statement of Profit and Loss except to the extent it relates to items recognized directly in
equity or other comprehensive incame, in which case it is recognized in equity or other comprehensive income.

A. Current income tax

The current income tax charge is calculated on the basis of the tax laws enacted or substantively enacted at the end of the reporting period.
The Company establishes provisions, wherever appropriate, on the basis of amounts expected to be paid to the tax authorities.

Current tax assets and liabilities are offset when there is a legally enforceable right to set off current tax assels against current tax liabilities.

B. Deferred tax

Deferred tax is provided using the liability method, on temporary differences arising between the tax bases of assets and liabilities and their
carrying amounts In the financial statements, Deferred tax is determined using tax rates (and laws) that have been enacted or substantially
enacted by the end of the reporting period and are expected to apply when the related deferred income tax asset is realised or the deferred
income tax liability is settled.

The carrying amount of deferred tax assets is reviewed at each reporting date and adjusted to reflect changes in probability that sufficient
taxable profits will be avallable to allow all or part of the asset to be recovered.

Deferred tax assets are recognised for all deductible temporary differences and unused tax losses anly if it is probable that future taxable
amaunts will be available to utilise those temporary differences and losses.

Deferred tax assets and liabllities are offset when there is a legally enforceable right to offset current tax assets and liabllities and when the
deferred tax balances relate to the same taxation authority.

Deferred tax relating fo items recognised outside profit or loss is recognised outside profit or loss (either in other comprehensive income or
in equity). Deferred tax items are recognised in correlation to the underlying transaction sither in OCI or directly In equity.

Borrowing costs

General and specific borrowing costs that are directly attributable to the acquisition, construction or production of a qualifying asset are
capitalised during the period of fime that is required to complete and prepare the asset for its intended use or sale. Qualifying assets are
assets that necessarily take a substantial period of ime to get ready for their intended use or sale. Borrowing costs also Include exchange
difference arising from foreign currency borowings to the extent they are regarded as an adjustment to interest costs. Investment income
eamned on the temporary investment of specific borrowings pending their expenditure on qualifying assets Is deducted from the borrowing
costs eligible for capitalisation. Other borrowing costs are expensed in the period in which they are incurred.

Provisions, contingent liablilities and contingent assets
A. Provisions
A provision is recognised if

=  the Company has present legal or canstructive obligation as a result of an event in the past;
s itis probable that an outflow of resources will be required to settle the obligation; and
=  the amount of the obligation has been reliably estimated.

Provisions are measured at the management's best estimate of the expenditure required to settle the obligation at the end of the reporting
period. If the effect of the time value of maney Is material, provisions are discounted to reflect its present value using a current pre-tax
discount rate that reflects the cumrent market assessments of the time value of money and the risks specific to the obligation. When
discounting is used, the increase in the provision due to the passage of time is recognised as a finance cost.
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The Company provides for general repairs of defects that existed at the time of sale, as required by the law. Provision for warranty related
costs are recognised when the product is sold to the customer. Initial recognition is based on historical experience. The estimate of waranty
related costs is revised annually.

If the Company has a contract that is onerous, the present obligation under the contract is recognised and measured as a provision.
However, before a separate provision for an onerous contract is established, the Company recognises any impairment loss that has
occurred on assels dedicated to that contracl. An onerous contract Is a contract under which the unavoidable costs (i.e., the costs that the
Company cannot avoid because it has the contract) of meeting the obligations under the contract exceed the economic benefits expected
to be received under it, The unavoidable costs under a contract reflect the least net cost of exiting from the contract, which is the lower of
the cost of fulfilling it and any compensation or penalties arising from failure to fulfil it. The cost of fulfilling a contract comprises the costs
that relate directly to the contract (i.e., both incremental costs and an allocation of costs directly related to contract activities).

B. Contingent liabllities

Contingent liabilities are disclosed when there is a possible obligation arising from past events, the existance of which will be confirmed
only by the occurrence or non-occurrence of one or more uncertain future events not wholly within the control of the Company or a present
obligation that arises from past events where it is either not probable that an outflow of resources will be required to settle the obligation or
a reliable estimate of the amount cannot be made.

A contingent liability recognised in a business combination is initially measured at its fair value. Subsequently, it is measured at the higher
of the amount that would be recognised in accordance with the requirements for provisions above or the amount initially recognised less,
when appropriate, cumulative amortisation recognised in accordance with the requirements for revenue recognition.

C. Contingent assets

A contingent asset is a possible asset that arises from past events and whose existence will be confirmed only by the occurrence or non-
occurrence of one or more uncertain future events not wholly within the control of the entity. A contingent asset is not recognised but
disclosed where an inflow of economic benefit is probable.

17. Employee benefits
A. Short-term obligations

Liabilities for wages and salaries, including non-monetary benefits that are expected to be settled wholly within 12 months after the
end of the period in which the employees render the related service are recognised in the same period in which the employees renders
the related service and are measured at the amounts expected to be paid when the liabllities are settled,

Retirement benefit in the form of provident fund is a defined contribution plan. The Company has no obligation, other than the
contribution payable to the provident fund. The Company recognises contribution payable to the provident fund scheme as an expense,
when an employee renders the related services. If the Confribution payable to the scheme for service received before the balance
sheet date exceeds the confribution already paid, the deficit payable to the scheme Is recognised as a liability after deducting the
contribution already paid. If the contribution already paid exceeds the contribution due for services received before the balance sheet
date, then excess is recognised as an asset to the extent that the prepayment will lead to a reduction in future payment or a cash
refund.

B. Other long-term employee benefit obligations
The liabilities for eamed leave and sick leave are not expected to be settled wholly within 12 months after the end of the period in
which the employees render the related service. They are therefore measured as the present value of expecled fulure payments to
be made in respect of services provided by employees up to the end of the reporting period using the projected unit credit method.
The benefits are discounted using the market yields at the end of the reporting period that have terms approximating to the terms of
the related obligation. Remeasurements as a result of experience adjustments and changes in actuarial assumptions are recognised
in the statement of profit or loss.

The obligations are presented as current liabilities in the balance sheet if the entity does not have an unconditional right to defer
settiement for atleast twelve months after the reporting period, regardiess of when the actual settlement is expected to occur.

C. Post-employment obligations
The Company operates the following post-employment schemes
(a} defined benefit plans - gratuity and obligation towards shorifall of Provident Fund Trusts

(b} defined contribution plans - Provident fund (RPFC Contributions), superannuation and pension
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18.

18.

Defined benefit plans :

The liability or asset recagnised in the balance sheet in respect of defined benefit plans is the present value of the defined benefit
obligation at the end of the reporting period less the fair value of plan assets excluding non-qualifying asset (reimbursement right).
The defined benefit obligation Is caleulated annually by actuaries using the projected unit credit method. The present value of the
defined benefit obligation is determined by discounting the estimated future cash outflows by reference to market yields at the end of
the reporting period on government bonds that have terms approximating to the terms of the related obligation. The net interest cost
is calculated by applying the discount rate to the net balance of the defined benefit obligation and the fair value of plan assets. This
cost Is included in employee benefit expense in the statement of profit and loss. Remeasurement gains and losses arising from
experience adjustments and changes in actuarial assumptions are recognised in the period in which they occur, directly in other
comprehensive income. They are included in retained eamings in the statement of changes in equity and in the balance sheet.

Insurance policy held by the Company from insurers who are related parties are not qualifying insurance policies and hence the right
to reimbursement is recognised as a separate assets under other non-current and/or current assels as the case may be.

Changes in the present value of the defined benefit obligation resulting from plan amendments or curtallments are recognised
immediately in profit or loss as past service cost.

Defined contribution plans :

In respect of certain employees, the Company pays provident fund contributions to publicly administered provident funds as per local
regulations. The Company has no further payment obligations once the confributions have been paid. Such contributions are
accounted for as employee benefit expense when they are due. Defined contribution to superannuation fund is being made as per the
scheme of the Company. Defined contribution to Employees Pension Scheme 1995 is made to Government Provident Fund Authority
whereas the confributions for National Pension Scheme Is made to Stock Holding Corporation of India Limited

Segment reporting

An operating segment is a component of the Company that engages in business activities from which it may earn revenues and incur
expenses, whose operaling results are regularly reviewed by the entity’s chief operating decision maker to make decisions about resources
to be allocated to the segment and assess its performance and for which discrete financial information Is available.

Operating segments often exhibit similar long-term financial performance if they have similar economic characteristics. Two or more
operating segments are aggregated by the Company into a single operating segment if aggregation is consistent with the core principle of
Ind AS 108, the segments have similar economic characteristics, and the segments are similar in aspects as defined by Ind AS.

The Company reports separately, information about an operating segment that meets any of quantitative thresholds as defined by Ind AS.
Operating segments that do not meet any of the guantitative thresholds, are considered reportable and separately disclosed, only if
management of the Company believes that information about the segment would be useful to users of the financial statements

Information about other business activities and operating segments that are not reportable separately are combined and disclosed in an ‘all
other segments’ category

Dividends

The Company recognises a liability to pay dividend to equity holders when the distribution is autharised and is no longer at the discretion
of the Company. As per the corporate laws in India, a distribution is authorised when it is approved by the shareholders. A corresponding
amount is recognised directly in equity. Interim dividends are recorded as a liability on the date of declaration by the Company's Board of
Directors,

Assets held for sale

The Company classifies non-current assets and disposal groups as held for sale if their carrying amounts will be recovered principally
through a sale rather than through continuing use. Non-current assets and disposal groups classified as held for sale are measured at the
lower of their camrying amount and fair value less costs to sell. Costs to sell are the incremental costs directly attributable to the disposal of
an asset (disposal group), excluding finance costs and income lax expense.

The criteria for held for sale classification is regarded as met only when the sale is highly probable, and the asset or disposal group is
available forimmediate sale in its present condition. Actions required to complete the sale/ distribution should indicate that itis unlikely that
significant changes to the sale will be made or that the decision to sell will be withdrawn. Management must be committed to the sale and
the sale expected within one year from the date of classification. For these purposes, sale transactions include exchanges of non-current
assels for other non-current assets when the exchange has commercial substance. The criteria for held for sale classification is regarded
met only when the assets or disposal group is available for immediate sale in its present condition, subject only to terms that are usual and
customary for sales of such assets (or disposal groups), its sale is highly probable; and it will genuinely be sold, not abandoned.

The Company treats sale of the asset or disposal group to be highly probable when:

s The appropriate level of management is committed to a plan to sell the asset (or disposal group),

= An active programme to locate a buyer and complete the plan has been initiated (if applicable),

s  The asset (or disposal group) is being actively marketed for sale at a price thal is reasonahle in relation to its current fair value,
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s  The sale is expected to qualify for recognition as a completed sale within one year from the date of classification, and
=  Actions required to complete the plan indicate that it is unlikely that significant changes to the plan will be made or that the plan
will be withdrawn,

Property, plant and equipment and intangible are not depreciated, or amortised assets once classified as held for sale. Assets and liabilities
classified as held for sale are presented separately from other items in the balance sheet.

Earnings per share

Basic earnings per share is calculated by dividing the net profit or loss for the period attributable to equity shareholders by the weighted
average number of equity shares outstanding during the period, Eamings considered in ascertaining the Company's eamings per share is
the net profit for the period. The weighted average number equity shares outstanding during the period and all pericds presented s adjusted
for events, such as bonus shares, other than the conversion of potential equity shares, that have changed the number of equity shares
outstanding, without a corresponding change in resources. For the purpose of calculating diluted eamings per share, the net profit of loss
for the period attributable to equity shareholders and the weighted average number of share outstanding during the peried is adjusted for
the effects of all dilutive potential equity shares.

All amounts disclosed in the financial statements and notes have been rounded off to the nearest lakh (upto two decimals) as per the
requirement of Schedule 1ll, unless otherwise stated.

NEW AND AMENDED STANDARDS

The Company applied for the first-time certain standards and amendments, which are effective for annual periods beginning on or after 1
April 2022.

The Ministry of Corporate Affairs has notified Companies (Indian Accounting Standard) Amendment Rules 2022 dated March 23, 2022, to
amend the following Ind AS which are effective from April 01, 2022,

{i) Onerous Contracts — Costs of Fulfilling a Contract — Amendments to Ind AS 37

An onerous contract is a contract under which the unavoidable of meeting the obligations under the contract costs (i.e., the costs that the
Company cannot avoid because it has the contract) exceed the economic benefits expected to be received under it.

The amendments specify that when assessing whether a contract is onerous or loss-making, an entity needs to include costs that relate
directly to a contract lo provide goods or services including both incremental costs (e.g., the costs of direct labour and materials) and an
allocation of costs directly refated to contract activities (e.g., depreciation of equipment used to fulfil the contract and costs of contract
management and supervision). General and administrative costs do not relate directly to a contract and are excluded unless they are
explicitly chargeable to the counterparty under the contract.

The Company applied the amendments to the contracts for which it had not fulfilled all of its obligations at the beginning of the reporting
period. There is no material impact on other comprehensive income or the basic and diluted earnings per share.

Ii} Reference to the Conceptual Framework — Amendments to Ind AS 103

The amendments replaced the reference to the ICAI's “Framework for the Preparation and Presentation of Financial Statements under
Indian Accounting Standards” with the reference to the “Conceptual Framework for Financial Reporting under Indian Accounting Standard”
without significantly changing its requirements.

The amendments also added an exception to the recognition principle of Ind AS 103 Business Combinations to avoid the issue of potential
‘day 2' gains or losses arising for liabilities and contingent liabilities that would be within the scope of Ind AS 37 Provisions, Contingent
Liabilities and Contingent Assets or Appendix C, Levies, of Ind AS 37, if incurred separately. The exception requires entities to apply the
criteria in Ind AS 37 or Appendix C, Levies, of Ind AS 37, respectively, instead of the Conceptual Framework, to determine whether a
present obligation exists at the acquisition date.

The amendments also add a new paragraph to IFRS 3 to clarify that contingent assets do not qualify for recognition at the acquisition date.

In accordance with the transitional pravisions, the Company applies the amendments prospectively, i.e., to business combinations occurring
after the beginning of the annual reporting period in which it first applies the amendments (the date of Initial application).

These amendments had no Impact on the standalone financial statements of the Company as there were no contingent assets, liabilities
or contingent liabilities within the scope of these amendments that arose during the period

iif) Property, Plant and Equipment: Proceeds before Intended Use — Amendments to Ind AS 16

The amendments modified paragraph 17(e) of Ind AS 16 to clarify that excess of net sale proceeds of items produced over the cost of
testing, if any, shall not be recognised in the profit or loss but deducted from the directly attributable costs considered as part of cost of an

ftern of property, plant, and equipment.
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The amendments are effective for annual reporting periods beginning on or after 1 April 2022. These amendments had no impact on the
standalone financial statements of the Company as there were no sales of such items produced by property, plant and equipment made
avallable for use on or afler the beginning of the earliest period presented.

Iv) Ind AS 101 First-time Adoption of Indian Accounting Standards — Subsidiary as a first time adopter

The amendment permits a subsidiary that elects to apply the exemption in paragraph D16(a) of Ind AS 101 to measure curnulative
translation differences for all foreign operations in its financial statements using the amounts reported by the parent, based on the parent's
date of transition to Ind AS, if no adjustments were made for consolidation procedures and for the effects of the business combination in
which the parent acquired the subsidiary. This amendment is also available to an associate or joint venture that uses exemption in paragraph
D16(a) of Ind AS 101.

The amendments are effective for annual reporting periods beginning on or after 1 April 2022 but do not apply to the Company as it is not
a first-time adopter.

{v) Ind AS 109 Financial Instruments — Fees in the "10 per cent’ test for derecognition of financial liabilities

The amendment clarifies the fees that an entity includes when assessing whether the terms of a new or modified financial liabllity are
substantially different from the terms of the original financial liability. These fees include only those paid or received between the borrower
and the lender, including fees paid or received by either the borrower or lender on the other's behalf.

In accordance with the transitional provisions, the Company applies the amendment to financial liabilities that are modified or exchanged
on or after the beginning of the annual reporting period in which the entity first applies the amendment (the date of initial application), These
amendments had no impact on the standalone financial statements of the Company as there were no modifications of the Company's
financial instruments during the period.

{vi) Ind AS 41 Agriculture — Taxation in fair value measurements

The amendment removes the requirement in paragraph 22 of Ind AS 41 that entities exclude cash flows for taxation when measuring the
fair value of assets within the scope of Ind AS 41.

The amendments are effective for annual reporting periods beginning on or after 1 April 2022. The amendments had no impact on the
standalone financial statements of the Company as it did not have assets in scope of IAS 41 as at the reporting date.

STANDARDS ISSUED BUT NOT YET EFFECTIVE

The Ministry of Corporate Affairs has notified Companies (Indian Accounting Standards) Amendment Rules, 2023 dated 31 March 2023 to
amend the following Ind AS which are effective from 01 April 2023

1) Definition of Accounting Estimates - Amendments to Ind AS 8

The amendments clarify the distinction between changes in accounting estimates and changes in accounting policies and the correction of
ermors. [t has also been clarified how entities use measurement techniques and inputs to develop accounting estimates, The amendments
are effective for annual reporting periods beginning on or after 1 April 2023 and apply to changes in accounting policies and changes in
accounting estimates that occur on or after the start of that period.

The amendments are not expected to have a material impact on the standalone financial statements.
Il) Disclosure of Accounting Policles - Amendments to Ind AS 1

The amendments aim to help entities provide accounting policy disclosures that are more useful by replacing the requirement for entities to
disclose their ‘significant’ accounting policies with a requirement to disclose thair ‘material’ accounting policies and adding guidance on how
entities apply the concept of materiality in making decisions about accounting policy disclosures. The amendments to Ind AS 1 are applicable
for annual periods beginning on or after 1 April 2023. Consequential amendments have been made in Ind AS 107.

The Company is currently revisiting their accounting policy information disclosures to ensure consistency with the amended requirements
ili) Deferred Tax related to Assets and Liabilities arising from a Single Transaction - Amendments to Ind AS 12

The amendments namow the scope of the initial recognition exception under Ind AS 12, so that it no longer applies to transactions that give
rise to equal taxable and deductible temporary differences.

The amendments should be applied to transactions that oceur on or after the beginning of the earliest comparative period presented. In
addition, at the beginning of the earliest comparative period presented, a deferred tax asset (provided that sufficient taxable profit is
available) and a deferred tax liability should also be recognised for all deductible and taxable temporary differences assaciated with leases
and decommissioning obligations. Consequential amendments have been made in Ind AS 101. The amendments to Ind AS 12 are
applicable for annual periods beginning on or after 1 April 2023.

The amendments are not expected lo have a material impact on the standalone financial statements.
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SUMMARY OF CRITICAL ESTIMATES, JUDGEMENTS AND ASSUMPTIONS

The preparalion of financial statements requires the use of accounting estimates which, by definition, will seldom equal the actual results.
The management also needs to exercise judgment in applying the Company's accounting policies. This note provides an overview of the
areas that involved a higher degree of judgment or complexity, and of items which are more likely to be materially adjusted due to estimates
and assumptions turmning out to be different than those originally assessed. Detailed Information about each of these estimates and
judgments is included below,

Defect Liability Period

DLP (Defect Liability Period) is a specified period after the completion of a construction project during which the contractor is responsible
for rectifying any defects or faults that may arise. Although DLP is project specific, it is generally varying fram 12 months to 24 months
depending on the contractual condition. During the DLP, the contractor carries out repairs and fix any defects from his own cost which
appear in the workmanship, so that, at the end of the DLP, all works are as per specifications of the contract.

Once project is handed over to the customer and all revenue of the project is recognised, the company starts accounting of DLP
expenses. At the time of closing the projects from POCM of revenue recognition, the company makes provision against DLP expenses
which is project specific. In general, the company makes provision of 0.25% of the project value. Considering the complexity of the
project, project manager recommends higher or lower DLP amount after discussion and approval of BU head.

Every quarter end whatever expenses incurred in the project is adjusted against this DLP expenses provision. Once provision is
exhausted, all expenses If any will be directly booked in the project.

Impairment allowance for trade receivables

The Company makes allowances for doubtful accounts receivable using a simplified approach which Is a dual palicy of an ageing based
provision and historical / anticipated customer experience. Management believes that this simplified model closely represents the expected
credit loss model to be applied on financial assets as per Ind AS 109, Further, in case of operationally closed projects, Company makes
specific assessment of the overdue balances by considering the customer’s historical payment patterns, latest correspondences with the
customers for recovery of the amounts outstanding and credit status of the significant counterparties where avallable. Accordingly, a best
judgment estimate is made to record the impairment allowance in respect of operationally closed projects.

Project revenue and costs

Revenue from construction confracts is recognised based on the stage of completion determined with reference to the actual costs incurred
up to reporting date on the construction contract and the estimated cost to complete the project. The percentage-of-completion methad
places considerable impartance on accurale estimates to the extent of progress towards completion and may involve estimates on the
scope of deliveries and services required for fulfilling the contractually defined obligations. These significant estimates include total contract
costs, lotal contract revenues, contract risks, including technical, political and regulatory risks, and other judgments. The Company re-
assesses these eslimates on periodic basis and makes appropriate revisions accordingly.

Fair value measurement

When the fair values of financial assets and financial liabilities recorded in the balance sheet cannot be measured based on quoted prices
in active markets, their fair value is measured using appropriate valuation techniques. The inputs for these valuations are taken from
observable sources where possible, but where this is not feasible, a degree of judgement is required in establishing fair values. Judgements
include considerations of various Inputs including liquidity risk, credit risk, volatility etc. Changes in assumptionsfjudgements about these
factors could affect the reported fair value of financial instruments. Refer Note 30 of financial statements for the fair value disclosures and
related sensitivity.

Employee benefits

The cost of the defined benefit gratulty plan and other post-employment leave benefits are determined using actuarial valuations. An
acluarial valuation involves making various assumptions that may differ from actual developments in the future. These include the
determination of the discount rate, future salary increases and mortality rates. Due to the complexities involved in the valuation and its long-
term nature, a defined benefit obligation is highly sensitive to changes in these assumptions. All assumptlions are reviewed at each reporting
date. The mortality rate is based on publicly available mortality tables. Those mortality tables tend to change only at interval in response to
demographic changes. Future salary increases are based on expected future inflation rates. Refer note 17.

Leases
Estimates are required to determine the appropriate discount rate used to measure lease liabllities. The Company cannat readily determine

\ha interest rate implicit in the lease, therefore, it uses its incremental borrowing rate (IBR) to measure lease liabilities. The IBR Is the rate
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of interest that the Company would have to pay to borrow over a similar term, and with a similar security, the funds necessary to obtain an
asset of a similar value to the right-of-use asset in a similar economic environment. The IBR therefore reflects what the Company ‘wauld
have to pay', which requires estimation when no observable rates are available or when they need to be adjusted to refiect the terms and
conditions of the lease. The Company estimates the IBR using observable inputs (such as market Interest rates, bank rates to the Company
for @ loan of a similar tenure, etc). The Company has applied a single discount rate to a portfolio of leases of similar assets in similar
economic environment with a similar end date.

7  Impairment of non-financial assets
The Company assesses, at each reporting date, whether there is an indication that an asset may be impaired. If any indication exists, or
when annual impairment testing for an asset is required, the Company estimates the asset's recaverable amount. An asset's recoverable
amount is the higher of an asset's or cash-generating unit's (CGU) fair value less costs of disposal and its value In use. The recoverable
amount is determined for an individual asset, unless the asset does not generate cash inflows that are largely independent of those from
other assets or groups of assets. When the carrying amount of an asset or CGU exceeds its recoverable amount, the asset is considered
Impaired and Is written down to its recoverable amount

In assessing value in use, the estimated future cash flows are discounted to their present value using a pre-tax discount rate that reflects
current market assessments of the time value of money and the risks specific to the asset. In determining fair value less costs of disposal,
recent market transactions are taken into account. If no such transactions can be identified, an appropriate valuation model Is used. These
calculations are corroborated by valuation multiples, quoted share prices for publicly traded companies or other avallable fair value
indicators.

The Company bases its impairment calculation on detailed budgets and forecast calculations, which are prepared separately for each of
the Company's CGUs to which the individual assets are allocated. These budgets and forecast calculations generally cover a period of five
years, For longer periods, a long-term growth rate s calculated and applied to project future cash flows after the fifth year. To estimate cash
flow projections beyond periods cavered by the most recent budgets/forecasts, the Company extrapolates cash flow projections in the
budget using a steady or declining growth rate for subsequent years, unless an increasing rate can be justified. In any case, this growth
rate does not exceed the long-term average growth rate for the products, industries, or country or countries in which the Comipany operates,
or for the market in which the asset is used.

Impairment losses of continuing operations, including impairment on inventories, are recognised In the statement of profit and loss, except
for properties previously revalued with the revaluation surplus taken to OCI. For such properties, the Impairment is recognised in OCI up to
the amount of any previous revaluation surplus.

Far assets excluding goadwill, an assessment is made at each reporting date to determine whether there is an indication that previously
recognised impairment losses no longer exist or have decreased. If such indication exists, the Company estimates the asset's or CGU's
recoverable amount. A previously recognised impairment loss is reversed only if there has been a change in the assumptions used to
determine the asset's recoverable amount since the last impairment loss was recognised. The reversal is limited so that the carrying amount
of the asset does not exceed its recoverable amount, nor exceed the carrying amount that would have been determined, net of depreciation,
had no impairment loss been recognised for the asset in prior years. Such reversal Is recognised in the statement of profit and loss unless
the asset is carried at a revalued amount, in which case, the reversal is treated as a revaluation increase.

B Taxes
Deferred tax assets are recognised for unused tax losses to the extent that it is probable that taxable profit will be available against which
the losses can be utilised. Significant management judgement is required to determine the amount of deferred tax assets that can be
recognised, based upon the likely timing and the level of future taxable profits together with future tax planning strategies.

9  For judgements relating to contingent liakilities, refer Note 36(a).
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Nole 3 : Capital work-in-progress (CWIP)

Capital work-in-progress mainly comprises of plant and n
- Rs. 80.77 lakhs)

and IT Hard

Aggeing schedule

CWIP aging schedule as at June 30, 2023*

amounting 1o Rs. 75.82 lakhs as on 30th June 2023 (March 31, 2023

(Rs. in lakhs)
A in CWIP for a period of
Particulars
Laess than 1 Year 1-2 Years More than 3 years Total
Projects in progress 75.04 0.78 - 75.82
TOTAL 75.04 0.78 - 75.82
CWIP aging schedule as al March 31, 2023*
{Rs. in lakhs)
{Restated)
Amount in CWIP for a period of
Particulars
Less than 1 Year 1-2 Years More than 3 years Tatal
|Projects in progress 67.69 13.06 0.02 80.77
TOTAL 67.69 13.06 0.02 80.77
All the upcoming projects of the Company are within the timeli as esll d during the | plan and the actual cost of projects are within the tolal

cost as of the Company as al the Balance Shesl date.

Al d by the

“The ageing is prepared basis amount spenl when Il was part of demerged entity,

Note 4 : Right of use assets and Lease liabilities
The details of the right-of-use asset held by the Company is as lollows:

Right-of-use assets

(Rs, in lakhs)
Particulars Bulldi Leasehold land Total

Opening Gross Block as on the date of incorporation (January 18, 2022) - - -
Acquired on b bination (Refer Note 40) 159.81 324,30 524,11
Additions 28,63 - 2B.63
Delati (50.52) - (50.52)
Closing gross block as on March 31, 2023 (Restatod) 177.92 324.30 502.22
Addilions 369.83 - 369.83
Del : = =
Closing gross block as on June 30, 2023 547.75 324.30 B72.05
Opening lated dopreciation as on the date of incorporation (January 19, 2022) ] - -
Acquired on business combination (Refer Note 40) 114.67 27.59 142.26
Depreciation 54.87 3.94 58.81
Delelions (50.52) - (50.52)
Accumulated depreciation as on March 31, 2023 (Rostated) 119.02 31.53 150.55
Depraciation 17.80 0.98 18.78
Closing accumulated depreciation as on June 30, 2023 136.82 3251 169.33
Net carrying value of right of use assots as on March 31, 2023 (Restated) 58.90 292.77 351.67
Net carrying value of right of use assets as on June 30, 2023 410,93 291.79 702.72
The details of the lease liabililies held by the Company Is as follaws:
Lease liabilities

(Rs. in lakhs)

As at As at
PargeuALs 30-Jun-23 31:Mar-23*

Opening lease llabllilies as on the date of incorporation (January 18, 2022) - -
Acquired on business comblnation (Refer Naote 40) T2.12 10142
Additions 362.83 2733
Finance cost 4.24 8.98
Lease i pald (14.73) {65.61)
Total Lease liabilities 424.46 72.12
- classified as current 108.21 54.50
- classified as non-current 316,25 17.62

*Figures are restaled

96.52
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Note 5 : Trade receivables

Current
Non-current

Unsecured, considered good
Unsecured, credit impaired
Total

Impairment allowance, credit impaired (allowance for bad and doubtful debts)
Total trade receivables (net of impairment allowance)

(Rs. in lakhs)

As at As at
30-Jun-23 31-Mar-23*
35,463.40 36,932.06
4,368.05 6,461.67
39,831.45 43,393.73
39,831.45 43,393.73
4,338.21 4,211.21
44,169.66 47,604.94
(4,338.21) (4,211.21)
39,831.45 43,393.73

Trade receivable are non-interest bearing and are generally received within the credit period. For lrade and other receivables due from firms or private companies in
which any director is a partner, a direclor or a member, refer note 34.

Trade Receivables ageing schedule as at 30th June 2023**

(Rs. in lakhs)

Particulars

Outstanding for following periods from due date

Not Due

Less than 6
months

6 months -1
year

1-2 Years

2-3 years

More than 3
years

Total

(i) Undisputed Trade receivables —
considered good

8,382.07

11,794.49

2,866.41

6,567.87

1,320.54

8,900.07

38,831.45

(i) Undisputed Trade Receivables —
which have significant increase in credit
risk

(i) Undisputed Trade Receivables —
credit impaired

28.00

147.98

58.49

4,103.73

4,338.21

{iv) Disputed Trade Receivables —
considered good

(v) Disputed Trade Receivables — which
have significant increase in credit risk

(vi) Disputed Trade Receivables — credit
impaired

[ToTaL

8,382.07

11,794.49

2,894.41

6,715.86

1,379.03

13,003.80

44,169.66

Trade Receivables ageing schedule as at 31st March 2023**

(Rs. in lakhs)
(Restated)

Particulars

Outstanding for following periods from due date

Not Due

Less than 6
months

6 months -1
year

1-2 Years

2-3 years

More than 3
years

Total

(I} Undisputed Trade receivables —
considered good

7,729.73

15,414.97

3,949.03

5471.96

1,626.26

9,201.78

43,393.73

(i) Undisputed Trade Receivables —
which have significant increase in credit
risk

(iii} Undisputed Trade Receivables —
credil impaired

7.75

4,107 46

4,211.21

(iv) Disputed Trade Receivables —
considered good

(v} Disputed Trade Receivables — which
have significant increase in credit risk

(vi) Disputed Trade Receivables — credit
impaired

TOTAL

7,729.73

15,414.97

3,949.03

5,567.96

1,634.01

13,309.24

47,604.94

“Figures are restated

**The ageing is prepared after considering invoices raised by the Company when it was part of demerged entity,
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Note 6 : Other financial assets (Non-Current)
(Unsecured, considered good unless otherwise stated)

(Rs. in lakhs)

As at As at
30-Jun-23 31-Mar-23*
Security deposits, considered good
Security deposits, considered good 174.68 156.12
174.68 156.12
Total non-current other financial assets 174.68 156.12
For breakup of financial assets carried at amortised cost, refer note 30.
Note 7 : Deferred tax assets (net)
{Rs. in lakhs)
As at As at
30-Jun-23  31-Mar-23*
Deferred tax assels 1,348.11 1,296,39
Deferred tax liabilities {229.84) (191.55)
Total deferred tax assets (net) 1,118.27 1,104.84
Breakup and movement in Deferred tax assets
(Rs. in lakhs)
Particulars Employee benefit | Employee benefit Impairment Financial assets | Others Total
obligations obligations (leave allowance measured at
(gratuity) obligations) (allowance for | amortised cost
doubtful debts
and advances)
As at 31st March, 2023* 60.75 27.54 1,094.06 0.94 113.10 1,296.39
(Charged) / Credited :
to statemenl of profit and loss 6.03 (11.26) 31.96 (0.94) 46.21 72.00
to other comprehensive Income (16.95) - - - - (16.95)
As at 30th June, 2023 49.83 16.28 1,126.02 - 155.98 1,348.11
Breakup and movement in deferred tax liabilities
(Rs. in lakhs)
Financial Assets
Particulars Propart;i(, ::::: and measured at Total
SN Amortised Cost
As at 31st March, 2023* (191.55) - {191.55)
Charged / (credited) : - - -
lo Statement of Profit or Loss (41.62) (41.62)
to other comprehensive income = & -
As at 30th June, 2023 (233.17) 3.33 (229.84)

*Figures are restated
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Note 8 : Other non-current assets

Right to reimbursement against employee benefit obligatians for insurers who are
related parlies (Non-qualifying insurance policies)

Advances other than Capital Advances

Impairment allowance for doubtful advances
Total other non-current assets

Note 9 : Inventories

Raw material

Waork-In-progress

Finished goods

Traded goods

Material in Transit (traded goods)
Stores and spares

Others

Total Inventories

Note 10 : Cash and cash equivalents

Balances with banks
in current accounts
Cash on hand
Total cash and cash equivalents

Note 11 : Other current financial assets

Loan to employees

Security Deposit

Olher receivables*

Total other current financial assets

(Rs. in lakhs)

As at As at
30-Jun-23 31-Mar-23"
698.18 630.80
1 ,038.40 1,028.25
1,776.58 1,659.05
(69.29) {69.29)
1,707.29 1,589.76
(Rs. in lakhs)
As at As at
30-Jun-23 31-Mar-23*
2,B37.46 3,514.47
2,361.84 2,455,73
1,426.28 824.92
1,061.51 1,343.62
1,123.48 1,207.73
16.71 25.34
291.01 280.21
9,118.30 9,652.02
(Rs. in lakhs)
As at As at
30-Jun-23 31-Mar-23*
41,92 40.04
24.94 2521
66.86 65,25
(Rs. in lakhs)
As at As at
30-Jun-23 31-Mar-23"
0.59 1.41
23.35 19.14
21,987.18 25,831.30
22,011.12 25,851.85

“*Other Receivables pertain to the net impact of amounls collected / paid by Baja] Electricals Lid. on behalf of Bajel

Projects Ltd. fram April 01, 2022 to June 30, 2023

Note 12 : Other current assets

Balances with government authorities

Right to relmbursement against employee benefit obligations for insurers who are
related parties (Nen-qualifying insurance policies)

Others

Impairment allowance for doubtful advances
Total other current assets

*Figures are restated

(Rs. in lakhs)

As at As at
30-Jun-23 31-Mar-23*

11.18 4.52

335.27 336.26

2,452 93 2,727.30

2,799.38 3,068.08
(66.53) (66.53)
2,132.85 300755
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Note 13: Equity share capital

(Rs. in lakhs)
As at As at
30-Jun-23 31-Mar-23

Authorised Share Capital Amount Amount
20,00,00,000 equity shares (March 31, 2023 - 50,00,000) of Rs. 2/- each. 4,000.00 100.00
i} Movement in Issued, Subscribed and Paid up Equity Share Capital
Issued capital

Mo of Shares Amount
At the beginning of the period** 25,00,000 50.00
Shares to be issued pursuant to Business Combination (Refer Note 40) (Share Capital 11,48,74,114 2,297 .48
Suspense Accounl)
Shares to be cancelled pursuant to Business Combination (Refer Note 40) (25,00,000) (50.00)
As at March 31, 2023 (Restated) 11,48,74,114 2,297.48
Issue during the period - -
As at June 30, 2023 11,48,74,114 2,297.48

**Beginning of the period for the period ended March 31, 2023 is January 19, 2022

ii) Terms and rights attached to equity shares

The Company has only one class of equity shares having a par value of Rs. 2/- per share. Each holder of equity shares is entitled to one vote per
share. In lhe event of liquidation of the Company, the holders of equily shares will be entitled to receive remaining assets of the Company, after
distribution of all preferential amounts. The distribution will be in propartion to the number of equity shares held by the sharehoiders.

iii) Share Capital Suspense Account

As at . As at
Promoter Name 30-~Jun-23 31-Mar-23*
No. of shares Amount No of shares Amount
Sharek peridiha to ke lesued 11,48,74,114 2,297.48 11,48,74,114 2,297.48
(Refer note below)
Total 11,48,74,114 2,297.48 11,48,74,114 2,297.48

Note:-

Hon'ble National Company Law Tribunal, Mumbai Bench ("NCLT") had approved the Scheme of Arrangement between Bajaj Electricals Limited
“Demerged Company”) and Bajel Projects Limited ("Resulting Company") and their respective shareholders ("Scheme”). On July 5, 2023, the
Company had received a certified true copy of the order dated June 8, 2023 ("Order") passed by the Hon'ble NCLT approving the Scheme. Further
on July &, 2023, the Company has recelved a certified true copy of the order dated June 8, 2023 ("Order") passed by the Hon'ble NCLT approving
the Scheme, which has been filed with the Registrar of Companies (ROC), on August 1, 2023, The company has intimated BSE and NSE on August
25, 2023 that the scheme shall become operalive on September 1, 2023 and accordingly, as per clause 1.8 of the Scheme, this date i.e. September
1, 2023, shall be designated as the 'Effective Date' of the Scheme.

Upon the Scheme becoming effective 11,48,74,114 no. of equity shares of Face Value of Rs.2 each will be issued to the shareholders of demerged
company and existing 25,00,000 equity shares of Face value of Rs. 2 each shall automatically get cancelled. As on the date of the Financial
Statements, amount of shares to be issued is shown under Share Capital Suspense Account. (Refer Note 40).

*Figures are restated
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Note 14 : Other Equity

{Rs. in lakhs)
As at As at
30-Jun-23 31-Mar-23*
i) Retained earnings (246.14) (126.10)
ii) Capital reserve (Refer Note 40) 54,369.96 54,369.96
Total Other equity 54,123.82 54,243.86
il Retained earnings (Rs. in lakhs)
As at As at
30-Jun-23 31-Mar-23*
At the beginning of the period** (126.10) -
Add : Net profit/ (loss) for the period (170.42) (158.12)
Add : Other comprehensive income / (loss) (net of tax) 50.38 32.02
Closing Balance — (246.14) (126.10)
“*Beginning of the period for the period ended March 31, 2023 is January 19, 2022
il) Capital reserve
(Rs. in lakhs)
As at As at
30-Jun-23 31-Mar-23*
At the beginning of the period** = =
Addition on account of Business Combination (Refer Note 40) 54,369.96 54,369.96
Closing Balance 54,369,96 54,369.96

**Beginning of the period for the period ended March 31, 2023 is January 19, 2022

Nature and Purpose of Reserves

Retained Earnings

Retained earnings are the profits that the Company has eamed till date, less any transfers to general reserve, dividends or other
distributions paid to shareholders. Retained eamings includes re-measurement loss / (gain) on defined benefit plans, net of
taxes that will not be reclassified to Statement of Profit and Loss. Retained earnings is a free reserve available to the Company.

Capital Reserve

Reserve Is primarily created on business combination as per statutory requirement. This reserve Is utilised in accordance with
the specific provisions of the Companies Act 2013

*Figures are restated
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Note 15 : Trade Payables

Due lo creditors other than micro, small and medium enterprises

Dues to micro, small and medium enterprises **
Total trade payables

{Rs. in lakhs)
As at As at
30-Jun-23 31-Mar-23*
20,886.46 21,666.47
1,543.94 1,716.22
22,430.40 23,382.69

**Information as required to be furnished as per Section 22 of the Micro, Small and Medium Enterprises Development Act, 2006 (MSMED Act, 2006) is
given below. This information has been determined to the extent such parties have been identified on the basis of information available with the

Company.

Principal amount and interest due thereon remaining unpaid to any supplier covered under MSMED Act, 2006:

(Rs. in lakhs)
As at As at
30-Jun-23 31-Mar-23*
Principal 1,459.86 1,413.11
Interest 84.08 303.11
The amount of interest paid by the buyer in terms of Section 16, of the MSMED Act, 2006 along with the amounls of the 74.26 299.65
payment made to the supplier beyond the appointed day during each accounting year.
The amount of interest due and payable for the period of delay in making payment (which have been paid but beyond - -
the appointed day during the year) but without adding the interest specified under MSMED Act, 2006.
The amount of interest accrued and remaining unpaid al the end of each accounting year. 84.08 303.11
The amount of further interest remaining due and payable even in the succeeding years, until such date when the - =
interest dues as above are actually paid to the small enterprise for the purpose of disallowance as a deductible
expenditure under section 23 of the MSMED Act, 2006.
Trade Payables aging schedule as at June 30, 2023***
Outstanding for following periods from transaction date
Particulars Not Due Less than 1 12 Years 2.3 years More than 3 Total
Year years
(i) MSME 116.75 96.35 64.99 41.93 138.45 458.47
(ii) Others 4,457.10 5,840.25 33.09 22.69 10,533.33 20,886.46
(iii) Disputed Dues - MSME - - - - 1,085.47 1,085.47
(iv) Disputed Dues — Others = - 8 - - £
TOTAL 4,573.85 5,936.60 98.08 64,62 11,757.25 22,430.40
Trade Payables aging schedule as at March 31, 2023*** (Restated)
- Qutstanding for followlng periods from transaction date
Particulars Not Due Less than 1 1-2 Years 2.3 years More than 3 Total
Year years
(i) MSME 370.20 78.91 23.02 27.61 131.01 630.75
(ii) Others 4,305.70 4,669.09 56.87 250,22 12,384.59 21,666.47
(ili) Disputed Dues - MSME - - - - 1,085.47 1,085.47
(iv) Disputed Dues — Others - - = = 5 e
TOTAL 4,675.90 4,748.00 79.89 277.83 13,601.07 23,382.69

*Figures are restated

***The ageing is prepared basis Purchases / Services received by the Company when it was part of demerged entity.
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Note 16 : Other Current Financial Liabilities

Trade deposits

Other payables

Employee benefit liabilities

Total other current financial liabilities

All the above financial liabilities are carried at amortised cost

Note 17 : Employee Benefit Obligations

(Rs. in lakhs)
As at As at
30-Jun-23 31-Mar-23*
4.65 0.65
1,545.75 2,642.58
436.01 368.81

1,986.41 3,012.04

(Rs. in lakhs)
As at As at
30-Jun-23 31-Mar-23"

Particulars Current Non Current Total Current Non Current Total

Leave obligations 84.65 290,39 375.04 88.26 303.78 392.04

Interest rate guarantee on provident fund u & - - 9.60 9.60

Gratuily (Refer note 29) - 921.08 921.08 - 925,92 925.92

Total employee benefit obligations 84.65 1,211.47 1,296.12 88.26 1,239.30 1,327.56
Note 18 : Other Current Liabilities

(Rs. in lakhs)

As at As at
30-Jun-23 31-Mar-23*
Statutary liabilities payable 0.74 213
Total other current liabilities 0.74 2.13

*Figures are restated
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Note 19 : Revenue from operations

Sale of products
Contract Revenue
Other operating revenue
Scrap sales
Insurance claims
Others
Total revenue from operations

Note 20 : Other income

Interest income from financial assets at amortised cost
Net gain / (loss) on disposal of property, plant & equipment
Credit balance written back
Others

Total other income

*Figures are restated

(Rs. in lakhs)

For the three months period For the three months period

ended ended
June 30, 2023 June 30, 2022
{Unaudited)*
1,685.12 -
18,040.40 7,811.83
774.35 1,980.57
= 61.23
1.27 129.20
20,501.14 9,992.82
(Rs. in lakhs)

For the three months period  For the three months period

ended ended
June 30, 2023 June 30, 2022
(Unaudited)*
- 372
0.07 (0.48)
405.35 0.74
6.13 11.34
411.55 15.32
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Note 21 : Cost of raw materials consumed

Raw materials at the beginning of the period
Add : Purchases

Less : Raw materials at the end of the peried
Total cost of raw material consumed

Note 22 : Changes in inventories of work-in-progress, finished goods, traded goods

Opening balance
Work in progress
Finished Goods
Traded goods

Total opening balance
Closing balance
Work in progress

Finished Goods
Traded goods

Total Closing balance

Total Changes in inventories of work in progress, traded goods and finished goods

Note 23 : Erection & subcontracting expenses

Erection and subconlracling expense
Total Erectlon and subcontracting expense

Note 24 : Employee benefits expenses

Salarles, wages and bonus

Contribution to provident and other funds
Gratulty

Staff welfare expenses

Total employee beneafit

Note 25 : Depreciation and amortisation expense

Depreciation of property, plant and equipment and investment properties
Depreciation of Right of Use asseis
Total depreciation and amortisati P

"Flaures are resiated

For the three months

96.61

(Rs. in lakhs)

For the three months

period ended period ended
June 30, 2023 June 30, 2022
(Unaudited)*
3,514.47 3.211.46
1,815.21 629.03
2.837.46 2,950.01
2,492.22 890.48
(Rs. In lakhs)
For the three months For the three months
period ended period ended
June 30, 2023 June 30, 2022
(Unaudited)*
245673 228,22
824,92 §19.03
2,551.35 4 B57.2T
5,832.00 5,504.52
2,361.84 1,290.48
1,426.28 356.69
2,185.00 2,004 68
5,973.12 3,651.85
(141.12) 1,852,67
(Rs. In lakhs)
For the three months For the three months
period ended period ended
June 30, 2023 June 30, 2022
(Unaudited)*
1,397 .85 1,151.98
1,397.85 1,151.98
(Rs. In lakhs)
For the three months For the three months
poriod ended period anded
June 30, 2023 June 30, 2022
(Unaudited)*
1,692,486 1,981.14
71.66 65.03
41.90 39.09
G5.45 28.69
1,871.47 2,113.85
(Rs. in lakhs)

For the three months

For the three months

period ended period ended
June 30, 2023 Juna 30, 2022
(Unaudited)*

105.29 105.00

18.78 15.26

124.07 120.26
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Note 26 : Other expenses

Consumplion of slores & spares
Power and fuel
Rent {Refer Note 38)
Repairs and mainlenance
Plant and machinery
Othars
Telephone and communication charges
Rales and taxes
Travel and corweyance
Insurance
Printing and stationary
Freight & forwarding
Commission
Impairment allowance for doubtiul debts and advances (net of reversals)
Bad debls and olher irrecoverable debit balances writlen off
Payments to auditors
Legal and professional fees
Site supporl charges
Seacurity service charges
Miscellaneous expenses
Total other expenses

Note 27 : Finance costs

Interest expense on mobilization advances
Interest expense on lease liabllity
Total Finance Costs

Note 28 : Income Tax Expense

{a} Income Tax Expense

Current Incoma Tax charge
Deferred tax expense | (Incoma)
I tax in the stat

of profit and loss

(b) Reconciliation of tax
domestic tax rate:

and the ting profit multiplied by India’s

Profil from conlinuing operations before income tax expense

Income Tax @ slandard tax rate of 25.168% (March 31, 2022 - 25, 168%)
Parmanenl diffarences due to:

Expendilure on Corporale Social Responsibility

Share issue disallowances

Interest lo MSME

Others

Income Tax Exg reporied in stat t of profit and loss

*Figures are rastated

(Rs, in lakhs)
For the three months  For the three months perlod
period ended ended
June 30, 2023 June 30, 2022
(Unaudited)*
188,15 1684.07
7.2 6392
74.52 76,69
38,56 4042
50,57 44,75
15.78 3366
4.63 6.72
270,20 199.80
249,53 152,77
12.08 14,64
138.28 20759
2584 3519
128.00 678.19
0.06 -
52.56 8.06
387.85 266.93
124.68 131.75
121.00 103.8%
596.75 454.93
2,556.77 2,683.97
{Rs. In lakhs)

For the three months  For the three months perlod

period ended ended
June 30, 2023 June 30, 2022
(Unaudited)*

229.53 60.29

4.24 248

233.77 62.75
(Rs. in lakhs)

Far the three months  For the three months period

period ended ended
June 30, 2023 June 30, 2022
{Unaudited)*

- 212,76

(30.38) (233.07)
{30.38) {20.31)

(Rs. in lakhs)
For the three months  For the three months period
period ended ended
June 30, 2023 June 30, 2022
{Unaudited)*

{200.80) (9.86)
(50.54) (2.48)

0.57 0.66

8.35 0.85

18.69 a.76

(8.45) (28.10)

(30.38) {20.31)
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Note 29 (a) : Gratuity

Disclosure of defined benefit plans are as given below :

The Company has a defined benefit gratuity plan in India (Funded) for its employees, which requires contribution to be made to a separately
administered fund.

The gratuity benefit payable to the employees of the Company is greater of the two : (i) The provisions of the Payment of Gratuity Act, 1972 ar
(ii) The Company's gratuity scheme as described below.

(i) The provisions of the Payment of Gratuity Act, 1972 ;

Benefits as per the Payment of Gratuity Act, 1972

Salary for calculation of Graluily (GS) Last drawn basic salary including dearness allowance (if any)
- 3 z - T
Gratuity Service (SER) Completed years of Continuous Service with part thereof in excess of six
months

Vesling period 5 Years #
Benefit on normal retirement 15/26 * Last drawn salary * No. of completed years

i i f
Benefit on early retirement / termination / resignation / withdrawal 2:: .88 hatnl retirament banailt liased o the service upto the date-o
Benefit on death in service Same as normal retirement benefit and no vesting period condition applies.

(ii) The Company's gratuity scheme :

Benefits as per the Company’s Gratuity Scheme for HO Employees ( Category § - Staff )

: Basic Salary + Special Pay + Personal Pay + Variable Deamess Allowance
Salary for calculation of Graluity (GS) + Fixed Dearness Allowsnce
Grality Service (SER) Completed years of Continuous Service with part thereof in excess of six
months
Vesting period 5 Years #
Benefit on normal retirement 21/26 * Last drawn salary * No. of completed years
5 | ret fit b i L
Benefit on early retirement / termination / resignation / withdrawal a;:ne as normal retirement benefit based on the service uplo the date of
Benefit on death in service Same as narmal retirement benefit and no vesting period condition applies.
Limnit No Limit

Benefits as per the Company’s Gratuity Scheme for HO (Category E - Executives, Category PSG - Project Services Group and
Category Factory Staff - Chakan & Ranjangaon Employees)

HO Category Il : Basic Salary

Salary for calculation of Gratuity (GS) Faclory Staff : Basic Salary + DA, if any

Completed years of Continuous Service with part thereof in excess of six

Gratuity Service (SER) inorithis
Vesting period 5Years #
Service Benefits
Between 5 & 9 years 60% x GS x SER
Benefit on normal retirement Between 10 & 14 years 70% x GS x SER
Between 15 & 24 years 80% x GS x SER
25 years & Abave GS x SER
Service Benefits
Between 5 & 9 years 60% x GS x SER
Benefit on early retirement / termination / resignation / withdrawal Between 10 & 14 years 70% x GS x SER
Between 15 & 24 years 80% x GS x SER
25 years & Above 90% x GS x SER
HO Category Il : GS x SER
Benefit on death in service Factory Staff : Same as normal retirement benefit based on the service upto
the date of exit.
Limit No Limit

# Completion of 240 days during the 5th year can be treated as completion of 1 year of continuous service.
In case of employees with age above the retirement age, the retirement is assumed to happen immedialely and valuation is done accordingly.
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Note 29 (b) : Gratuity

Changes In the Present Value of Obli are as given below (Rs. In lakhs) :
For the period ended
1
Senitlas 30Jun-23 31-Mar-23

Present Value of Obligation as at the beginni: 1,423.90| 1,494.32
Current Service Cost 35.83 132.34
Interest Cost 25.05 88.83
Re-measurement {gain) / loss arising from:

- change in demographic assumptions - {48.06)

- change in financial assumptions 6.22 (55.89)

- sxpenenf:e adjustments (i.e. Actual experience 4.23 40.20
vs assumptions)
Effect of change in Foreign exchange Rates - (26.39)
Benefits Paid {17.97) (201.45)
Present Value of Obligation as at the end (A) 1,477.26 1,423.90
Plan assets expected to be recovered (rsfer note below) (B) 556.18 497.98
Net defined benefit obligation (A - B) 921.08 925.92
The above gratuity plan is considered as unfunded as Bajaj Electricals Limited is in the pi of ing the underlyi

g lying
plan assets of INR 556.18 lakhs (March 31, 2023: INR 497.98 lakhs) and the reimbursement rights in the form of non-qualifying
insurance policy with Bajaj Allianz Insurance Co (related party of the Comapny) of INR 723.09 lakhs {March 31, 2023: INR
684.54 lakhs) in the name of the Company pursuant to the demerger (refer note 40 for details). Accordingly, required
disclosures in relation to plan assets are not given.

A r ised In st of profit and loss and other comprehensive income is as given below (Rs. In lakhs) :
Particulars For the period ended
30-Jun-23 31-Mar-23
Costs charged to statement of profit and loss :
Current Service Cost 35.83 132.34
Interest Expense or Cost 25.05 88.83
I Income (18.98) (86.68)|
Loss/(Gain) on settement - (26.39)
WExpenss recognised in of profit and loss 41.90 108.10
Re-measurement (gain)/loss arising from:
Change in demographic assumptions - (48.06)
Change in financial assumptions 6.22 (55.89)
Experi dj (i.e. Actual experienca vs ptions) (73.55) 61.16
1l )/ Exp r d in Other Comprehensive || (67.33) (42.79)
Total Expense Recognised during the period (25.44) 65.31
The significant actuarial assumptions are as follows:
Financial Assumptions
As at
Particul:
Stieiars 30-Jun-23 31-Mar-23
Discount rate {per annum) 7.15% 7.25%
Salary growth rate (per annum) 8.50% 8.50%
Demographic Assumptions
As at
P
articillars 30-Jun-23 31-Mar-23
Mortality Rate 100% of IALM 12-14  |100% of IALM 12-14
Withdrawal rates, based on age: (per annum) :
Up to 30 years 27.00% 27.00%
31-44 years 18.00% 18.00%
Above 44 years 18.00% 18.00%
Summary of Membership Status
As at
Particulars
= 30-un23 31Mar-23
Number of employees 549 541
Total monthly salary (Rs. In Lakhs) 180.35 174.78
Average past service (years) 10.06 10.04
Average age (years) 39.59 39.40
Average remaining working life (years) 18.41 18.60
Number of completed years valued 5,522 5,429
Decrement adj dr ining working life (years) 4.62 4.62
|Normal retirement age 58.00 : 58.00

* The standard retirement date for executive employees is June 30 and the April 1st for the staff employees. In case of
employees with age above the normal retirement age indicated above, the retirement is d to happen i i and
valuation is done accordingly.
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Note 29 (b) : Gratuity
Sensitivity Analysis
The itivi lysls is d Ined based on bly ible ot of the plions occurring at the end of tha
raporfing period, while holding all olher assumptions constant. (Rs. In lakhs)

Pariiculars 30-Jun-23 31-Mar-23
Defined Benefil Obiigation (Base) 1477.26 1.423.80

Note 29 (c) : Gratulty

{Rs. In Lakhs)
30-Jun-23 31-Mar-23
Partlculars Resull of decrease Result of increase Rosult of decrease Result of
incroase

Discound Rale (-1 +1%) 1.542.64 1.417.60 1,486.33 1,366,865
(% change compared o base due to ivily) A4%] {4.0%) 4.4% (4.0%])
Salary Growih Rate (- / + 1%) 142281 1,535.45 1,371.68 1.478.82
(% change compared lo base due o sensilivity) [3.7%) 39%| (3.7%) 39%
Altrition Rate (- / + 50% of atirition rates) 1.582.9 1.424.66 1,528.53 1,378,866
(% change compared o base due (o sensitivity) 7.8% {3.6%) 7.3% {3.2%
Mariality Rate (- / + 10% of mortality rates) 1476.97 1.477.54 1,423.60 142418

% change o base dus lo ilivity) 0,0% 0.0% 0.0% 1.0%)
Maturity Profile of Defined Benefit Obligation (, in INR}

Particulars 30-Jun-23 31-Mar-23

F\migmm average duration (based on discounted cashiiows} 5 Yaars § Years
[Expecied cash flows over the noxt (valuod on undiscountod basis):(Rs. 30-Jun-23 31-Mar-23

In Inkhs):

1 year 27M.23 267,59

Mare than 1 and uplo 2 years 230.00 22785

More than 2 and uplo 5 years 622.11 584.81

More than 5 and upto 10 years 538,59 514.97

Mara than 10 years 460,78 450.82
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Note 30 : Fair value measurements

(i) Financial instruments by category

The carrying amounts of financial instruments by class are as follows {Rs. in lakhs)
As at As at
Pratiietlare 30-Jun-23 31-Mar-23*

A. Financial assets

I. Measured at amortized cost

Trade Receivables 39,831.45 43,393.73

Cash and Cash Equivalents 66.86 65.25

Other Financial Assets 22,185.80 26,007.97
62,084.11 69,466.95

B. Financial liabilities

I. Measured at amortized cost

Trade Payables 22,430.40 23,382.69

Other Financial Liabilities 1.986.41 3.012.04

Lease Liabilities 424 48 7212
24,841.27 26,466.85

Company uses the following hierarchy for determining and disclosing the fair value of financial instruments by valuation

techniques
Level 1- Quoted (unadjusted) market prices in active markets for identical assets and liabilities

Level 2- Valuation techniques for which lhe lowest level of input that is significant to the fair value measurement is directly or indirectly

observable.

Level 3- Valuation techniques for which the lowest level of inpul that is significant to the fair value measurement is unobservable.

*Figures are restated
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Note 31: Financial risk management objectives and policies

Tho Company's principal financial liabitles comprises of trade payables. The Company's principal [i ial assels Inciude other
financlal assets and cash and cash equlvelents thal is derived direclly from the equily inlusi The C 's risk Is
canled oul by the management under the policies approved of the Board of Oireclors that help in (denlfication, measurement,
mitigation and reporting all risk assoclaled wilh the aclivitles of Ihe Company, The Board of Directors reviews and agrees pobcies for
managing each of these risks, which are summaried below:

(1) Market Risk

ol In market

Maskal risk s the risk that the fair valua of future cash flows of a financlal instrument wil Ik
pricas. Markel risk comprises Ihree types of risk: inleres! risk, cumency risk and equity pricer risk.

(i} Foreign currency risk

Foreign currency fisk is the risk thal tho fair value or fulure cesh flows of an exp will i b of changes in foreign
rales. The Company's exposure lo tho risk of changes in foreign exchange rales relatos primarily lo operaling aclivilles

{when revenue or expense is denominaled in a forelng currency). Company does nol have any foreign cusiency exposure.

(i) Interost rato risk

Interes! rele risk is the risk thal the fair value or fulure cash llows of a fi ial i will flucluate b of changes in markel
inleres! rales. As the Company does not have any floaling Inlerest rate borrowing or deposils, il is nol exposed lo interast rate risk.

(i) Commodity Prico risk

Tho Company's revenue s exposed 1o markel risk of price flucluations relaled lo Ihe sales of ils products. Marko! forces generally
delermine the prices for the producls sold by the Campany. This prices may be influenced by the faclors such as supply, demand,
production cosl (inciuding the cost of raw matarisls) . regional and global economic conditlons and grawth. Adverse changes In any of
the (aclors may reduce lhe revenue thal Company eams fiom sale of {Is products. Tho C y is therefare subjecl lo (it ions in
prices for the purpose ol raw malerials like Aluminium, Copper and other raw material Inputs.

C ging is used primarily as a risk managemenl tool lo secure the future cash flow in case of volalilily by entering into
forward The Company has d Inlo ily forward for aluminium and Copper. Hedging the
price volalility of forecos| atuminium and copper purchases is in accordance wilh the ilsk managemont siralegy outfined by the Board
of Ok Hedging y is based on procwrement schodule and price risk. Commodily is undertaken as a risk offselling
exercise and depending upon markelcondillons, hedges may exlend beyond the financial year.

There is an i Ip the hedged items and the hedging instruments as the lerms of the forelgn exchange end

dily forward malch the lerms of the exp d highly p! le f i {i.e., nolional amount end
expecled payment dale). Tho Coempany has established a hadge ratio of {:1 for the hedging relationships as the underlying risk of the
foreign ge and cc y forward aro | 10 the hedged risk components. To les! the hedge effeclivencss, tho
C y uses lhe hypathelical derivallve method and P the changes In lhe fals value of the hedging Instiuments agains! the

changes in falr value of tha hedged items allributable to the hedged risks.

The hedge ineflocliveness can arise from:

+Differences in the liming of the cash flows of the hedged llems and the hedging insliuments

«Difforant indexes (and accordingly difforoni curvas) knked 1o the hedged risk of the hedged ltems and hedging Instiuments
+Tho counlerpartles’ cradll risk dlfferently impacling the fair value movements of the hedglnginstrumenis and hedged ilems
“Changes 1o tho foracasted amountof cash flows of hedged ilems and hedging instruments

{iv) Equily Price Risk
The Coinpany Is nol exposed lo price risk which arises from Invesimenl measured ai fair value through profil & loss as the company
holds no such investments.

2) Credit Risk
Credil tisk is Ihe risk Ihal counlar parly will not meel lts obligations undor a financial instrumenls or customer conltracts leading lo a
financial less.

i) Trade recolvablos

The Company's exposure o credil fisk is dby the individual ch: istic of each Creditrisk is managed Ihrough
credil approvals, eslablishing creditlimits and conli ly iloring the i thiness of cus! s 10 whichthe Company
grants credit lorms in the normal course of b Since, thg Company is yel lo 1ce it's busi the Company does not

have credil risk exposure dua lo Irade receivable.

ii) Other financlal assots and deposil

Credilrisk Irom balances with Ihe banks are managed by the Company’s Treasury Teamin accordance lo Company's policy.
Counlerparty credll imlis ere ravlewed by Board ol Directors on an annual basls. The limits are se! lo maimise the concentration of
risks and therefore miligale f nanclal loss through counterparty's polenlial failure lo make payments. The Company places its cash
and cash equivalents with banks wilh high Investmenl grade ratings, limils the amaunt ol credit oxposure with any ond bank and
conducls ongamg evelualion of the credit worthiness of the banks wilh which It doas business. Given the high credit 1atings of these
banks. the Company does nol expect these banks to failin meeling thelr obligations.
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3) Liquidity Risk

Liquidily risk refers to the risk lhe Company can not meel ils financial obligations. The objeclive of tiquidity risk management is lo

rnalnlam sufficient liquidily and ensure thal funds are available lor use as per req The Company liqudity risk by
g ad! resetves, banking facllilies and reserve borrowing facilities. by continously monitaring forecas! and aclual cash

flows, and by matching the maturity profiios of financial assets and Babllities, The table betow summarises the maturily profile of he

Company's finanacial liabillties based on contraclual undiscountad paymonts

{Rs, in lakhs)
Particulars  |Carrying value as at |upto 1yoar |Botwoen 1 Between 2 and § More than § yoars  [Total
June 30, 2023 and 2 years |ycars
Trade payables 22,430 40 22,430.40 - - - 22.430.40
22,430.40 22,430.40 + - - 22,430.40
(Rs. In lakhs)
Particulars | Carrying valuo as at |uplo 1 year |Between 1 Botween 2and § Moroe than 5 yoars | Total
March 31, 2023* and 2 yoars  |yecars
Trade payables 23.382.68 23,362.69 - - - 23,382.89
23,382.69 23,382.69 - - - 23,382.69

Note 32: Capital Management
ObJectives of Company's capltal management

The Board policy is lo maintain a strong capital base so as [0 mainain investor, craditor and markel confidence and te sustaln future
developmenl of the business. Tie Board of direclors monllors lhe return on capilal ! ThoC y ges caplal risk by
maintalning sound / optimal capila! stucture through moniloring of financlal ralios on a monthly basls and implements capital structure

plan when y. The Company uses debt ratlo as a capital management index and calculates the ratio as Nel
dobl divided by lolal equity. Nel debl and total equily are based on lhe amounls stated In the financlal slalements.

Oebls ratio is not compuloed as thore Is no debt on lhe Company as on the balance sheet date.

Note 33: Segment reporting

The Company will be primarily engaged in the busi of power and power distribulion, wlilch in lenns of ind AS 108 is
a'Op 9 y a single reporting serment which is also reviewed by the Chief Operating Decision Maker
(CODM).

1) Segment

The amount of revenue from extemal cuslomers broken down by|ocalion if the customars Is shown Inlable below :-

Forthe three months For tho three months

poriod ended period ended

Parllculars June 30, 2023 Juno 30, 2022

{Unaudited)*

India 20,501.14 9,992.82
Qulside India n .

Total 20,501.14 9,992.82

2) Segmenl

Segmenl Assels are measured on the same principles as they have been for the purpose of these Inlerim financial stalomonls. These
assels are al ocated based on lhe operations of tho segmenl and lhe physicallocallon of Ihe assel.

Tho tolal of non-current asseis olher than financiat Insimiments, invesiments and deferred tax assals, broken down by location of the
assels, Is shown below :-

Particulars At feat
30-Jun-23 31-Mar-23°

India 11,505.28 13,067,12
Qutsido Indla 356.87 379.70
Total 11,862.15 13,446.82

*Figures are reslaled
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Note 34: Disclosure of tr tions with related parties

(Rs. In lakhs)
Name of Nature of For the three months For the year ended
Rolatod T i period ended March 31, 2023
and Naturn of June 30, 2023
relationship i lon | O ding | T lon Value Outstanding
Value for the | recelvable / for the ysar recelvahle
period {payable) (payable) carried in
carried In the the Balance Sheet
Balance
Sheat
[A) Parant Entitias
lectricals
Reimbursemeant of 105,60 (109.74) 0.0 (4.14)
Expenses™
Receivable from Bala) (3,B44.12) 21,887.18 25,831.30 25,831.30
Electricals Lid.
(B) Transactions with the Entities which is Controlled or Jointly C dbya identified In para 8
(a) of Ind AS 24 - Related Party Disclosures
Jyotl Structures
Limlted e =—
Services Recelved 155.02 {40.47) 19217 16.23

Reler Nole 36(a) for guarantass issued by Baja] Eleclricals Limited on behalf of the company.

“includas expenses for KMP which have been paid by Baja] Electricals Lid. And reimbursed by the company

Note 35. Earnings per share (EPS):

For tha three For the three
months meonths
Partlculars poriod ended period snded
June 30, 2023 June 30, 2022
(Unaudited)”
(Loss) { Profit for the period {A) {Rs. in Lakhs) (170.42) 10,45|
Waighted average number of equity shares for basic EPS (8 ) 11,48,74,114 11,46,74,114
Welghted average numbar of equity shares for diluled EPS ( C ) 11,48,74,114 11.48,74,114
|Pmﬂt I {Loss) Per Share in Rs.
(a) Basic EPS (A/B) (0.1 0.01
(b) Diluted EPS {A/C) (0.15) 0.01

Upun the Scheme bemhg effective 11,48,74,114 no. of equity shares of Face Value of Rs.2 each will be lssued o the
lders of d pany and existing 25,00,000 equity shares of Face value of Rs. 2 each shall automatically get
cancelled. Henca, furlhn purpese of calculation of EPS equity shares pending lo be issued has baan considersd,

Note 36. Commitments and contingencies
a. Contingent liabllities

(Rs. In lakhs)
Particulars Asat As at
30-Jun-2023 31-Mar-2023*
Contingent Liabiliies not provided for .
|Clai inst d
i m against the Company not acknowledged as 360,58 277,66

*Thess represant lagal claims filed against the Cnrrmanyhyvaﬂws parties and lhasa matiars are in ﬂﬂgaﬂm Managemant has
assessed thatin all these casas the cutflow of fits is not prok

There are certain comporate and performance gusrentees issued by the demerged entity on behalf of the company which are in the
of being ferred (o the Y p tto d (Refer Note 40)

b. Commitments
i, Tha Company does not have any Capital Commifments as on June 30, 2023.

i, During the pravicus year tha C has fully won bidding for the Transmission ne package of
Gt pur, Hapur and Indirap with at Mohanlalganj. The cost estimated to complete the project
has significants d the cost exp i at the time af bidding on account of
+ Delay in awarding the project;

= increase in metal prices,

Considering the same, the company is carrying provision for forseeable losses amounting to Rs.69.22 lakhs
(March 31, 2023 - Rs.147.99 lakhs)

*Flgures are restated
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Note 37: Disclosures of revenue from contracts with customers
The disclosures as required for revenue from contracts with customers are as given below
(i) Disaggregation of revenue

Disaggregation of the Company's revenue from contracts with customers and reconciliation of amount of revenue recognised in the statemant of profit and loss with the contracted price s
as given below.

(Rs. In lakhs)

For the three months period For the three months period

ended
rasiciing Jun:gdoe‘:nzs June 30, 2022
¥ (Unauditod)*
A.  Revenue from contracts with customers
Engineering, procl 1t and construction (EPC} (includes power distribution, fransmission line towers and illumination) 20,501.14 9,992.82
20,501.14 9,992.82
B. R lliation of I price with (A) above
Revenue al contracted price 14,852.70 7,552.12
Unbilled on aceount of work under cerification 5,088.67 59.86
Unearned Revenue 47812 653.60
Others 80,39 1,536.82
Revenue from contracts with customers (a) 20,499.88 9,802.40
Add: Other operaling income (b)
Claims received, export incentives, ele 1.286 190.42
Revenue from operations {a+b) 20,501.14 9,992.82

(Rs. in lakhs)

For the three months period For the three months period
ended ended
June 30, 2022
June 30, 2023 (Unaudited)*
Timing of revenue recognition
Ovar a period of time 20,501,14 9,092.82
R 1e from operali 20,501.14 9,992.82
{ii} Contract balances
The details of the contract assets, contract liabilities and receivables are as under
{Rs. in lakhs)
As at As at
Particulars 30-Jun-23 31-Mar-23*
Contract assets 9,352.20 4,263.52
Contract fiabilities 8,842.09 9,656.40
Accounts receivables 39,831.45 43,393.73
Revenue recognised in the period from:
Amounts included in canlracl liability at the beginning of the period 9,666.40 4,468.74

The conlract assets and contract liabiliies balances mentioned above pertain to the EPC (Engineering, Progurement and Construction) segment of the Company. The Company executes
the work as per lhe terms and agreements mentioned in the contracls. The Company receives payments from the cuslomers based on the milestone achievement and billing schedule as
established in the contracts.

Contract assets are initially recognised for revenue eamed from supply of materials and erection services provided when the performarice obligation is met. Upon achievement and
acceplance of milestones mentioned by the customer, the amounts recagnised as conlracl assels are reclassified lo (rade receivables,

Contract liabililies are related to payments received in advance of performance under the conlract and billing in excess of contract revenue recognised. Canlract liabilities are recognised as
revenue when the Company salisfies lhe performance obligation under the contract.

*Flgures are reslated
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(iii} Performance obligations

Information about the Company's performance obligations Is summarisad below:

The performance obligalions is the supply of materials and ereclion services. The supply of malerials and erection services are promised goods and services which are nat individually
distinat. Hence bath of them are counled as a single performance obligation under the contract. The satisfaction of this perfor oblligation happens over time, as the performance or
enhancement of the obligation is controlled by the cuslomer. Also, the performance of lhe obligation creates an assel wilhout any allernalive use o the customer. The Company uses the

input method o delermine the progress of the salisfaction of the performance obligation and accordingly recognises revenue.

The slandalone seliing price of the performance abligalion is determined afler laking the variable consideration and significant financing component .

lv) Unsatisfied performance obligations

The lransaction price allocaled to the unsatisfiied performance obligations are as below: {Rs. in lakhs)
As at As at
Faicitiar 30-Jun-23 31-Mar-23*
Engineering, procurement and construction (EPC) 1,43,438.10 1,61,476.99
Total 1,43,438.10 1,61,476.99

v) Assets receqnised from the costs fo obtain or fulfil a contract

The incremental costs of oblaining a conlract with a customer are recognised as an asset if fhe Company expects to recover them. The Company incurs costs such as bank guaranize

charges and insurance charges. The Company amortizes the same over the period of the contract.

*Figures are restated
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Note 38: Leases

The Company takes on lease, storage places at various EPC slles to store the inventaries which are used for construction. These leases are generally short term in nature, with very faw
contracts having a tenure of 1-2 years. Furlher, the Company has few gues! houses, residential premises and office premises also on leases which generally for a longer period ranging
from 2-5 years,

The Company's obligations under its leases are secured by lhe lessor's lille to the leased assels. Upon adoption of Ind AS 116, lhe Company applied a single recognition and
measurement approach for all leases for which it is the lesses, excepl for short-term leases and leases of low-value assets. The Company recognises lease liabililles to make lease
paymenis and right-of-use assels representing the right to use lhe underlying assets, on lhe commencement of the lease. There are several lease conlracls thal include extension and
termination options. The Company delermines the lease term as the non-cancellable term of the lease, logether with any periods covered by an option to extend the lease 7l Is reasonably
certain to be exercised, or any periods covered by an option to terminate the lease, if it is reasonably certain not ta be exercised. The leases which the Company enters, does not have any
variable payments. The lease renls are fixed in nalure with gradual escalation in lease rent.

Apart from the above, the Company also has various leases which are either shart term In nalure or the assels wiiich are laken on the leases are generally low value assets (e.g. prinlers).
Lease payments on shori-term leases and leases of low-value assets are recognised as expense on a straight-line basis over the lease term.

The Company has determined leasehold lands also as, right of use assets and hence the same has been classified from property, plant and equipmant lo right of use assets.

Disclosures under Ind AS 116
(Rs. in lakhs)
For the throe months For the three months period
Particulars period ended ented
June 30, 2023 June 30, 2022
(Unaudited}*
Amorlization charge for right of use assels 18.78 15.26
Inlerest expense on lease liabilities 424 248
lL.ease rent expenses for shorl term leases 74.52 76.69
Particulars 30-Jun-23 31-Mar-23*
Cash oulllow towards lease liabililies 18.97 74.59
- as principal 14.73 65.61
- as inlerest 4.24 8.98
Carrying amaount of right of use assets T02.72 351.67
Carrying amount of lease liabilities 42446 7212

For movement of right of use assets, Refer note 4
For movement of lease liability, Refer note 4.
For significant judgements used for accounling right of use assets and lease liabllities, Refer nate 10(6)

Note 39: Corporate Social Responsibility

The requiremants of Seclion 135 and Schedule VIl of the Companies Act, 2013 as well as the provisions of the Companies (Corporate Social Responsibilily Policy) Rules, 2014 are not
applicable to the Company as the Company do not meet applicability criteria mentioned in section 135 (1) of the Companies Act, 2013,

“Figures are restated
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Note 40: Business Combination

Demerger of Companies

During the cumrent perlod, Hon'ble National Company Law Tribunal, Mumbai Bench ("NCLT") has approved lhe S of A g 1L beh Bajaj Electricals Limited
‘Demerged Company") and Bajel Projects Limited (‘Resulling Company™) and Iheir respeclive sharehnlders ("Scheme"), Further on July 5, 2023, the Company has
received a certified true copy of the order dated June 8, 2023 ("Order") passed by the Hon'bls NCLT approving the Scheme, which has been filed with the Registrar of
Companles (ROC), on August 1, 2023. The company has inlimaled BSE and NSE on August 25, 2023 that lhe scheme shall become operative on Seplember 1, 2023
and accordingly, as per clause 1.8 of lhe Scheme, this dale i.e. September 1, 2023, shall be designated as the 'Effeclive Date’ of the Scheme. Accordingly, these
financials statements for the period ended June 30, 2023 have been prepared by considering the Impact of demerger.

Upon the Scheme becoming effective 11,48,74,114 equily shares of Face Value of Rs.2 sach will be issued to the sharehalders of demerged company. As on lhe date of
the Financial Statemenis, amount of shares lo be issued is shown under Share Capital Suspense Account and existing equity share capital shall stand cancelled.

Accordingly, the Company had accounted for the demerger under the pooling of interest method retrospectively for all perinds presented as prescribed in Ind AS 103
Business Combinalions of enlities under common confrol. The previous year numbers have been accordingly restated, The Impact of lhe demerger on lhese Interim
financial statements is as under:

Net Assets transferred on account of business combination

Particulars Rs. In lakhs
Net Assets transferred 56,667.44
Less: Cansideration by way of Shares pending to be issued - [Refer Note 13(lii)] (2,267 48)
Capital Reserve 54,369.96
Accardingly, previous period presented has been restated as under -

(Rs. In lakhs)
Bai Sheet as at March 31, 2023 Reported As on Demergoer mpact Restated as on
Particul March 31, 2023 Assels and Liabilites March 31, 2023
ASSETS
Non-Current Assels
Property, plant and equipment - 4,411.50 4,411.50
Capital work in progress - B0.77 8077
Right-of-use assels . 351.67 351.67
Financial Assels
i) Trade receivables - 6,461.67 6,461.67
ii) Other financial assels 0.20 165.92 156.12
Deferred lax assets (net) - 1,104.84 1,104.84
Income lax assets (net) - 395.32 39532
Other non-current assels - 1,589.76 1,560.76
Total Non-Current Assets 0.20 14,551.45 14,551.65
Current Assals
Inventorles - 9,652.02 9.652.02
Financial Assels
i} Trade receivables - 36,932.06 36,932.06
i) Cash and cash equivalents 40.03 2522 65.25
iii} Other current financial assels 3.50 25,848.35 25,851.85
Other currant assats 4.52 2,997.03 3,001.55
Contracl assets - 4.,263.52 426352 |
Total Current Assets 48.05 79,718.20 79,766.25
Total Assets 48.25 94,269.65 94,317.90
EQUITY & LIABILITIES
Equity
Equity share capital 50.00 2,247 48 220748
Other Equily (30.11) 54,273.97 54,243.86
Total Equity 19.89 56,521.45 56,541.34
LIABILITIES
Nan-Current Liabilllies
Financlal Liabilities
i) Lease liablitles - 17.62 17.62
Employee benefit obligations - 1,239.30 1.239.30
Total Non-Current Liabilities - 1,256.92 1,256.92
Current Liabilities
Financial Liabjlities
i} Lease liabliities - 54.50 54.50
ii) Trade payables
Total Outstanding dues of micro enlerprises & small enlerprises - 1,716.22 1.716.22
Tatal Outstanding dues of olher than micro enlerprises & small enterprises 26.23 21,640.24 21,666.47
jii) Other current financial liabilities - 3,012.04 3,012.04
Employee benefit obligation - 88.26 88.26
Current tax liabilities (net) - 323.82 323.82
Contract liabilities - 9,656.40 9,656.40
Other curreni liabllites 213 - 213
Total Current Liabilities 28.36 36,491.28 36,519.64
Total Liabilitles 28.36 37,748.20 37,776.56
Total Equily & Liabilities 48,25 94,269.65 94,317.90
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Note 41: Ratios

Ratio Numerator Denominator 30-Jun-23 30-Jun-22 % Change Reasons for variance
(Unaudited)*
Current ratlo  |Total currenl assets |Tolal current 2.33 1.65 41.21%|There has been a subslantial increase in current ratio on accounl of
(in times) liabilities increase in overall current assets and decrease in overall current liabilities.
Return on Profit/ (loss) for the |Average total equily -0.30% 0.02%| (1727.64%)|There has been a substantial decline in Relum on Equity Ratio on account
equity ratio (%) |vear of reversal of forseeable loss in one of the projects resulling in abnormal

profit during the quarter ended June 30, 2022,

Inventory Cost of raw Average inventory 1.74 0.66 163,64% | There has been a substanlial rise in Inventory Turnover ratio on account of
turnover ratio |materials consumed increase in average closing Inventary balance.
(in times) + Purchases of

traded goods +

Changes in

Inventories of work-

in-progress, finished
goods, raded goods

+ Ereclion &

subcontracting

expenses
Trade Revenue from Average receivables 0.49 0.15 226.67% |There has been a substantial rise in Trade Receivables turnover ratio on
receivables operations account of higher collections during the guarter ended June 30, 2023,
turnover ratio |(including other
(in times) operating income)
Trade payables |Cost of raw Average payables [ 0.18 294.44% (There has been a subslantial rise in Trade Payables tumaver ratio on
turnover ratio [materials consumed account of higher settlements of creditors during the quarter ended June
{in times) + Purchases of a0, 2023,

traded goods +

Changes in

Inventories of work-
in-progress, finished
goods, traded goods

+ Erection &
subcontracting
expenses
Net capital Revenue from Nel capital (current 0.46 0.38 21.05%]-
turnover ratlo  |operations |assets - eurrant
{in times) (including olher liabilities)
operaling incorme)
Net profit ratio |Profit for the year Revenue from -0.83% 0.10%| (930.00%)|There has been a subslantial decline in Met Profit Ralio on accaunt of
(%) operations reversal of forseeable loss in ane of the projects resulling in abnormal

profit during the quarter ended June 30, 2022,

Return on Finance cost + Average capilal 0.06% 0.09% (33.33%)| There has been a substantial decline in Relurn on Capilal Employed on
capital [Exceptional items + |employed accounl of increase in finance cosls and decline in overall profitability
employed (%) |Profil before tax during the quarler ended June 30, 2023.

*Figures are restated
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Note 42: Other statutory information
1) The Company does not have any Benami property, where any proceeding has been initiated or pending against the Company for halding any Benam| property.

ii) The Company does not have any charges ar salisfaction which is yet to be registered with ROC beyond slatutary period.

Iif} The Company has not traded or invested in Crypto currency or Virtual Currency during the period.

ivjThe Company has not advanced or loaned or invested funds o any other person(s) or entity(ies), including foreign entities (Intermediaries) with the understanding that the
Intermediary shall:

- directly or indirectly lend or invest in other persons or ertitles identified in any manner whatsoever by or on behalf of lhe company (Ullimate Beneficiaries) or

- provide any guarantee, security or the like to or on behall of the Ullimale Beneficiaries

v) The Company has not received any fund frem any person(s) or entity(ies), including forefgn entities (Funding Party) with the understanding (whether recorded in writing or
otherwise) that the Company shall

- direclly or indirectly lend or invest in other persons or entities identified in any manner whalsoever by or on behalf of the Funding Parly {Ultimate Beneficiaries) or

- provide any guarantee, securily or the like on behalf of the Ultimate Beneficiaries,

vi) The Company has not any such Iransaction which is not recorded in the books of accounts that has been surrendered or disclosed as income during the vear in the tax
assessments under the Income Tax Act, 1961 (such as, search or survey or any other relevant provisions of the Income Tax Act, 1961,

vii) The Company has not taken any borrowing from the banksffinancial institutions and therefore requirement of filing quarterly retumns with the bank/financial institutions fs not
applicable lo the Company.

viii) The Company has nol granted any loans or advarices in nature of loans la promoters, directors and KMPs either severally or Jjoinlly wilh any other person during the period
ended June 30, 2023 and March 31, 2023

i%) The Company has not been declared wilful defaulter by any bank, financial institution, government or govermment authority,
x) The Company has not revalued ils properly, plant and equipment (including right-to-Uise assets) or intangible assels during the period ended June 30, 2023 and March 31, 2023.

xi) The Company do not have any Iransactions/balances with companies struck off under Section 248 of Companies Act, 2013 or Section 560 of the Companies Acl, 1956 excepl as
slaled below.

" Count As at As at March
ti
Nature of Transaction Count (G124 (FY23) |June30,2023| 31,2023
Receivables / (Payable) from /{lo} a1 41 1.49 1.65
vendors

Note 43: Subsequent events

The company has evaluated subsequent events from the balance sheel date till the dale of adoplion of accounts, and has determined that there are no malerial items lo disclose.
(Refer Note 40)

*Figures are restated
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Note 44: Previous year's figures have been regrouped / reclassed wherever necessary to correspond with the current period’s classification / disclosure.
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Overview

Our company was incorporated on January 19, 2022, as a wholly owned subsidiary of Bajaj Electricals
Limited under The Companies Act.

Pursuant to the Scheme and the transfer of the Demerged Undertaking of Bajaj Electricals Limited to the
Company, the Company is primarily engaged in providing solutions that include EPC and project
management for all aspects of project execution from conceptualizing to commissioning. The Company’s
business comprises of providing end-to-end EPC solutions or any combination of individual services,
depending on customer's needs and market opportunity. Our Company’s business can be broadly
segregated into (i) the power transmission EPC sub-segment, which is primarily engaged in construction
of EHV transmission lines using inter alia lattice towers, monopoles, cables, AlS and GIS on turnkey basis;
and (ii) the power distribution EPC sub-segment, which is primarily engaged in providing turnkey solutions
for power distribution, feeder separation, rural electrification, and underground cabling.

The Company operates through 4 business verticals, viz., power transmission, power distribution,
monopoles and international EPC. The Company has its own manufacturing facility with state-of-the-art
machinery at Ranjangaon, Maharashtra.

Significant developments in the history of the company

The NCLT, Mumbai bench, vide its order dated June 8, 2023 approved the Scheme.

Our Board of Directors was reconstituted and KMPs were appointed on August 28, 2023
Managing Director Mr Rajesh Ganesh was appointed on September 16, 2023.

We have an overseas project in Zambia issued earlier in the name of Bajaj Electricals Limited and are
working towards having it transferred in the name of the Company.

Other than the above, after the date of last audited special purpose interim financial statement i.e. June
30, 2023, the Directors of our Company confirm that there have not been any significant developments
having material affect or likely to have adverse affect within the next twelve months towards the trading
or profitability of our Company, the value of our assets or our ability to pay the liabilities.

Significant factors affecting our results of operations

Some of the important factors affecting our results are discussed in the section “Risk Factors” beginning
on page .

Accounting Policies

1 Basis of preparation

These Interim Financial Statements are prepared by the Company for the purpose to facilitate the
listing of equity shares of the Company pursuant to Master Circular No.
SEBI/HO/CFD/DIL1/CIR/P/2021/0000000665 dated November 23, 2021 issued by Securities
Exchange Board of India (“SEBI”) and for availing banking facilities. The aforesaid information

)//

Registered Office: Rustomjee Aspiree, 8 Floor, Bhanu Shankar Yagnik Marg, Off Eastern Express Highway, “
Sion (E), Mumbai 400022 | Tel: +91 22 6826 7300 | Website: www.bajelprojects.com | Email: legal@bajelprojects.com Ilﬂjﬂj uﬂmp
CIN No.: U31900MH2022PLC375133 4
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memorandum is to be filed by the Company with the relevant stock exchanges for the proposed
listing of equity shares of the Company.

These Interim Financial Statements consists of Balance sheet, Statement of Profit and Loss,
Statement of Cash flow, Statement of Changes in Equity and specific notes to the Interim Financial
statements for the three months period ended June 30, 2023 along with comparative statement
of the relevant corresponding period end.

The Interim Financial Statements are prepared in accordance with recognition and measurement
principles generally accepted in the Indian Accounting Standards (hereinafter referred to as Ind
AS) as notified by Ministry of Corporate Affairs pursuant to Section 133 of the Companies Act,
2013 (‘the Act’) read with the Companies (Indian Accounting Standards) Rules, as amended from
time to time and other relevant provisions of the act.

Revenue from contract with customers:

Revenue from contracts with customers is recognized when control of the goods or services are
transferred to the customer at an amount that reflects the consideration to which the Company
expects to be entitled in exchange for those goods or services. The Company has generally
concluded that it is the principal in its revenue arrangements, because it typically controls the
goods or services before transferring them to the customer.

The recognition criteria for sale of products and construction contracts is described below

(1) Sale of Products
Revenue from sale of products is recognised upon satisfaction of performance obligations i.e.
over time’ or ‘in time’ based on an assessment of the transfer of control as per the terms of
the contract. In determining the transaction price for the sale of product, the Company
considers the effects of variable consideration, if any. Invoices are issued according to
contractual terms and are usually payable as per the credit period agreed with the customer.

Generally, the Company receives short term advances from its customers. Using the practical
expedientin Ind AS 115, the Company does not adjust the promised amount of consideration
for the effects of a significant financing component if it expects, at contract inception, that
the period between the transfer of the promised good or service to the customer and when
the customer pays for that good or service will be one year or less.

(2) Sale of Services
Services rendered include tower testing and designing, operating and maintenance and other
services. Revenue from providing services is recognised in the accounting period in which the
services are rendered. Invoices are issued according to contractual terms and are usually
payable as per the credit period agreed with the customer.

(3) Construction contracts
Performance obligation in case of construction contracts is satisfied over a-period of time, as
the Company creates an asset that the customer control and the Company:has an enfgrceable

!
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(4)

(5)

(6)

right to payment for performance completed to date if it meets the agreed specifications.
Revenue from construction contracts is recognised based on the stage of completion
determined with reference to the actual costs incurred up to reporting date on the
construction contract and the estimated cost to complete the project. Cost estimates involves
judgments including those relating to cost escalations; assessment of technical, political,
regulatory and other related contract risks and their financial estimation; scope of deliveries
and services required for fulfilling the contractually defined obligations and expected delays,
if any. Provision for foreseeable losses/ construction contingencies on said contracts is made
based on technical assessments of costs to be incurred and revenue to be accounted for. The
Company has long-term receivables from customers. The transaction price for such contracts
is discounted, using the rate that would be reflected in a separate financing transaction
between the Company and its customers at contract inception, to take into consideration the
significant financing component.

Contract balances

Contract asset

A contract asset is the right to consideration in exchange for goods or services transferred to
the customer. If the Company performs by transferring goods or services to a customer before
the customer pays consideration or before payment is due, a contract asset is recognised for
the earned consideration that is conditional.

Trade receivables

A receivable represents the Company’s right to an amount of consideration that is
unconditional {i.e., only the passage of time is required before payment of the consideration
is due).

Contract liabilities

A contract liability is the obligation to transfer goods or services to a customer for which the
Company has received consideration (or an amount of consideration is due) from the
customer. If a customer pays consideration before the Company transfers goods or services
to the customer, a contract liability is recognized when the payment is made or the payment
is due (whichever is earlier). Contract liabilities are recognised as revenue when the Company
performs under the contract.

Leases:

As a lessee:

Right-of-use assets

The Company recognises right-of-use assets at the commencement date of the lease (i.e., the date

the underlying asset is available for use). Right-of-use assets are measured at cost, less any

accumulated depreciation and impairment losses, and adjusted for any remeasurement of lease
liabilities. The cost of right-of-use assets includes the amount of lease liabilities recognised, initial
direct costs incurred, and lease payments made at or before the commencement date less any

lease incentives received. Unless the Company is reasonably certain to obtain ownership of the
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leased asset at the end of the lease term, the recognised right-of-use assets are depreciated on a
straight-line basis over the shorter of its estimated useful life and the lease term. Right-of-use
assets are subject to impairment test.

The Company determines the lease term as the non-cancellable term of the lease, together with
any periods covered by an option to extend the lease if it is reasonably certain to be exercised, or
any periods covered by an option to terminate the lease, if it is reasonably certain not to be
exercised.

The Company has determined leasehold lands also as, right of use assets and hence the same has
been classified from property, plant and equipment to right of use assets.

Leases are capitalised at the commencement of the lease at the inception date fair value of the
leased property or, if lower, at the present value of the minimum lease payments. Lease payments
are apportioned between finance charges and reduction of the lease liability so as to achieve a
constant rate of interest on the remaining balance of the liability. Finance charges are recognised
in finance costs in the statement of profit and loss, unless they are directly attributable to
qualifying assets, in which case they are capitalized in accordance with the Company’s general
policy on the borrowing costs. Contingent rentals are recognised as expenses in the periods in
which they are incurred.

Leases in which a significant portion of the risks and rewards of ownership are retained by the
lessor are classified as operating leases. Payments made under operating leases are charged to
the Statement of Profit and Loss on a straight-line basis over the period of the lease unless the
payments are structured to increase in line with expected general inflation to compensate for the
lessor’s expected inflationary cost increases.

Lease liabilities

At the commencement date of the lease, the Company recognises lease liabilities measured at
the present value of lease payments to be made over the lease term. The lease payments include
fixed payments (including in-substance fixed payments) less any lease incentives receivable,
variable lease payments that depend on an index or a rate, and amounts expected to be paid
under residual value guarantees. The variable lease payments that do not depend on an index or
a rate are recognised as expense in the period on which the event or condition that triggers the
payment occurs.

In calculating the present value of lease payments, the Company uses the incremental borrowing
rate at the lease commencement date if the interest rate implicit in the lease is not readily
determinable.
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Short-term leases and leases of low-value assets

The Company applies the short-term lease recognition exemption to its short-term leases (i.e.,
those leases that have a lease term of 12 months or less from the commencement date and do
not contain a purchase option). It also applies the lease of low-value assets recognition exemption
to leases that are considered of low value (i.e., below Rs. 5,00,000). Lease payments on short-
term leases and leases of low-value assets are recognised as expense on a straight-line basis over

the lease term.

4 Otherincome:

(1)

(2)

Interest income on financial asset is recognised using the effective interest rate method.
The effective interest rate is the rate that exactly discounts estimated future cash receipts
through the expected life of the financial asset to the gross carrying amount of the
financial asset. When calculating the effective interest rate, the Company estimates the
expected cash flows by considering all the contractual terms of the financial instruments.

Others:

The Company recognises other income (including income from income from scrap sales,
income from claims received, etc.) on accrual basis. However, where the ultimate
collection of the same is uncertain, revenue recognition is postponed to the extent of
uncertainty. Rental income arising from operating leases is accounted for on a straight line
basis over !ease terms unless the receipts are structured to increase in line with expected
general inflation to compensate for the expected inflationary cost increases and is
included in the Statement of profit or loss due to its operating nature.

5 Property, plant and equipment :

A) Asset class:

i) Freehold land is carried at historical cost including expenditure that is directly
attributable to the acquisition of the land.

ii) All other items of property, plant and equipment (including capital work in progress)
are stated at historical cost less accumulated depreciation and impairment losses, if
any. Historical cost includes expenditure that is directly attributable to the acquisition
of the items.

iii) Capital goods manufactured by the Company for its own use are carried at their cost
of production (including duties and other levies, if any) less accumulated depreciation
and impairment losses if any.

iv) Subsequent costs are included in the asset’s carrying amount or recognised as a
separate asset, as appropriate, only when it is probable that future economic benefits
associated with the item will flow to the Company and the cost of the item can be
measured reliably. The carrying amount of any component accounted for as a
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v)

vi)

separate asset is derecognised when replaced. All other repairs and maintenance are
charged to the statement of profit or loss during the year in which they are incurred.

Losses arising from the retirement of, and gains or losses arising from disposal of
property, plant and equipments which are carried at cost are recognised in the
statement of profit and loss.

Capital work-in-progress, property, plant and equipment is stated at cost, net of
accumulated depreciation. Such cost includes the cost of replacing part of the
property, plant and equipment and borrowing cost for long-term construction
projects if the recognition criteria are met. When significant parts of property, plant
and equipment are required to be replaced at intervals, the Company depreciates
them separately based on their specific useful lives. Likewise, when a major inspection
is performed, its cost is recognised in the carrying amount of the property, plant and
equipment as a replacement if the recognition criteria are satisfied. All other repairs
and maintenance costs are recognised in profit or loss as incurred. Capital work-in-
progress comprises cost of property, plant and equipment (including related
expenses), that are not yet ready for their intended use at the reporting date.

B) Depreciation:

i)

ii)

i)

iv)

Depreciation is calculated using the straight-line method to allocate their cost, net of
their residual values, over their estimated useful lives. Premium of Leasehold land
and leasehold improvements cost are amortised over the primary period of lease.

100% depreciation is provided in the month of addition for temporary structure cost
at project site

Where a significant component (in terms of cost) of an asset has an economic useful
life different than that of it's corresponding asset, the component is depreciated over
it's estimated useful life.

The Company, based on internal technical assessments and management
estimates, depreciates certain items of property, plant & equipment over the
estimated useful lives and considering residual value which are different from the
one prescribed in Schedule Il of the Companies Act, 2013. The management
believes that these estimated useful lives and residual values are realistic and
reflect fair approximation of the period over which the assets are likely to be used.

Useful life of asset is as given below:

_ Asset block Useful Lives (in years)
Building 5to 70
Factory Building 2to0 30 |
! Ownership Premises 10to 60 -
' Plant & Machinery 1to 22
| Furniture & Fixtures lto24 -
| Electric Installations 1to 25
Office Equipment lto12
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' Vehicles | 8to10
 Dies & Jigs | 1to 10
Temporary Structures | 1t0100 o
| Leasehold Improvements | 2t010 ]
| Roads & Borewell | 3to21
| IT hardware (1to10

vi) The residual values, useful lives and methods of depreciation of property, plant and
equipment are reviewed at each financial year and adjusted prospectively, if
appropriate.

6 Intangible assets:
An intangible asset shall be recognised if, and only if:

(a) it is probable that the expected future economic benefits that are attributable to the asset
will flow to the Company; and

(b) the cost of the asset can be measured reliably.

Intangible assets are stated at cost less accumulated amortization and impairment. Intangible
assets are amortized over their respective individual estimated useful lives on a straight-line basis,
from the date that they are available for use.

Asset class & depreciation:

Computer software / licenses are carried at historical cost. They have an expected finite useful life
of 3 years and are carried at cost less accumulated amortisation and impairment losses. Computer
licenses which are purchased on annual subscription basis are expensed off in the year of
purchase.

Trademarks are carried at historical cost. They have a registered finite useful life of 10 years and
are carried at cost less accumulated amortisation and impairment losses.

Intangible assets with finite lives are amortised over the useful economic life and assessed for
impairment whenever there is an indication that the intangible asset may be impaired. The
amortisation period and the amortisation method for an intangible asset with a finite useful life
are reviewed at least at the end of each reporting period. Changes in the expected useful life or
the expected pattern of consumption of future economic benefits embodied in the asset are
considered to modify the amortisation period or method, as appropriate, and are treated as
changes in accounting estimates. The amortisation expense on intangible assets with finite lives is
recognised in the statement of profit and loss unless such expenditure forms part of carrying value
of another asset.

Research and development costs

Research costs are expensed as incurred. Development expenditures on an individual project are
recognised as an intangible asset when the company can demonstrate:

N P ________§
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* The technical feasibility of completing the intangible asset so that the asset will be available for
use or sale

e |ts intention to complete and its ability and intention to use or sell the asset
¢ How the asset will generate future economic benefits

e The availability of resources to complete the asset

® The ability to measure reliably the expenditure during development

Following initial recognition of the development expenditure as an asset, the asset is carried at
cost less any accumulated amortisation and accumulated impairment losses. Amortisation of the
asset begins when development is complete, and the asset is available for use. it is amortised over
the period of expected future benefit. Amortisation expense is recognised in the statement of
profit and loss unless such expenditure forms part of carrying value of another asset. During the
period of development, the asset is tested for impairment annually.

Investment properties:

Investment properties that are not intended to be occupied substantially for use by, or in the
operations of the Company have been considered as investment property. Investment properties
are measured initially at cost, including transaction costs. Subsequent to initial recognition,
investment properties are stated at cost less accumulated depreciation and accumulated
impairment loss, if any. The Company does not charge depreciation to investment property land
which is held for future undetermined use. Though the Company measures investment property
using cost-based measurement, the fair value of investment property is disclosed in the notes.
Fair values are determined based on an annual evaluation performed by an accredited external
independent valuer applying a valuation model.

Investment properties are derecognised either when they have been disposed of or when they
are permanently withdrawn from use and no future economic benefit is expected from their
disposal. The difference between the net disposal proceeds and the carrying amount of the asset
is recognised in profit or loss in the period of derecognition. In determining the amount of
consideration from the derecognition of investment property the Company considers the effects
of variable consideration, existence of a significant financing component, non-cash consideration,
and consideration payable to the buyer (if any).

Transfers are made to (or from) investment property only when there is a change in use.

The Company depreciates its investment properties over the useful life which is similar to that of
property, plant and equipment.

Impairment of non-financial assets:

The carrying amounts of assets are reviewed at each balance sheet date if there is any indication
of impairment based on internal/external factors. An asset is impaired when the carrying amount
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of the asset exceeds the recoverable amount. The recoverable amount is the higher of an asset’s
fair value less costs of disposal and value in use. For the purposes of assessing impairment, assets
are grouped at the lowest levels for which there are separately identifiable cash inflows which are
largely independent of the cash inflows from other assets or groups of assets (cash-generating
units). Impairment loss is charged to the Statement of Profit & Loss Account in the year in which
an asset is identified as impaired. An impairment loss recognized in the prior accounting periods
is reversed if there has been change in the estimates used to determine the assets recoverable
amount since the last impairment loss was recognised

In assessing value in use, the estimated future cash flows are discounted to their present value
using a pre-tax discount rate that reflects current market assessments of the time value of money
and the risks specific to the asset. In determining fair value less costs of disposal, recent market
transactions are taken into account.

Impairment losses are recognised in the statement of profit and loss, except for properties
previously revalued with the revaluation surplus taken to OCl.

For assets, an assessment is made at each reporting date to determine whether there is an
indication that previously recognised impairment losses no longer exist or have decreased. If such
indication exists, the Company estimates the asset’s or CGU’s recoverable amount. A previously
recognised impairment loss is reversed only if there has been a change in the assumptions used
to determine the asset’s recoverable amount since the last impairment loss was recognised. The
reversal is limited so that the carrying amount of the asset does not exceed its recoverable
amount, nor exceed the carrying amount that would have been determined, net of depreciation,
had no impairment loss been recognised for the asset in prior years. Such reversal is recognised in
the statement of profit or loss unless the asset is carried at a revalued amount, in which case, the
reversal is treated as a revaluation increase.

Financial instruments:

A financial instrument is any contract that gives rise to a financial asset of one entity and a
financial liability or equity instrument of another entity.

I. Financial Assets

A) Initial recognition and measurement

All financial assets are recognised initially at fair value plus, in the case of financial assets not
recorded at fair value through profit or loss, transaction costs that are attributable to the
acquisition of the financial asset.

B) Subsequent measurement

For purposes of subsequent measurement, financial assets are classified in four categories:
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e Debt instruments at amortised cost

A ‘debt instrument’ is measured at the amortised cost if both the following conditions are
met:
e The asset is held within a business model whose objective is to hold assets for
collecting contractual cash flows, and
e Contractual terms of the asset give rise on specified dates to cash flows that are solely
payments of principal and interest (SPPI) on the principal amount outstanding.

This category is the most relevant to the Company. After initial measurement, such financial
assets are subsequently measured at amortised cost using the effective interest rate (EIR)
method. Amortised cost is calculated by taking into account any discount or premium on
acquisition and fees or costs that are an integral part of the EIR. The EIR amortisation is
included in other income in the statement of profit and loss. The losses arising from
impairment are recognised in the profit or loss. This category generally applies to trade and
other receivables.

e Debt instruments at fair value through other comprehensive income (FVTOCI)

A ‘debt instrument’ is classified as at the FVTOCI if both of the following criteria are met:
e The objective of the business model is achieved both by collecting contractual cash
flows and selling the financial assets, and
o The asset’s contractual cash flows represent SPPI.

Debt instruments included within the FVTOCI category are measured initially as well as at
each reporting date at fair value. Fair value movements are recognized in the other
comprehensive income (OCl). On derecognition of the asset, cumulative gain or loss
previously recognised in OCl is reclassified from the equity to statement of profit and loss.
Interest earned whilst holding FVTOCI debt instrument is reported as interest income using
the EIR method.

e Debt instruments at fair value through profit or loss (FVTPL)

FVTPL is a residual category for debt instruments. Any debt instrument, which does not
meet the criteria for categorization as at amortized cost or as FVTQCI, is classified as at
FVTPL.

In addition, the Company may elect to designate a debt instrument, which otherwise meets
amortized cost or FVTOCI criteria, as at FVTPL. However, such election is allowed only if
doing so reduces or eliminates a measurement or recognition inconsistency (referred to as
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‘accounting mismatch’). Debt instruments included within the FVTPL category are
measured at fair value with all changes recognized in the statement of profit and loss.

e Equity instruments measured at fair value through other comprehensive income (FVTOCI)

All equity investments in scope of Ind AS 109 are measured at fair value. Equity instruments
which are held for trading and contingent consideration recognised by an acquirer in a
business combination to which Ind AS103 applies are classified as at FVTPL. For all other
equity instruments, the Company may make an irrevocable election to present in other
comprehensive income subsequent changes in the fair value. The Company makes such
election on an instrument-by-instrument basis. The classification is made on initial
recognition and is irrevocable.

If the Company decides to classify an equity instrument as at FVTOCI, then all fair value
changes on the instrument, excluding dividends, are recognized in the OCI. There is no
recycling of the amounts from OCl to P&L, even on sale of investment. However, the
Company may transfer the cumulative gain or loss within equity.

Equity instruments included within the FVTPL category are measured at fair value with all
changes recognized in the P&L.

C) Derecognition

A financial asset {or, where applicable, a part of a financial asset or part of a group of similar
financial assets) is primarily derecognised (i.e. removed from the Company’s balance sheet) when:

e The rights to receive cash flows from the asset have expired, or

e The Company has transferred its rights to receive cash flows from the asset or has assumed
an obligation to pay the received cash flows in full without material delay to a third party
under a ‘pass-through’ arrangement; and either (a) the Company has transferred
substantially all the risks and rewards of the asset, or (b) the Company has neither
transferred nor retained substantially all the risks and rewards of the asset, but has
transferred control of the asset.

When the Company has transferred its rights to receive cash flows from an asset or has entered
into a pass through arrangement, it evaluates if and to what extent it has retained the risks and
rewards of ownership. When it has neither transferred nor retained substantially all of the risks
and rewards of the asset, nor transferred control of the asset, the Company continues to recognise
the transferred asset to the extent of the Company’s continuing involvement. In that case, the
Company also recognises an associated liability. The transferred asset and the associated liability
are measured on a basis that reflects the rights and obligations that the Company has retained.

Continuing involvement that takes the form of a guarantee over the transferred asset is measured
at the lower of the original carrying amount of the asset and the maximum amount of
consideration that the Company could be required to repay.



97.12

Projects

D) Impairment of financial assets

The Company assesses on a forward looking basis the expected credit losses associated with its
assets carried at amortised cost and FVOCI debt instruments. The impairment methodology
applied depends on whether there has been a significant increase in credit risk. For trade
receivables only, the Company applies the simplified approach permitted by Ind AS 109 Financial
Instruments, which requires expected lifetime losses to be recognised from initial recognition of
the receivables.

Il. Financial Liabilities
A) Initial recognition and measurement

Financial liabilities are classified, at initial recognition, as financial liabilities at fair value through
profit or loss, loans and borrowings, payables, or as derivatives designated as hedging instruments
in an effective hedge, as appropriate.

All financial liabilities are recognised initially at fair value and, in the case of loans and borrowings
and payables, net of directly attributable transaction costs.

B) Subsequent measurement
The measurement of financial liabilities depends on their classification, as described below:

e Financial liabilities at fair value through profit or loss

Financial liabilities at fair value through profit or loss include financial liabilities held for
trading and financial liabilities designated upon initial recognition as at fair value through
profit or loss. Financial liabilities are classified as held for trading if they are incurred for the
purpose of repurchasing in the near term. This category also includes derivative financial
instruments entered into by the Company that are not designated as hedging instruments
in hedge relationships as defined by Ind AS 109. Separated embedded derivatives are also
classified as held for trading unless they are designated as effective hedging instruments.
Gains or losses on liabilities held for trading are recognised in the profit or loss.

Financial liabilities designated upon initial recognition at fair value through profit or loss are
designated as such at the initial date of recognition, and only if the criteriain Ind AS 109 are
satisfied. For liabilities designated as FVTPL, fair value gains/ losses attributable to changes
in own credit risk are recognized in OCI. These gains/ loss are not subsequently transferred
to P&L. However, the Company may transfer the cumulative gain or loss within equity. All
other changes in fair value of such liability are recognised in the statement of profit or loss.

e |Loans and Borrowings

This is the category most relevant to the Company. After initial recognition, interest-bearing
loans and borrowings are subsequently measured at amortised cost using the EIR method.
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Gains and losses are recognised in profit or loss when the liabilities are derecognised as well
as through the EIR amortisation process.

Amortised cost is calculated by taking into account any discount or premium on acquisition
and fees or costs that are an integral part of the EIR. The EIR amortisation is included as

finance costs in the statement of profit and loss.

e Financial guarantee contracts

Financial guarantee contracts issued by the Company are those contracts that require a
payment to be made to reimburse the holder for a loss it incurs because the specified
debtor fails to make a payment when due in accordance with the terms of a debt
instrument. Financial guarantee contracts are recognised initially as a liability at fair value,
adjusted for transaction costs that are directly attributable to the issuance of the guarantee.
Subsequently, the liability is measured at the higher of the amount of loss allowance
determined as per impairment requirements of Ind AS 109 and the amount recognised less
cumulative amortisation.

The fair value of financial guarantees is determined as the present value of the difference
in net cash flows between the contractual payments under the debt instrument and the
contractual payments that would be required without the guarantee, or the estimated
amount that would be payable to a third party for assuming the obligations.

C) De-recognition

A financial liability is derecognised when the obligation under the liability is discharged or
cancelled or expires. When an existing financial liability is replaced by another from the same
lender on substantially different terms, or the terms of an existing liability are substantially
madified, such an exchange or modification is treated as the derecognition of the original liability
and the recognition of a new liability. The difference in the respective carrying amounts is
recognised in the statement of profit or loss.

lll. Reclassification of financial assets / liabilities

After initial recognition, no reclassification is made for financial assets which are equity
instruments and financial liabilities. For financial assets which are debt instruments, a
reclassification is made only if there is a change in the business model for managing those assets.
Changes to the business model are expected to be infrequent. The Company's senior
management determines change in the business model as a result of external or internal changes
which are significant to the Company’s operations.

IV. Offsetting of financial instruments

Financial assets and liabilities are offset and the net amount is reported in the balance sheet
where there is a legally enforceable right to offset the recognised amounts and there is an
intention to settle on a net basis or realise the asset and settle the liability simultaneously. The
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legally enforceable right must not be contingent on future events and must be enforceable in the
normal course of business and in the event of default, insolvency or bankruptcy of Company or
the counterparty.

. Fair value measurements:

The Company measures financial instruments at fair value at each balance sheet date. Fair value
is the price that would be received to sell an asset or paid to transfer a liability in an orderly
transaction between market participants at the measurement date. The fair value measurement
is based on the presumption that the transaction to sell the asset or transfer the liability takes
place either:

¢ In the principal market for the asset or liability, or

e In the absence of a principal market, in the most advantageous market for the asset or

liability

The principal or the most advantageous market must be accessible by the Company. The fair value
of an asset or a liability is measured using the assumptions that market participants would use
when pricing the asset or liability, assuming that market participants act in their economic best
interest.

A fair value measurement of a non-financial asset takes into account a market participant’s ability
to generate economic benefits by using the asset in its highest and best use or by selling it to
another market participant that would use the asset in its highest and best use.

The Company uses valuation techniques that are appropriate in the circumstances and for which
sufficient data are available to measure fair value, maximising the use of relevant cbservable
inputs and minimising the use of unobservable inputs. All assets and liabilities for which fair value
is measured or disclosed in the financial statements are categorised within the fair value hierarchy,
described as follows, based on the lowest level input that is significant to the fair value
measurement as a whole:
e level 1 — Quoted (unadjusted) market prices in active markets for identical assets or
liabilities
¢ Level 2 — Valuation techniques for which the lowest level input that is significant to the fair
value measurement is directly or indirectly observable
e Level 3 — Valuation techniques for which the lowest level input that is significant to the fair

value measurement is unobservable

For assets and liabilities that are recognised in the financial statements on a recurring basis, the
Company determines whether transfers have occurred between levels in the hierarchy by re-
assessing categorisation (based on the lowest level input that is significant to the fair value
measurement as a whole) at the end of each reporting period. External valuers are involved for
valuation of significant assets, such as properties and unquoted financial assets.

For the purpose of fair value disclosures, the Company has determined classes of assets and
liabilities on the basis of the nature, characteristics and risks of the asset or liability and the level
of the fair value hierarchy as explained above.
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This note summarises accounting policy for fair value. Other fair value related disclosures are given
in the relevant notes.

Cash and cash equivalents:

Cash and cash equivalents in the balance sheet and for the purpose of the statement of cash flows,
include cash on hand, other short-term, highly liquid investments with original maturities of three
months or less that are readily convertible to known amounts of cash and which are subject to an
insignificant risk of changes in value.

Inventories:

Inventories are valued at the lower of cost and net realisable value. Costs incurred in bringing each
product to its present location and condition are accounted for as follows:

Raw materials: cost includes cost of purchase and other costs incurred in bringing the inventories
to their present location and condition. Cost is determined on first in, first out basis.

Finished goods and work in progress: cost includes cost of direct materials and labour and a
proportion of manufacturing overheads based on the normal operating capacity but excluding
borrowing costs. Cost is determined on first in, first out basis.

Traded goods: cost includes cost of purchase and other costs incurred in bringing the inventories
to their present location and condition. Cost is determined on weighted average basis.

Initial cost of inventories includes the transfer of gains and losses on qualifying cash flow hedges,
recognised in OCi, in respect of the purchases of raw materials. Net realisable value is the
estimated selling price in the ordinary course of business, less estimated costs of completion and
the estimated costs necessary to make the sale.

Foreign currency transactions:

Items included in the financial statements are measured using the currency of the primary
economic environment in which the Company operates (‘the functional currency’). The financial
statements are presented in Indian Rupee (INR), which is the Company’s functional and
presentation currency.

a) On initial recognition, all foreign currency transactions are recorded at the functional currency
spot rate at the date the transaction first qualifies for recognition.

b) Monetary assets and liabilities in foreign currency outstanding at the close of reporting date
are translated at the functional currency spot rates of exchange at the reporting date.

c) Exchange differences arising on settlement of translation of monetary items are recognised in
the Statement of Profit and Loss.

Non-monetary items that are measured in terms of historical cost in a foreign currency are
translated using the exchange rates at the dates of the initial transactions. Non-monetary items
measured at fair value in a foreign currency are translated using the exchange rates at the date
when the fair value is determined. The gain or loss arising on translation of non-monetary items
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measured at fair value is treated in line with the recognition of the gain or loss on the change in
fair value of the item (i.e., translation differences on items whose fair value gain or loss is
recognised in OCl or profit or loss are also recognised in OCI or profit or loss, respectively)

. Income tax

The income tax expense or credit for the period is the tax payable on the current period’s taxable
income based on the applicable income tax rate for the jurisdiction adjusted by changes in
deferred tax assets and liabilities attributable to temporary differences, unused tax losses and
unabsorbed depreciation.

Current and deferred tax is recognized in the Statement of Profit and Loss except to the extent it
relates to items recognized directly in equity or other comprehensive income, in which case it is
recognized in equity or other comprehensive income.

A. Currentincome tax

The current income tax charge is calculated on the basis of the tax laws enacted or substantively
enacted at the end of the reporting period. The Company establishes provisions, wherever
appropriate, on the basis of amounts expected to be paid to the tax authorities.

Current tax assets and liabilities are offset when there is a legally enforceable right to set off
current tax assets against current tax liabilities.

B. Deferred tax

Deferred tax is provided using the liability method, on temporary differences arising between the
tax bases of assets and liabilities and their carrying amounts in the financial statements. Deferred
tax is determined using tax rates (and laws) that have been enacted or substantially enacted by
the end of the reporting period and are expected to apply when the related deferred income tax
asset is realised or the deferred income tax liability is settled.

The carrying amount of deferred tax assets is reviewed at each reporting date and adjusted to
reflect changes in probability that sufficient taxable profits will be available to allow all or part of
the asset to be recovered.

Deferred tax assets are recognised for all deductible temporary differences and unused tax losses
only if it is probable that future taxable amounts will be available to utilise those temporary
differences and losses.

Deferred tax assets and liabilities are offset when there is a legally enforceable right to offset
current tax assets and liabilities and when the deferred tax balances relate to the same taxation
authority.

Deferred tax relating to items recognised outside profit or loss is recognised outside profit or loss
(either in other comprehensive income or in equity). Deferred tax items are recognised in
correlation to the underlying transaction either in OCl or directly in equity.
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15. Borrowing costs

General and specific borrowing costs that are directly attributable to the acquisition, construction
or production of a qualifying asset are capitalised during the period of time that is required to
complete and prepare the asset for its intended use or sale. Qualifying assets are assets that
necessarily take a substantial period of time to get ready for their intended use or sale. Borrowing
costs also include exchange difference arising from foreign currency borrowings to the extent they
are regarded as an adjustment to interest costs. Investment income earned on the temporary
investment of specific borrowings pending their expenditure on qualifying assets is deducted from
the borrowing costs eligible for capitalisation. Other borrowing costs are expensed in the period
in which they are incurred.

16. Provisions, contingent liabilities and contingent assets

A. Provisions
A provision is recognised if

e the Company has present legal or constructive obligation as a result of an event in the
past;

e itis probable that an outflow of resources will be required to settle the obligation; and

e the amount of the obligation has been reliably estimated.

Provisions are measured at the management’s best estimate of the expenditure required to settle
the obligation at the end of the reporting period. If the effect of the time value of money is
material, provisions are discounted to reflect its present value using a current pre-tax discount
rate that reflects the current market assessments of the time value of money and the risks specific
to the obligation. When discounting is used, the increase in the provision due to the passage of
time is recognised as a finance cost.

The Company provides for general repairs of defects that existed at the time of sale, as required
by the law. Provision for warranty related costs are recognised when the product is sold to the
customer. Initial recognition is based on historical experience. The estimate of warranty related
costs is revised annually.

If the Company has a contract that is onerous, the present obligation under the contract is
recognised and measured as a provision. However, before a separate provision for an onerous
contract is established, the Company recognises any impairment loss that has occurred on assets
dedicated to that contract. An onerous contract is a contract under which the unavoidable costs
(i.e., the costs that the Company cannot avoid because it has the contract) of meeting the
obligations under the contract exceed the economic benefits expected to be received under it.
The unavoidable costs under a contract reflect the least net cost of exiting from the contract,
which is the lower of the cost of fulfilling it and any compensation or penalties arising from failure
to fulfil it. The cost of fulfilling a contract comprises the costs that relate directly to the contract
(i.e., both incremental costs and an allocation of costs directly related to contract activities).
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B. Contingent liabilities

Contingent liabilities are disclosed when there is a possible obligation arising from past events,
the existence of which will be confirmed only by the occurrence or non-occurrence of one or more
uncertain future events not wholly within the control of the Company or a present obligation that
arises from past events where itis either not probable that an outflow of resources will be required
to settle the obligation or a reliable estimate of the amount cannot be made.

A contingent liability recognised in a business combination is initially measured at its fair value.
Subsequently, it is measured at the higher of the amount that would be recognised in accordance
with the requirements for provisions above or the amount initially recognised less, when
appropriate, cumulative amortisation recognised in accordance with the requirements for
revenue recognition.

C. Contingent assets

A contingent asset is a possible asset that arises from past events and whose existence will be
confirmed only by the occurrence or non-occurrence of one or more uncertain future events not
wholly within the control of the entity. A contingent asset is not recognised but disclosed where
an inflow of economic benefit is probable.

Employee benefits

A. Short-term obligations

Liabilities for wages and salaries, including non-monetary benefits that are expected to be
settled wholly within 12 months after the end of the period in which the employees render
the related service are recognised in the same period in which the employees renders the
related service and are measured at the amounts expected to be paid when the liabilities are
settled.

Retirement benefit in the form of provident fund is a defined contribution plan. The Company
has no obligation, other than the contribution payable to the provident fund. The Company
recognises contribution payable to the provident fund scheme as an expense, when an
employee renders the related services. If the Contribution payable to the scheme for service
received before the balance sheet date exceeds the contribution already paid, the deficit
payable to the scheme is recognised as a liability after deducting the contribution already paid.
If the contribution already paid exceeds the contribution due for services received before the
balance sheet date, then excess is recognised as an asset to the extent that the prepayment
will lead to a reduction in future payment or a cash refund.

B. Other long-term employee benefit obligations

The liabilities for earned leave and sick leave are not expected to be settled wholly within 12
months after the end of the period in which the employees render the related service. They
are therefore measured as the present value of expected future payments to be made in
respect of services provided by employees up to the end of the reporting period using the
projected unit credit method. The benefits are discounted using the market yields at the end
of the reporting period that have terms approximating to the terms of the related obligation.
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Remeasurements as a result of experience adjustments and changes in actuarial assumptions
are recognised in the statement of profit or loss.

The obligations are presented as current liabilities in the balance sheet if the entity does not
have an unconditional right to defer settlement for atleast twelve months after the reporting
period, regardless of when the actual settlement is expected to occur.

C. Post-employment obligations
The Company operates the following post-employment schemes
(a) defined benefit plans - gratuity and obligation towards shortfall of Provident Fund Trusts

(b) defined contribution plans - Provident fund (RPFC Contributions), superannuation and
pension

Defined benefit plans :

The liability or asset recognised in the balance sheet in respect of defined benefit plans is the
present value of the defined benefit obligation at the end of the reporting period less the fair
value of plan assets excluding non-qualifying asset (reimbursement right). The defined benefit
obligation is calculated annually by actuaries using the projected unit credit method. The
present value of the defined benefit obligation is determined by discounting the estimated
future cash outflows by reference to market yields at the end of the reporting period on
government bonds that have terms approximating to the terms of the related obligation. The
net interest cost is calculated by applying the discount rate to the net balance of the defined
benefit obligation and the fair value of plan assets. This cost is included in employee benefit
expense in the statement of profit and loss. Remeasurement gains and losses arising from
experience adjustments and changes in actuarial assumptions are recognised in the period in
which they occur, directly in other comprehensive income. They are included in retained
earnings in the statement of changes in equity and in the balance sheet.

Insurance policy held by the Company from insurers who are related parties are not qualifying
insurance policies and hence the right to reimbursement is recognised as a separate assets
under other non-current and/or current assets as the case may be.

Changes in the present value of the defined benefit obligation resulting from plan
amendments or curtailments are recognised immediately in profit or loss as past service cost.

Defined contribution plans :

In respect of certain employees, the Company pays provident fund contributions to publicly
administered provident funds as per local regulations. The Company has no further payment
obligations once the contributions have been paid. Such contributions are accounted for as
employee benefit expense when they are due. Defined contribution to superannuation fund
is being made as per the scheme of the Company. Defined contribution to Employees Pension
Scheme 1995 is made to Government Provident Fund Authority whereas the contributions for
National Pension Scheme is made to Stock Holding Corporation of India Limited
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Segment reporting

An operating segment is a component of the Company that engages in business activities from
which it may earn revenues and incur expenses, whose operating results are regularly reviewed
by the entity’s chief operating decision maker to make decisions about resources to be allocated
to the segment and assess its performance and for which discrete financial information is
available.

Operating segments often exhibit similar long-term financial performance if they have similar
economic characteristics. Two or more operating segments are aggregated by the Company into
a single operating segment if aggregation is consistent with the core principle of Ind AS 108, the
segments have similar economic characteristics, and the segments are similar in aspects as
defined by Ind AS.

The Company reports separately, information about an operating segment that meets any of
guantitative thresholds as defined by Ind AS. Operating segments that do not meet any of the
guantitative thresholds, are considered reportable and separately disclosed, only if management
of the Company believes that information about the segment would be useful to users of the
financial statements

Information about other business activities and operating segments that are not reportable
separately are combined and disclosed in an ‘all other segments’ category

Dividends

The Company recognises a liability to pay dividend to equity holders when the distribution is
authorised and is no longer at the discretion of the Company. As per the corporate laws in India,
a distribution is authorised when it is approved by the shareholders. A corresponding amount is
recognised directly in equity. Interim dividends are recorded as a liability on the date of
declaration by the Company's Board of Directors.

Assets held for sale

The Company classifies non-current assets and disposal groups as held for sale if their carrying
amounts will be recovered principally through a sale rather than through continuing use. Non-
current assets and disposal groups classified as held for sale are measured at the lower of their
carrying amount and fair value less costs to sell. Costs to sell are the incremental costs directly
attributable to the disposal of an asset (disposal group), excluding finance costs and income tax
expense.

The criteria for held for sale classification is regarded as met only when the sale is highly probable,
and the asset or disposal group is available for immediate sale in its present condition. Actions
required to complete the sale/ distribution should indicate that it is unlikely that significant
changes to the sale will be made or that the decision to sell will be withdrawn. Management must
be committed to the sale and the sale expected within one year from the date of classification.
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For these purposes, sale transactions include exchanges of non-current assets for other non-
current assets when the exchange has commercial substance. The criteria for held for sale
classification is regarded met only when the assets or disposal group is available for immediate
sale in its present condition, subject only to terms that are usual and customary for sales of such
assets (or disposal groups), its sale is highly probable; and it will genuinely be sold, not abandoned.

The Company treats sale of the asset or disposal group to be highly probable when:

e The appropriate level of management is committed to a plan to sell the asset (or disposal
group),

e An active programme to locate a buyer and complete the plan has been initiated (if
applicable),

e The asset (or disposal group) is being actively marketed for sale at a price that is
reasonable in relation to its current fair value,

e The sale is expected to qualify for recognition as a completed sale within one year from
the date of classification, and

e Actions required to complete the plan indicate that it is unlikely that significant changes
to the plan will be made or that the plan will be withdrawn.

Property, plant and equipment and intangible are not depreciated, or amortised assets once
classified as held for sale. Assets and liabilities classified as held for sale are presented separately
from other items in the balance sheet.

Earnings per share

Basic earnings per share is calculated by dividing the net profit or loss for the period attributable
to equity shareholders by the weighted average number of equity shares outstanding during the
period. Earnings considered in ascertaining the Company's earnings per share is the net profit for
the period. The weighted average number equity shares outstanding during the period and all
periods presented is adjusted for events, such as bonus shares, other than the conversion of
potential equity shares, that have changed the number of equity shares outstanding, without a
corresponding change in resources. For the purpose of calculating diluted earnings per share, the
net profit of loss for the period attributable to equity shareholders and the weighted average
number of share outstanding during the period is adjusted for the effects of all dilutive potential
equity shares.

All amounts disclosed in the financial statements and notes have been rounded off to the nearest
lakh (upto two decimals) as per the requirement of Schedule Ill, unless otherwise stated.
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Our Results of Operations

The following bullet points sets forth select financial data from our special purpose interim audited
financial statement of profit and loss for period from April 1, 2023 to June 30, 2023:

Total Income: INR 20,912.69 lakhs

Total Expenses: INR 21,113.49 lakhs

Loss before tax: INR 200.80 lakhs

Total comprehensive loss net of tax: INR 120.04 lakhs
Basic and diluted EPS: INR 0.15 (Negative)

Cash and Cash equivalents: INR 66.86 lakhs

Other Receivable: INR 21,987.18 lakhs*

Total Equity/ Net Worth: INR 56,421.30 lakhs

* Other receivables denotes the net impact of amounts collected/paid by Bajaj Electricals Limited on
behalf of Bajel Projects Limited from April 1, 2022 to June 30, 2023

Binda Misra /
42 ’ i =
Chief Financial Oﬁ‘iEEr

Bajel Projects Limited
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SECTION VII - LEGAL AND OTHER INFORMATION
OUTSTANDING LITIGATION AND MATERIAL DEVELOPMENTS

In accordance with the provisions of the SEBI ICDR Regulations, our Company is required to disclose in this
Information Memorandum (i) all outstanding criminal proceedings; (ii) all outstanding actions by statutory or
regulatory authorities; (iii) any disciplinary action including penalty imposed by SEBI or stock exchanges against
our Promoters in the last five financial years (including any outstanding actions); (iv) all outstanding claims related
to direct and indirect taxes; and (iv) other material pending litigation (in terms of the Materiality Policy), in each
case involving our Company, our Directors, and our Promoters. Further the Company is required to disclose
outstanding litigation involving Group Companies, the outcome of which may have a material impact on the
Company.

All outstanding litigation, including any litigation involving our Company, its Promoters and Directors (other than
criminal proceedings,actions by regulatory authorities and statutory authorities, disciplinary action including penalty
imposed by SEBI or stock exchanges against the Promoter in the last five financial years including any outstanding
action and tax matters (direct or indirect)), would be considered ‘material’ if: (i) the monetary amount of claim by
or against the entity or person in any such pending proceeding is in excess of INR 3,75,000, in accordance with the
Materiality Policy; or (ii) where monetary liability is not quantifiable, however, the outcome of any such pending
proceedings may directly or indirectly have a material adverse effect on the business, operations, performance,
prospects, financial position or reputation of the Company. Further, criminal matters initiated by or against our
Group Companies would also be considered “material’.

All terms defined in a particular litigation disclosure below are for that particular litigation only.
OUTSTANDING LITIGATION PROCEEDINGS INVOLVING OUR COMPANY

Our Company did not have any outstanding litigation proceedings prior to the Effective Date. Pursuant to the transfer
of the Demerged Undertaking in accordance with the Scheme, certain litigation proceedings have been transferred
to our Company, the details of which are provided below:

1. Criminal proceedings involving our Company

As of the date of this Information Memorandum, there are no criminal proceedings that have been initiated
against our Company. Further, as of the date of this Information Memorandum, other than as set out below,
there are no criminal proceedings that have been initiated by our Company:

(a) Vijaykumar Atmaram Nadavadekar

BEL has initiated recovery proceedings against its ex-employee, Vijaykumar Atmaram Nadavadekar
including under Section 138 of Negotiable Instruments Act, 1881 for recovery of INR 31,00,000 in relation
to dishonour of cheques and raising forged bills of sub-contractors. The matter is currently pending betfore
the Additional Chief Metropolitan Magistrate, Bhoiwada, Mumbai.

9

Litigation proceedings involving our Company in accordance with the Materiality Policy

b9

Civil proceedings against our Company
(a) Alpha Communications Ltd.

Alpha Communications Ltd. had supplied certain materials to BEL for various project sites in Uttar Pradesh.
BEL identified that the quality and parameters of the material supplied by Alpha Communications Ltd.
were not as per quality standards and specifications hence, stopped payments to Alpha Communications
Ltd. Alpha Communications Ltd. filed an MSME petition before MSEFC in Kanpur. BEL thereafter filed
a counter claim against Alpha Communications Ltd. The case was transferred to MSEFC council in Meerut.
The case is currently pending before the MSEFC, Meerut. As per the statement of claim in the proceedings
before the MSEFC Council, Meerut, Alpha Communications Ltd. has claimed an amount of INR
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(b)

(c)

(d)

(e)

(f)

()

(h)

20,62,45,019 along with interest at three times the bank rate notified by RBI and BEL has filed a counter
claim amounting to INR 4,43,71,345 along with interest at 15% p.a.

Windson International

BEL initiated arbitration proceedings against Windson International for short supply and over supply of
products. On receipt of the arbitration notice from BEL, Windson International initiated MSME
proceedings against BEL for recovery of'a sum of INR 29,50,430 in relation to the goods supplied and BEL
has also filed counterclaim amounting to a sum of INR 10,38.900 against Windson International before
WBSME Facilitation Council, Kolkata. The case is pending before the MSEFC, West Bengal.

Premier Cables and Conductors Pvt. Ltd.

Premier Cable and Conductors Pvt. Ltd. filed a claim before MSEFC Cuttack against BEL for recovery of
outstanding dues against supply of cables and conductors amounting to INR 14,32,000 (principal amount)
and approx. INR 70,00,000 (interest as on September 30, 2018). MSEFC Cuttack passed an award in favor
of Premier Cable and Conductors Pvt. Ltd. directing BEL to pay the outstanding dues. BEL filed a writ
petition before Orissa High Court and the same was allowed. Orissa High Court has remanded the matter
to MSEFC for fresh adjudication. Thereafter no notice has been received from MSEFC initiating fresh
adjudication.

Shakti Saroj

Shakti Saroj, a contractor, in connection with one of the power distribution projects, has filed a consumer
complaint against BEL before District Consumer Dispute Redressal Commission, Ballia (Uttar Pradesh)
for INR 45,26,360 towards the work done and harassment pertaining to work orders for the Purvanchal
Vidyut Vitaran Nigam Limited project. The matter is currently pending before the District Consumer
Dispute Redressal Commission, Ballia.

Kalpataru Infrastructure

Kalpataru Infrastructure, a sub-contractor of BEL, has filed a commercial suit against BEL before the
Commercial Court, Jodhpur for recovery of alleged outstanding dues of INR 17,06,096 pertaining to work
for Jodhpur Vidyut Vitran Nigam Limited. The matter is currently pending before the Commercial Court,
Jodhpur.

Jahanhara Bibi & Others

The legal heirs of late Binchar Ali Mondal (a former worker of BEL), have filed an application before the
Commissioner of Workmen’s Compensation, Kolkata for additional compensation amounting to INR
4,89,529 inrespect of the death of the said worker. The matter is currently pending before the Commissioner
of Workmen’s Compensation, Kolkata.

M/s Rajkumari Devi

M/s Rajkumari Devi had claimed an amount of INR 8,61,875 relating to the work order which was issued
by BEL for work related to installation of transformer, erection of electric pole, stringing of wires etc. for
Purvanchal Vidyut Vitaran Kendra. The matter has been settled between the parties and a withdrawal
application was filed before District Consumer Disputes Redressal Commission. The parties are currently
awaiting an order from District Consumer Disputes Redressal Commission, disposing the case.

Sudhir Pritam Singh Proprietor of M/s Sudhir Singh

M/s Sudhir Singh received an ex-paite order from the Civil Judge, Senior Division and ACJM Nagpur
against BEL, M/s U C Pandey, Amit Construction and Sanika Construction for an amount of INR 11,60,000
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with respect to certain machine hired by M/s U C Pandey, Amit Construction and Sanika Construction from
M/s Sudhir Singh. BEL has filed an objection to an execution petition filed by M/s Sudhir Singh pursuant
to the ex-parte order and has separately filed an application before Joint Civil Judge, Senior Division,
Nagpur for setting aside the ex-parte order.

(1) Mr. Balamurugan P, Proprietor of M/s B S Construction

B S Construction, a contractor of BEL, has filed a claim against the Company before the MSEFC, Madurai
claiming an amount of INR 80,09,462 which is with respect to work order issued in relation to KPTCL’s
Hosadurga Project in Kamataka. The matter is currently pending before the MSEFC, Madurai.

() Mr. Tota Ram

Mr. Tota Ram has filed a case before the Lok Adalat, Pilibhit, claiming an amount of INR 11,14,000 in
respect of the death of his wife Ms. Tarawati on December 31, 2023 caused due to falling off from an
electric pole. The matter is currently pending before the Lok Adalat, Pilibhit.

(k) Mrs. Chinu Yadav

A complaint was filed by Mrs. Chinu Yadav, wife of the deceased Mr. Arjun Singh against Executive
Engineer, Vidyut Vitaran Nigam Limited, Shahjahanpur and Nathu Singh, before the Workmen
Compensation Commissioner/ Assistant Labour Commissioner, Shahjahanpur, claiming an amount of INR
8,00,000 plus 12% interest. Mrs. Chinu Yadav has alleged that while performing duty on the site with
respect to pole work, her husband suffered an electric shock and died on the spot. BEL was made a party
to the case by summons dated May 4, 2023.

(1) Mrs. Shivbholi

A complaint was filed by Mrs. Shivbholi, mother of deceased Mr. Sooraj against Executive Engineer Vidyut
Vitran Nigam Limited, Hardoi, before the Workmen Compensation Commissioner / Assistant Labour
Commissioner, District, Shahjahanpur, claiming a sum of INR 9,05,520 plus 12% interest. Mrs. Shivbholi
has alleged that Sooraj died on January 3, 2019 after suffering an electric shock while laying electric wire.
BEL was made a party to the case by summons dated May 20, 2022.

(m) Mr. Shivappa

Mr. Shivappa has filed a case before Senior Civil Judge, JIMFC, Ramadurga, Belagavi against BEL and an
insurance company claiming compensation of INR 25,00,000/- along with interest at 18% p.a. alleging that
he has suftered electric shock and injuries which are serious in nature while working for BEL at Bhadravati,
Shivamogga District, Karanataka.

(n) Mr. Paramesh

Petition has been filed by Mr. Paramesh before the Senior Civil Judge and Commissioner for Employee
Compensation Tribunal at Shiggaon under the Workmen Compensation Act, 1923 claiming amounts of
INR 38,00,000, along with interest at 18% p.a against Mr. Vedaprakash and Mr. Madan Kumar (employees
of BEL). The petitioner has alleged that on December 26, 2021, while executing the work of fitting an
electrical line at Anekoppa by-pass road, near Bhadra River Bridge Road, Mr. Paramesh sustained grievous
injury and disability. Though the case has been filed against the employees, the petitioner has claimed that
the specified employees of BEL and BEL shall be jointly and severally liable.

(o) Mr. Santosh

Petition has been filed by Mr. Santosh before the Senior Civil Judge and Commissioner for Employee..
Compensation Tribunal at Shiggaon under the Workmen Compensation Act, 1923 claiming amounts ‘of”
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INR 36,00.000, along with interest at 18% p.a against Mr. Vedaprakash and Mr. Madan Kumar (employee
of BEL). The petitioner has alleged that on December 26, 2021, while executing the work of fitting an
electrical line at Anekoppa by-pass road, near Bhadra River Bridge Road, Mr. Santosh sustained grievous
injury and disability. Though the case has been filed against the employees, the petitioner has claimed that
the specified employees of BEL and BEL shall be jointly and severally liable.

(p) Mrs. Ramkali Singh

An ex-parte order has been passed against BEL, wherein the Workmen Compensation
Commissioner/Labour Court, Rewa has directed BEL to pay to the Complainant, Ramkali Singh INR
8.47,160 along with interest at 12% p.a. The order is passed in relation to a complaint filed under Workmen
Compensation Act bearing no. 143/WCAct/17 by Mrs. Ramkali Singh against the chief engineer, Vidyut
Vitran, Rewa M.P, wherein *Bajaj Electricals Power Distribution” was made a party, alleging that on
January 3, 2017, her son died by falling from the pole while doing the stringing work for BEL for the
Project Rajiv Gandhi Vidhut Vitran Yojna - PD, in Rewa MP. BEL is currently in the process of challenging
the said ex-parte order.

2.2 Civil proceedings by our Company
(a) Mr. Aagam Rajkumar Sanklecha (Satyam Cables)

BEL has initiated arbitration proceedings against its supplier, Satyam Cables for INR 1,51,23,361 (along
with the interest at the rate of 18% per annum and liquidated damages to the tune of INR 26,58,866) for
detects in the materials supplied by Satyam Cables. The matter is currently pending adjudication before the
Arbitrator.

3. Actions by statutory or regulatory authorities against our Company

As on date of this Information Memorandum, no actions have been taken by statutory or regulatory authorities
against our Company.

4. Tax proceedings involving our Company

Nature of Case

Number of Cases

Amount involved

Direct Tax

Nil

Nil

Indirect Tax

Nil

Nil

Proceedings initiated against our Company for economic offences

As on date of this Information Memorandum, there are no proceedings that have been initiated against our

Company for any economic offences.

Dues to Creditors

Except as stated below, there are no outstanding dues to creditors ot our Company determined to be material by

our Board in accordance with the Materiality Policy.

Particulars No. of Creditors Aggregate amounts due
(INR lakhs)

MSME 88 1543.94

Material creditors Nil Nil

Other creditors 5102 20886.46

Total 5190 22430.40

Other material outstanding litigation against our Company
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As on the date of this Information Memorandum, there is no other outstanding litigation against our Company,
which has been considered material by our Company in accordance with the Materiality Policy.

OUTSTANDING LITIGATION PROCEEDINGS INVOLVING OUR DIRECTORS

1.

o

l.

Criminal proceedings involving our Directors

For Directors who are Promoters, please refer to the section below on *Outstanding Litigation Proceedings
Involving our Promoters’ on page 98. Other than as set out below, as on date of this Information Memorandum,
no criminal proceedings have been initiated by or against our Directors.

Litigation involving our Directors in accordance with the Materiality Policy

As on date of this Information Memorandum, no civil proceedings have been initiated by or against our
Directors, in accordance with our Materiality Policy.

Actions by statutory or regulatory authorities against our Directors

As on date of this Information Memorandum, no actions by statutory or regulatory authorities have been initiated
against our Directors.

Tax proceedings involving our Directors

As on date of this Information Memorandum, there are no outstanding tax proceedings are pending against our
Directors.

OUTSTANDING LITIGATION PROCEEDINGS INVOLVING OUR PROMOTERS

Criminal proceedings involving our Promoters

As on date of this Information Memorandum, except as stated below, no criminal proceedings have been
initiated by or against our Promoters.

(a) Sundeep Polymers Private Limited filed a complaint before the Additional Chief Metropolitan Magistrate
(ACMM), Mumbai against Bajaj Finance Limited and Mr. Rajivnayan Bajaj, Mr. Madhur Bajaj and others,
alleging, inter alia, criminal conspiracy, dishonesty by the respondents for offences punishable under
Sections 409, 418,420,467, 469, 468, 471 and 34 of the IPC. The complainant has alleged that the security
cheques issued by them in tfavour of Bajaj Finance Limited, in order to comply with the conditions of a
proposed hire- purchase finance agreement, were misused by Bajaj Finance Limited. Bajaj Finance Limited
was served summons to appear before the Magistrate. Bajaj Finance Limited filed a revision application
before the Sessions Court of Greater Mumbai, Sewree on various grounds. The ad hoc Additional Sessions
Judge on April 29, 2010 partly allowed the said revision application, the order of issuance of process dated
December 8, 2006 passed by ACMM was set aside and quashed. The court also directed the ACMM to
hold enquiry. Complainant then filed a criminal revision application before the High Court of Bombay to
set aside the order passed by the ad hoc Additional Sessions Judge. Aggrieved by the said order of the ad
hoc Additional Sessions Judge, Bajaj Finance Limited has also filed a criminal revision application
challenging the order of the ad hoc Additional Sessions Judge before the High Court of Bombay. Moreover,
as per the order of the High Court of Bombay, the complainant is under liquidation. The matter is currently
pending.

(b) Dilip Nevatia, who was the Managing Director of Sundeep Polymers Private Limited has filed a complaint
before the Additional Chief Metropolitan Magistrate (ACMM) against Bajaj Finance Limited, Mr.
Rajivnayan Bajaj, Mr. Madhur Bajaj and others for alleged contravention of Sections 34, 120B, 409, 418,
420, 467, 468, 469, and 471 of the IPC. The complainant has alleged fraud, forgery and cheating by Bajaj
Finance Limited and has stated that a personal guarantee given by him in favour of Bajaj Finance Limited
for compliance with the conditions of a hire-purchase finance agreement proposed to be executed between
Bajaj Finance Limited and Sundeep Polymers Private Limited, was misused by Bajaj Finance Limited by
filling in higher amount without his knowledge. The ACMM found sufficient ground to proceed against
Bajaj Finance Limited and issued summons to appear before it. Bajaj Finance Limited filed a reyision
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(c)

(d)

(e)

()

(2)

application before the Sessions Court of Mumbai to quash the order of the ACMM. The Additional Ad Hoc
Sessions Judge on April 29, 2010 partly allowed the said revision application, the order of issuance of
process dated December 8, 2006 passed by the Magistrate was set aside and quashed. The court also directed
the ACMM to hold an enquiry. The Complainant then filed a criminal revision application before the High
Court of Bombay to set aside the order passed by III Ad Hoc Additional Sessions Judge. Aggrieved by the
said order of Ad Hoc Additional Sessions Judge, Bajaj Finance Limited filed a criminal revision application
on merits before the High Court of Bombay. Further, pursuant to a High Court of Bombay order, Sundeep
Polymers Private Limited is under liquidation. The matter is currently pending.

Mr. Sanjay Kumar Agarwal (customer) filed a complaint in the court of Judicial Magistrate of First Class
(JMFC), Senior Division at Vashi, Mumbai against Bajaj Finserv Limited, Mr. Madhur Bajaj, Mr.
Sanjivnayan Bajaj, Mr. Rajivnayan Bajaj, Mr. Balaji Rao Jagannathrao Doveton and others alleging
defamation and derogation caused by harassment by a collection agent and for not updating the CIBIL
records. These complaints were filed under Sections 120B, 193, 197, 198, 465, 500, 504, 506 and 506(ii)
of the IPC respectively. The IMFC found that there were sufticient grounds to proceed against Bajaj Finserv
Limited and its directors and issued summons. Bajaj Finserv Limited and its directors filed quashing
applications vide criminal revision application nos. 100262/14 and 100263/14 before the Sessions Court,
Thane. The Sessions Court has allowed revision application no. 100262/14 and rejected the revision
application No. 100263/14. Aggrieved by the said order, Bajaj Finserv Limited and its directors filed
revision petition before the High Court of Bombay, which was admitted on August 20, 2019. While the
proceedings have been initiated against Bajaj Finserv Limited, the initial loan in respect of which the
complainant alleged harassment, was disbursed by Bajaj Finance Limited. The matter is currently pending.

Complaint has been filed by Mr. Rishikesh under inter alia Sections 323, 341, 392, 420, 468 and 471 of the
IPC, before the Chief Judicial Magistrate, Muzaffarpur against Mr. Sanjivnayan Bajaj and other employees
of Bajaj Finance Limited accusing them of inter alia, cheating and assault in connection with a loan availed
from Bajaj Finance Limited for purchase of the bike. The complainant alleged that his money was
embezzled, and his bike was wrongfully snatched despite making payments. The matter is currently pending
before the Chief Judicial Magistrate, Muzaftarpur.

Nitin Kataria (customer) filed a complaint with the Station House Officer, Gurugram against Bajaj Finance
Limited, Mr. Rajiv Jain, Mr. Rajivnayan Bajaj, Mr. Balaji Rao Jagannathrao Doveton, Dr Naushad Daraius
Forbes, Ms. Anami N Roy and others in connection with a loan availed from Bajaj Finance Limited. The
complainant alleged, inter alia, that Bajaj Finance Limited’s employees dishonestly induced him to enter
into a loan agreement. Further, the Complainant accused Bajaj Finance Limited of forging the complainant's
signature and fabricating loan documents. Subsequently, the complainant filed a complaint before the
Deputy Commissioner of Police, Gurugram. Due to inaction by the authorities, the complainant filed a
complaint under Section 200 of the CrPC along with an application under Section 156(3) before the Chief
Judicial Magistrate, Gurugram (CGM). The CGM dismissed the application on the grounds that the
allegations could not be proved. Aggrieved by the order of the CGM, the complainant filed a revision
petition before Court of the District and Sessions Judge, Gurugram, Haryana. The matter is currently
pending.

Mr. Sangishetty Babu filed FIR in the court of [X Additional Chief Metropolitan Magistrate against Mr.
Sanjivnayan Bajaj, Bajaj Finserv Limited and others under Sections 34, 384, 418 and 420 of the [PC and
Section 156(3) of the CrPC. The complainant purchased electronics and availed a loan from Bajaj Finserv
Limited and has alleged to have repaid the same. The complainant alleged that he received calls from Bajaj
Finserv Limited threatening him to make payments towards his EMI outstanding and imposed a penalty
forcefully on him. Bajaj Finserv Limited filed a petition to quash the FIR in High Court of Andhra Pradesh,
which was disposed of by the High Court, directing the police to submit an investigation report before the
Chief Metropolitan Magistrate, Hyderabad. An investigation report was submitted before the Chief
Metropolitan Magistrate, Hyderabad stating that the dispute was civil in nature. The matter is currently
pending.

Criminal complaint has been filed by Mr. Ankit Singhal (ex-dealer) against Mr. Rajivnayan Bajaj (in his
capacity as director of Bajaj Auto Limited) and others on dealership related issues. The matter was
investigated by the police who in their final report has not found any criminal element. In an application
filed by Bajaj Auto Limited, the Rajasthan High Court has ordered “No Coercive steps’ in favour of Mr..__
Rajivnayan Bajaj on March 6, 2020. The matter is pending before Additional Chief Metropolitan Magistrate .
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Court, Jaipur — Rajasthan for disposal.

(h) Criminal complaint has been filed by Prem Automobiles, Bethiah (ex-dealer) against Mr. Rajivnayan Bajaj
(in his capacity as director of Bajaj Auto Limited) and others on dealership related issues. Bajaj Auto
Limited has filed an application under Section 482 of Cr.P.C. before the Patna High Court against the
speculative complaint. The Patna High Court has ordered *No Coercive steps’ in favour of Mr. Rajivnayan
Bajaj on September 16, 2019, and the proceedings before Chief Judicial Magistrate- Div. Bettiah, West
Champaran, Bihar have been stayed.

(1) Criminal complaint has been filed by Mr. Ram Narain Garg (ex-dealer) against Mr. Rajivnayan Bajaj (in
his capacity as director of Bajaj Auto Limited) and others on dealership related issues. The proceedings
before Chief Metropolitan Magistrate, Kanpur Nagar, Uttar Pradesh in this regard have been stayed by the
Allahabad High Court by their order dated July 27, 2020.

(J) Complaint has been filed by Mr. Pawan Lakhotia against Mr. Rajivnayan Bajaj (in his capacity as director
of Bajaj Auto Limited) and others in relation to a share transfer matter. The police in its final report have
stated that no criminal offence was found. However, the complainant has filed a Narazgi Petition before
Additional Chief Judicial Magistrate, Alipore Court for re-investigation and cross examination of
investigation by police. Further, the writ petition filed by the complainant before Calcutta High Court
against the police and Bajaj Auto Limited was dismissed on March 9, 2021.

(k) Mr. N. Satyanarayana (customer) filed a private complaint before the [V Additional Chief Metropolitan
Magistrate cum Additional Mahila Magistrate, Vijayawada (“*Magistrate Court™) seeking to take
cognizance of the offences under Sections 120B, 193, 195, 499, 500 and 506 of the [PC against Bajaj
Finance Limited, Mr. Sanjivnayan Bajaj and others. However, the Magistrate Court vide its order dated
March 4, 2016 took cognizance of only some of the respondents under Section 500 of the [PC. Being
aggrieved by the order of the Magistatre Court, the complainant filed an appeal before the XIII Additional
District and Sessions Judge (F.T.C), Vijayawada, (*“Appellate Court™) which vide its order dated November
10,2016 allowed the order of the Magistrate Court in part. Being further aggrieved by order of the Appellate
court, the complainant filed a petition before the High Court of Andhra Pradesh praying, inter alia, to direct
the appellate court to take cognizance of the offences committed by the respondents under Sections 109,
120 B, 193, 195, 499 and 506 of the IPC. The High Court disposed of the petition by an order dated October
12, 2017. The complainant also filed writ petition before the High Court of Andhra Pradesh on September
13, 2017 under Article 14, Article 19, Article 21 and violation of human rights. Subsequently, the
complainant filed five revision petitions before the Metropolitan Sessions Judge, Vijayawada, which were
dismissed by the lower court as there was no prima facie case. The complainant filed a petition under section
319 of CrPC before the Magistrate Court on February 2, 2018, which was dismissed by the Magistrate
Court by an order dated May 7, 2018, against which the complainant filed another revision petition before
the VII Additional District and Sessions Judge, Vijayawada, which was dismissed on March 20, 2019. The
matters are currently pending.

(1) Venkataraman Srinivasan filed a complaint against Bajaj Housing Finance Limited, Mr. Sanjivnayan Bajaj,
Mr. Rajeev Jain and others before the Chief Judicial Magistrate, Jamshedpur (CJM). Pursuant to a hearing,
the CJM sent the complaint to the Bistupur Police Station who subsequently registered a case under, inter
alia, Sections 34, 406, 420, 468, 120-B of the [PC. Pursuant to an investigation by the police, a notice was
issued to the complainant who in turn filed a protest petition before the CJM. The complainant alleged that
Bajaj Housing Finance Limited conspired with Bajaj Allianz Life Insurance Limited Company and
deceived and cheated him in relation to a group insurance policy availed by the complainant from Bajaj
Allianz Life Insurance Limited Company. The CJM took cognizance of the alleged offence and issued
summons to Mr. Rajeev Jain and Bajaj Housing Finance Limited. Subsequently, Bajaj Housing Finance
Limited filed a quashing petition before the High Court of Jharkhand seeking quashing of the cognizance
order and summons issued by the CJM. The High Court of Jharkhand directed the lower court to not take
any coercive steps in the matter. The matter is currently pending.

2. Litigation involving our Promoters in accordance with the Materiality Policy

As on date of this Information Memorandum, other than as set out below, no civil proceedings have been
initiated by or against our Promoters, in accordance with our Materiality Policy:
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(a)

(b)

(d)

(e)

Mr. N Satyanarayana, a customer of Bajaj Finance Limited, has filed a civil suit before the VII Additional
District Judge, Vijayawada against Bajaj Finance Limited, Mr. Rahul Bajaj and Mr. Sanjivnayan Bajaj (in
their capacity as directors of Bajaj Finance Limited) for defamation and has sought damages of INR 10
million. The matter is currently pending before the VII Additional District Judge, Vijayawada.

Mr. Jaluja Lingam Goud, a customer of Bajaj Finserv Limited has filed a complaint before the Telangana
State Human Rights Commission, Hyderabad in relation to loan EMI dues sought by Bajaj Finserv Limited.
Bajaj Finserv Limited has demonstrated its transparent and ethical conduct in the matter and the matter is
currently pending order from the Telangana State Human Rights Commission

Sundeep Polymers Private Limited, a vendor of the Bajaj Auto Limited, supplying plastic moulded
components, filed a suit before the Civil Judge, Senior Division, Nagpur against, Bajaj Finance Limited,
Bajaj Auto Limited, Mr. Rajivnayan Bajaj and three other defendants claiming amongst other things a
compensation of INR 796.4 million for alleged wrongful termination of a 'life-time contract' for supply of
components and on some other counts. Subsequently, through an amendment, Sundeep Polymers Private
Limited added INR 290.6 million as an additional claim amount. Further, in the affidavit of examination in
chief dated October 7, 2013, Sundeep Polymers Private Limited increased its claim to INR 20,822.7 million.
However, in one of Sundeep Polymers Private Limited’s creditors' suit, Sundeep Polymers Private Limited
has been ordered to be wound up and Sundeep Polymers Private Limited is under liquidation. The case is
now transferred to the Company Court, High Court of Bombay from the District Court of Nagpur. The
matter is currently pending.

Civil suit was filed before the Bombay High Court by Mr. Madhavlal Narayanlal Pittie and others against
Bachhraj and Company Private Limited, Mr. Niraj Bajaj, Mr. Sanjivnayan Bajaj and others for an amount
of INR 50 million claimed as damages and alternatively, if shares of Bajaj Hindustan Limited are not
brought back, damages of Rs.19950 million to be paid to Bachhraj and Company Ltd. The plaintiffs filed
the aforesaid suit as a derivative action against defendants for preventing the sale of shares of Bajaj
Hindustan Limited held by defendants at the market price prevailing at that time. Mr. Sanjivnayan Bajaj,
the sole executor of the will of late Mr. Rahul Bajaj has been made a party to the suit post date of death of
late Mr. Rahul Bajaj.

The following claims are pending against Mr. Sanjivnayan Bajaj (in his capacity as chairman of Bajaj
Allianz Life Insurance Company Limited):

# | Complainant | Forum and case Case details Amounts
(Customer) number involved
(INR)
1. | Mr. Kumar | CC No. 472/2018, | Customer demanding refund of total | 4,60,455
Barun District Consumer | premium amount paid due to unsatisfactory
Disputes Redressal | surrender payout.
Commission,
Patna, Bihar
2. | Mr. Gouri | WP (C) | Claiming payment of sum assured, the | 8,42,380
Shankar 13542/2021, Customer has appealed against an award of
Prasad Odisha High Court | the Insurance Ombudsman which was passed
Mishra in favour of Bajaj Allianz Life Insurance
Company Limited.
3. | Mr. Bandi | WP 25923/2021, | Customer has appealed against an award of | 30,00,000
Hannah Telangana  High | the Insurance Ombudsman in relation to
| Benadicta Court repudiation of a death claim.
4. | Ms. Vedwati | EA No. 12/2021, | Appeal has been filed by the Company | 26,00,000
District Consumer | against an order passed in favour of a
Disputes Redressal | customer, where a claim was rejected due to
Commission, medical non-disclosure.
Jhajjar, Haryana
S. Ms. Kuni Das | PLA 117/2022, | Customer has filed a complaint in relation to | 11,59,078
Permanent Lok | repudiation of a death claim due to fraud.
Adalat, Ganjam,
Orissa
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6. | Mr. Pradeep | PLA 118/2022, | Customer has filed a complaint in relation to | 6,88,600
Behera Permanent Lok | repudiation of a claim due to fabrication of
Adalat, Ganjam, | documents.
Orissa
7. Ms. Farida | CC No. 21/2023, | Customer has filed a complaint in relation to | 25,00,000
Kasim Shah District Consumer | repudiation of a death claim due to fraud.
Disputes Redressal
Commission, Pune,
Mabharashtra
8. Mr. Laxman | PLA 29/2023, | Customer has filed a complaint in relation to | 10,63,000
Maharana Permanent Lok | repudiation of a death claim for a policy that
Adalat, Ganjam, | was cancelled since inception.
Orissa
9. | Ms. Prem | CC No. 83/2023, | Customer has filed a complaint in relation to | 7,28,000
Devi District Consumer | repudiation of a death claim due to material
Disputes Redressal | suppression.
Commission,
Nagaur, Rajasthan
10. | Mr.  Patkar | CC No. 92/2023, | Customer has filed a complaint in relation to | 1,00,00,000
Kanti District Consumer | repudiation of a death claim due to material
Disputes Redressal | suppression.
Commission,
Rangareddy,
Telangana
11. | Ms. Kanta | EA 43/2023, | Customer has filed a complaint in relation to | 18,11,167
Kumari District Consumer | repudiation of a death claim due to material
Sahoo Disputes Redressal | suppression.
Commission,
Nayagarh, Orissa
12. | Ms. CC No. 56/2023, | Customer has filed a complaint in relation to | 8,00,000
P.Subhadra District Consumer | repudiation of a death claim due to medical
Disputes Redressal | non-disclosure.
Commission,
Tirupati, Andhra
Pradesh
13. | Mr. Kuldeep | CC No. 46/2023, | Customer has filed a complaint in relation to | 14,43,456
Singh District Consumer | repudiation of a death claim due to medical
Disputes Redressal | non-disclosure.
Commission,
Faridkot, Punjab

Actions by statutory or regulatory authorities against our Promoters in the last S (five) years

There is no litigation or legal action pending or taken by a ministry, department of the Government of India or
statutory authority during the last five (5) years preceding the date of this Information Memorandum against our
Promoters.

4. Tax proceedings involving our Promoters

As on date of this Information Memorandum, there are no outstanding tax proceedings pending against our
Promoters.

OUTSTANDING LITIGATION PROCEEDINGS INVOLVING OUR GROUP COMPANIE

(a) Bajaj Electricals Limited

There is no outstanding litigation initiated by or against BEL, the outcome of which would have a material
impact on the Company. The criminal matters initiated by or against BEL which has been considered
material in accordance with the Materiality Policy are set out below: '
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Particulars | No. of cases —rAmounts involved (INR)
Cases initiated by BEL

Complaint under the Negotiable 203 25,87.99,336

Instruments Act, 1881 including appeal

Criminal Complaints (detailed below) 4 19,50,000

Cases initiated against BEL

Criminal Case (detailed below) ‘ 1 | Nil

(i) Criminal cases initiated by BEL

(A) BEL has filed 3 criminal complaints against Deepak, Vishal Gupta, and Kapital Oberoi
respectively, under Section 63 of the Copyright Act, 1957 and Sections 103 and 104 of the
Trademarks Act, 1999, for economic offences in relation to selling products that are duplicate of
the products of BEL. The matters are currently pending before the respective courts for
adjudication.

(B) BEL has filed a criminal complaint against Amit Berry, Karan Kapoor and Nitin Gupta under
Section 420, 468, 471,411, and 120B of IPC in relation to fraud and cheque bouncing involving
amounts of INR 19,50,000. The matter is currently pending before the Rohini Court, Delhi.

(ii) Cases initiated against BEL

(A) Criminal complaint has been filed by the State of Telangana (Anti-Corruption Bureau) against
various parties (44 parties) including Bajaj Electricals Limited through its Managing Director
under Section 13(1)d and 13(i1) of Prevention of Corruption Act, 1988 and Sections 409, 120B and
34 of IPC for alleged misappropriation of funds during construction of Uppal Cricket Stadium in
Hyderabad. Bajaj Electricals Limited was awarded the tender for the illumination project at the
said stadium. Although Bajaj Electricals Limited has been made a party to the Complaint, there
are no specific charges against Bajaj Electricals Limited in the complaint. The matter is currently
pending before the st Additional Special Judge, SPE & ACB Cases, Nampally Hyderabad.

MATERIAL DEVELOPMENTS

For details of material developments, please see the section titled *‘Management Discussion and Analysis of
Financial Condition and Results of Operations™ on page 97 of this Information Memorandum.

DISCLOSURES PERTAINING TO WILFUL DEFAULTERS

Other than as set out below, the name of the Company and / or any of its Directors does not appear in any list of
wilful defaulters:

The name of Mr. Rajendra Prasad Singh, one of our non-executive and Independent Directors, appears in the list of
wilful defaulters issued by CIBIL in relation to a default of payment of loan(s) availed by GPL from Axis Bank and
PNB. As per the information available on CIBIL’s website, the said default appears for the period from period
December 2016 to December 2017 (as reported by Axis Bank) and from September 2018 to March 2019 (as reported
by PNB). The outstanding amount as of December 31, 2017 was Rs.587.4 million (as reported by Axis Bank) and
was Rs.1,235.4 million (as reported by PNB). Rajendra Prasad Singh has intimated in writing to Axis Bank, PNB
and CIBIL on August 21, 2019, stating that he had resigned from the board of GPL on August 12,2014 and requested
Axis Bank, PNB and CIBIL to issue a letter taking this information on record and requesting them to remove his
name from the list of wilful defaulters. Further, Rajendra Prasad Singh, who was an independent director on the
board of directors of GPL, resigned from its board on August 12, 2014.

In this regard, please see below the disclosures in accordance with the SEBI ICDR Regulations:
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Sr. Particulars Details
No.
(1) Name of the person declared as a wilful defaulter | Rajendra Prasad Singh
(11) Name of the bank declaring the person as a wilful | Axis Bank and PNB
defaulter
(111) Year in which the person was declared as a wilful | December 2016 to December 2017; and September
defaulter 2018 to March 2019
(1v) Outstanding amount when the person was declared | Rs.587.4 million (reported by Axis Bank) and
as a wilful defaulter Rs.1,235.4 million (reported by PNB)
(v) Steps taken, if any, by the person for removal of its | Rajendra Prasad Singh has intimated in writing to
name from the list of wilful defaulters Axis Bank, PNB and CIBIL on August 21, 2019,
stating that he had resigned from the board of
G.E.T. Power Limited on August 12, 2014 and
requested Axis Bank, PNB and CIBIL to issue a
letter taking this information on record and
requesting them to remove his name from the list
of wilful defaulters.
(v1) wilful defaulter or a fraudulent borrower Declared as a “wilful defaulter® by CIBIL.

(vii)

Other disclosures, as deemed fit by the Issuer, in
order to enable investors to take an informed
decision

Rajendra Prasad Singh had resigned from the board
of GPL on August 12,2014, which was prior to the
default on payment of loans by GPL.

(viii)

Any other disclosure as specified by the Board
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GOVERNMENT AND OTHER STATUTORY APPROVALS

Pursuant to the Scheme, all consents, licenses, permits, permissions, authorisations, rights, clarifications, approvals,
clearances, confirmations, declarations, waivers, exemptions, registrations, filings, whether governmental,
statutory, regulatory under Applicable Law and all rights and benefits that have accrued to BEL pertaining to the
Demeiged Undertaking have been transferred and vested in our Company on and from the Effective Dﬁ;’q
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OTHER REGULATORY AND STATUTORY DISCLOSURES
AUTHORITY FOR THE ISSUE

The NCLT through an order dated June 8, 2023 has approved the Scheme of Arrangement for transter of the
Demerged Undertaking of BEL to our Company on and with effect from the Appointed Date. For more details
relating to the Scheme, please refer to section titled “Objects and Rationale of the Scheme™ on page 48 of this
Information Memorandum.

Pursuant to the Scheme, the Equity Shares of Company shall be listed and admitted to trading on BSE and NSE.
Such listing and admission for trading is not automatic and will be subject to fulfilment of listing criteria by Company
as permitted by BSE and NSE for such issues and also subject to such other terms and conditions as may be
prescribed by BSE and NSE at the time of the application for listing by Company.

ELIGIBILITY CRITERIA

There being no initial public offering or rights issue, the eligibility criteria in terms of the SEBI ICDR Regulations
are not applicable. Pursuant to the SEBI Scheme Circular, our Company has filed an exemption application with the
Stock Exchanges for exemption under Rule 19(7) of the SCRR, from the strict enforcement of the requirement of
Rule 19(2)(b) of the SCRR for the purpose of listing of shares of the Company from SEBI.

The Company shall publish, an advertisement in one English and one Hindi newspaper each with nationwide
circulation and one Marathi newspaper with wide circulation since the Registered Office of the Company is located
in Mumbai, Maharashtra, containing details in accordance with the requirements set out in the SEBI Scheme
Circular. The advertisement shall draw specific reterence to the availability of this Information Memorandum on
our Company’s website.

PROHIBITION BY SEBI OR OTHER GOVERNMENTAL AUTHORITIES

Our Company, Promoters, its Promoter Group and Directors have not been prohibited from accessing the capital
market or debarred trom buying, selling or dealing in securities under any order or direction passed by SEBI or any
securities market regulator in any other jurisdiction or any other authority/court.

None of our Directors or Promoters is a director or promoter of any other company which is currently debarred from
accessing the capital markets by SEBI.

Further, none of the Directors are associated with the securities market in any manner, and SEBI has not initiated
any action against any entity, with whom the Directors are associated in the past five years preceding the date of this
Information Memorandum.

COMPLIANCE WITH COMPANIES (SIGNIFICANT BENEFICIAL OWNERSHIP) RULES, 2018

Our Company, Promoters and Promoter Group are in compliance with the Companies (Significant Beneficial
Ownership) Rules, 2018.

GENERAL DISCLAIMER FROM OUR COMPANY

The Company accepts no responsibility for statements made otherwise than in the Information Memorandum or in
the advertisements published in accordance with the requirements set out in the SEBI Scheme Circular or any other
material issued by or at the instance of the Company and anyone placing reliance on any other source of information
would be doing so at their own risk. All information shall be made available by our Company to the public and
investors at large and no selective or additional information would be available for a section of the investors in any
manner.

JURISDICTION

Exclusive jurisdiction for the purpose of this Information Memorandum is with the competent courts / authorities in

Mumbai, India.
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DISCLAIMER CLAUSE OF THE BSE LIMITED

BSE has vide its letter dated December 2, 2022 (bearing reference no. DCS/AMAL/MJ/IP/2584/2022-23) granted
its letter of ‘no adverse observations’ on the Scheme under Regulation 37 of the SEBI LODR Regulations. As per
the letter, the listing of the shares of the Company is at the discretion of BSE and subject to SEBI approval, upon
fulfillment of the following conditions:

[. submission ofthe information memorandum in line with the disclosure requirements applicable for public issues
with BSE for making the same available to the public; and

2. to publish an advertisement in accordance with the requirements of the SEBI Scheme Circular with specific
reference to this Information Memorandum made available to the public through its website.

As required, the Information Memorandum is available on the website of the Company and relevant advertisements
have been published in accordance with the requirements of the SEBI Scheme Circular.

DISCLAIMER CLAUSE OF THE NATIONAL STOCK EXCHANGE OF INDIA LIMITED

NSE has vide its letter dated December 5, 2022 (bearing reference no. NSE/LIST/30157 II) granted its letter of “No
objection™ on the Scheme under Regulation 94 of the SEBI LODR Regulations. As required by the aforementioned
letter, we hereby state that the approval given by NSE should not in any manner be deemed or construed that the
Scheme has been approved by NSE: and/ or NSE does not in any manner warrant, certify or endorse the correctness
or completeness of the details provided for the unlisted Company; does not in any manner take any responsibility
tor the financial or other soundness of the Resulting Company, its promoters, its management etc.

LISTING il

An application has been made to BSE and NSE for permission to deal in and for an official quotation of the Equity
Shares of our Company. The Demerged Company has nominated BSE as the Designated Stock Exchange for the
aforesaid listing of the Equity Shares. The Company has taken steps for completion of necessary formalities for
listing and commencement of trading at BSE and NSE.

ELIGIBILITY FOR THIS ISSUE 8 =
There being no initial public offering or rights issue, the eligibility criteria in terms of the SEBI ICDR Regulations,
as amended does not become applicable. Our Company submitted this Information Memorandum, containing
information about our Company, making disclosures in line with the disclosure requirement for public issues, as
applicable to BSE and NSE. The Information Memorandum, once tinalised, shall be made publicly available through
the respective websites of the Stock Exchanges i.e., www.bseindia.com and www.nseindia.com and through our
website on https://bajelprojects.com. Our Company will publish an advertisement in the newspapers containing its
details as per the SEBI Scheme Circular.

FILING

This Information Memorandum has been filed with BSE and NSE.

CONSENTS

S

Our Company has received written consent from Venus Shah & Associates in relation to the *Statement of Possible
Tax Benefits” included in this Information Memorandum on page 51.

Our Company has received written consent from Frost & Sullivan in relation to the report on ‘I/ndustry Report —
Transmission and Distribution EPC Business in India (June 2023) " included in this Information Memorandum on
page 52.

EXPERT OPINIONS
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We have not obtained any expert opinions for the purpose of this Information Memorandum.

Our Company was incorporated on January 19, 2022 and has not made any public issue or rights issue since
incorporation.

Since the Company has not issued shares to the public in the past, no sum has been paid or is payable as commission
or brokerage for subscribing to or procuring or agreeing to procure subscription for any of the Equity Shares since
its incorporation.

Bajaj Electricals Limited

BEL is a Group Company of our Company. No capital issue undertaken by BEL in the last 3 years, i.e., between FY
2020-21 and 2022-23.

Since incorporation, our Company has not issued any Equity Shares to public. The Equity Shares of our Company
will be listed on the Stock Exchanges pursuant to the Scheme.

Equity Shares of the Company are not listed on any stock exchanges. The Company is seeking approval for listing
of shares through this Information Memorandum.

Except with respect to the Options, there are no outstanding debentures or bonds and redeemable preference shares
and other instruments issued by our Company.

Our Company has the following platforms for addressing investors’ grievances:

1. E-mail ID: legal@bajelprojects.com;

2. SCORES: COMB00709

3. Shareholders can express their grievances by sending mails to above e-mail id or raise complaints in SCORES
(Common Portal introduced by SEBI). Further, the shareholders can also raise their grievances with our
Company Secretary.

Mr. Ajay Nagle is the Company Secretary of our Company. His contact details are as follows:

Address: 801,Rustomjee Aspiree Anik Wadala Link Road Sion East, Mumbai-400022
Tel: 7738321259/ 022-68267300
Email: legal@bajelprojects.com




SECTION VIII - MAIN PROVISIONS OF ARTICLES OF ASSOCIATION

ARTICLES OF ASSOCIATION
OF
BAJEL PROJECTS LIMITED
(A COMPANY LIMITED BY SHARES)

Table ‘F’ Excluded

1. (nH The regulations contained in the Table marked *F in Schedule | | Table "F’ not to apply
to the Companies Act, 2013 shall not apply to the Company,
except in so far as the same are repeated, contained or expressly
made applicable in these Articles or by the said Act.
2) The regulations for the management of the Company and for the | Company to be governed
observance by the members thereto and their representatives, | by these Articles
shall, subject to any exercise of the statutory powers of the
Company with reference to the deletion or alteration of or
addition to its regulations by resolution as prescribed or
permitted by the Companies Act, 2013, be such as are contained
in these Articles.
Interpretation
2 (1) In these Articles —
(a) *Act” means the Companies Act, 2013 or any statutory | ““Act”
modification or re-enactment thereof for the time being
in force and the term shall be deemed to refer to the
applicable section thereof which is relatable to the
relevant Article in which the said term appears in these
Articles and any previous company law, so far as may
be applicable.
(b) “Articles” means these articles of association of the | “Articles™
Company or as altered from time to time.
(c) “Board of Directors™ or *Board”, means the collective | **Board of Directors™ or
body of the directors of the Company. *“Board™
(d) *“Company™ means BAJEL PROJECTS LIMITED. “Company™
(e) “Rules™ means the applicable rules for the time being in | “Rules™
force as prescribed under relevant sections of the Act.
(f) *“Seal™ means the common seal of the Company. “Seal”
2) Words importing the singular number shall include the plural | “Number™ and “Gender”
number and words importing the masculine gender shall, where
the context admits, include the feminine and neuter gender.
(3) Unless the context otherwise requires, words or expressions | Expressions in the Articles
contained in these Articles shall bear the same meaning as in the | to bear the same meaning
Act or the Rules, as the case may be. as in the Act
Share capital and variation of rights
3l | Subject to the provisions of the Act and these Articles, the shares | Shares under control of
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| in the capital of the Company shall be under the control of the

Board who may issue, allot or otherwise dispose of the same or
any of them to such persons, in such proportion and on such
terms and conditions and either at a premium or at par and at such
time as they may from time to time think fit.

Board

3A!

The Authorised Share Capital of the Company shall be as stated
in Clause V of the Memorandum of Association of the Company.

Authorised Share Capital

Subject to the provisions of the Act and these Articles, the Board
may issue and allot shares in the capital of the Company on
payment or part payment for any property or assets of any kind
whatsoever sold or transferred, goods or machinery supplied or
for services rendered to the Company in the conduct of its
business and any shares which may be so allotted may be issued
as fully paid-up or partly paid-up otherwise than for cash, and if
so issued, shall be deemed to be fully paid-up or partly paid-up
shares, as the case may be.

Directors may allot shares
otherwise than for cash

The Company may issue the following kinds of shares in
accordance with these Articles, the Act, the Rules and other
applicable laws:

(a) Equity share capital:

(1) with voting rights; and / or

(i) with differential rights as to dividend, voting or
otherwise in accordance with the Rules; and

(b) Preference share capital

Kinds of Share Capital

(1)

Every person whose name is entered as a member in the register
of members shall be entitled to receive within two months after
allotment or within one month from the date of receipt by the
Company of the application for the registration of transfer or
transmission or within such other period as the conditions of
issue shall provide —

| (a) one certificate for all his shares without payment of any
| charges; or

(b) several certificates, each for one or more of his shares,
upon payment of such charges as may be fixed by the
Board for each certificate after the first.

Issue of certificate

Every certificate shall be under the seal and shall specify the
shares to which it relates and the amount paid-up thereon.

Certificate to bear seal

In respect of any share or shares held jointly by several persons,
the Company shall not be bound to issue more than one
certificate, and delivery of a certificate for a share to one of
several joint holders shall be sufficient delivery to all such
holders.

One certificate for shares
held jointly

A person subscribing to shares offered by the Company shall
have the option either to receive certificates for such shares or
hold the shares in a dematerialised state with a depository. Where

Option to receive share
certificate or hold shares
with depository
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a person opts to hold any share with the depository, the Company
shall intimate such depository the details of allotment of the share
to enable the depository to enter in its records the name of such
person as the beneficial owner of that share.

power to issue or re-issue preference shares of one or more
classes which are liable to be redeemed, or converted to equity
shares, on such terms and conditions and in such manner as
determined by the Board in accordance with the Act.

8. If any share certificate be wom out, defaced, mutilated or torn or | Issue of new certificate in
if there be no further space on the back for endorsement of | place of one defaced, lost
transfer, then upon production and surrender thereof to the | or destroyed
Company, a new certificate may be issued in lieu thereof, and if
any certificate is lost or destroyed then upon proof thereof to the
satisfaction of the Company and on execution of such indemnity
as the Board deems adequate, a new certificate in lieu thereof
shall be given. Every certificate under this Article shall be issued
on payment of fees for each certificate as may be fixed by the
Board.

9. The provisions of the foregoing Articles relating to issue of | Provisions as to
certificates shall mutatis mutandis apply to issue of certificates | issue of certificates
for any other securities including debentures (except where the | to apply mutatis
Act otherwise requires) of the Company. mutandis to

debentures, etc.

10. (1) The Company may exercise the powers of paying commissions | Power to pay commission
conferred by the Act, to any person in connection with the | in connection with
subscription to its securities, provided that the rate per cent or the | securities issued
amount of the commission paid or agreed to be paid shall be
disclosed in the manner required by the Act and the Rules.

(2) The rate or amount of the commission shall not exceed the rate | Rate of commission in
or amount prescribed in the Rules. accordance with Rules
3) The commission may be satisfied by the payment of cash or the | Mode of payment of
allotment of fully or partly paid shares or partly in the one way | commission
and partly in the other.

11. (1) [f at any time the share capital is divided into different classes of | Variation of members’
shares, the rights attached to any class (unless otherwise provided | rights
by the terms of issue of the shares of that class) may, subject to
the provisions of the Act, and whether or not the Company is
being wound up, be varied with the consent in writing, of such
number of the holders of the issued shares of that class, or with
the sanction of a resolution passed at a separate meeting of the
holders of the shares of that class, as prescribed by the Act.

2) To every such separate meeting, the provisions of these Articles | Provisions as to general
relating to general meetings shall mutatis mutandis apply. meetings to apply mutatis
mutandis to each meeting

12 The rights conferred upon the holders of the shares of any class | Issue of further shares not
issued with preferred or other rights shall not, unless otherwise | to aftect rights of existing
expressly provided by the terms of issue of the shares of that | members
class, be deemed to be varied by the creation or issue of further
shares ranking pari passu therewith.

13. Subject to the provisions of the Act, the Board shall have the | Power to issue redeemable

preference shares
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(1)

The Board or the Company, as the case may be, may, in
accordance with the Act and the Rules, issue further shares to —

(a) persons who, at the date of offer, are holders of equity
shares of the Company; such offer shall be deemed to
include a right exercisable by the person concerned to
renounce the shares offered to him or any of them in
favour of any other person; or

(b) employees under any scheme of employees’ stock
option; or

(c) any persons, whether or not those persons include the
persons referred to in clause (a) or clause (b) above.

Further issue of share
capital

2)

A further issue of shares may be made in any manner whatsoever
as the Board may determine including by way of preferential
offer or private placement, subject to and in accordance with the
Act and the Rules.

Mode of further issue of
shares

Lien

15.

(1)

The Company shall have a first and paramount lien —

(a) on every share (not being a fully paid share), for all
monies (whether presently payable or not) called, or
payable at a fixed time, in respect of that share; and

(b) on all shares (not being fully paid shares) standing
registered in the name of a member, for all monies
presently payable by him or his estate to the Company:

Provided that the Board may at any time declare any share to be
wholly or in part exempt from the provisions of this clause.

Company’s lien on shares

2)

The Company’s lien, if any, on a share shall extend to all
dividends or interest, as the case may be, payable and bonuses
declared from time to time in respect of such shares for any
money owing to the Company.

Lien to extend to dividends,
etc.

3)

Unless otherwise agreed by the Board, the registration of a
transfer of shares shall operate as a waiver of the Company’s lien.

Waiver of lien in case of
registration

16.

The Company may sell, in such manner as the Board thinks fit,
any shares on which the Company has a lien:

Provided that no sale shall be made—

(a) unless a sum in respect of which the lien exists is
presently payable; or

(b) until the expiration of fourteen days after a notice in
writing stating and demanding payment of such part of
the amount in respect of which the lien exists as is
presently payable, has been given to the registered
holder for the time being of the share or to the person
entitled thereto by reason of his death or insolvency or
otherwise.

As to enforcing lien by sale
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(1)

To give etfect to any such sale, the Board may authorise some
person to transfer the shares sold to the purchaser thereof.

Validity of sale

2)

The purchaser shall be registered as the holder of the shares
comprised in any such transfer.

Purchaser to be registered
holder

3

The receipt of the Company for the consideration (if any) given
for the share on the sale thereof shall (subject, if necessary, to
execution of an instrument of transfer or a transfer by relevant
system, as the case may be) constitute a good title to the share
and the purchaser shall be registered as the holder of the share.

Validity of Company’s
receipt

(4)

The purchaser shall not be bound to see to the application of the
purchase money, nor shall his title to the shares be affected by
any irregularity or invalidity in the proceedings with reference to
the sale.

Purchaser not affected

18.

(1)

The proceeds of the sale shall be received by the Company and
applied in payment of such part of the amount in respect of which
the lien exists as is presently payable.

Application of proceeds of
sale

The residue, if any, shall, subject to a like lien for sums not
presently payable as existed upon the shares before the sale, be
paid to the person entitled to the shares at the date of the sale.

Payment of residual money

19.

In exercising its lien, the Company shall be entitled to treat the
registered holder of any share as the absolute owner thereof and
accordingly shall not (except as ordered by a court of competent
jurisdiction or unless required by any statute) be bound to
recognise any equitable or other claim to, or interest in, such
share on the part of any other person, whether & creditor of the
registered holder or otherwise. The Company’s lien shall prevail
notwithstanding that it has received notice of any such claim.

Outsider’s lien not to affect
Company’s lien

The provisions of these Articles relating to lien shall mutatis
mutandis apply to any other securities including debentures of
the Company.

Provisions as to lien to
apply mutatis mutandis to
debentures, etc.

Calls on shares

(1)

The Board may, from time to time, make calls upon the members
in respect of any monies unpaid on their shares (whether on
account of the nominal value of the shares or by way of premium)
and not by the conditions of allotment thereof made payable at
fixed times.

Board may make calls

Each member shall, subject to receiving at least fourteen days’
notice specifying the time or times and place of payment, pay to
the Company, at the time or times and place so specified, the
amount called on his shares.

Notice of call

3)

The Board may, from time to time, at its discretion, extend the
time fixed for the payment of any call in respect of one or more
members as the Board may deem appropriate in any
circumstances.

Board may extend time for
payment

(G))

A call may be revoked or postponed at the discretion of the

Revocation or
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Board.

postponement of call

9
9

A call shall be deemed to have been made at the time when the
resolution of the Board authorising the call was passed and may
be required to be paid by instalments.

Call to take effect from
date of resolution

The joint holders of a share shall be jointly and severally liable
to pay all calls in respect thereof.

Liability of joint holders of
shares

(1

If a sum called in respect of a share is not paid before or on the
day appointed for payment thereof (the “due date™), the person
from whom the sum is due shall pay interest thereon from the due
date to the time of actual payment at such rate as may be fixed
by the Board.

When interest on call or
instalment payable

The Board shall be at liberty to waive payment of any such
interest wholly or in part.

Board may waive interest

Any sum which by the terms of issue of a share becomes payable
on allotment or at any fixed date, whether on account of the
nominal value of the share or by way of premium, shall, for the
purposes of these Articles, be deemed to be a call duly made and
payable on the date on which by the terms of issue such sum
becomes payable.

Sums deemed to be calls

(2)

In case of non-payment of such sum, all the relevant provisions
of these Articles as to payment of interest and expenses,
forfeiture or otherwise shall apply as if such sum had become
payable by virtue of a call duly made and notified.

Effect of non-payment of
sums

The Board —

(a) may, if it thinks fit, receive from any member willing to
advance the same, all or any part of the monies uncalled
and unpaid upon any shares held by him: and

(b) upon all or any of the monies so advanced, may (until
the same would, but for such advance, become presently
payable) pay interest at such rate as may be fixed by the
Board. Nothing contained in this clause shall confer on
the member (a) any right to participate in profits or
dividends or (b) any voting rights in respect of the
moneys so paid by him until the same would, but for
such payment, become presently payable by him.

Payment in anticipation of
calls may carry interest

[f by the conditions of allotment of any shares, the whole or part
of the amount of issue price thereof shall be payable by
instalments, then every such instalment shall, when due, be paid
to the Company by the person who, for the time being and from
time to time, is or shall be the registered holder of the share or
the legal representative of a deceased registered holder.

Instalments on shares to be
duly paid

All calls shall be made on a uniform basis on all shares falling
under the same class.

Explanation: Shares of the same nominal value on which
different amounts have been paid-up shall not be deemed to fall
under the same class.

Calls on shares of same
class to be on uniform basis
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Neither a judgment nor a decree in favour of the Company for
calls or other moneys due in respect of any shares nor any part
payment or satisfaction thereof nor the receipt by the Company
of a portion of any money which shall from time to time be due
from any member in respect of any shares either by way of
principal or interest nor any indulgence granted by the Company
in respect of payment of any such money shall preclude the
forfeiture of such shares as herein provided.

Partial payment not to
preclude forfeiture

30.

The provisions of these Articles relating to calls shall mutatis
mutandis apply to any other securities including debentures of
the Company.

Provisions as to calls to
apply mutatis mutandis to
debentures, etc.

Transfer of shares

31.

(1

The instrument of transfer of any share in the Company shall be
duly executed by or on behalf of both the transferor and
transferee.

Instrument of transfer to be
executed by transferor and
transferee

(2)

The transferor shall be deemed to remain a holder of the share
until the name of the transferee is entered in the register of
members in respect thereof.

The Board may, subject to the right of appeal conferred by the
Act decline to register —

Board may refuse to
register transfer

(a) the transfer of a share, not being a fully paid share, to a
person of whom they do not approve; or

(b) any transfer of shares on which the Company has a lien.

33.

In case of shares held in physical form, the Board may
decline to recognise any instrument of transfer unless —

Board may decline to
recognise instrument of
transfer

(a) the instrument of transfer is duly executed and is in the
form as prescribed in the Rules made under the Act;

(b) the instrument of transfer is accompanied by the
certificate of the shares to which it relates, and such
other evidence as the Board may reasonably require to
show the right of the transferor to make the transfer; and

(©) the instrument of transfer is in respect of only one class
of shares.

34.

On giving of previous notice of at least seven days or such lesser
period in accordance with the Act and Rules made thereunder,
the registration of transfers may be suspended at such times and
for such periods as the Board may from time to time determine:

Provided that such registration shall not be suspended for more
than thirty days at any one time or for more than forty-five days
in the aggregate in any year.

Transfer of shares when
suspended

35.

The provisions of these Articles relating to transfer of shares
shall mutatis mutandis apply to any other securities including
debentures of the Company.

Provisions as to transfer of
shares to apply mutatis
mutandis to debenture$; gté™
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Transmission of shares

36.

(1

On the death of a member, the survivor or survivors where the
member was a joint holder, and his nominee or nominees or legal
representatives where he was a sole holder, shall be the only
persons recognised by the Company as having any title to his
interest in the shares.

Title to shares on death of a
member

()

Nothing in clause (1) shall release the estate of a deceased joint
holder from any liability in respect of any share which had been
jointly held by him with other persons.

Estate of deceased member
liable

37.

(1)

Any person becoming entitled to a share in consequence of the
death or insolvency of a member may, upon such evidence being
produced as may from time to time properly be required by the
Board and subject as hereinatter provided, elect, either —

Transmission Clause

(a) to be registered himself as holder of the share; or

(b) to make such transfer of the share as the deceased or
insolvent member could have made.

()

The Board shall, in either case, have the same right to decline or
suspend registration as it would have had, if the deceased or
insolvent member had transferred the share before his death or
insolvency.

Board’s right unaffected

(3)

The Company shall be fully indemnified by such person from all
liability, if any, by actions taken by the Board to give effect to
such registration or transfer.

Indemnity to the Company

38.

(1)

If the person so becoming entitled shall elect to be registered as
holder of the share himself, he shall deliver or send to the
Company a notice in writing signed by him stating that he so
elects.

Right to election of holder
of share

If the person aforesaid shall elect to transfer the share, he shall
testify his election by executing a transfer of the share.

Manner of testifying
election

All the limitations, restrictions and provisions of these
regulations relating to the right to transfer and the registration of
transfers of shares shall be applicable to any such notice or
transfer as aforesaid as if the death or insolvency of the member
had not occurred and the notice or transfer were a transfer signed
by that member.

Limitations applicable to
notice

39.

A person becoming entitled to a share by reason of the death or
insolvency of the holder shall be entitled to the same dividends
and other advantages to which he would be entitled if he were
the registered holder of the share, except that he shall not, before
being registered as a member in respect of the share, be entitled
in respect of it to exercise any right conferred by membership in
relation to meetings of the Company:

Provided that the Board may, at any time, give notice requiring
any such person to elect either to be registered himself or to
transfer the share, and if the notice is not complied with within

Claimant to be entitled to
same advantage

120




ninety days, the Board may thereafter withhold payment of all
dividends, bonuses or other monies payable in respect of the
share, until the requirements of the notice have been complied
with.

40.

The provisions of these Articles relating to transmission by
operation of law shall mutatis mutandis apply to any other
securities including debentures of the Company.

Provisions as to
transmission  to  apply
mutatis mutandis to
debentures, etc.

Forfeiture of shares

41.

If a member fails to pay any call, or instalment of a call or any
money due in respect of any share, on the day appointed for
payment thereof, the Board may, at any time thereafter during
such time as any part of the call or instalment remains unpaid or
a judgement or decree in respect thereof remains unsatisfied in
whole or in part, serve a notice on him requiring payment of so
much of the call or instalment or other money as is unpaid,
together with any interest which may have accrued and all
expenses that may have been incurred by the Company by reason
of non-payment.

[f call or instalment not
paid notice must be given

The notice aforesaid shall:

Form of notice

(a) name a further day (not being earlier than the expiry of
fourteen days from the date of service of the notice) on
or before which the payment required by the notice is to
be made; and

(b) state that, in the event of non-payment on or before the
day so named, the shares in respect of which the call was
made shall be liable to be forfeited.

43.

If the requirements of any such notice as aforesaid are not
complied with, any share in respect of which the notice has been
given may, at any time thereafter, before the payment required
by the notice has been made, be forfeited by a resolution of the
Board to that effect.

In default of payment of
shares to be forfeited

44.

Neither the receipt by the Company for a portion of any money
which may from time to time be due from any member in respect
of his shares, nor any indulgence that may be granted by the
Company in respect of payment of any such money, shall
preclude the Company from thereafter proceeding to enforce a
forfeiture in respect of such shares as herein provided. Such
forfeiture shall include all dividends declared or any other
moneys payable in respect of the forfeited shares and not actually
paid before the forfeiture.

Receipt of part amount or
grant of indulgence not to
affect forfeiture

When any share shall have been so forfeited, notice of the
forfeiture shall be given to the defaulting member and an entry
of the forfeiture with the date thereof, shall forthwith be made in
the register of members but no forfeiture shall be invalidated by
any omission or neglect or any failure to give such notice or make
such entry as aforesaid.

Entry of forfeiture in
register of members

46.

The forfeiture of a share shall involve extinction at the time of
forfeiture, of all interest in and all claims and demands against

Effect of forfeiture
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the Company, in respect of the share and all other rights
incidental to the share.

47. ) A forfeited share shall be deemed to be the property of the | Forfeited shares may be
Company and may be sold or re-allotted or otherwise disposed | sold, etc.
of either to the person who was before such forfeiture the holder
thereof or entitled thereto or to any other person on such terms
and in such manner as the Board thinks fit.

(2) At any time before a sale, re-allotment or disposal as aforesaid, | Cancellation of forteiture
the Board may cancel the forfeiture on such terms as it thinks fit.

48. (1) A person whose shares have been forfeited shall cease to be a | Members still liable to pay
member in respect of the forfeited shares, but shall, | money owing at the time of
notwithstanding the forfeiture, remain liable to pay, and shall | forfeiture
pay, to the Company all monies which, at the date of forfeiture,
were presently payable by him to the Company in respect of the
shares.

(2) All such monies payable shall be paid together with interest | Member still liable to pay
thereon at such rate as the Board may determine, from the time | money owing at time of
of forfeiture until payment or realisation. The Board may, if it | forfeiture and interest
thinks fit, but without being under any obligation to do so,
enforce the payment of the whole or any portion of the monies
due, without any allowance for the value of the shares at the time
of forfeiture or waive payment in whole or in part.

3) The liability of such person shall cease if and when the Company | Cesser of liability
shall have received payment in full of all such monies in respect
of the shares.

49. (1) A duly verified declaration in writing that the declarant is a | Certificate of forfeiture
director, the manager or the secretary of the Company, and that
a share in the Company has been duly forfeited on a date stated
in the declaration, shall be conclusive evidence of the facts
therein stated as against all persons claiming to be entitled to the
share;

(2) The Company may receive the consideration, if any, given for | Title of purchaser and
the share on any sale, re-allotment or disposal thereof and may | transferee of forfeited
execute a transfer of the share in favour of the person to whom | shares
the share is sold or disposed of;

(3) The transferee shall thereupon be registered as the holder of the | Transferee to be registered
share; and as holder

(4) The transteree shall not be bound to see to the application of the | Transferee not affected
purchase money, if any, nor shall his title to the share be affected
by any irregularity or invalidity in the proceedings in reference
to the forfeiture, sale, re-allotment or disposal of the share.

50. Upon any sale after forfeiture or for enforcing a lien in exercise | Validity of sales

of the powers hereinabove given, the Board may, if necessary,
appoint some person to execute an instrument for transfer of the
shares sold and cause the purchaser’s name to be entered in the
register of members in respect of the shares sold and after his
name has been entered in the register of members in respect of
such shares the validity of the sale shall not be impeached by any
person.
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Upon any sale, re-allotment or other disposal under the
provisions of the preceding Articles, the certificate(s), if any,
originally issued in respect of the relative shares shall (unless the
same shall on demand by the Company has been previously
surrendered to it by the defaulting member) stand cancelled and
become null and void and be of no effect, and the Board shall be
entitled to issue a duplicate certificate(s) in respect of the said
shares to the person(s) entitled thereto.

Cancellation of share
certificate in respect of
forfeited shares

‘N
[89]

The Board may, subject to the provisions of the Act, accept a
surrender of any share from or by any member desirous of
surrendering them on such terms as they think fit.

Surrender of share
certificates

The provisions of these Articles as to forfeiture shallapply in the
case of non-payment of any sum which, by the terms of issue of
a share, becomes payable at a fixed time, whether on account of
the nominal value of the share or by way of premium, as if the
same had been payable by virtue of a call duly made and notified.

Sums deemed to be calls

The provisions of these Articles relating to forfeiture of shares
shall mutatis mutandis apply to any other securities including
debentures of the Company.

Provisions as to forfeiture
of shares to apply mutatis
mutandis to debentures, etc.

Alteration of capital

‘N
‘N

Subject to the provisions of the Act, the Company may, by
ordinary resolution —

(a) increase the share capital by such sum, to be divided into
shares of such amount as it thinks expedient;

(b) consolidate and divide all or any of its share capital into
shares of larger amount than its existing shares:

Provided that any consolidation and division which
results in changes in the voting percentage of members
shall require applicable approvals under the Act;

(c) convert all or any of its fully paid-up shares into stock,
and reconvert that stock into tully paid-up shares of any
denomination;

(d) sub-divide its existing shares or any of them into shares
of smaller amount than is fixed by the memorandum;

(e) cancel any shares which, at the date of the passing of the
resolution, have not been taken or agreed to be taken by
any person.

Power to alter share capital

Where shares are converted into stock:

(a) the holders of stock may transfer the same or any part
thereof in the same manner as, and subject to the same
Articles under which, the shares from which the stock
arose might before the conversion have been
transferred, or as near thereto as circumstances admit:

Shares may be converted
into stock
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Provided that the Board may. from time to time, fix the
minimum amount of stock transferable, so, however,
that such minimum shall not exceed the nominal amount
of the shares from which the stock arose;

(b)

the holders of stock shall, according to the amount of
stock held by them, have the same rights, privileges and
advantages as regards dividends, voting at meetings of
the Company. and other matters, as if they held the
shares from which the stock arose; but no such privilege
or advantage (except participation in the dividends and
profits of the Company and in the assets on winding up)
shall be conferred by an amount of stock which would
not, if existing in shares, have conferred that privilege
or advantage;

Right of stockholders

(c)

such of these Articles of the Company as are applicable
to paid-up shares shall apply to stock and the words
“share™ and ‘“shareholder”/“*member” shall include
“stock™ and “stock-holder™ respectively.

57. The Company may, by resolution as prescribed by the Act, | Reduction of capital
reduce in any manner and in accordance with the provisions of
the Act and the Rules, —
(a) its share capital; and/or
(b) any capital redemption reserve account; and/or
(c) any securities premium account; and/or
(d) any other reserve in the nature of share capital.
Joint Holders
58. Where two or more persons are registered as joint holders (not | Joint-holders

more than three) of any share, they shall be deemed (so far as the
Company is concerned) to hold the same as joint tenants with
benefits of survivorship, subject to the following and other
provisions contained in these Articles:

(a)

The joint-holders of any share shall be liable severally
as well as jointly for and in respect of all calls or
instalments and other payments which ought to be made
in respect of such share.

Liability of Joint-holders

(b)

On the death of any one or more of such joint-holders,
the survivor or survivors shall be the only person or
persons recognised by the Company as having any title
to the share but the Directors may require such evidence
of death as they may deem fit, and nothing herein
contained shall be taken to release the estate of a
deceased joint-holder from any liability on shares held
by him jointly with any other person.

Death of one or more joint-
holders

(c)

Any one of such joint holders may give eftectual
receipts of any dividends, interests or other moneys
payable in respect of such share.

Receipt of one sufficient
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(d) Only the person whose name stands first in the register | Delivery of certificate and
of members as one of the joint-holders of any share shall | giving of notice to first
be entitled to the delivery of certificate, if any, relating | named holder
to such share or to receive notice (which term shall be
deemed to include all relevant documents) and any
notice served on or sent to such person shall be deemed
service on all the joint-holders.

(e) (1) Any one of two or more joint-holders may vote at | Vote of joint-holders

any meeting either personally or by attomey or by
proxy in respect of such shares as if he were solely
entitled thereto and if more than one of such joint-
holders be present at any meeting personally or by
proxy or by attommey then that one of such persons
so present whose name stands first or higher (as the
case may be) on the register in respect of such
shares shall alone be entitled to vote in respect
thereof.
(i1) Several executors or administrators of a deceased | Executors or administrators
member in whose (deceased member) sole name | as joint holders
any share stands, shall for the purpose of this clause
be deemed joint-holders.
() The provisions of these Articles relating to joint holders | Provisions as to joint

of shares shall mutatis mutandis apply to any other
securities including debentures of the Company
registered in joint names.

holders as to shares to
apply mutatis mutandis to
debentures, etc.

Capitalisation of profits

59. (N The Company by ordinary resolution in general meeting may, | Capitalisation
upon the recommendation of the Board, resolve —
(a) that it is desirable to capitalise any part of the amount
for the time being standing to the credit of any of the
Company’s reserve accounts, or to the credit of the
profit and loss account, or otherwise available for
distribution; and
(b) that such sum be accordingly set free for distribution in
the manner specified in clause (2) below amongst the
members who would have been entitled thereto, if
distributed by way of dividend and in the same
proportions.
(2) The sum aforesaid shall not be paid in cash but shall be applied, | Sum how applied
subject to the provision contained in clause (3) below, either in
or towards :
(a) paying up any amounts for the time being unpaid on any

shares held by such members respectively;

(b)

paying up in full, unissued shares or other securities of
the Company to be allotted and distributed, credited as
fully paid-up, to and amongst such members in the
proportions aforesaid;
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(c) partly in the way specified in sub-clause (A) and partly
in that specified in sub-clause (B).

(3) A securities premium account and a capital redemption reserve

account or any other permissible reserve account may, for the

purposes of this Article, be applied in the paying up of unissued

shares to be issued to members of the Company as fully paid

bonus shares;

4) The Board shall give effect to the resolution passed by the

Company in pursuance of this Article.

60. (1) Whenever such a resolution as aforesaid shall have been passed, | Powers of the

the Board shall — Board for capitalization

(a) make all appropriations and applications of the amounts
resolved to be capitalised thereby, and all allotments and
issues of fully paid shares or other securities, if any; and

(b) generally do all acts and things required to give effect
thereto.

(2) The Board shall have power —

(a) to make such provisions, by the issue of fractional | Board's power to issue
certificates/coupons or by payment in cash or otherwise | fractional certificate /
as it thinks fit, for the case of shares or other securities | coupon etc.
becoming distributable in fractions; and

(b) to authorise any person to enter, on behalf of all the
members entitled thereto, into an agreement with the
Company providing for the allotment to them
respectively, credited as fully paid-up, of any further
shares or other securities to which they may be entitled
upon such capitalisation, or as the case may require, for
the payment by the Company on their behalf, by the
application thereto of their respective proportions of
profits resolved to be capitalised, of the amount or any
part of the amounts remaining unpaid on their existing
shares.

(3) Any agreement made under such authority shall be effective and | Agreement binding on
binding on such members. members
Buy-back of shares
61. Notwithstanding anything contained in these Articles but subject | Buy-back of shares

to all applicable provisions of the Act or any other law for the

time being in force, the Company may purchase its own shares

or other specified securities.

General meetings
62. All general meetings other than annual general meeting shall be | Extraordinary general
called extraordinary general meeting. meeting
63. The Board may, whenever it thinks fit, call an extraordinary
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general meeting.

extraordinary general

meeting

Proceedings at general meetings

64. (N No business shall be transacted at any general meeting unless a | Presence of Quorum
quorum of members is present at the time when the meeting
proceeds to business.

(2) No business shall be discussed or transacted at any general | Business confined to
meeting except election of Chairperson whilst the chair is vacant. | election of Chairperson

whilst chair vacant

3) The quorum for a general meeting shall be as provided in the Act. | Quorum for general

meeting
65. The Chairperson of the Company shall preside as Chairperson at | Chairperson of the
every general meeting of the Company. meetings
66. If there is no such Chairperson, or if he is not present within | Directors to elect a
fitteen minutes after the time appointed for holding the meeting, | Chairperson
or is unwilling to act as chairperson of the meeting, the directors
present shall elect one of their members to be Chairperson of the
meeting.
67. If at any meeting no director is willing to act as Chairperson or if | Members to elect a
no director is present within fifteen minutes after the time | Chairperson
appointed for holding the meeting, the members present shall, by
poll or electronically, choose one of their members to be
Chairperson of the meeting.
68. On any business at any general meeting, in case of an equality of | Casting vote of
votes, whether on a show of hands or electronically or on a poll, | Chairperson at general
the Chairperson shall have a second or casting vote. meeting
69. (1) The Company shall cause minutes of the proceedings of every | Minutes of proceedings of
general meeting of any class of members or creditors and every | meetings and resolutions
resolution passed by postal ballot to be prepared and signed in | passed by postal ballot
such manner as may be prescribed by the Rules and kept by
making within thirty days of the conclusion of every such
meeting concermed or passing of resolution by postal ballot
entries thereof in books kept for that purpose with their pages
consecutively numbered.

(2) There shall not be included in the minutes any matter which, in | Certain matters not to be
the opinion of the Chairperson of the meeting — included in Minutes
(a) is, or could reasonably be regarded, as defamatory of

any person; or
(b) 1s irrelevant or immaterial to the proceedings; or
(c) 1s detrimental to the interests of the Company.

3) The Chairperson shall exercise an absolute discretion in regard | Discretion of Chairperson
to the inclusion or non-inclusion of any matter in the minutes on | in relation to Minutes
the grounds specified in the aforesaid clause.

(4) The minutes of the meeting kept in accordance with the | Minutes to be evidence
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provisions of the Act shall be evidence of the proceedings
recorded therein.

70.

(1

The books containing the minutes of the proceedings of any
general meeting of the Company or a resolution passed by postal
ballot shall:

Inspection of minute books
of general meeting

(a) be kept at the registered oftice of the Company; and

(b) be open to inspection of any member without charge,
during 11.00 a.m. to 1.00 p.m. on all working days other
than Saturdays.

Any member shall be entitled to be furnished, within the time
prescribed by the Act, after he has made a request in writing in
that behalf to the Company and on payment of such fees as may
be fixed by the Board, with a copy of any minutes referred to in
clause (1) above:

Provided that a member who has made a request for provision of
a soft copy of the minutes of any previous general meeting held
during the period immediately preceding three financial years,
shall be entitled to be furnished with the same free of cost.

Members may obtain copy
of minutes

71.

The Board, and also any person(s) authorised by it, may take any
action before the commencement of any general meeting, or any
meeting of a class of members in the Company, which they may
think fit to ensure the security of the meeting, the safety of people
attending the meeting, and the future orderly conduct of the
meeting. Any decision made in good faith under this Article shall
be final, and rights to attend and participate in the meeting
concemed shall be subject to such decision. '

Powers to arrange security
at meetings

Adjournment of meeting

The Chairperson may, suo motu, adjourn the meeting from time
to time and from place to place.

Chairperson may adjourn
the meeting

No business shall be transacted at any adjourned meeting other
than the business left unfinished at the meeting from which the
adjournment took place.

Business at adjourned
meeting

3)

When a meeting is adjourned for thirty days or more, notice of
the adjourmed meeting shall be given as in the case of an original
meeting.

Notice of adjourned
meeting

(4)

Save as aforesaid, and save as provided in the Act, it shall not be
necessary to give any notice of an adjournment or of the business
to be transacted at an adjourned meeting.

Notice of adjourned
meeting not required

Voting rights

73.

Subject to any rights or restrictions for the time being
attached to any class or classes of shares —

(a) on a show of hands, every member present in person
shall have one vote: and

Entitlement to vote on
show of hands and on poll
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(b) on a poll, the voting rights of members shall be in
proportion to his share in the paid-up equity share
capital of the company.

74.

A member may exercise his vote at a meeting by electronic
means in accordance with the Act and shall vote only once.

Voting through electronic
means

75.

(1)

In the case of joint holders, the vote of the senior who tenders a
vote, whether in person or by proxy, shall be accepted to the
exclusion of the votes of the other joint holders.

Vote of joint-holders

For this purpose, seniority shall be determined by the order in
which the names stand in the register of members.

Seniority of names

76.

A member of unsound mind, or in respect of whom an order has
been made by any court having jurisdiction in lunacy, may vote,
whether on a show of hands or on a poll, by his committee or
other legal guardian, and any such committee or guardian may,
on a poll, vote by proxy. If any member be a minor, the vote in
respect of his share or shares shall be by his guardian or any one
of his guardians.

How members non compos
mentis and minor may vote

7

Subject to the provisions of the Act and other provisions of these
Articles, any person entitled under the Transmission Clause to
any shares may vote at any general meeting in respect thereof as
if he was the registered holder of such shares, provided that at
least 48 (forty eight) hours before the time of holding the meeting
or adjourned meeting, as the case may be, at which he proposes
to vote, he shall duly satisfy the Board of his right to such shares
unless the Board shall have previously admitted his right to vote
at such meeting in respect thereof.

Votes in respect of shares
of deceased or insolvent
members, etc.

78.

Any business other than that upon which a poll has been
demanded may be proceeded with, pending the taking of the poll.

Business may proceed
pending poll

79

No member shall be entitled to vote at any general meeting unless
all calls or other sums presently payable by him in respect of
shares in the Company have been paid or in regard to which the
Company has exercised any right of lien.

Restriction on voting rights

80.

A member is not prohibited from exercising his voting on the
ground that he has not held his share or other interest in the
Company for any specified period preceding the date on which
the vote is taken, or on any other ground not being a ground set
out in the preceding Article.

Restriction on exercise of
voting rights in other cases
to be void

81.

Any member whose name is entered in the register of members
of the Company shall enjoy the same rights and be subject to the
same liabilities as all other members of the same class.

Equal rights of members

Proxy

(1)

Any member entitled to attend and vote at a general meeting may
do so either personally or through his constituted attorney or
through another person as a proxy on his behalf, for that meeting.

Member may vote in
person or otherwise

(2)

The instrument appointing a proxy and the power-of-attorney or
other authority, if any, under which it is signed or a notarised

Proxies when to be
deposited
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copy of that power or authority, shall be deposited at the
registered office of the Company not less than 48 hours before
the time for holding the meeting or adjourned meeting at which
the person named in the instrument proposes to vote, and in
default the instrument of proxy shall not be treated as valid.

83. An instrument appointing a proxy shall be in the form as | Form of proxy
prescribed in the Rules.

84. A vote given in accordance with the terms of an instrument of | Proxy to be valid
proxy shall be valid, notwithstanding the previous death or | notwithstanding death of
insanity of the principal or the revocation of the proxy or of the | the principal
authority under which the proxy was executed, or the transfer of
the shares in respect of which the proxy is given:

Provided that no intimation in writing of such death, insanity,
revocation or transfer shall have been received by the Company
at its office before the commencement of the meeting or
adjourned meeting at which the proxy is used.

Board of Directors

85. Mr. Shekhar Bajaj [DIN 00089358], Mr. Sanjay Murarka [DIN | First Directors
02802918] and Mr. Samir Dhirajlal Shrimankar [DIN 02729100]
shall be first Directors of the Company.

86. Unless otherwise determined by the Company in general | Board of Directors
meeting, the number of directors shall not be less than 3 (three)
and shall not be more than 15 (fifteen).

87. (1) The Board shall have the power to determine the directors whose | Directors not liable to retire
period of office is or is not liable to determination by retirement | by rotation
of directors by rotation.

(2) The same individual may, at the same time, be appointed as the | Same individual may be
Chairperson of the Company as well as the Managing Director | Chairperson and Managing
or Chief Executive Officer of the Company. Director / Chief Executive

Officer

88. (D The remuneration of the directors shall, in so far as it consists of | Remuneration of directors
a monthly payment, be deemed to accrue from day-to-day.

2) The remuneration payable to the directors, including any | Remuneration to require
managing or whole-time director or manager, if any, shall be | members’ consent
determined in accordance with and subject to the provisions of
the Act by an ordinary resolution passed by the Company in
general meeting.

(3) In addition to the remuneration payable to them in pursuance of | Travelling and other

the Act, the directors may be paid all travelling, hotel and other
expenses properly incurred by them —

expenses

(a) in attending and returning from meetings of the Board
of Directors or any committee thereof or general
meetings of the Company; or

(b) in connection with the business of the Company.
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89. All cheques, promissory notes, drafts, hundis, bills of exchange | Execution of negotiable
and other negotiable instruments, and all receipts for monies paid | instruments
to the Company, shall be signed, drawn, accepted, endorsed, or
otherwise executed, as the case may be, by such person and in
such manner as the Board shall from time to time by resolution
determine.

90. @8] Subject to the provisions of the Act, the Board shall have power | Appointment of additional
at any time, and from time to time, to appoint a person as an | directors
additional director, provided the number of the directors and
additional directors together shall not at any time exceed the
maximum strength fixed for the Board by the Articles.

(2) Such person shall hold office only up to the date of the next | Duration of office of
annual general meeting of the Company but shall be eligible for | additional director
appointment by the Company as a director at that meeting subject
to the provisions of the Act.

91. (N The Board may appoint an alternate director to act for a director | Appointment of alternate
(hereinafter in this Article called “'the Original Director™) during | director
his absence for a period of not less than three months from India.

No person shall be appointed as an alternate director for an
independent director unless he is qualified to be appointed as an
independent director under the provisions of the Act.

2) An alternate director shall not hold office for a period longer than | Duration of office of
that permissible to the Original Director in whose place he has | alternate director
been appointed and shall vacate the office if and when the
Original Director returns to India.

3) If the term of office of the Original Director is determined before | Re-appointment provisions
he returns to India the automatic reappointment of retiring | applicable to Original
directors in default of another appointment shall apply to the | Director
Original Director and not to the alternate director.

92. () If the office of any director appointed by the Company in general | Appointment of director to
meeting is vacated before his term of office expires in the normal | fill a casual vacancy
course, the resulting casual vacancy may, be filled by the Board
of Directors at a meeting of the Board.

2) The director so appointed shall hold office only upto the date | Duration of oftice of
upto which the director in whose place he is appointed would | Director appointed to fill
have held office if it had not been vacated. casual vacancy

Powers of Board
93. The management of the business of the Company shall be vested | General powers of the

in the Board and the Board may exercise all such powers, and do
all such acts and things, as the Company is by the memorandum
of association or otherwise authorized to exercise and do, and,
not hereby or by the statute or otherwise directed or required to
be exercised or done by the Company in general meeting but
subject nevertheless to the provisions of the Act and other laws
and of the memorandum of association and these Articles and to
any regulations, not being inconsistent with the memorandum of
association and these Articles or the Act, from time to time made
by the Company in general meeting provided that no such
regulation shall invalidate any prior act of the Board which
would have been valid if such regulation had not been made.

Company vested in Board
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Proceedings of the Board

94, (1) The Board of Directors may meet for the conduct of business, | When meeting to be
adjourn and otherwise regulate its meetings, as it thinks fit. convened
(2) The Chairperson or any one Director with the previous consent | Who may summon Board
of the Chairperson may, or the company secretary on the | meeting
direction of the Chairperson shall, at any time, summon a
meeting of the Board.
3) The quorum for a Board meeting shall be as provided in the Act. | Quorum for Board
meetings
4) The participation of directors in a meeting of the Board may be | Participation at Board
either in person or through video conferencing or audio visual | meetings
means or teleconferencing, as may be prescribed by the Rules or
permitted under law.
95. (1) Save as otherwise expressly provided in the Act, questions | Questions at Board meeting
arising at any meeting of the Board shall be decided by a majority | how decided
of votes.
(2) In case of an equality of votes, the Chairperson of the Board, if | Casting vote of
any, shall have a second or casting vote. Chairperson at Board
meeting
96. The continuing directors may act notwithstanding any vacancy | Directors not to act when
in the Board; but, if and so long as their number is reduced below | number falls below
the quorum fixed by the Act for a meeting of the Board, the | minimum
continuing directors or director may act for the purpose of
increasing the number of directors to that fixed for the quorum,
or of summoning a general meeting of the Company, but for no
other purpose.
97. One of the Directors shall be the Chairperson of the Board of | Who to preside at meetings
Directors who shall preside at all meetings of the Board. Ifatany | of the Board
meeting the Chairperson is not present at the time appointed for
the meeting then the Directors present shall elect one of them as
Chairperson who shall preside.
98. (1) The Board may, subject to the provisions of the Act, delegate any | Delegation of powers
of its powers to Committees consisting of such member or
members of its body as it thinks fit.
(2) Any Committee so formed shall, in the exercise of the powers so | Committee to conform to
delegated, conform to any regulations that may be imposed on it | Board regulations
by the Board.
(3) The participation of directors in a meeting of the Committee may | Participation at Committee
be either in person or through video conferencing or audio visual | meetings
means or teleconferencing, as may be prescribed by the Rules or
permitted under law.
99. (1) A Committee may elect a Chairperson of its meetings unless the | Chairperson of Committee
Board, while constituting a Committee, has appointed a
Chairperson of such Committee.
(2) If no such Chairperson is elected, or if at any meeting the | Who to preside at meetﬁig-in
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Chairperson is not present within fifteen minutes after the time
appointed for holding the meeting, the members present may
choose one of their members to be Chairperson of the meeting.

of Committee

100. (1) A Committee may meet and adjourn as it thinks fit. Committee to meet
(2) Questions arising at any meeting of a Committee shall be | Questions at Committee
determined by a majority of votes of the members present. meeting how decided
3) In case of an equality of votes, the Chairperson of the Committee | Casting vote of
shall have a second or casting vote. Chairperson at Committee
meeting
101. All acts done in any meeting of the Board or of a Committee | Acts of Board or
thereof or by any person acting as a director, shall, | Committee valid
notwithstanding that it may be afterwards discovered that there | notwithstanding defect of
was some defect in the appointment of any one or more of such | appointment
directors or of any person acting as aforesaid, or that they or any
of them were disqualified or that his or their appointment had
terminated, be as valid as if every such director or such person
had been duly appointed and was qualified to be a director.
102. Save as otherwise expressly provided in the Act, a resolution in | Passing of resolution by

writing, signed, whether manually or by secure electronic mode,
by a majority of the members of the Board or of a Committee
thereof, for the time being entitled to receive notice of a meeting
of the Board or Committee, shall be valid and effective as if it
had been passed at a meeting of the Board or Committee, duly
convened and held.

circulation

Chief Executive Officer, Manager, Company Secretary and Chief Financial

Officer

103.

(1

Subject to the provisions of the Act, —

A chief executive officer, manager, company secretary and chief
financial officer may be appointed by the Board for such term, at
such remuneration and upon such conditions as it may think fit;
and any chief executive officer, manager, company secretary and
chief financial officer so appointed may be removed by means of
a resolution of the Board; the Board may appoint one or more
chief executive officers for its multiple businesses.

Chief Executive Officer,
etc.

(2)

A director may be appointed as chief executive officer, manager,
company secretary or chief financial officer.

Director may be chief
executive officer, etc.

Registers

104.

The Company shall keep and maintain at its registered oftice all
statutory registers namely, register of charges, register of
members, register of debenture holders, register of any other
security holders, the register and index of beneficial owners and
annual return, register of loans, guarantees, security and
acquisitions, register of investments not held in its own name and
register of contracts and arrangements for such duration as the
Board may, unless otherwise prescribed, decide, and in such
manner and containing such particulars as prescribed by the Act
and the Rules. The registers and copies of annual return shall be
open for inspection during 11.00 a.m. to 1.00 p.m. on all working

Statutory registers
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days, other than Saturdays, at the registered office of the
Company by the persons entitled thereto on payment, where
required, of such fees as may be fixed by the Board but not
exceeding the limits prescribed by the Rules.

105.

(D

The Company may exercise the powers conferred on it by the
Act with regard to the keeping of a foreign register; and the
Board may (subject to the provisions of the Act) make and vary
such regulations as it may think fit respecting the keeping of any
such register.

Foreign register

The foreign register shall be open for inspection and may be
closed, and extracts may be taken therefrom and copies thereof
may be required, in the same manner, mutatis mutandis, as is
applicable to the register of members.

The Seal

106.

The Board shall provide for the safe custody of the seal.

The seal, its custody and
use Affixation of seal

The seal of the Company shall not be atfixed to any instrument
except by the authority of a resolution of the Board or of a
Committee of the Board authorised by it in that behalf, and
except in the presence of at least one director or the manager, if
any, or of the secretary or such other person as the Board may
appoint for the purpose; and such director or manager or the
secretary or other person aforesaid shall sign every instrument to
which the seal of the Company is so affixed in their presence.

Dividends and Reserve

107.

The Company in general meeting may declare dividends, but no
dividend shall exceed the amount recommended by the Board but
the Company in general meeting may declare a lesser dividend.

Company in general
meeting may declare
dividends

108.

Subject to the provisions of the Act, the Board may from time to
time pay to the members such interim dividends of such amount
on such class of shares and at such times as it may think fit.

Interim dividends

109.

(1)

The Board may, before recommending any dividend, set aside
out of the profits of the Company such sums as it thinks fit as a
reserve or reserves which shall, at the discretion of the Board, be
applied for any purpose to which the profits of the Company may
be properly applied, including provision for meeting
contingencies or for equalising dividends; and pending such
application, may, at the like discretion, either be employed in the
business of the Company or be invested in such investments
(other than shares of the Company) as the Board may, from time
to time, think fit.

Dividends only to be paid
out of profits

The Board may also carry forward any profits which it may
consider necessary not to divide, without setting them aside as a
reserve.

Carry forward of profits

110.

(M

Subject to the rights of persons, if any, entitled to shares with
special rights as to dividends, all dividends shall be declared and
paid according to the amounts paid or credited as paid on the
shares in respect whereof the dividend is paid., but if and so long

Division of profits

134




as nothing is paid upon any of the shares in the Company,
dividends may be declared and paid according to the amounts of
the shares.

No amount paid or credited as paid on a share in advance of calls
shall be treated for the purposes of this Article as paid on the
share.

Payments in advance

(3)

All dividends shall be apportioned and paid proportionately to
the amounts paid or credited as paid on the shares during any
portion or portions of the period in respect of which the dividend
is paid; but if any share is issued on terms providing that it shall
rank for dividend as from a particular date such share shall rank
for dividend accordingly.

Dividends to be
apportioned

111.

The Board may deduct from any dividend payable to any
member all sums of money, if any, presently payable by him to
the Company on account of calls or otherwise in relation to the
shares of the Company.

No member to receive
dividend whilst indebted to
the Company and
Company'’s right to
reimbursement therefrom

The Board may retain dividends payable upon shares in respect
of which any person is, under the Transmission Clause
hereinbefore contained, entitled to become a member, until such
person shall become a member in respect of such shares.

Retention of dividends

(1)

Any dividend, interest or other monies payable in cash in respect
of shares may be paid by electronic mode or by cheque or warrant
sent through the post directed to the registered address of the
holder or, in the case of joint holders, to the registered address of
that one of the joint holders who is first named on the register of
members, or to such person and to such address as the holder or
joint holders may in writing direct.

Dividend how remitted

Every such cheque or warrant shall be made payable to the order
of the person to whom it is sent.

Instrument of payment

Payment in any way whatsoever shall be made at the risk of the
person entitled to the money paid or to be paid. The Company
will not be responsible for a payment which is lost or delayed.
The Company will be deemed to having made a payment and
received a good discharge for it if a payment using any of the
foregoing permissible means is made.

Discharge to Company

113. Any one of two or more joint holders of a share may give | Receipt of one holder
effective receipts for any dividends, bonuses or other monies | sufticient
payable in respect of such share.
114. No dividend shall bear interest against the Company. No interest on dividends
115. The waiver in whole or in part of any dividend on any share by | Waiver of dividends

any document (whether or not under seal) shall be effective only
if such document is signed by the member (or the person entitled
to the share in consequence of the death or bankruptcy of the
holder) and delivered to the Company and if or to the extent that
the same is accepted as such or acted upon by the Board.

Accounts
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116.

(1)

The books of account and books and papers of the Company, or
any of them, shall be open to the inspection of directors in
accordance with the applicable provisions of the Act and the
Rules.

Inspection by Directors

()

No member (not being a director) shall have any right of
inspecting any books of account or books and papers or
document of the Company except as conferred by law or
authorised by the Board.

Restriction on inspection
by members

Winding up

117.

Subject to the applicable provisions of the Act and the
Rules made thereunder —

(a) If the Company shall be wound up, the liquidator may, with
the sanction of a special resolution of the Company and any
other sanction required by the Act, divide amongst the
members, in specie or kind, the whole or any part of the
assets of the Company, whether they shall consist of
property of the same kind or not.

(b) For the purpose aforesaid, the liquidator may set such value
as he deems fair upon any property to be divided as aforesaid
and may determine how such division shall be carried out as
between the members or ditferent classes of members.

(c) The liquidator may, with the like sanction, vest the whole or
any part of such assets in trustees upon such trusts for the
benefit of the contributories if he considers necessary, but so
that no member shall be compelled to accept any shares or
other securities whereon there is any liability.

Winding up of Company

Indemnity and Insurance

118.

(1)

Subject to the provisions of the Act, every director, managing
director, whole-time director, manager, company secretary and
other officer of the Company shall be indemnified by the
Company out of the funds of the Company, to pay all costs,
losses and expenses (including travelling expense) which such
director, manager, company secretary and officer may incur or
become liable for by reason of any contract entered into or act or
deed done by him in his capacity as such director, manager,
company secretary or officer or in any way in the discharge of
his duties in such capacity including expenses.

Directors and officers right
to indemnity

Subject as aforesaid, every director, managing director, manager,
company secretary or other officer of the Company shall be
indemnified against any liability incurred by him in defending
any proceedings, whether civil or criminal in which judgement is
given in his favour or in which he is acquitted or discharged or
in connection with any application under applicable provisions
of the Act in which relief is given to him by the Court.

3)

The Company may take and maintain any insurance as the Board
may think fit on behalf of its present and/or former directors and
key managerial personnel for indemnifying all or any of them
against any liability for any acts in relation to the Company for

Insurance
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which they may be liable but have acted honestly and reasonably.

General Power

119. Wherever in the Act, it has been provided that the Company shall | General power
have any right, privilege or authority or that the Company could
carry out any transaction only if the Company is so authorized
by its articles, then and in that case this Article authorizes and
empowers the Company to have such rights, privileges or
authorities and to carry out such transactions as have been
permitted by the Act, without there being any specific Article in
that behalf herein provided.

Clause 3A inserted w.e.f May 12, 2023, pursuant to the approval granted by the shareholders of the Company in
their Extra-Ordinary General Meeting held on May 12, 2023.
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SECTION IX - OTHER INFORMATION
MATERIAL CONTRACTS AND DOCUMENTS FOR INSPECTION

Copies of the following documents will be available for inspection at the Registered Oftice of our Company between
11:00 a.m. to 1:00 p.m. on any day (except Saturday, Sunday and public holidays) from the date of filing of the
Information Memorandum with the Stock Exchanges until the listing of Equity Shares on the Stock Exchanges.

l.  Memorandum and Articles of Association of the Company, as amended till date.
2. Certificate of incorporation of our Company dated January 19, 2022.

3. Scheme of Arrangement between BEL and our Company and their respective shareholders as approved by the
NCLT on March 2, 2023.

4. Certified copy of the order passed by the NCLT in Company Application No. 4.CA(CAA)/286/MB/2022 and
in Company Petition No. C.P.(CAA)/106/MB/2023 pronounced on June 8, 2023, approving the Scheme.

5. Letters issued by BSE and NSE under Regulation 37 of the SEBI Listing Regulations, bearing reference no.
DCS/AMAL/MIJ/1P/2584/2022-23 dated December 2, 2022, and NSE/LIST/30157 II dated December 5,2022,
respectively, according ‘no-objection’ to the Scheme.

6.  Tripartite Agreement with NSDL, Registrar and Transfer Agent and the Company dated February 18, 2022.

7.  Tripartite Agreement with CDSL, Registrar and Transfer Agent and the Company dated February 18, 2022.

8.  Undertaking cum indemnity letters dated November 10, 2023 executed by the Company in favour of the
Demerged Company.

Any of the contracts or documents mentioned in the Information Memorandum may be amended or modified at any
time if so required in the interest of the Company or if required by the other parties, without reference to the
shareholders subject to compliance with the provisions contained in the Companies Act and other relevant statutes.
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DECLARATION

We hereby declare that all relevant provisions of the Companies Act, 2013 and the guidelines/regulations issued by
the Government of India or the guidelines/regulations issued by the Securities and Exchange Board of India,
established under section 3 of the Securities and Exchange Board of India Act, 1992, as the case may be, have been
complied with and no statement made in the Information Memorandum is contrary to the provisions of the
Companies Act, 2013, the Securities and Exchange Board of India Act, 1992 or rules made or guidelines or
regulations issued there under, as the case may be. We further certify that all statements made in this Information
Memorandum are true and correct.

| ]
¥

Name: Mr. Ajay Nagle
Designation: Executive Director, Secretary and Chief Compliance Officer

Place: Mumbai
Date: December 08, 2023
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